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Altira Macau - 4-time winner of "Forbes Travel Guide” 5-5tar Hotel and Spa (2010-2013)







The largest non-casino-based operations of electronic gaming machines in Macau




Financial Highlights

Net revenues
US$4.08
billion

Met revanues for the yaar ended
Decambxer 31, 2012 wera US54.08
billon, an increase of US$0.25 billion,
or 4.5%, as comparad with US53.83
billion for the year endad Decambaer
31,201

Mistoo Crown Entertainment Limited

Net income
UsS$417.2
million

Met income attributable to

Mealco Crown Entertainment was
US5417.2 million for the year ended
Decambar 31, 2012, as comparad
with nat incomae of US52%4.7 millicn
far the year endad Dacember 31,
2011,

Annual Repor 2012

Basic nef
income per Share

US$0.254

Basic net income per Share
attributable to Malco Crown
Entartainment was US500254 for the
year ended Decembear 31, 2012
compared to basic nat incoma
par Share of US50.184 for the yaar
ended Decembear 31, 2011,

Adjusted EBITDA
US$920.2
million

Adjusted EBITDA for the year endad
December 31, 2012 was US5920.2
milion, reprasanting an incraase of
US5110.8 million, or 13.7%, comparad
to US5809.4 milion for tha yaar
anded Decamber 31, 2011,






Market Overview and Key Highlights
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Key Highlights

studio City

The developrmert of Studic City remairs on track with the maojority of the
foundation and piling complete and is axpected to open in mid-2015 Sudio
City. the Company’s next integrated rasort in Cotal Mocou. will further
evpond the Company’s already substontiadl exposure to the mass markat
sagmaents with s unique. cinematically-themed dasign ond numarous
interactive affractions which will further diversify Macou's leisure and tourism

offerings.

The Company alse sucoassfully raisad US5E25.0 milion under the Studio City
Notes offeding and signed the facilities ogresment with the lead aranging
banks in relation to the USS1 .4 billon Studio City senior secured facilifies. both
of which were achisved without @ coporate guarantas from the Company.
Tegether with the full contribution of committed shareholder aquity. thase
financings upen ful drawdown are expected to deliver a fuly funded project
at the Studie City leval. Our funding approach for Studio City, together with
our fxed-price, ump-sum. controcting shotegy provides us with greater
cartainty regarding cost and timing for the project.

City of Dreams
Cpaning of Hord Rock Cofe: In February 201 2 we openaed the first Hard Rock
Cafe n Macau, binging an excting and diffsranticted ertertainmeant and

food and bevarage offering to the market.




City of Dreams, Signotwe Club: During the second quorter of 2012 we
cpenad our Néw premium mas gaming area at City of Dreams, lecated
in the lobby of Grand Hyoht Macou, delivering to our key customers o
customized and luricus gaming axpanancea, solidifying our dominanca in
this key segment and sefting a new standard for premium mass gaming in

Macou

Toboo show: In July 2012 City of Dreaoms delivered another uniqus
entartainment offaring to Mocau, with a limited-nun, cabarat shyle show
at Club Cubic, This Fronco Drogone inspred show demorstrates our
commitmeant to further diversify the lelsure and entertainment opfions

available to visitors to Macou,

Philippines Development

In October 2012, we, through our wholly-owred subsidiary, MCE Leisure
Philippines. completed the signing of the cooperation agreement with the
Philippine Parties for the development and operation of the Philppines
Praject.

The Philippines Project is expected to open in mid-2014 and have 1,451 dot
machings and 242 gaming tablas, sic hotel towears with approdimataly 967
racms in aggregate, including VIP and five-star lueury reoms and high-end
boutique hoteld rooms, five specialty restourants along with a number of bors
and a mutidavel cor park. The Philippines Project s also expacted to feature
thres seporate entertainment verues, including o Fomily Enterbainment

Center, a live performance centrd lounge within the casine and a night

Annel Repod 2012

club encopsuated within the Forlune Egg, an atfractive domelike structurs,

which will be accented with credtive external lighting and is expected to
becomea a canterplace affraction of the Philippines Project. Construction has

commeanced on the connecting structure, including piling works.

The Company alse acguired o majorty ownership stake in MCP in December
20012 which is the vahicla through which the Company will devalap and
operate the Philippines Project. MCP has recently announced its infention
to undartaks a topup placameant which will includa tha offer and sals of
common sharas of MCP together with an over-allotrment option The top-up
placamant and over-diotmeant option are both dapandant on, among othsr
things. approval from the board of directors of MCP and the Phlippine Stock
Exchangs.



The Philippines Project is expected fo diversify the Company's exposure to
the rapidly developing Asian gaming and entertainmeant industry, anabling
Melco Crown Entertainment to further participate in the growth in the Asian
middle class and the incraasing consumersm of this important target market,

MCP's net contribution towards the project up to the time of opening is
astimated to be opproximately US5620 million, consisting of funds primarily
for capital expenditures, working capital for initial gpening and other pra-
opening expensas. However, this estimate may be revised depending on a
range of variablas, including the final dasign and developmeant plans, funding
costs, the availability of financing on terms acceptable to us, and prevailing
market conditions. We are considering differant alternativas to finonce the
project. including but not limited to debt and equity financing.

Other Recent Developments

The Company recantly successfully rased a US$1 bilion high yield bond at an
attractive 5% coupon, with the proceeds used to epurchase the 2010 Senior
Motas and fund the ralatad redemption costs, with the remainder of the nat
procesds to fund the partial repayment of the RMB Bonds. The refinancing
will, camnongg othar things, rsult in lower future interast charges and recduced
covanants.

Annucl Reporlt 2012 Medoo Crown Endericinment Umided 7



Co-Chairman & Chief
_I_-I__>_§ecufive Officer’s S_t_g_tg_rpen_f_m

Melco Crown Entertainment has achieved numerous key milestones in 2012,
accomplishing another year of record financial and operaling mefrics and
significant strategic milestones in Macau and beyond. Locally, the development
of our cinematically-themed integrated resort Studio City is progressing well,
and on track to open in the middle of 2015. Beyond Macau, we have recently
closed the transaction with our Philippine counterparties contemplated under the
cooperdtion agreament for the developrment of an integrated resort in Manila, a
major development in our strategy to participate in the growth in this exciting and
rapidly developing emerging market. We also continue fo evaluate our plans in
relation to the next phase of expansion at City of Dreams, providing the Company
with a meaningful future earnings driver which is expected to expand property-
wide returns.




Our flogship property. City of Dreams, recorded a significont yearoveryear
improvament in operafing fundamantals, with particularly strong growth in
mass markat volumes and mass table games hold percentage. Our mass
market table games gross goming revenues per table ot City of Dreams
continue to outparform all other major properties in Macaw, while our
gross gaming revenues per table in the roling chip segmant at both Altia
Macou and City of Dreams have shown meaningful improvements in the
latter stages of 2012, Cur expanding premism customer base enables s fo
genarate highar levek of revanus with fewer mass market tablas on our mass
market flogrs, which is critical in a fired toble supply ervironment.

Studie City moves closer fo realization, with the majority of foundation and
piling work now complete, We have alo secured financing for Studic City on
favorable terms which, fogether with our fisad-price lump-sum contracting
strategy. providaes us with gradatar canainty regarding cost and timaline. With
a focws on the mass markst, this new integrated resort in Cotai will deliver
synargies with Melco Crown Enterainment’s existing assels and expand
our non-gaming offerngs. including through the introduction of unigue
interactive entertainment rides and attractions.

In the Philppinas, we have alio recently completed the acquisition of a
mogority interast in Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Comoration (formenty
known as Manchaster International Holdings Unlimited Comporation). a
company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchangs, following the successtul
closing of the cooperation agreemeant with our Philippine counterpartias.
Wa are confident that the Philippines market offers a unigue opportunity
to generate an incremental and diversified eamings stream, as well as
provides a platform for our further expansion throughaout Asia. The integrated
casino rasort Is schedulad to open in mid-201 4. We are excited to work with
our walkragarded and reputable Philppine counterparties, including Belle
Corporation of the SM Group, cne of the leading developers of high-and
rasidential and lelsure properties in the Philppines. to bring this exciting new
intagrated resort to realzation.

While we have mode significant progress in expanding our development
opportunities, we maintain a strong focus on our current corg opeardting
assats in Macaou, Our worldclass waterbased exrovagonza, The House
of Dancing Water confinued its overwhalming success in the past yeor
and, since its debut in September 2010, has entartained nearly heo million
gpactators. We have also proudly prasented numerous enterfdinment
performances including the cobaret experience Taboo and Greater China’s
first exchlusive perdormance of Korean pop sensation PSY.

Locking aheod, we are buoyont about the outiook of Mocou seeing
tha strong progress in tarms of immigration policy and  transportation
infeastruciure in Macou and the surounding region. The constrection of
the Macau Light Rail system. the Macou-Ihuhai-Hong Kong Bridge and the
upcoming opening of the Taipa Fary Terminal confinue to prograss, which
will meaningfully improve visitors' experience through more convenient and
afficient access to Macouw, The growing number of visitors from provinces
farthar afield than Guangdong and the impressive expansion of Heanggin
Island will ako increase viitation to Macow Qur development pipsling,
inchuding Studic Ciy and our sxpansion plan of City of Dreams, to be
completed during the next few yaars, ae expected to participate in, and
confribute 1o, the kng-term sustainable growth of Macau as it becomes a
leading leisure and tourism destination in Asia,

Lastly, we would like to thank our Board of Directors, shareholders, employess
and business asociates for their continuous support. We strive to exercise
strong leadership, deliver excaellence in exacution and innovative craativity
ocross all of our businesses, in ordar o bring a world-class expearience to our
customers and ultimately, to generate long-term value to our sharsholders
and our community.

Lawrence Yau Lung He

Co-Chalrman and Chief Executive Officer

Annucl Repord 2012 Melco Crown Endertcinment Lmided @
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Cur Mocho Clubs comprise the largest non-casine bosed operatiors of
alactronic garming machines in Mecou and are located in areas with strong
padastian traffic, typically within thres-star hotels. We may open additional
Mocha Clubs ot lecations that satisfy the criteria set forth in the applicoble
reguiatory requirements.

In addition to slot machinas, each Mocha Club site offers alectronic fables
without dedlars. The gaming facilities at our Mocha Clubs include what we
believe is the latest technology for gaming machines and offer both single-
ployer machines with a variety of games. Including progressive jockpots, and
mfti-pleryar gamas whane players on Enked machines play against the house
in elactionic roulette, baccarat and sicbe. a traditional Chinasa dice game,

Studio City

Wa ara currantly devaloping Studic City, d lange-scale cinamaticaly-thamead
intagrated entertainment, retall and gaming rasert which & expacted to
open around mid-2015. Studic City upon completion will include significant
gaming copacity, five-star hotel offerings ond various enfertainment, retail
and food and beverage outlets to affract a diverse range of cusformers.
Studio City s dasigread to capture the increcsingly important mass markat
segment, with its destination theming, unique and innovative interactive
attractions, and strong Asian foous.

The Studic City's site 5 on a plet of land of 130739 square metars
(approximataly 1.4 milion square feet) in Cotal, Macou and i located
dirsctly adiocent to the Lotus Bridge immigration checkpeint and ong of the
proposed light ol stations. The location of Studie City, in addition to its vost
aray of entertainment and lakure offerings, B a key compeatitive advantage,
in Gur vigw

Shedio City has an approved gross construction area of 707.078 square
maters, approximataly 7.6 millen squara fest. We currantly astimate on a
praliminary basis that the design and construction cost for Studio City will be
approximately US52.04 bilion.
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The Company successfully roised US$825 milion under cur Studio City MNotes
offaring and signed the facilifies agreemeant with the lead aranging banks
in relation to USS1.4 bilion Studio City senicr securad facilities, both of which
were achieved without a coporate guarantes from the Company. Together
with full confribution of committed shareholder equity. these financings,
upon full drowdown, ore expected to deliver o fully funded project ot the
Studio City leval. This funding approach, togethar with a fised pricae, umz-
surn, contracting strategy providas Melco Crown Entertainmant with graatar
carainty regarding cost and timetable,

O July 25, 2012 an ameandmant 1o the Studic City land concession contract,
enterad into between the Macau SAR and Studio City Devealopments Limited
("Studic City Developments”). an indirect subsidiary of our Company
{"Land Ceoncession Contract™) was published in the Macou Official Gorette.
In accordance with the Land Concassion Contract, which was onginally
publshed in the Macou Official Gazette on October 17, 2001, Studic City
Developments will laase the Studio City land for 25 years from such date with
the right to successively renew the Land Concession Contract for additional
petiods, subject to applicable legikation.

Philippines Project

We have recently entered in to a cooperation agreement, through our
wholly-owned subsidiany, with the Philippine Parties in melation to the
devalopment of the Fhilppines Project. Once completed, the Philippines
Project is sxpected to be one of the Philippines’ leading integrated tourism
resorts in Entertainmeant City ot the time of its plonned opening in mid-2014.
is located on on approximately &.2-hectare site in Entertainment City . Manila,
closa to Matro Manila's intemational alpot and central business districts.
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Corporate Citizenship
and Responsible Gaming

Malce Crown Entertainment’s comporate social resporsibility stratagy is fo
focus on the social issuas in Macau and to be a lang-term partner with local
charity organizations to faclitate solutions through innovative programs and
support, youth, education, women, culfure, arvironment and responsible
gaming ara the kay focus areas in addition to philonthrople support of
warious charity causes.

Development of pecple, especially lbeal Macou emploveas, & a kay
contribution to the long-term sustainability of Macou, where labor Bsues
ara at the forefront. Mekco Crown Ertertainment’s Laaming Acadeamy. the
first indhouse leaming facility in Macouw wos kaunched in 2009 and through
its "whala person” developmeant approach, providas a wide variety of
courses In management, finance, marketing and Ifestyle coursas. Its “50/2010
Action”. a commitment to have over 50% of its management positions 1o be
held by kool Mocou pecple by the end of 2010, surpassed s goal from its
incaption in 2008, Malco Crown Entamtainment has abo anabled high schaol
diplomas thiough a creative approach in partneship with the Dapartrment
of Education, o first of its kind program created to support one of the key
Initictivas of the Macou governmant to encowrage high school groduates.
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As a socially-responsible company, Malco Crown Enterfainment endaavers
to be environmantally-resporsible. In racognition of cur Compary’s effort in
envircnmental protection and leadership in deploying environmental-friendly
facilties and equipmeant in our oparations, City of Draams was the firstever
faciity In Macau to attain Indoor Environmental Quality Certification, and at
the same tima, the thres hotels in City of Dreams, namely Crown Towers, Hard
Rock Hotel and Grond Hyott Macow were honored with the “2010 Macao
Grasn Hotal Award” in June 2011,

Rasponsible Gaming & also a core program in which all employess recaive
training as part of sccial responsibility development, and Meko Crown
Entertanmeant works closely with the Macau government and professional
counsaling services fo promote responsible goming proctices to our

amployass, our customers and the public,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary of Financial Results

For the year ended December 21, 2002 ow totd net revenues were USS4.02
billon. an increase of 4.5% from USS3.83 billion of net revenues for the year
ended Decamber 31, 2011, Net income athibutable to our Company for
the year ended December 31, 2012 was US5417.2 milicn, a: compared to a
net income of US3224.7 milion for the year ended Decamber 31, 2011, The

Increms in totd net revenues was primaiily driven by substartially imnproved

wiedl

mass market table games velurmes and blended hold percentoges

as Increased volumes in the gaming machines operations, particlly offset by

lwier QNG e ralling chipy wolurmes,
Year Endad Decamber 31,
w2 20N 2000
(in thousands of USS) Our results of operations for the years presented are not fully cormparable for
. & AQTR AR ARA BT & DAL OF
[ESnLIes $ 4078012 § 3830847 § 2641974 the following recsons:
fotal opercting costs and epensas AT0%213 (3.3 7 (2.549.454)
Operating income 507,092 445,110 22512
= g * : = . On July 11, we acquired o 80% equity inferest in 5C1, the developer
oss) attributabls to 3
: 2 e i of Studio City.
Medeo Crown Entertainment 3 417208 5§ 294650 5 (T0525)

+ On Mowernbver 24, 2012, Studie City FAinance lssued the Studio City Motes.

» On Decarrber 19, 2012 we cormplated the acquistion of a mdority

interest in the ssued share capitd of MCR

[} Maina S Enfeainmeant Unked  Andiil Repo 201



Factors Affecting Our Current and Future Results
Our results of operations are and will be affected most significantly by

. The growth of the gaming ond lelure market in Macau. which Is
facilitated by a numbser of key drivers and iniflathves including, amaong
ofhats, favorable populafion demographlcs and economle growth
In mogor Asican tourisam markels, substanticl private capital imeashmeant
In Macau parficularly in developing  diversifled  desfination  resort
propetfies, and the commitment and support of PRC cental and
Macau local governments to Improve and develop infrastuchee both

within, and connacting 1o, Macau;

- The cuntent economic and opaating endronmeant, incheding the mgoct
of global and lecal economibe condifions. changes In capltal market
conditions as wall as he impact of visa and ofther regulatory policias of
PRC

entrd and Macau local govemnmenis:

*  The compeliive londscape In Macau, which s expected o evolve
ds mofe gaming and non-gaming faciliies ae developad in Maco,
Including the expected new supply of integrated resorts In the Cotal
region af Macdall as weall as the impact of recent of fulule axpansion of

gaming markets throughout Asia;

+  The different mix of table and machine games at our casinos, such as
the mix betwean rolling chip and mass markel lable gome segments.

and customer playing habits as well as changes in the mix of 1olling

chip business sourced through goming promoters of via our direct VIP

redationships:
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and & often used interchangeably with the Potoca in Macou while
our expenses are denominated predominantly in Patacas, In addition,
a significant portion of our Indebtednass, as a result of the 2010 Senior
Motes, 2013 Senior Notes and Studio City Notes, and cerfain expenses,
have been and are denominated in US dollars, and the costs
associated with servicing and repaying such deabt will be danominated
in U3 dollars, We also have o significant porion of our assets and
Eobilties denominated in Renminbi as a result of our RMB Bondcs and the
associated restricted cash bakances. The costs incurred with servicing
and repaying such debt will be denominated in Renminbi.

Any significant fuctuations in the exchange rates batweean HK. dallars
of Pataces to US dollars may have a matenal advarse affect on our
revanues and financial condition.

We accept foraign cumancias from our customens and s at Decambar
31, 2012, in addition fo HEK. dolkars and Patacas, we hold a nominal
amount of other foreign currencies. However any forelgn exchange risk
axposure associated with those curmencies is minimal.

We have not engaged In hedging transactions with respact to foraign
axchange exposure of our revenuss and expenses in our day-to-
day operations during the years anded Decembar 31, 2012 and 2011.
Irstead. wa maintain a cartain amount of our operating funds in the
same cumencies in which we have cbligations. thersby reducing our

See note 11 to the consolidated financial statements included
glsewhere in this annual report for further detais mloted fo owr
indebtednass and foreign curency exposure as of Decernber 31, 2012,

Major currenciss in which our cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash hald as ot December 31, 2012 are U.S. dollars, HK. dollars, Renminki,
New Taiwan dollars, Philippine Peso and Patacas, Based on the
balances of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash balances
{gxchuding restricted casth balances from the RMB2.3 billion in procesds
from the RMB Bonds, for which currency fluctuations will be offset by
the associated curency fluctuations of RME Bonds) as of Decamber 31,
2012 and 2011, an assumed 1% change in the exchange rates betwean
currancias other than LS. dollars against the US. dallars would cause
a maximumn foraign transaction gain or loss of opprodmately USS18.3
milllizn and US$11.3 million for the years endad December 31, 2012 and
2011, respactivaly.

Baged on the balonces of kengtem debt denominated in curencies
other than WS, dollars and mastricted cash from the RME2.3 bilion in
proceads from the RMB Bonds as of December 21, 2012 and 2011, an
assumed 1% change in the exchange rates between HIL dollars or
Renminbi against the LS. dollar would cause a foreign fransaction gain
or kess of approximately U531 3.7 milicn for both years ended December
31,2012 and 2011,

exposure to curency fluctuations. However we occasionally enter info Our historical financial results may not be characteristic of owr potential
foreign exchange transoctions as part of finoncing transoctions and  future results as we continue to expand and refine our service offerings ot owr

copital expenditure programs. properties and develop and open new properties.
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls)
Wea e the fallowing KPis 1o evalucte o oosing oparations, inchuding table

garmes and gaming machines:

- Rolfing chip volume: the amourd of non-negoficble chips wagered and
last by the relling chip market segment.

. Roffig chip win rate: relling chip fable gomes win as a percentage of
rallirg chip walurme,

* Mass market table games drop: the ameunt of table games drop in the
mass market table games segment

+  Mass market fable games hold percentage: mass market fable gomes
win 05 O peccantage of mass market tatle gomes diop.

- Table games win: the amount of wagers won net of wagers lost on

gorming tables that ks retained and recordsed Qs cosing revenuss.

. Gamdng maching handle (volume) the fotal amount wagered in
Sarndng rachirmes,
. Gamdng maching win rafe; goming maoachine win espressed s a

parcentage of goming machine handle.

In the roling chip market segrent. custorners purchose Identifiable chips
knram 4 non-negotiable chips. or rolling chips rom thea caling cage. and
there Is no depeodt inte a gaming table’s drop bax of rdling chips purchased
frarm the cage. Roling chip volume and mass makest tatls gomes drop are
not aqguivalent. Rolling chip volume |5 a measse of amounts wagered and
lost, Mass market table gomes drop measures buy in Reling chip volume
la generally substonticlly higher than mass market table games diop. As
these volames are the denominotor wed in calodating win rote o hold
percentage. with the some we of gaming win as the rumerator. the win
rate is genesally lowsr in the roling chip markst segment than the hold

percarfage in the mass markaet table gormes segment.

Our combined expected roling chip win rate (cacdated before discounts
and commissions) ocrass our properties is in the range of 2.7% to 3.08. Our
combined expected moss market table gomes hold percentage i in the
range of 25% to 30%, which is based on the mix of table games ot our casino
propedies as each table garne hoe its cwn theotatical hold pedcentage. Gur
combined expected goming machine win rate is in the ronge of 4% to &%,



Wa use the following KPis o evaluate our hotel operations:

+  Averoge daily rate: calculated by dividing total room revenues (less
sarvice charges, if any) by total rooms eccupled, ie. average price of
cooupied rooms per day.

- Cecupancy iate: the average percentage of available hotel rooms
occupied during o period.

*  Revenue per avoiioble room, or REVPAR: caloulated by dividing total
room revenues (less service charges, if any) by total roems available,
tharaby represanting a combination of hotel average daily reom ratas
and cooupancy.

Complimentary reoms, for which rates are set at a discourt from standard
walk-in rates, are included in the calculation of these measures. As not all
availchle reoms are occupied, average daily room rates are normally higher

than revenue par available reom.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year
Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues

Owr total net revanues for the year ended Decambar 31, 2012 were USS4.08
billion, an incraass of USS0.25 bilion, or 6.5%, from USS$3.83 billion for tha yaar
ended December 31, 2011. The increase in total net revenuess was prmarity
drivan by substantially improved mass market table games volumeas and

blended hold percentages. as well as increased volumes in the gaming
machines operations, partially offsat by lower group-wide rolling chip
volumes,

Cur total net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 comprised
USS3.93 bilion of casinoe revenuss mpresenting 96.5% of owr total net
revenues, and US5143.3 milion of net non-casing revenuss (total non-casino
revenues after deduction of promotional allowances). Our total net revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2011 comprised US53.68 bilion of casino
ravenuas, reprasanting 96.0% of our total net revenues, and US$151.4 million

of net non-Casing revenues.

Casino. Casine revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 were
US$3.93 bilion, reprasanting a US$0.25 billion, or 4.9%, incraase from casing
revenues of US$3.68 bilion for the yeor ended December 31, 2011, primarily
due 1o an increass in casing revanues at City of Dreams of US5432.3 milion,
or 18.4%, which was parficlly offset by a decrecse in casing revenues ot Altira
Macau of USS207 3 million, of 17.9%. This increase was primarily attributable
to a substantial growth in the mass market table gomes segment, particularty
at City of Dreams, driven by improvemants in both the mass market table
gamas hokd percentage together with increcsed mass market table games
drop, Cur mass market table games revanues continue to improve reflacting
the success of o range of goming fioor efficiency infiatives, improved casing
visitation and casing marketing initiatives, togathar with a strong ovarall
miarkat growth anvironment in the segmeant.
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Afting Mocou. Altira Mocou's roling chip volume for the yeor ended
December 31, 2012 was US$4d.0 bllion, representing a decrease of USS7.2
billion. or 14,1%, from US$51.2 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Altira Macou's roling chip volumes were impocted by the recent slow-down
in 4he market-wids rolling chip segment as well a3 various group-wide table
afficiency inftiatives which, among other things. resultad in a reduction in the
number of wlling chip goming tables in opearation at Altira Macou for the
year ended December 31, 20012 when compared to 20011, Rolling chip win
rate (calkculated before discounts and commissions) was 2.89% for the year
ended December 31, 2012, within our expected level of 2.7% to 3.0%, and
dacraassd from 3.03% for the year ended Decambar 31, 2011, In the mass
rcirkat fable games sagment, mass market table games drop was US5601.4
million for the year anded Decamber 31, 2012 reprasenting an increase
of 3.4% from US$581.8 million for the year anded Decembear 31, 2011. The
miciss market table games hold percentage was 16.7% for the year ended
Dacamber 31, 2012, within our expectad range for that year of 15.0% te 17.0%
and represented a slight incraase from 16.6% for the year anded Decembar
31,2001

City of Dreams. City of Dreams’ rolling chip velume for the year ended
Dacamber 31, 2012 of US481.3 billlon reprasantad an increcse of USSRS
billion, or 3.2%, from US578.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011,
Reling chip win rate (calculated before discounts and commissions) was
2.92% for the year ended December 31, 2012, which & within ow expacted
range of 2.7% to 3.0%, and shightly improved from 2.89% for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2011, In the mass market table games segment, mass markat
table games drop was USS35% bilion for the yeor ended December 31,
2012 which represented on increase of US80.85 billion. or 22.0%, from US32.94
billion for the yvear ended December 31, 2011, The increase in mass markat
table games drop was positivaly impactad by an increass in casino visitation
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and improvements in casino marketing initiatives, together with the owerall
market growth in the mass market table gomes segment. The mass market
table gomes hold percentage was 29.1% in the year ended December 21,
2012 which is within our expected range for that year of 25.0% to 31.0%
and demonstrated a significant incraase from 24.4% for the year endad
Decamber 31, 2011. Average net win per gaming machine per day was
US5313 for the year ended December 31, 2012 an increcase of USS45, or 16.8%
from LS5268 for the year endad Decembar 31, 2011,

Mocha Chibs. Mocha Clubs” average net win per gaming mochine per
dey for the year ended Decembear 31, 2012 was US5188, a decracse of
approdmately USS31, or 14.3%, from USS217 for the yaar ended Decambear
31, 2011, The average net win per gaming machine was impactad by the
addition of over 500 gaming machines as a result of the opaning of two new
Mocha Clubs venues in late 2011 and early 2012, The number of gaming
machings in oparation at Mocha Clubs averaged approximataly 2,100 for the
year encad December 31, 2012 compared to approximately 1,700 in 2011,

Rooms. Room reverues for the year ended December 31, 2012 were
USS118.0 million, represanting a USS15.1 million, or 14.4%, increase from rcom
ravanues of USS103.0 millizn for the yaar ended Decambrar 31, 2011 primariy
due to improved occupancy and the positve impact from the increase
in averaga daily rate. Altira Macou's avarage daily rate, ccoupancy rate
and REVPAR weare US5221, 98% and U55216, respectively. for the year ended
December 31, 2012, as comparad fo US5156 98% and USS191, respectively.
for the year ended December 31, 2011, City of Dreams” average daily rate,
ccoupancy rate and REVPAR were US3185 93% and USS171, respectivaly
for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to USS172, 1% and
U551 54, respectively. for the year ended December 31, 2011,



Food, beveroge ond ofhers. Ofher non-casino revenuas for the year endad

milEon,

Dacambar 31, 2012 includad food and beverage revenuas of US$

and tertainment, retall and other revent

s of approximately US$90.8

million, Other non-casind evenues for the yaar anded December 31, 2011

Included food ond beverage revenues of US561.6 milllon. and enterfainmeant.

ail and other revenues of aporoximataly US585.2 million. The incraase of

U35155 millon In food. beverage and other revenuss fiom the year ended

Dacambar 31, 2011 to the yveor andad Dacamber 31, 201 2 was prin

wrily s

to Righes business volumes asocloted with on increase Invidtalion during fhe

City of Draams,

yaar as wall as the improwvad yiald of rental incomes at

Operafing cosfs and expenses

Total operating costs and expenses were USE3.57 blllion for the year ended

Dacambar 31, 2012, reprazanting oan increass of USS185.2 million. or 5.5%,
from US$3.37 Bdllon for the year ended December 31, 2011, The Incracse

wias prirmarily dus to anincrecss in oparating costs at City of Draams which

wara in ing with the incraased gaming wolume and associated incracss

In revenues, as wall as tha incradass In associated costs in connaction with

Studic City after our acquisiion of a S0% Interast in Studio City. including

armdrfization of land s ights and pre-opaning costs

Casine.  Casino expensas increased by US5135.8 million, or 5.0%, fo USS2.83

&y

billion for the year andad Dacembar 31, 2012 from USS2.70 billion for tha yaar

andad Dacambear 31, 2011 primarily dus fo addiional gaming fax and ather

nsas of US$78.5 millen as wall as other operafing

lenvias and commisdon e

costy, such as payrol and promotional sxpenses of USHS7.2 million which
Increamad as g result of Increassd gaming volume ard assoclated Increacse

In revenuss.




Rooms, Room expensss. which represant the costs in operating the
hotal facilities at Altira Macou and City of Dreams. decreased by 19.5% fo
US514.7 milion for the year ended Decemier 31, 2012 from US518.2 million
for fhe yaar ended Decemiser 31, 2001, primanily due 1o G highes leval of
complirmentany hotel rooms ofered fo garming custormers for which the
agsociated codts ore indluded Gt casing expanses, porfially offsat by an

increase in the operating costs as a result of increased occupancy

Food, beverage and others. Food beverage ond others expenses wers
US590.3 million and US3552.6 million tor the yaors anded Dacamber 31, 2012

and 2011, respactivaly

Ganeval ond adminikfafive. General  and  adminisirofive  expenses

increasad by USSES millior, or 3,1%. to USS227.0 milion for the year sndsd

Dacemizer 31, 2012 from US5220.2 million for the year ended December 31,
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20010, primearnily dus to an increase in poyrcll expenses. ulilities costs as well
as rapair and maintenance costs to support confinuing and epanding
operations

Fre-opening cosfs, Pre-opening costs wera USES8 million for the year
anded December 31, 2012 a3 comparad o USS27 millicn for the yedor
anded Decemizer 31, 2011, Such costs relate primarnily to personnel fraining.
martketing advertiting and other administrative Soste in Sonraction with rew
of start-up cperations. Pre-opening costs for the year ended Decermizer 31,
20012 related 1o tha adrmiristrative costs in connsclion with the Studo City
after MCE's acquisifion of a 0% interest in 3C1 on July 27, 2011, the opsaning
af The Tasting Room. Signature Club Loungs and Jade Dragon at City of
and the infroduction of Tabeo of Club Cubic during 2012, whils the
2000 related to the

Crearms.
pre-cpening costs for the vear endsd December 31

opaning of Cluls Cubic ot City of Dreams in April 2011.



Development costs. Development costs for the yeor ended December
31, 2002 primarily  included US$5.7 milion excess payment betwean
purchose consideration and direct trarsoction costs and share of net ossets
acquired upon complation of the acquisition of MCP in Dacamber 2012 a
company whose shares are lsted on the PSE and a totaling US55.4 milion
of professional and consultancy fae for the Philppines Project as well as
coporate business development, Development costs for the yeor ended
December 31, 2011 associated with the acquisition of a 0% equity interest in
Studio City.

Amaortization
wibconcession continued to be recognized on a straight-ine bass ot an
annual rate of US$57.2 milion for ecch of the years ended Decembar 31,
2012 and 2011,

of gaming subconcession, Amorfization of our gaming

Ameortizafion of fond use nghfs. Amortzation of land use nights expenses
inrcreased by USS25.5 milion, or 74.2%. to USS59.9 milicn for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2012 from US534. 4 milion for the year ended December 31,
2010, primarily due to the additional amortization of lond use rghts expenses
asociated with amendead Studio City land concassion contract in July 2012

Depreciotion and amortization. Depreciation and amortizafion expanses
increased by USS2.2 million or 0.9%, to US52481.4 milion for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2012 from US5259.2 millien far the year anded Decamber 31,
2011, mainly due to depraciation of assets pregressively added to City of
Dreams since the third quarter of 2011 as wall as depreciation of the newly
acquired aircraft since July 2012, offset in part by fully deprecioted assets of
City of Draams during the year andaed Dacaembar 31,2012,

FProperfy charges and others. Property charges and others generally
include costs ralated to the remodeling and branding of a proparty which
might include the retirement, disposal or write-off of assets. Proparty charges
and othars for the year endaed December 31, 2012 were USS8.7 million, which
pimarily included a write-off of USSd.d4 milion for the excess payments in
ralation to a service contract at City of Dreams and US52.4 millien costs
incumed for implementing our sheamlined management structure in February
2mz

Non-operaling expenses

MNon-cperating expenses consist of interest income, interest expenses.
net of copitalezed interast, amortzation of defersd financing costs, loan
commitment fees. foreign exchange gain (loss) net costs associated
with debt modification, loss on extinguishment of debt, reclassification of
occumulated losses of interest rate swop agreements from occumulated
intarast swoap
agreamants, listing axpenses as wall as other non-cparating income, net.

other comprehensive losses. change in fair value of

Interest income was W3511.0 milion for the year ended December 31, 2012,
o comparad to US540 million for the year andad Dacambear 31, 2011. The
significant increcse k& primarly driven by effective cash management and
improvemeants in our opearating cash flows as a rasult of the improvemeants in
opercting performance during 2012,
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Interest expenses were USS109.6 million, net of copitalized interast of USS10.4
rrillion for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to USS113.8 million,
net of copitalized interest of US53.2 million for the year ended Decerrber
31, 2001, The decrease In net Interest expenses (net of capitalization) of
LIE54.2 milllion was resulted friom higher Interest capitalizofion of USST.2 milllon
associated with the Studio City corstruction ond developrment projects
which resumad after our acquisition of &0% interast in 3CI on July 27, 2011,
together with decrease in interest chorges of USS2.7 milion and US$5.2
rrillion, associated with the expiration of interast rate swaps agreserents
throughout the yeor as well as a lower interest rate margin and lower
cutstanding balance on gur 2011 Credit Fadiifies as a result of a repayment
rmade during the year ended Decernber 31, 2011, offset in part by a higher
imferest expenses of USSEE milion due to o full yeor of interest choarges
incuned on the RME Bonds and the Deposit-Linked Loon issued in May
2011 and US$5.2 milion interest expenses for the Studic City Motes issued in
Movembaer 2012

Other Bnance costs for the year ended December 31, 2012 of USS14.6 million,
included US$13.3 million of amartizatien of deferred financing cests and loan
commitment fees of US51.3 million. Other finance costs for the year ended
Decarnber 21, 2011 of USS15.6 rilicn included US$14.2 millon of arnertization
of defered financing costs and loan cornmitrnent feas of USS1.4 millon. The
decrease in amorfization of defered financing costs was primarily due to
lower deferred costs incurred with the amendment of our City of Dreams
Project Facility on June 30, 2011 as the 2011 Credit Facilities, which were offset
in part &y the recognition of a full year of amortization of additional costs
capitalized as deferred financing costs relating to the RMB Bonds issued in
May 2011,
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The amendmeant of the City of Dreams Project Facility comgpleted on June
0. 200 was primarily aceounted for as an exdinguishrment of debt resulting
in a koss on extinguishrmant of USS25.2 million for the year ended Decernber
31, 2011, There was no koss on exdinguishment of debt for the year ended
Decamier 31, 2012,

The reclasification of US34.3 million related to the accurrulated losses of
interest rate swap agreernents from accurrulated ofher comprehensive
losses to consolidated staternent of operations for the year ended Decermber
3. 2000 wos required a5 such swap agreerments no longer qualified for
hedge accourting irmmediately after the armendmeant of the City of Dreams
Project Facllity on June 30, 2011. There was no such reclassiication for the
year ended December 31, 2012,



Costs associated with debt modification of U353.3 million for the yedar ended
December 51, 2012 were primarily afficutable fo o consent solicitafion
e related 1o Me 2010 Senior NOtes in Oclober 2012, There were no Cosls
assoclated with debt modification for the year ended Decembar 31, 2011,
See "UaUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES — Indebledness” below for maore
inforration regarding the cosh tendsr ond consent solicitation in respect of
the 2010 Sanior Notes,

Listing expensss of USE0.0 millon for the year ended December 31, 2011
related 1o the lising of our shares on the Stock Exchange in Decamioer 2011,
Thers was no listing expensas incurred for the year ended December 51, 20012,

Income fax credit

Thier effective 10X rate for the yeadr endad Decamiber 31, 2012 was d negative
rate of 0.7%. as comparsd to a negalive rate of 0.4% for the vear ended
December 31, 2011, Such rates for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2011 differ from the statutory Mocou Complementary Tax rate of 12%
primcrily due o the effect of changs in valuafion allowonce on the net
deferred taox assefs for the years ended Decemicer 31, 2012 and 2011, with
the effect of a tax holiday of US588.5 milllcn and US$82.7 millon on the nat
INCOME OF OUr MOSaU GaMing Operalions duning 1he yaars ended Decamber
31, 2002 and 201 1, respectively, dus to our Income tax exempticon In Macau
which is s&f 1o expire in 20016, Our managsement does not antlidipate
ecording an Income tax benefit related to defered tax assets generated
by cur Macau operafions howsaves 1o the axtent that the financial reslls of
our Macau operations improve and it becomes more likely than not that the
dafansd o assals are realizabls, we will b abls to reduce the waluation

allowance through eamings

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Cur et loss atibutable 1o noncontroling interests of USS18.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012, comparad o USS5S milion for the year
ended December 31. 2011, was primarily due to the share of New Cotai
Holdings, which ¢wng O 0% interest in SCL N expensss of e STUdic City
project. upon the completion of our acquisition of a &0% egquity interest in
SCIon Juy 27, 2011, The yeor-ovesyadr incraase was pamarly atibutablie 1o
Interest expenses relating to the Studic City Notes incurmed during the fourth
quarter of 2012
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Net income atiributable fo Melco Crown Enfertainment

Az a result of the foregolng. we had net Income of US$417.2 million for the
year ended Daecember 31, 2012, comparad to USS204.T milion for the vear
ended December 31, 20011

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year
Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues

Owr total net revanues for the yedar ended December 31, 2011 were US$3E3
billion, an increase of US$1.19 bilion, or 4505, from LISS2 64 Blllion for the year
ended Dacember 31, 2010, The increass in fotal net revenues was prmarily
driven by the significant improvemerts in operating performance at City of
Creams and Altira Macauw. as well as contributions from The House of Dancing

Water.

Cur total net revenues for the year ended Decemibzar 31. 2011 comprised
USs5.68 pllion of codno revenues, representing 26.0% of our total net
ravenues. and US$151.4 million of net non-casing revenuas (fotal non-cadnge
revenues after deduction of promotional allowances). Our total net revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2010 compxised of USH2.55 billion of cagne
reveniias, representing 94.5% of our totd nat revenues, and US04 millon of
et AOR-COsInG revenues

Casihe.  Cadno revenuas for the year ended December 31. 2011 were
US53.48 billlon, representing a US$1.13 Blllon. or 44.3%, Increase from casno
revanues of U352.55 bilion for the year ended Decemiber 31, 20100 rimarily
due 1o anincrease in cadnde revenuss at City of Dreams of USE4.0 milion.
oF S08% and at Altira Macau of USE313.6 milion. or 37.0%. This incre

Wil
primarily driven by increased rofling chip volume and mass market tacle
games drep at both City of Dreams and Altira Macau.

Alfira Mocau. Alfira Macau’s relling <hip volume for the wear ended
December 31, 2011 was US$51.2 billon, representing an increase of US$10.9
Billion. or 27.1% from LIS54A0.3 Billion
2010, Rolling chip win rate (calculated before dscounts and commi
was 3.03% for the vear ended December 31, 2011, sightty higher than our

for the vear ended December 31,

sHONG

expected level of 2.7% to 3.0 and an increase from 2.91% for the year
ended December 31, 20010, In the mas market table games segrent, mass
market table games drop was USHSE 1.8 millien for the year ended Decemiear
31, 2011, representing an increase of 54.3% from US$37T.1 million for the year
ended December 31. 2010, The mass make! tatle games hold percentage
wias 16.6% for the yeor ended December 31, 2011, within our éxpectad range
I 1EAD5E 10 20008 and a slight increase from 16,25 for the yiear
anded Decemizer 31, 2010

or that yaor o



¢ of Oreams, City of Digarrs’ roling chip volurme for the yeor ended
7.1

December 31, 2011 of US57

& blllion reprezented an increase of US$

or S24%, from USSS1.T n far the yeor ended Decamriber 31, 2010,

Roling chip win rate {calculated befae discounts and commissions) was
L

% for the yea ended Decernber 31, 2011, which ls within our expected
range of 2.7% to 3.0, @
Decerber 31,

table garnes dropg was LSS

ecrease from 2.92% for the yeor ended

2010, In the mass ket table games segrnent, mass manket
d December 31

4 Eillion for the yvear en

which represented an increqse of USS0,.6 jan, or 42.7%, from USS2.05 Bilion
for the year ended December 31, 2010, The mass market table games hold

percenfage wos 24 84 in the year ended December 31, 2011, which iz within

our sxpected range for that year of 21

6 to 26.0% and increased from 21.5%

for the year ended December 31, 2010, Average net win per gaming maching

an incteces of  for the year ended Decerrber 21, 2010

e 31, 2011

per dey wos USS268 for the vear endaed De

» LUS3172, 91% and US$155, respectively

el and

L2010 occupancy rate and R

US349, ar 22.4%, from US3219 for the year ended Decernber 2

fiar the ended Decamber :

L2000, s comparad to USS)

Mocha Clubs' average net win per gaming machine  US3126 respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2010,

per day for the year ended December 21, 2011 was US§2I7, an Ir

of approdmately USS25 or 13008 korn USS192 for the ended  Food beverage and others. Other non-Casino revenues for the yeor ended

December 31, 2010, Decermnber 31, 2011 included foed and beverage revenues of LUSS51 8 millien,
and entertainment, retal and other revenues of approdmataly USSR6.2
Rooms, Room revenues for the yea ended December 31, 2001 were  million, Other non-casing revenues for the year ended Decermber 31. 2010

rives of US584.7 million, and enterfainment,

US$108.0 milicn, represenfing a US$19.3 milien, o 23.08%, Incremse from  included food and beverage re

rcom revenues of USSB3T milkon for the year ended December 31, 2010 rétdl and other revenues of approxirnately US532.7 million. The incredse of

primcrily due to an increase in visitation and the postive imooct of a full- U3358.4 milicn in food, beverage and other revenues from the yeoa ended

by due

vear operation in 2011 of The House of Dancing Water, which cpened In  December 31, 2010 to the year ended December 31, 2011 was pr

0 n increqse in vigtation and the podtive irpact of a full- year operdation in

September 2010, Alfira Mocou's average ddly rate, coccuponoy rate and

(=]

REVPAR were LSS 011 of The House of Dancing Water, which opened in Septernber 2010

. 8% ond USS191. respectively, for the year ended

December 31, 2011, as compaed fo USS155, 94% and US55, respectively,
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Operating costs and expenses

Total oparating costs and expensas were US$3.39 billion for the year endad
December 31, 2011, representing an increase of US58346.3 millon or 32.8%.
fromn US$2.55 bilkon for the year ended Dacamber 31, 2010. The increase in
operating costs was primarily due to an increass in operating costs at City
of Dreams and Altira Macau, which is in ling with incraased gaming velums
and the associated increase in revenuss, as well as the increase in operating
costs associated with increased visitation and the fullyesar opearation of The
House of Dancing Water since its epening in September 2010,

Cosing.  Caosing expenses increased by US$T50.0 millon, or 38.5%, fo USS2.70
billion for the year endad December 31, 2011 from USS1.95 bilion for the
year ended December 31, 2010 primarily due to additicnal gaming tox
and offher levies and commission expenses of US5586.6 milien and US$100.3
million, respectively. s a result of increased casine revenues, as well as other
operating costs, such as payrall and Uility expersss of USS63.0 millon.

Rooms. Room expenses, which reprasent the caosts in operating the hotel
fecilities at Alfirg Macou and City of Dreams, increased by 13.1% to US318.2
million for the year anded Decambar 31, 2011 from US$14.1 milion for the
year ended December 31, 2010, primarily due to an increase in occupancy
rettes as a rasult of increased visitation.

Food, beverage and ofhers Food beverage and others expenses
Increased by USS39.9 milion, or 75.8%, to USS92.6 millon for the yeor ended
Dacamber 31, 2011 from USSS2.T milion for the year endad December 31,
2010, primnarly driven by Incraased visitation to our propertias and particularhy,
The House of Dancing Water which cpenad in September 2010
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General ond odminisfrafive. General ond odministrative  expenses
increased by US520.4 millon, or 1002%, to US5220.2 milion for the year anded
Decaember 31, 2011 from US5199.8 milion for the year ended Decamber
31, 2000, primarly dus to an increase in payoll expenses, utities and
transportation costs, which resulted from improved operating peformance of
City of Dreams and Altira Macau.

Pre-gpening costs. Pro-opening costs were USS2ZT milion for the year
endaed December 31, 2011 oz compared to USS18.4 milion for the year
andad December 31, 2010. Such costs relate primarily to pesonnel training,
marksting. advertising and other administrative costs in connection with new
or start-up operations. Pre-opening costs for the year ended December 31,
2011 related to the opening of Club Cubic at City of Dreams in April 2011
and the pra-cpening costs for tha year endad Dacamber 31, 2010 rekated
primarily to the opening of The House of Dancing Water in September 2010,

Amorfizafion of gaming subconcession. Amorzation of our gaming
subconcassion continuad 1o be recognizad on a straight-line basis ot an
annual rate of US557.2 milion for each of the years ended December 21,
2011 and 2010

Amorfization of lond use rights. Amortzation of land use rights expanses
increased by USS14.9 milion, or 76.2%. to USE3d.4 milien for the year ended
Decambear 31, 2001 from USS19.5 millon for the year ended Decamber 31,
2010, primnarily due to the inclusion of emortization of land use rights expansas
associated with Studia City.



Daceambar 31. 2011 from US5236.3 million for the year e Dacamber 31

20010 primnarily dise to depradciation of assets placed into sendcs associated

1 of The House of Dancing W

ofhwars for the vear

Froperfy charges and ofhers

12011 were U531.0 milion, which related to a donation

anded Dacemb

o support the relief afforts for the Japon earthcguake in 2011,

(g =te!

Non-operating expenses

Morroperating  sxpenses congist of intersst nocoms, interest sxpe

armortization of defered fnanc

AGTed

commitment fess foreign exchange gain (loss) net. costs

with dabst rodification. loss on exiinguishment of « azsification of

2 swap agresments from

im foir value  of

operaling

cember 31,2011, as

Intarast income was for the waar endad

corrpaied ta USS0.4 milion for the vear endad Decemibxer 31, 2010, prirmarily

driven by ose in cosh balances as a result of improvermants in our

afirg Sosh Ao,




Interest expenses were US5113.8 millon, net of caplfalized interest of US55.2
million for the yeor ended December 31, 2011, compared to US593.4 million.
ret of capitaized intersst of USS11.8 million for the yeor endsd December
31, 2010, The Incregse In net Interest expemses (net of capltalization) of
USS20.4 rillion was prrmarnly dus to USS23.4 million of highsr interast expensss
associated with he issuance of the 2010 Senior Notes in May 2010 as a full-
yeor of fxed interes! was recognized for me yaor ended December 31,
2011, an incredss of USS14.9 millign for interest chorges on the RMVE Bonds
and the Deposit-Unked Loan isusd in May 2011, togsthsr with a dacraoss
in capitalized interest of USSES.S milion o sich charges were not aligible
for capifalization following the opening of The Howss of Doncing Water in
Septamber 2010 offsat in port by a decrease of U269 million of interast
charges on the City of Dreams Project Foclling net of interast on interast rate
SWOpD agreaments, primarnily due to a lower outstanding bolance as a resull of
repayments made In accordance to the amortization scheadule.

Othar Anance Costs tor the year endad Deceamiar 31, 2011 of US515.6 million,
Includad US$1 4.2 millon of amortizafion of deferred financing costs and loan
commitment fees of UsS1.4 milion. Giher finance costs for the year ended
December 31, 2010 Included US514.3 millon of amortization of defered
firancing costs and a credit amount of U338 million of loon commitment
feres related to the City of Drecms Project Focllity:

Coafs associated with debt modfication of U533 milon for the yeor
ended Decermber 31, 2010 related to the cmendment of the City of Drecms
Project Focility in May 20010 which included @ wrile off on the Dalance of
unamortized deferred finaoncing costs relating to the reduced bomowing
COpadity of 1he Revolving Cradit Faclity granted undsr the City of Dredms
Froject Foclity. There were no costs associoted with debt modification for the
yeor ended December 31, 2011,
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The amendment of the City of Drecms Project Facllity completed on June
30, 20011 was primarnity accounted for as an extinguishrment of debt resulting

in aloss on extinguihmant of US525.2 million tor the yeor ended Decamiber
31, 2011, Thewre was no loss on extingulshment of delbt for the year ended
December 31, 2010,

The reclosdfication of US$4.3 millon relating to the occumulated losses of
Interest rate swop agreements from cccumulated other comprehensive
andad
December 31, 2011 was required o such swap agresments no longer

losses 1o consolldated statements of operations for the yeor

qualified for hedge accounting Immediately ofter the amendment of the
City of Drearns Froject Focility on June 30, 2011,

Uisting expanses of USS2.0 millon e he yeor ended Decermbsr 31. 2011
relcted fo the listing of our Shares on the $tock Bxchonge in December 2011



Income tax credil {expense)

The ed

ve tax rofe for the year ended Decemtzer 31, 2011 was a negative
rate of 0.5%. a5 compared te a negotive rate of 2.4% for the vear ended
20m
and 2010 differ from the statutory Macou Complemerntary Tax rate of 12%

Decermber 31. 2010, Such rotes for the years ended December 21

mimarly dus to the sffect of change in valudgtion dllowancs on the net
daferred tax assats for the yeors ended December 31. 2011 and 2010, with
the effact of o tax holiday of USH9.7 millon and US$28.1 milion on the net
ncoms of our Macau garming cpetations during the years ended Decemitier

31, 2001 and 2010, respectively. due to ow income tax sxemgtion in Macow,

which is set fo expire in 20146 Ow monagement does not anficpate

recording on income tax benefit related to deferred tax assels generated
by our Mocau operations; however, fo the extent that the financial results of
o Macau operations improve and it becormnes more likely than not that the
deferrad tax assels ara realzable, we will be abls to reduce the waludation

allowance through ecmings

Net loss alfributable to noncontrolling interests

Qur net loss attributable to noncontreliing interests of USS5S milion for the
yedr ended Decembrer 31, 2011 was primarily due to the share of the Studic
City expenses by Mew Cotal Holdings, LLE, which cwns o 40% interest in SCIL
upan the complation of ou acouisition of a &0% equity inferast in 5CI on July

72000,

Net income (loss) atiributable to Melco Crown Entertainment
As a result of the foregeing we hod net income of USE2e4.T million for the
year ended Decermber 31, 2011, compared to anet loss of US$10.5 milllon for

the yaar ended Decamtzer 31, 2000,
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Adjusted Property EEITDA and Adjusted EBITDA million, US$809.4 million and U$$430.4 million for the years ended December




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

W novie relied and intend 10 rely on ol Cash genaia

d fromm our operations
and our detyt and squity financings 10 mest our financing nesds and rapay

our indebtednsss. as ihe case may be

As of Decembear 31, 2012, we held unreshiicled and resticted cash and

cath equivalents of approsimately USS1.700.2 milien and US31,414.7 million
ragpactively. and HKS1 47 billion (oppredmataly US5188.6 milliorn) of e 2011
Credit Facllities remained available for fulure drowdown. The resticted cash
redated to our RMB Bonds procesds of RMBZ.3 billlon (appecdmataly US3367.6
milllony and Stedio City cash and cash equivalents of US$1.047.0 millon. The
RME Bonds procesds of BMBZ.3 billkon (approdmately US$347.6 million) was
deposited into o bank account for securing the Depodt-Unked Loon, The
Studio City cash and cash eguivalents of US$1.047.0 milllon comprised of
ret procssds from offering of Studio City MNotes and 1he unspent cash from
the capltal Injection for the Studio City project friom the Company and SCI
rinGrity sharahalder in accordance with our shareholdar agreement. both
of which waere restricied only for payment of construction and development
costs and other project costs of the Studio City project In accordance with
Studio Clty Motes and Studio City Project Faclity ferms. $ee note 11 fo he
consoldated financial statements Included elsewhere In this annual report
for mare informiction,

We hove Dean abée to meat our wolking copital neads and we Dalleve
that our opeating cash fow, sdsting cash Balances. funds availabls under
the 2011 Credit Facilities and additiondl equity of debt fAnancings will De

adedg

& 1o safisty owr curent and anticipated operating. dsbt
capital commitments. including owr dewelopment project plans for a perlod
of 12 months following the date of this annual report. We have significant
al structure and

indebtednass and we will continye 1o avaluale owr cap

oppariunitiss to enhance it In the normal courss of our activities.
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Cash Flows
The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the years
indicated:

‘Yaar Endad Decembear 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands of US$)

Met cash provided by operating

activities 950233 §744.4660 5401985
Met cash used in investing activitiss (1335718 (585388 (1903100
Mat cash provided by financing

activitias 034735 557.910 17.680
Effect of foreign exchanga on cash

and cash equivalents 1.935 (1.081) =
Met increase in cash and cash

aquivalants 551.185 716,101 229,325
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year 1,158,024 441,923 212598
Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year 51709209 51,158,024 5441923
Operating Activities

Cperdting cosh flows are generally offected by changes in operating
Income and accourts recelvable with VIP table games play and hotal
operations conducted on a cash and credit basis and the remainder of the
business, including mass market table games play, slot machine play, food
and beverage. and entertainment, conducted primarily on o cash basis,
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Met cash provided by operating oclivities was US5850.2 milion for the
year encded Decambar 31, 2012, comparad to USST447 milion for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in net cash provided in
opercating activities was mainly attiibutable to increased gaming volume
and associated increase in revenues as described in the foregoing section
Mat cash provided by operating activitias was USS744.7 milion for tha year
anded December 31, 2011, compared to US$402.0 milion for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2010. The increase in net cash provided in operating activities
was mainly attributable to significant improvemnent in casine revenues, s well
as a full year of operation of The House of Dancing Water, which openad in
September 2010,

investing Activities

Mat cash used in imvesting activities was USS1.33587 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 compared fo US$585.4 milion for the year
endad December 31, 2011, primarily dus to an increcse in restricted cash of
U551,047.0 milllion, capital expenditure payment of US$220.5 milion as wall as
the land use rights payments of US$53.8 million.

For the year ended Decembar 31, 20012 there was a nat increcse of
U551.047.0 million in the amount of restricted cash, primarly due to the
daposit of net proceads from the issuance of Studio City Motes of USS812.0
millicn and urspent cash from the capital injection for the Studic City project
from the Company and our SCI minority shareholder of US3$235.0 million, both
of which ara restricted for Studic City's construction cost payment only in
accordance with Studio City Notas and Studio City Project Facility terms. We
also paid US52.8 million for the acquisition of o majority interest in the isued
share capital of MCP (net of cash and cash aquivalants acquirad of US$27.9
million) and US52.5 milion for the fransaction costs for acquisition of Studic
City in July 2011 during the year endad December 31, 2012,



Our total copital expenditure payments for the year ended December 31,
2012 ware US52205 milion. Such expanditures ware mainly asscciated with
anhancements to cur integrated resort offerings and for the development of
Studic City as well as an aircraft acquired for primarily by relling chip players
to enhance cur competitive pesiticning in the higherend rlling chip market.
Wea abo paid USS35.4 milion and US5148.0 million for the schaduled installment
of Studic City's ond City of Dreams” lond premium payment, respactiveby,
during the year ended December 31, 2012,

MNet cash used in imvesting activitias was US5585.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared fo USS190.3 milion for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2010, primarily due to an increase in restricted cash and a
payment of US$280.0 million for the acquisition of a 0% equity inferest in
SC1 (ret of cash and cash aquivalents acquired of USS35.8 million), offsat in
part by a reduction in payments for censtruction and development activities
relating to The House of Dancing Water.

For the year endad Dacamber 31, 20011, thare was a net increase of USS186.0
million in the amount of restricted cash, primarily due to the deposit of
procesds from Essance of the RMB Bonds of USS353.3 milion pledged for
the Deposit-Unkad Loan, offsat in part by settlernant of US$10.3 milion of City
of Dreams project costs, sattlament of interest and principal repayments
of US5133.7 milicn in accordance with the City of Dreoms Project Focility,
and release of U3523.3 million to unrestricted cash atter the complation of
ameandment of the City of Creams Project Facility on June 30, 2011.

Cwr total copital expenditure payments for the year ended Decamber 31,
2000 were USS90.3 milicn, We alo pald USS15.3 milion for the schaduled
installment of City of Dreams’ land pramium payment during the year ended
Decambar 31, 2011,

Wa axpact to incur significant capital expanditures for Studio City and the
Philippines Project in the future, We abo continue to evaluate the next phase

of our devalopment plan at City of Dreams.

The following table sets forth cur capital expenditures by segmant for the
yaars endaed Dacember 31, 20012, 2011 and 2010.

Veor Ended Decembar 31,

2012 2001 2010
(in thousands of US5)

Mocha Clubs $5,951 $23,588 $13.140
Altira Macau 708 5,662 7.784
City of Dreams o3 d14 39,774 94,279
Shudio City 115,385 713,253 -
Corporate and Others L shM 2387 4457
Total capital aspendituras $283,598 5785634 5119640

Owr capital expanditures for the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased
shamply prirmarily due to the acquisition of Studio City completed during the
yaar anded Decamber 31, 2011, parially offsat with the acquisition of the
aircraft and confinuous development of City of Dreams and Studic City
during thae year andad Decembar 31, 20012,
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Financing Activities

Mat cash provided by financing activities amounted to USS934.7 millicn
for the year ended December 31, 20012 primarily from the proceeds of the
issuance of Studic City Notes totoling USS825.0 milion in November 2012,
the procesds from the draowndown of Arcroft Term Loan totaling US$43.0
million in June 2012 capital injection of USS140.0 millien fram SCI mingrity
shareholder in accordance with cuwr shareholder agreement and proceeds
fram the axercise of share opticns totaling LUS53.46 milion. These weare offsat
in part by the payment of debt bsuance costs of US$30.3 million, primarily
associated with Studio City Notas and consent solicitation fae for the 2010
Senior Motes, the seftlement of the scheduled Studio City acquisition cost
installment of USS25.0 milion and prapaid dabt issuance costs of USS188
million asseciated with Shudic City Project Facilty as well as repayment of the
Adrcraft Term Loan of USS$2.8 milion.

Mat cash provided by financing activities amounted to USSEST.S million
for the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily from the procesds of the
lssuance of the RMB Bonds and drawdown of the Deposi-Linked Loan
fotaling US5704.4 million in May 2011 and proceeds from the exercise of share
options totaling US54.6 million, offset in part by the repayment of the City of
Dreams Project Focilty of US5117.1 milion and payment of debt isuonce
costs primanly associated with the RMB Bonds, the Deposit-Linked Loan and
tha 2011 Credit Fociliies of US536.1 million.
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Met cash provided by financing activities amounted to US317.7 milion for
the yaar anded December 31, 2010 primarily due to procesds from the
issuance of the 2010 Senior Notes amounting to USS592.0 million, offset in part
by the rmpaymeant of long-tarm dabt of USSE51.4 million, of which Us5444.1
million was wsed to repay the City of Dreoms Preject Facility, and payment of
datamed financing costs primarily associated with the 2010 Sanlor Notes of
US522.9 million.

Indebtedness

The lollowing table presants a summary of our indeblednass as of December
3.2z

As of December 31, 2012

(in thousands of US5)

2011 Cradit Facilties 51.014729
Shudio City Notes 825,000
2010 Senior Motes, net™ 593,967
RMB Bonds 347,645
Deposit-Linked Loan 353,278
Aircraft Term Loan 40,245

53,194,864

MNobe:

] Mt of unormoitized sue descount



Maojor changes in ow indeblednass during the year ended and subsequent
to December 31, 2012 are summarized balow.

In May 2012, we entered info a RMB forward exchange rate contract for
future settlament of interast on the RMB Bonds to hedge our exchange
rate expasure which was expired in November 2012, During the year ended
December 31, 2012 all oulstanding interest rate swap agreemerts in
connection with our City of Dreams Project Facility, axpired.

In June 2012, our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary entered into o term loan
cradit facility for US$43.0 million, with an interest rate based on LIBOR plus a
margin of 2.80% per annurm and maturity date of Juna 27, 2019, to finance
part of the acquisition of an aireraft. As of December 31, 2012 the Aircraft
Term Loan facility has beean fully drawn down,

On Movambear 26, 2012, our subsidiany, Studio City Finance, issued US5825.0
milion aggregate principal amount of 8.50% Studic City Motes dus 2020,
which wera priced ot par and lsted on the Official List of the 3GX-8T1. The nat
proceads wera used to fund the Shadic City project.

In January 2013, we commenced a cash tender offar of the 2010 Senlor
Notes and repurchased approximately US859%.1 milllon aggregate principal
amount of the 2010 Senior Notes, Cn March 28, 2013, we redeemed all of
the remaining 2010 Senior Notes, following which, the 2010 Senicr Notes were
cancelled in late March 2013, No 2010 Senior Motes are currently cutstanding.
A portion of the proceeds from the 2013 Senior Notes offering was used
for the cash tender offer and redemption of the 2010 Senicr Motes. Prior to
such cash tender offer and full redemption. the Company had completed
a congent solicitation process in connection with the 2010 Senior Motes in
October 2012 and paid appreximately US515.0 milion to the holdears who

had validly delivered the relevant consent, which was capitalzed os defemred
financing cost.

On January 28, 2013, our subsidiary Studio City Company Limited, entersd
inta an agreemeant for the Shudio City Project Facility, a senior securad project
faciity for a total sum of HKS$10,855,630,000 (equivalent to approximataly USS1.4
bilior), comprsing a five year HK$10,080,460,000 (equivalent to approximately
US51.3 bilior) deloyed drow term loan focity and o HK$775420.000
(squivalent to approdmately US5100 million) revolving credit facilty, Bomowings
under the Studic City Project Focility bear interest ot HIBOR phus a margin of
A.50% per anmarm until the last day of the sscond full fecal quarter aftar the
opaning date of tha Studio City praject. Aftar that, interast will accrus af HIBOR
phe a margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.50% per annum, dapanding on the total
levarage ratio of Studio City Company Limited and its subsiciaries.

On February 7, 2013 our subsichary, MCE Finance, isusd US31.0 billion
oggregate principal amount of 2013 Senior Motes with an inferest rote of
5.00% per annum and the maturity dote of Febmaary 15, 2021, 2013 Senior
Notes weare priced ot por and lsted on the Official List of the 35X-5T The net
procaads wara wed to repurchase the 2010 Senicr Notas in full and partially
fund the redemption of the RMB Bonds.

In March 2013, we repaid in full the Deposit-Linked Loan with accrued intarast
and redeemed, in full the RMB Bonds following which. the RMB Bonds were
cancelled, Mo RMB Bonds are cumently cutstanding. The redemplion was
partly funded by the proceeds from the offering of 2013 Senior Notes,

In lote March 2013, we prepaid the drown revolving credit facility under the
2001 Credit Focilities of HK$1.7 bilion (equivalent fo approximately USS212.5
miillion) in full,
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Credit focility agreements relating to cerfain of our indebtedness contain
change of contral provisions, including in respect of our obligations ralating
1o cur control andfor ewnership of certain of our subsidiaries and their Qssets.
Urdder tha tarms of such credit faclity agreements, the occurenca of certain
change of confrol events, including a decline below certain thresholds in
the aggregate diect or indifect shareholdings of Melco Crown Macau,
MCE Finance, Studic City Finance, MCE Cotal Investments Limited ("MCE
Cotal”) or certain of its subsidianes held by us and/or Melco and Crown
or MCE Cotai (as the cose may be) (and, in the cose of the decline of the
sharakolding of Males Crown Macau under the 2011 Cradit Facilities, which
is accompanied by a ratings decline) may result in an event of defoult and/
of a requiremeant 1o prapay the credit faclity in relation to such indebtadness
in full. Siher applicable change of control events under the credit foacility
agraaments include the Company ceasing to be publicly listed on certain
daesignated stock exchanges or the steps being faken in connection with the
liquidation or dissolution of MCE Finance. The terms of the Studic City Notes
and 2013 Senlor Notes also contain change of confrol provisions wheraby
the occurrance of a relevant change of contral avent (as raferad to in the
aforementioned paragraph) under the Studio City Notes or 2013 Senicr Notes
will frigger the reguirameant for us 1o offer to repurchase the Studio City Notes
or 2013 Sanlor Notes {as tha case may be) at a price agqual to 101% of thair
principal amount, plus accruad and unpaid interest and, f any additional
amaounts and other amounts specified under such Motes to the date of
rapurchose.

For further detaik of the above indsbtedness, please refer to nota 11 to the
consclidated financial statements included elewhare in this annual repor,
which includes information regarding the fype of dabt faciities wead, the
miaturity profile of debt, the curency and Interast rate structure and the
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nature and extent of any restrictions on our ability. and the ability of cur
subsidiaries, te transfer funds as cash dividands, loans or advances.

Other Financing and Liquidity Matters

We may obtain financing in the form of. among other things. equity or debt,
including additional bank loans o high yield, mazzaning of other dabt, oF raly
on our operating cash flow to fund the development of our projects.

We are a growing company with significant financial needs. We expect to
herve significant capital expenditures in the future as we continue to develop
our Macau properies, in particular, Studie City. the Phiippines Project and
potantially the next phase of City of Draams.

We have relied and intend in the future fo raly on our oparating cash fliow
and different forms of financing to meet cur funding needs and repay our
indebtednass, as the case may be.

The timing of any futwe debt and edquity financing activities will be
dependent on our funding needs our develepment and construction
schadule, the availabilty of
pravaling market conditions. We may carry out activities from time to time

funds on acceptable terms to us, and

to strangthen cur financial position and ability to battar fund our business
expansion. Such activities may include refinancing existing debt, moneatizing
assats, sale-and-lsassback fransactions or ather similar activitias.

We cumrently estimate the construction cost for Studic City will be
approxmataly US$2.0 bilion, However this preliminary cost estimate may
be revised deapending on a pumber of vanables, including receipt of all
nacassary governmental approvals, the final dasign and develepment



plon. funding costs, the availobility of finoncing on ferms acceptable to
ws, and pravaiing markst conditions. As of Dacamber 31, 2012 we hod
incumed approximately US$139.8 milion (excluding the cost of land) for the
davelopment of Studio City since our acquisition of a 0% equity interast in
SC1 primarily for site preparation costs and design and consultation fees,

For the purposs of financing the Studic City project, we successfully offered
the US$625.0 million Studic City Motes and obtained the HKS10.9 billion Studio
City Project Faciltty, in Movember 2012 and January 2013, respectively. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, MCE and 321 minority sharaholdar
contributed US$350.0 milkzn to the Studio City project in accordance with
the sharsholder agreement.

On October 25, 2012 an indirect subsidiary of our Company. MCE Leisure
Philippines, enfered inte a cocperation ogreement for the Philippines Preject.
On Decamber 19, 2012 ow Company, through sach of MCE Philippinas
Invastmants and MCE Investmants No.2, complefed the acgubition of a
mgjority intarast in the isuwad and outstanding share capital of MCE

MCF's net confribution towards the project up to the time of opening &
astimated to be approximately US5520 milllon, conssting of funds primarlly for
capital expendituras, working copital for initial opening and other pre-opening
expensas. However this estimate may be revised depending on a range of
varables, including the final design and developmeant plars, funding costs,
tha availlability of finrarcing on terms acceptable fo us. and prevalling Mmorket
conditions. We are considering different altematives to finance the project.
inchuding but not limited to debt and equity firancing. On March 20, 2013, the
beard of diractors of MCP approved a plan to rage additional capital of up to
US5400 million through an equity offering including an ovar-alictmeant cption.

We continue to evaluate the next phase of our development plan ot City of
Drearrs, which wa curently expect 1o include a luxury hotel

The development of the Philippines Project and the next phase of City of
Dreamrs are subject to further finaoncing and o number of other factoms.
many of which are bayvond our contiol. Our investment plans are preliminany
and subject to change based upon the execution of our business plan, the
progress of owr capttal projections, market conditions and outlook on future
business.

As of December 31. 2012 we hod copital commitments contracted for
but not provided, totaling US5743.3 milion mainly for the construction and
acguisiion of property and equipment for City of Dreams and Studio City.
In additicn, wea have contfingent liabilitiss arising in the ordinary course of
businass. Fer further details for cur commitments and contingencies, please
rafer to note 19 te the consolidated financial statements included in this
annual report.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, owr gearing ratios (total debts divided by
total assets) were 40.2% and 37.1%. respactivaly. Our geaning ratio incraased
o of Decembear 31, 201 2 primarily as a result of increased indabledness from
the issuance of Studio City MNotes, offset by the increased cash and cash
equivalents due 1o the growth of cur business.

As of the daote of this annual report, cur depesit account in Takan
presented Qs rastricted cash given the fund is frozen pursuant to an
imvestigation by Tolwanese outhorifies. The occount hod o bolonce of
approirataly TWD2.98 billon (equivalent to approximataly USS102 milion)
at the time it was frozen. We are taking action to requaest the Talwanese
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authorities fo unfreeze the account. See note 28(b) to the consclidated
fimancial statements included abewhers in this annual report for furthar
details,

Malco Crown Macow has a rating of "BB/stable” by Standard & Poor's and
a rating of "Ba3” by Moody's Invastors Sarvice. For future borowings, any
decraase in our corporate rating could result in an increase in borowing
costs,

The Gaming Subconcession

Cur subsidiary Melco Crown Macau is one of the six companies licensed,
through concassions or subconcassions. to openate casinos in Macou, Malce
Crown Macou executed a subconcession contract with Wynn Mocou
on September B, 2006, Wynn Macau will confinug to develop and mn
hotel operations and casinge projects independent of ows, Malco Crown
Macau paid a consideration of US$900 million to Wynn Macau, In retum, on
Septembear 8 2006, Melco Crown Macau was granted the right fo cpercte
games of fortune and chance or othar games in casinos in Macau, for a
peariod of 14 years until the expiration of the subconcession on June 24 2022,
Mo furthaer poayments need to be made to Wynn Macau in future operations.
The opearation of gaming-related activities i also permitted, subject to the
prior approval from the Macau govarmment. Details of the deemed cost
and amortizaticn of the gaming subconcession are saf out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.
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Human Resources

We had 11,758 and 11071 employees as of December 31, 2012 ond
2011, respactivaly. The follwing table sats forth the number of employeeas
catagorized by the areas of operations and o8 a percentage of our
workforce as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, Staff remuneration packages
are determined faken into occount of market conditions and the
peformance of the individuals concemed, and are subject to mview from

time to time.
Decembar 31,
2012 am
Numberof  Pescentoge  MNumberof Percentoge
Employess of Totl  Employess of Tetal
Mecha Clubs 838 1% i 0%
Altira Mesou 2338 19.5% 23 213%
City of Dragms ™ 8,062 66.5% 7532 20%
Corporate and cenfralzed
jenvices M 534 45% &N 37%
Total 11,747 100.0% 11,071 1000%

Mote: {1} INnchedes peoies! Managenant Shal 1or Shudks City.

We have implemented a numbar of human masource initiatives over recant
years for the benefit of our employees and their families. These initictives
include uniqua in-house keaming academy, an on-site high school diploma
program, scholarship awards, as well as fast frack promotion fraining initiatives
Jolntly coordinated with tha School of Continuing Study of Macau Unbearsity
of Sclence & Technology and Macao Technology Committas,



Properties and Development Projects

We operate ow goming business in cccordonce with the terms and
conditions of our gaming subconcession. In addition, our City of Dreams,
Altia Maocou and Studic City properties and development projects ara
subject to the terms and conditions of land concassion contracts,

City of Dreams

The City of Dreams site i lecated on two adjocent kand parcels in Cotal
Macou with o combined area of 113325 square meters (equivalent
to approxmately 1.2 millon square faat). In August 2008 the Macau
govemmeant granted the land on which City of Dreams i lecated to Malco
Crown (COD) Developments and Melco Crown Mocou for a period of 25
yaars, renswable for further consecutive periods of up to ten years sach.

The initial land premium of approximataly MOPB42.1 milion {(egquivalert
to opproximately USS105.01 milion) was paid up in full in February 2013
Melco Crown (COD) Developments and Melco Crown Macou opplied for
an amandmeant to the land concession contract in 200% to increase the
total developable gross floor area and amend the purpose of such area,
which mguired an additional premium in the amount of MOP257.4 million
{equivalent fo approximately US532.1 million). which was fully paid in March
2010, This armendment process was complated on Saptember 15, 2010 and
increased the developable gross ficor area at the site to 868,574 square
rmatars (equivalant to approximately 7.2 million square feet).

During tha construction perod, we paid the Macou govarmnmeant kand use
fess at an annual rate of MOP30.0 (equivalert to approximately US$3.74)
per square meter of land, or an aggregate annual amount of approximately
MOP3.4 milion (equivalent to approximately US5424,000). According to the

terms of the revised land concession the onnual government land use fees
payable after complstion of developmeant will be approximataly MOPe.S
million (equivalent to approximately US$1.2 million). The govemment land use
fae amaounts may be adjusted avery five yaars.

Saa note 19 to the consolidated financial stataments included abewhare
in this annual repert for infermation about our future commitrments as to
government kand wse tees for the City of Dreams site.

Under the City of Dreams land concession confract, Maleo Crown (COD)
Developments & authorzed to buld an additional fourstar apartment
hotel at the City of Dreams. On December 9. 2011 we raquested an
amendment to the City of Dreams land grant in order to allow us fo develop
additional five-star hotal araas in replacaemeant of the fourstar apartment
hotel areas curmently contemplated in such land grant and to extend the
development pariod of the City of Dreams land grant, On February 25, 2013,
the Macou government issued a land gront amendment propoesal which
contemplates the amendments requasted, axtansion of the devalopment
period untl the date faling 4 years after publication of the amendment
in the Macaou Official Gazette, as well a3 the payment of MOP187.1 million
{equivalent to opproximately US$23.3 millon). In March 2013, Melco Crown
{COD) Developmeants and Melco Crown Macau accapted the land grant
ameandment proposal.

The equipment utilzed by City of Dreams in the casine and hotel b owned by
us and hekd for use on the City of Dreams site, and includas the main gaming
aquipment and scftware to support its table games and gaming machine
oparations, cage equipment, security and suveilance equipment, casing
and hotel furniture, fittings and equipment.
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Altira Macau

The Altira Macau site is beated on a plot of land in Taipa, Moacou of
approvimately 5230 square meters (equivalent to approximately 56295
square fest) under a Z5-year kand leass ogreement with the Meocou
govemment which & renswable for successive periods of up to ten years
aach, In March 2006, the Macau govemment granted the land an which
Altira Mocou s located to Altirn Developments Limited, cur wholly owned
subsidiary The land pramium of approxdmataly MOP149.7 million (aquivalant
to opproximately US$187 milion) was fully paid in July 2006, a guaontes
daposit of approdmataly MOP157.000 (aguivalent to  approdgmately
US5520,000) was paid upon acceplance of the land lease terms in 2006 and
govamment land use faes of approximately MOP1.4 million (equivalant to
approdimately US5171.0000 per annum are payable. The amounts may be
adjustad every fiva years as agreed betwaen the Macou govamment and us
using applicable market rotes in effect at the time of the adjustmant.

S=2a note 19 to the consolidated financial statements included sbewhers
in this annual repart for infermation about our fubwe commitments os fo

govemment land use faes for the Altira Macaou site.

Altira Developments applied for an omendment fo the kond concession
contract to increcse the total develepable area for hotel car park and
frea area. The amendment procedure hos yet o be completed. If the
amandment & completed, we will be required to pay an additional land
premium of opprodmately MOP19.4 milkon (equivalent to approximately
Uss2.4 millon), and government land wa fass  wil
approvmataly MOP1.S millen (equivalent to opprodmately USS185,0000 per

annum.

ba revied to

46 Wstoo Cromn Entertanment Umited  Annuol Report 2012

The Mocou government approved total gross floor area for development for
the Alfiko Macou site of approximately #5000 square meters (equivalent to
approximately 1,022 600 square faef).

The aquipment utilzed by Altira Macaou in the casine and hotel i owned by
us and held for use on the Altiro Macaou site and includes the main gaming
aquipmant and software to support its table gamas and gaming machine
operafions, cage equipment, security and surveillance equipment and
caging, hotel furniture, fittings, and aquipment.

Mocha Clubs
Mocha Clubs oparate ot pramisas with a total flsor araa of approdmataly
4,800 square feet at the following locations in Macauw;

Mocha Cub Opaning Date Locaton (Barting Arsa
(" sguare faat)
Gelden Dragon Jorwary 2012 GfE 1/E 2/F ond 3F of 20,500
Hotel Golden Drogon
Macou Towear Saptambar 2011 LGIF and G/F of Mocou Tower .50
Mocha Altire December 2008 Laval 1 of i Mocou 2,950
Maocha Scucre Qelobar 2007 175 2/F and 3/F of Mocha Square 3400
Muaring Maza Cacambar 2006 1/F ond 2fF of Maring Pz 080
Hotel Taipo January 2006 G/F of Hotel Taipa £,000
Snira November 2008 G/Fond 1JF of Holal Sinira £,000
Taipa Squam Jamasey 2006 GIF 117 and 2/F of Hatel Taips Squane 5400
Len ¥wol Fong Aol 2004 GIF of Hotel Lon Kwal Fong &700
(fanmardy knawn as
Kingaway Commancial Cantra)
Royel September 2008 G/Fond 1/F of Holel Royo 8480
Tetal 74,500




For lecations operating ot leased or subleased premises. the lease and
sublecss terms are pursuant to lease agrasmeants that expire of various datas
through June 2022, which ore renewable upon our giving notice prior to
enpiration and subject 1o incremental incraasas in monthly rentals.

In addifion to leacsehold improvements to Mocha Club premises. the onsite
equipment utilized at the Mocha Clubs s owned and held for use fo support
the gaming machinas operations,

Studlo Clty

The Studio City site s located on a plot of land in Cotal Macau of 130.78%
square meaters (equivalent to approximataly 1.4 million square feat) in soe
and hes @ gross construction area of approximately 7.6 milien square fast
{equivalent to approximately 707,078 square meters). The gross construction
areda for the first phase is approximeately 5.0 million square feet (equivalant to
approximataly 463,000 squara meters). Undear the Studio City land concassion
contract, the land premium is approdmataly MOP1,425.3 millon (equivalent
to approximataely USS177.9 million), of which approsimeataly MOP495.1 million
{aquivalant to approximately USSS61.8 million) was paid as of Dacambear
31, 212 and the remaining MOPS30.2 {equivalent to approximately
U314 milicn) will be pald in five bl-annual instalments, bearing Interast
ot 5% per annum. Under the Studic City lond concession confract, Studio
City Davelopmarts has provided guarartess in the fotal amount of
MOPT.4 millon (equisalent to approximataly USS0.9 million). Currently. the
davelopment pearicd under the land concession coniract s for 72 months
from July 25, 2012

The Studic City lond concession confract. as omended by Dispatch of the
Secretary for Transportation and Public works no. 3172012, of July 1%, 2012,
pemits Studio City Developments to build o complex comprising o five-star
hoteal a facility for cinematographic industry, including supporting faciities for
entartainment and tourism, parking and frese area.

See note 19 to the consolidated financial statemerts included elsewhers
in this annual report for information about cur future commitments as to
government land wse fees for the Studio City site,

The initicl ste preparation for e first phase of the Studie City project hes
bean substantially complated. Additional site preparation works for the
updated dasign of the first phase of the Studio City project recommencad in
the third quarter of 2012, The first phase of the Studio City project i expected
to inchuda a S-star luxuny hotal {which we cumantly expect to opearate undear
ouf cwn branding) and related facilities, gaming capacity, retail, attractions
and entarttainment verues (including a multipunpose entertainment shudic).
The first phase of the Studic Cily project ks cumantly targeted to opean by mid-
2005, Our plan for the additional development of the Studic City site, which
b expected to include odditional S-star keasy hotal and related facilities.
o wall as an exparsion of metall. enterftainment and gaming capacity, s
cumantly being prepared and remains subject to change. Total construction
and design costs are cumantly budgeted ot approximately US$2.04 billien.
As of December 31, 20012 we had incured approdmately USS13%.8 million
{exchiding the cost of land) for the development of Studic City. primarily for
site preparation costs and design and consultation fees.
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Other thon ulilzing internal cash flow we hove enfered into financing
armangemants for Studio City, nomely the Studic City Motes ond the Studio
City Project Facility.

We wil operate the gaming arscs of Studic City pursuant to o sarvices
agresment we enterad into in May 2007 with, inter alia, Studic City
Entartainment Limited (formerly known as New Cotal Entfarttainment (Macou)
Limited) (which we acquired control of 40% of the shares in July 2011) which
was subsaquently amendad on June 15, 2012, as amendead from fime to
time, together with other agreaments or arangements entered into batweaen
the parties from time o time, which may amend, supplament or related to
the atorementionad agreement. Our subsidiary Melkee Crown Macau will
e raimbursed for the cosfs incurad In connection with its operation of the
Studio City casing and will retain a porticn of the gross gaming revenuas from
such operation, which will be reinvested in the Studio City project.

Philippines Development

In October 2012, we, through cur indirect subsiciary, MCE Leisure Philippines,
completed the signing of the cooperation agreement with the Philippine
Partfies, including Belle Comporation of the SM Group,. for the daveloprment
and operation of the Philppines Project.

The Philippines Project is located on an opproximately &.2-hectare site in
Entartainment City Mania, close to Metio Manila's intemational aisort and
central business districts, Construction of the Philippines Project commenced
in March 2010, General piing work, building shels, building services and
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primory distribution installation of the main building were completed
by Octobar 2012, As of this date, construction has commenced on the
connecting structure, including piling works, ond the Company expects
construction on the connacting structure to be complated by mid-2014.

The Philopines Projact is expactad to open in mid-2014 and have 1,45 slot
machines and 242 gaming tables, six hotel towers with approximately 9467
reoms in oggregate, including VIP and five-star luxury rooms and high-end
boutique hotel rooms, five specialty restourants along with o number of bars
and a multi-level car park. The Philippines Project is also expacted to feature
three separate entertainment venues. including o Family Entertainment
Center, a ive peformance central lounge within the casine and a night club
encapsulated within the Forfune Egg. on attractive domealike structure, which
will e accantad with craative external lighting and is expectad to bacome
a centerpiece attraction of the Philippines Project.

Other Premises

Taipa Square Casing premisas, including the fit-out and gaming ralated
equipment, are kcated on the ground floor and level one within Hotel
Taipa Square and having a floor area of approximataly 1,760 square maters
{equivalent fo approximately 18950 square fest). Wae oparate Talpa Sguare
Casing undear a right-to-use agreameant signed on Juns 12 2008 with the
owner Hotel Taipa Square (Mocoo) Company Limited, The term of the
agraameant is ona yaar from fhe daote of execution and is automatically
rerawable, subject to cartain contractual provisions. for succeassive periods of
ona year under the same terms and conditions, until June 26, 2022,



Apart from the property sites for Altira Mocou and City of Dreams, we
maintain variows offices and storage locations in Macau and Hong Kang.
We lease all of our office and storage premises, except for five units located
at Golden Dragon Centra (formerly known as ZThu Kuean Building) whaose
property rights belong to ws. The five units have a total area of 839 square
matars faquivalent to approximately 9029 square feat) and we oparate a
recriitment center there. The five units were purchased by MPEL Properties
(Macau) Limited, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, for approximately
HKS79.7 million {equivalent to approximately US510.2 million) on August 15,
2008. The Solden Dragon Centre & aracted on a plot of land under a land
lzase grant that expires on July 27, 2015, Such land lease grant is renswable
for successiva periods of up to 10 years subject to obtaining certain
approvals from the Macau govermnment.

Achievements and Awards

During the year ended December 31, 2012 nat only was our Company able
to achlave outstanding business performance and profit growth, but we also
ascalated afforts to support the society. A number of prastigiows accoladas
weare awarded to the Company for s worthy ochisvements.

Continuous Pursuit of Excellence

Melco Crown Ertertainment was sslacted as one of "Hong Kong's Bast
Monoged Companies” and waos ranked among the top companies with “Best
Invastor Relations” and "Best Corporate Governance” by the authoritative
Financedsia magaozine. The Company’s lssuance of the USSE2S million bond
for Studio City has also been honored as the “Best High-yiekd Bond™ in the
FinanceAsia Achievement Awards 2012,

Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer M. Lowrence You Lung Ho. has
bean selected as one of the “Best CECs in Hong Kong® by FAnancedsia
magazine for the fourth year since 2009,

Growing Recognition of Werld-class Lodging and Entertainment
Offerings

Combining the foscinating irterors created by one of the word's top
designers with outstanding service to match, Altira Macaou provides an
unforgettably koariows ledging experance to each guest which eamed the
“Five-Star Award for Lodging”™ and the “Five-Star Award for Spa” by Forbes
Travel Guide once again in 2012,

Apart from that, City of Dreams has alse been awarded the “Bast Custorner
Expenence of the Yeor Award” by the Infemational Gaming Awards, in
recognition of its excellence in hospitality and services, o5 well as the diverse
antartainment offerings ot the integrated entertainmeant resort.

A numbear of acookadas ware gamerad by The House of Dancing Watar
the world's largest water extrovagarza and the flagship enterainment
attraction in City of Dreams. The aguatic show has baggad the “2012 Etffie
China Awards — Culture, Entertainment & Sporting Events Award”, bacoming
tha first and only Macau brand to win this prastigious award. The House of
Dancing Waoter ako captured the “China Marketing Excelence Award™ and
“China Branding Excellence Award” of the Economic Chserver and Hong
Keng Management Asscciation, and sccoped the prastigicus international
“THEA Award for Qutstanding Achievemant” from tha Thamed Entertainment
Association, "2012 United Stotes International Theatre
Technology Award” of the United States Irstibute for Theatre Technology
during tha past yaar.

as wel a3 the
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Stepping Up Environmental Protection Efforis

Melkco Crown Entertainment i dedicated to craating a sustainable
environmeant in the city for the benefit of future generations by bringing
ervironmental protection consideratiors  info our everyday decision-
making process, City of Dreams was the first and only Macou casing-
hotal to achieve B0 14001 Erwironmertal Management Cerfification for
its effective Environmental Monoagement System to measure and improve
the anvironmeantal impact of cperations. More specifically, in Juna 2012, all
the three hotels ot City of Dreams, namely Crown Towaers, Hard Rock Hotel
and Grand Hyatt Macaou, gameared the 2011 Macas Green Hotel Award
organized by the Environmental Protection Bureau (DSPA) and co-organized
by the Macou Govemment Tourist Office for tha second consacutive year,
testimany to the Company's excellence in green proctices,

In 2012 the Company’'s staff volunteers confirued to orgonize yearound
charty programs and share thair love and spraad happiness to the local
communities, Over 40 charity activities were arganized throughout the year
The Company’s voluntear affort has bean recognized by the society, and was
henored tha “Baest C5R” by the authoritative Financedsia magazine.

The Company & greatly encouraged by these awards which underscored
itz fireless efforts to recch new heights in comorate management,
entartainment and sarvices. Melco Crown Enferfainment will continue to
grow its business whils fulfiling its comporate responsibilities to the peopla in
need and enhancing shameholder value while bensefiting the stakeholdaers
and sociaty at larga.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Mr, Lawrence Yau Lung Ho (aged 36)

Executive Director fCo-Chairman and Chiel Executive Officer)

Mr. Lowrence You Lung Ho was appointed as owr exscutive Director on
Dacembar 20, 2004 and has sarved as our Co-Chalrman and Chiaf Executiva
Oifficer since December 2004, Since November 2001, Mr. Ho has also served
a5 the managing director and, since March 2004, the chairman and chiaf
axacutive officer of Melco. As o Member of the National Committes of the
Chinasa Peopla’s Polifical Consultative Confarance, Mr Ho abo serves on
rumencus boords and committees of privately held companies in Hong
Keng Macau and mainland China. He i a Vice Paton of The Community
Chast of Hong Kong: Member of Science and Technology Counci of the
Macou SAR Governmant; Mambar of All China Youth Faderation: Mambar of
Macou Basic Laow Promotional Associotion: Chairman of Macau International
Volunteers Association: Mamber of Campaign Committes of The Community
Chest: Board of Governors of The Conadion Chomber of Commerce in
Hong Kong: Homorary Litetime Director of the Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce, Hong Kong President of Mocau Canadion Chamber of
Commarce; Honorary President of Association of Property Agents and Real
Estate Developers of Macou and Director Executivo of the Macao Chambar
af Commarce.

In recognition of Mr. Ho's excellent directorship and entreprenaurial irit,
institutional imvestor honorad him as the “Best CEQ” in 2005, He wos abo
grartad the “5th China Entemprise Award for Creative Businessmen” by

the China Marketing Association and Ching Enterorise News “Leader of
Temorow” by Hong Kong Taher and the “Directors of the Year Award”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Directars in 2005, As a socially responsible
young entreprensur in Hong Kong, Mr Ho was elected as one of the
“Tan Outstanding Young Persons Salection 2008° organized by the Junior
Chamber Internatioral Hong Kong. In 2007, he was elected as a finalist in the
“Bast Chairman” category in the "Stavie Intarnational Business Awards™ and
one of the “100 Most Influential People across Aska Pocific” by Asiomoney
magazing. In 2008, he was granted the "China Charity Award” by the Ministry
of Civil Affairs of the People’s Republic of China. And in 2009, Mr Ho was
selected as one of the "China Top Ten Financial and Inteligent Persons”
judged by a panel led by the Beiing Culfural Development Study Centra,
and was namad “Young Entrepranaur of the Year™ af Hong Kong's first Asia
Pacific Entraprenaurship Awards. Mr. Ho was selected by Financedsia as one
of the "Best CEQs” in Hong Kong for four consecutive years, from 2009 to
2012. He was also awardad "Asia’s Bast CEC (Invastor Relations)” af thae Asian
Excellence Awards by Comporate Govermnance Asia magegine in 2011 and
was honored as one of the recipients of the 3rd Asian Comorate Director
Recognition Awards in 2012, In 2013, he was once again selected as "Asia’s
Bast CEO (Invastor Relations)™ at the Aslan Excallance Awards by Corporate
Governance Asia magezine. Mr He graducted with a bacheler of arls
dagrae in commerce from the Univarsity of Toronto, Canada in June 199¢
and was awarded the Honomary Doctor of Business Administration degres
by Edinburgh Mapier University. Scotland in July 2009 for his contribution to
business, education and the community in Hong Kong, Macau and China,
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Mr. Ji s Douglas Packer {(aged 45)

Nen-executive Director (Co-Chairmian)

Mr. James Douglas Pocker was appointed as our non-executive Director
on March 8 2005 and has sarved as our Co-Chairman sinca March 2005.
hr. Packer is the executive chairman of Crown, an operator of casines and
intagrated rasors, having bean appointed on its formation in 2007, and
a member of the Crown Investment Committee since February 2008, Mr
Packar i abko the charman of Consclidated Press Holdings Limited (the
largest sharehelder of Crown), having been appointed in January 2006, Mr.
Packer is a director of Crown Malbourne Limited, a caine and integrated
resort operator having been appointed in July 1999, and Burswood Limited, o
casing and integrated rasort oparator having been appointad in Saptembear
2004, Hig previous diractorships include Challenger Limited (formerly colled
Challenger Financial Services Group Limited) from MNovember 2003 to
September 2009, SEEK Limited from October 2003 to August 2009, Sunland
Group Limited from July 2006 to August 2009, Ten Network Holdings Limited
from December 2010 to March 2011, Ellsrston Copital Limited from August
204 to Augwst 2011 and Consolidated Media Holdings Limited from
Dacamber 2007 to Novembar 2012,

Mr. John Peter Ben Wang (aged 52)

MNen-exacutive Drector

Mr. John Pater Ban Wang was appointed as our non-axecutive Director
on Movembar 21, 2006 Since Movember 2009, Mr Wang hos served as
a non-axecutive director of Melkcolot Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. The principal activities of Melcolot Limited include the
managameant of lottary buginess, manufacturing and sales of lottary tarminals
and PCS machines, and proviion of management services for distribution
of lottary products. Mr Wang s abo a non-executive director of Anxin-
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China Holdings Limited. a company lsted on the Stock Exchange and i the
chairman and executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited, abo
lstad on the Stock Exchange. Mr Wong was the chisf finoncial officer of
Melco from 2004 to September 2009, Prior to joining Melco in 2004, Mr. Wang
had aver 18 years of profassional experience in the securities and investment
banking incustry. Mr. Wang was a non-executive diractor of China Precious
Metal Resources Holdings Co.. Lid., a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
from January 2010 to December 2012 He was a non-exacutive director of
Camival Froup Intermnational Holdings Limited (formerly known as Crigntal
Ginza Holdings Limitad), which & listed on the Stock Exchange, until March
1, 2012 He was the managing director of JS Cresvala Securitias Infernational
Lirnitedd (HE) from 1998 to 2004 and pricr to 1998, he worked for Dautsche
Maorgan Granfall (HK), CLSA (HK), Barclays (Singapore), 5 Warburg (London),
Salomon Brothers (London), the London Stock Exchange and Deloitte
Hasking & Salls (London). M Wang qualified o a charterad accountant with
tha Institute of Charterad Accountants in England and Walas in 1985, He
graduated from the Univarsity of Kent af Canterbury in the United Kingdoem
with a bachalor dagres in accounting in July 1982,

Mr. Clarence Yuk Man Chung (aged 50)

Nen-exacutive Direchor

Mr. Clarence Yuk Man Chung was appeointed os our non-axecutive Director
on Movembear 21, 2006, Mr Chung has abo been an exacufive director of
Melco since May 2006, Mr Chung jeined Mslco in December 2003 and
assumed the role of chief finoncial officer. Mr Chung hos served as a
director of Melco Lelsure since 2008, Before joining Melco, he has more than
20 years of experience in the financial industry in varous capacities as o
chief finoncial officer an investment banker and a merger and accquisition
specialist. He was named one of the “Asian Gaming 50 — 2009, 2010 ond
20127 by Inside Aslan Gaming magazine.



Mr. Chung hos been the chairman and chief exscufive officer of
Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (formerdy  known as  Elixir  Garing
Technologies, Inc.). a company lsted on the NASDAR Copital Market
since August 2008 and October 2008, respactively. Mr Chung has baen the
chairman and director of MCE o company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange. since Decamber 2012, Mr Chung has dlo been appointed as
a director of @ number of our subsidiones incorporated in various differsnt
jurisdictiors. Mr. Chung obtained a master’s degrea in business administration
from the Kellbgg School of Monogement of Morthwestern University and
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and & a mamber of
the Hong Kong Institute of Cerified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Charterad Accountants in England and Walss.

Mr. William Todd Nisbet (aged 45)

Non-executive Director

M Wiliam Todd Nisbet was appeointed as our non-axecutive Dirsctor
on Cctober 14, 2009, In oddifion. Mr. Nisbet has been appoinfed as a
drector of MCR a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, since
December 2012, He has also been oppointed as a director of a number
of our subsidiaries incoporated in vanous diferent jursdictions. M Nibat
joined Crown. an operator of casinos and integrated resorts, In 2007, In his
role as executive vice prasident — strategy and development at Crown,
Mr. Misbet i resporsible for all project development and construction
aparations of Crown., From August 2000 through July 2007, Mr. Nisbeat held the
pasition of executive vice president — project divector for Wynn Dasign and
Davelopmant, a development subsidiary of Wynn Resorts Limited (“Wynn™),
an operater of casines and integrated resors. Sarving this role with Wynn,
M Nsbet was responsible for all project development and corstruction

operations undertaken by Wynn. Prior to joining Wynn, Mr. Nisbet was the vice
prasident of oparations for Marmell Corao Associates. During Mr. Nisbat's 14
yaars af Mamell Corrac from 1986 1o 2000, he was responsible for managing
various aspacts of the construction of some of Las Vegas' most alaborate
and industry-defining properties. Mr. Misbet obtained a bachelor of science
dagraea in Finance from the Univarsity of Newvada, Las Vegas in 1993

Mr. Rowen Bruce Craigie (aged 57)

MNon-executive Director

Mr. Rowsn Bruce Craigie was appointed as our non-exacutive Director on
March 8 2005 Mr Craigie has also been appointed o a director of our
subsicliaries in various diffarent jurisdictions, Mr. Craigie & the chief exscutive
officer and managing director of Crown. an operator of cosinos and
integrated rasors having beean appointad on its formation in 2007, Mr. Craigis
i abo a diecter of Crown Melboume Limited, a casine and integrated
asort oparator having been appointed in Jonuary 2001, and Burswood
Limited, @ casine and integroted resort operator having been appointed
in Saptamber 2004, Mr Craigie praviously served o the chiefl executive
officer of PEL Gaming from 2006 to 2007 and a3 the chisf executive officer
of Crown Melboume Limited from 2002 to 2007, Mr Craigie was a director
of Comsolidated Madia Holdings Umited from January 2002 to Apil 2009,
Mr. Craigie joined Crown Melbourne Limited in 1993, was appointed as the
executive general manager of its Goming Machines department in 1996,
and was promotad to chiel operating officer in 2000, Priar to jaining Crown
Malboume Limited, Mr. Craigie was the group general manager for gaming
at the TAB in Victoria from 1990 to 1993, and held senior economic palicy
paositions in Treasury and the Department of Industry in Victeria from 1984 to
1990, He obtained a bachelor of economics (honors) degres from Maonash
Univarsity, Malbourna, Australia in 1974

Annucl Report 2012 Medoo Cronwn Endertcinment Umided 53



Mr. James Andrew Charles MacKenzie (aged 59)

Indapendant Non-executive Director

Mr. James Andrew Charles MocKenzie was appointed as an independent
non-axecutive Director on April 24, 2008. Mr MaocKenzie hes olso served
as chairman of Mirvac Group since 2005, Mr MoacKenzie wos appointed
as a director of Yancoal Australia Limited on June 26, 2012 and serves as
the co-vice chairman. He hos been a non-executive director of Pacific
Brards Ltd. since 2008, He has abo been appeointed as an independant
director of MCP a company listed on the Philppine Stock Exchange, since
December 2012, He lad the transformation of the Victoran Govamment's
Parsonal Injury Schemes from 2000 to 2007 and prior to 2005 he held senicr
axacutive positions with ANZ Banking Group, Standard Chartered Bank and
Morwich Union ple. A chartered accountant by profession since 1977, Mr
MacKerzie was, prior to 2005, a partner in both the Melbouwrne and Hong
Kong offices of an international cccounting firm now part of Daloitte. In 2001,
Mr. MacKerzis weos awarded the Australian Centanary Madal for sarvicas to
public administration. He obtained a bachelor of business (ooccounting and
quantitative methads) dagres from the Swinburne Unbearsity of Technology
In 1974, Mr. MacKerzie has baen a Fellow of both the Instihute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and the Australian Institute of Company Directors
since 1974 and 1994, respectively. He i the chairman of cur oudit committes.
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Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu (aged 40)

Independant Non-exacutive Director

Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu was appointed as on independent non-executive
Director on Decamber 18 20056, Mr Wu has been the managing director
of Hopawell Holdings Umited, o business conglomerate listed on the Stock
Exchangs, since October 2009 He has served in variows roles with the
Hopewsll Holdings groue since 1999, including group contreller frem March
2000 to Jure 2001, executive dirsctor since June 2001, chisf operating
officer from January 2002 to August 2002 deputy manoging directer from
August 2003 to June 2007 and co-managing director from July 2007 to
September 2009. He hos served as the manoging directer of Hopewsll
Highway Infrastructure Limited since July 2003, M Wu graduated with high
henors from Princeton University in 1994 with o Bachelor of Science degree
in Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering. Ha then worked in Jopan as an
aenginear for Mitsubishi Blactric Corporation for three years before returning to
full-time studias of Stanford University, whera ha obtained a Master of Business
Adminstration degres in 1999,

Mr. Wu b active in public service in both Hong Koeng and Mainland China.
He sarvas in a number of advisory roles af diferant levak of govemment. In
Mainkand China, he i @ member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee
of the 10th Chinese People’s Polfical Consultative Conferenca, a Standing
Committas membaer and a member of the Huodu District Committes of The
Chinase Pagpla’s Political Consultative Conferance, as well as a mamber
of the Executive Committes of the Al-China Federction of Industry and
Commarca, among ofhar public service capacitias. In Hong Kong, Me Wu's
major public sarvice appointments inclede being a member of the Hong
Kong Govemmant's Standing Committes on Disciplined Services Salaries
and Condifions of Sarvice and a member of #s Steering Commiftes on



the Promotion of Electric Wehicles. o member of the Securities and Futures
Commission Advisory Committes, as wall as a mamber of the Board of
Directors of the Community Chest of Hong Kong. the Hong Kong Spors
Institute and the Asian Youth Orcheastra Limited. He is ako a mamber of the
Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University effective from January 2013
Praviously, he was a council member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and o member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technalogy.

In oddition to hi professionol and public service engogements, M
Wu s mostly known for his passion for ice hockey. as well as the sport’s
davelopment in Hong Kong and the region. He & the Vice Prasident (Asia/
Oceania) of International lce Hockey Federation the Co-founder and
Chairman of the Hong Kong Amateur loe Hockey Club and the Hong Kong
Academy of Ice Hockey, He is also the Honorary President of the Hong Kong
lce Hocksy Association — the national sports association of ice hocksy
in Hong Kong, the Vice-President of the Chinese lce Hockay Association,
Honorary President of the Macou lce 3pors Fedaration and Honorary
Chairman of the Ice Hockey Association of Tapel Municipal Athletics
Fedaration.

In 2006, the Werd Economic Fomrum selected Mr Wu a5 a “Young Global
Laader” He was also awarded the "Diractors of the Year Award” by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, and the “Asian Corporate Directar
Recognition Award” by Corporate Governance Asia in both 2011 and
2012 and named tha “Asia’s Bast CEQ (Inwestor Relations)” in 2012 He is
tha chalrman of our compensation committes, o member of our audit
committes and a member of our nominating and comporate govemance
committesa.

Mr. Ylu Wa Alec Tsul (aged 63)

independent Non-axecutive Diractor

M Yo Wa Alec T was oppointed as an independent non-execufive
Director on December 18 20046, Mr Tsui hos extensive experience in
finance and administration, corponate and strategic planning, infarmation
technology and human resources managament, having served of various
international companies. He held key positions at the Securitiss and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993, joined the Stock Exchange
in 1994 as an executive directar of tha finance and opardtions sarvicas
division ard was its chief executive from February 1997 to July 2000. He
was also the chief operating officer of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited from March to August 2000. He was the chairman of the Hong Kong
Sacurities Institute from 2001 to 2004, He was a corsuttant of the Shanzhan
Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002, Mr Tal was an indepandant
non-axacutive director of sach of Mational Arts Heldings Umited (formery
known as Vartex Group Limited) from March 2002 fo Apil 2009, Synergis
Holdings Umited from January 2005 to September 2008, Greaentown China
Heldings Limited from June 2008 fo June 2010, China Hulyuan Juice Sroup
Limited from Septamber 2006 to July 2010, and China BlueChamical Limited
frorm April 2006 to Juna 2012, all of which are companies lsted on the Stock
Exchange. Mr Tsui has been the chairman of WAG Wordsec Corporate
Finance Limited since 2006 and an independeant non-executive director of a
rumber of companies lsted on the Stock Exchange, NASDASL the Shanghai
Stock Exchonge ond the Philippine Stock Exchange, including Industrial
and Commaercial Bonk of China (Asia) Limitad since August 2000, China
Changtong Development Group Umited since 2003, COSCO International
Heldings Limited since 2004, China Power Intemdational Davelopment Limited
since 2004, Pocific Onling Ltd. since 2007, ATA Inc. since 2008, China Qilfiskd
Services Limited since 2009, Summit Ascent Holdings Limited since March
2011 and MCP since December 2012, Mr Tsui graducated from the University
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of Tennessee with o bocheler's degree in industriol engineering in 1975 and
a master of engineering degree in 1974, He completed a program for senior
managers in govemnment at the John F Kennedy School of Government
at Hamward Universty in 1993, He i the chairman of our neminating and
corporate govemance committas, a member of our audit committes and a
member of our compansation commithes.

Mr. Robert Wason Mactier (aged 48)

Indapandent Non-executive Director

M, Robert Wason Moctier was oppointed a5 an independent non-
executive Director on December 18, 20046, Mr. Mactier pined the board
of directors of STW Communications Group Limited, a publicly listed
Awgtralian communications and advertising company, in Daecember 2004
and became its independent non-executive chairman in July 2008. He
W a non-executive diector of Aurora Community Television Limitad from
2005 to 2012, Since 1990, Mr Mactier has held o voriety of executive roles
across the Australion investrment banking ond securities markets. He has
baen a consultant to UBS AG in Australio since Jume 2007, From March
1997 to January 2006, Mr. Mactier worked with Citigrouz Pty Limited and its
predecessor firms in Australio, and prior o this he worked with E.L & C. Bailieu
Limited from MNovembear 1994 to February 1997 and Crd Minnett Securities
Limited from May 1990 to October 1994,

During this time, he has gained broad advisory ond capital markets
transaction experience and specific  indwtry  experise  within  the
telecommunications, media, gaming, entertainment and technolegy sectors
and across the private equity sectors. Prior to joining the investrnant banking

industry. Mr, Mactier qualified as a chartered accountant in 1987, working
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with KPMG from January 1985 fo Aprl 1990 ocross their oudit. manogement
consulfing and corporate finance practices. He obtained a bachelor's
daegree in ecenomics from the University of Sydney Australia in 19846 and
has been a Membar of the Auwstralian Institute of Compary Directors since
2007. He is a member of our compersation committee and neminating ond
copaorate govamancs committae.

Senior Management

Mr. Geoffrey Stuart Davis (aged 44)

Chisf Financial Cificer

M. Geoffrey Stuart Davis 5 our chief financial officer and he was appointed
to his currant role in April 2011, Prior to that, he sarved as our deputy chist
financial officer fromm August 2010 fo March 2011 and owr senior vice
prasident, corporate finance from 2007, when he joined cur Company. Prior to
Jjeining us, Mr. Davis was o research analyst for Citigroup Investment Research,
whare he covered the US. gaming industry from 2001 to 2007, From 1994 to
2000, he wos the vice prasident of comporate communications for Park Place
Entertainment, tha largest gaming company in the world at the time. Park
Place was spun off from Hiton Hotels Comporation and subsequently renamed
Cassars Entertainmant. M Davis has been a CRA chartar holder since 2000
and cbtalned a bachelor of arts from Brown Unbversity in 1691,

Ms. Stephanie Cheung (aged 50)

Exscutive Vice President and Chief Legal Cificer

Ms. Stephania Cheung is cur axecutive vice prasident and chisf legal officer
and she was appointed to her curant role in December 2008, Prior to that,
she held the fitle of general counsel from Nowvember 2004, when she joined
aur Company. She has acted as the secratary to our Board since she joinad
our Company. Pricr to jeining us, Mz, Cheung was an of counsal af Troutman



Sanders from 2004 fo 2006 ond pricr to that she procticed law with various
intarnational kaw firms in Hong kong, Singapore and Toronto. Ms. Chaung
groduated with a bechelor of laws degres from Osgoode Hall Law Schogl in
1988 and a mastar's degrae in businaess administration from York Univarsity in
1594, Ms. Cheung is admitted as a solicitor in Ontario, Canada, England and
Walas, and Hong Kong.

Ms. Akike Takahashi (aged 59)

Executive Vice President and Chisf Human Resources/Corporate Social
Rasponsibilty Offcer

Ms. Akike Takahashi s our executive vice prasident and chiel human
rasources/corporate sockal resporsibdity officer and she was appointed
to har current role in December 2008, Prior to that, she held the title
group human resources director from December 20086, when she joined
our company. Pricr fo joining us, Ms. Takaheashi worked as a consultont in
her own consultancy company from 2003 to 2004, where she conducted
"Celeval” executive searches for clients and assisted with brondfservice
culiure alignment for a oy hotal in New York City, and whera her |ast
engagement prior to joining our company was to kead the human resowrces
integration for the largast interrational hospitality joint venture in Japan
between InterContinental Hotels Group ond ANA Hotels. She was the global
group director of human resources for Shangri-ka Hotels and Rasorts. an
international luxury hotel group headguarterad in Hong Kong. from 1995 to
2003, Betwaen 1993 and 1995, she was the senior vice president of human
resources and service quality for Bank of America, Heawdail FSB, She served as
regional human rescurces manager for Sheraton Hotels Howaii/Japan from
1985 to 1993, She started her hospitalty caresr as a training managesr for
Halekulani Hotel. She began her career in the fashion luxury retail industry
in merchandising. operations, training and human resources. Ms. Takahashi
attended the University of Howaii,

Mr. ¥ing Tat Chan (aged 41)

Chief Operating Officer

M. Ying Tat Chan is our chigf apearating officer and ha was appeintad to his
cumrant rele in February 2012, With the alimination of the co-chlef openating
officer pasitions in February 2012 Mr. Chan now ovarsess both gaming and
non-gaming activities occross City of Dreoms, Altira Mocou and Mocha
Clubs, Praviously, since Saptamber 2010, he was our co-chlef openating
officer. gaming. Prior to thatl. he served as president of Altirn Macou from
Mevambar 2008, Prior fo his appointment as prasident of Altire Macou,
Mr. Chan was the chief executive officer of Amax Entertainment Holdings
Limfted from Daecember 2007 until November 2008, Before joining Amax
Mr. Chan worked with our chief executive officer on special projects from
September 2007 to November 2007 and was the general manager of Mocha
Clubs from 2004 fo 2007, From Jure 2002 to Octobar 2006, Mr Chan was the
assistant to the group monoging dirsctor at Melco, and he was invelved
in the cverall strategic development and managemeant of our Company.
Mr. Chan served in various roles at First Shanghai Financial Holding Limited
from 1998 to May 2002 with hiz kast position as assistant to the managing
diractor. He graduated with a bachalor's degrae in businass administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 and with a master’s degree
in financial management under a long distance leaming course from the
Univarsity of London, tha Unitad Kingdom in 1998,

Mr. Kelvin Hai Ching Tan (aged 45)

Executive Vice President, international Marketing

Mr. Kelvin Hal Ching Tan is our executive vice prasident, infernatioral
markating, Mr. Tan joined cur company in Jaruary 2009 and rasponsibls for
o company’s international marketing business, which includes ovarsesing
thea VIP Sarvicas operations, managing an intemational marksting netwaork,
and managing junkets operating at both City of Dreams and Altira Macou.
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Mr. Tan spent the earlier years of his gaming career in the Philippines and
worked for companies inclading Senting Intemnctional Resorts Inc. and
Waterfront Properdies Inc, Bafore amiving in Macou, he founded and ran
a consultancy offering stiategic planning, feasibility studies, valuations
and junkst development programs for casinos across Asia. Prior to joining
our company, Mr Tan wos the Vice President of Business Development for
Venatian Macau Lid.

Mr. Tan holds a bochelor's degree in science and business adminstration
and o master of business administration degree from Indiona University of
Pannsylvania in tha Unitad States. He is also a graduate of the axecutive
development program of the University of Nevada, Renc.
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Ms. Ching Hul Hsu (aged 39)

Prasicient of Mocha Clubs

Msz. Ching Hui Hsu & our prasident of Mocha Clubs, and she wos appointed
to her currant role in Decembar 2008, Ms. Hsu has worked for Mocha Clubs
since September 2003, She was Mocha Club's former financial controlier
from September 2003 to Septembear 2006 and its chief operating officer
frem December 2004 fo Nowember 2008, overseeing finance, frecsury
audit, legal compliance, procuremant and administration and  human
resources functions, Ms, Hsu obtained her bachelor of arts degree in busingss
administration with major in accounting in 1997 frem Seattle Univarsity and a
master's degree in business administration (with concentration on financial
sarvicas) from The Hong Kong University of Science and Tachnalogy in 2002
and a doctorate degres in economics from Beliing Mormal University in
2013 Ms. Hsu was qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in the state of
Washington, United States In 1998, a member of the Americaon Institute of
Ceartified Publc Accountants in 1999, and an associate mambear of the Hong
Kaong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants in 2001,



Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report with the audited
consolidated finoncial stctements of ow Company and our Group for the
year ended Decembear 31, 2012

Principal Activities

Our Compary and ow Group are o developal ownar and through
our subsidiary Malco Crown Macou operator of cosine goming and
antartainment resort faclities. Our Company i a helding company and
through our principal subsidiaries cwns and opearates City of Draams, Altira
Macau and Mocha Clubs and i In the process of developing Studic City, a
cinamatically-themed integrated entertainmeant, retaill and gaming resort
in Cotal Macau. On Cetober 25, 2012, MCE Lebure Philippines, an indirect
subsidiary of our Company. enterad inte a cooparation agrasment with
M Investments Corporation, Belle Comporation and Premiumleisure and
Amusament, Inc. for tha Philppines Project. an integrated resort project
located in Enterfainment City, Manila comprising a casing, hotel ratall and
entertainment complex. On December 19, 2012 MCE Philppines Investments
and MCE Investments No.2 complated the acquisition of a majority intarast
in the bsued share copital of MCR the shares of which are listed en the
Philippine Stock Exchange. On March 200 20013, MCP acquirad 100% aquity
intarest in MCE Holdings Philippines from MCE Philippines Investmeants. MCE
Heldings Philippines, through MCE Holdings No.2, owns 100% of MCE Lelaure
Philippines, which has been granted the exchusive right to manage. operate
and contrel the Philippines Project. Through these transactions, MCE Leisura
Philippines, MCE Holdings Philippines and MCE Holdings Neo.2 become

wholly owned subsidiaries of MCR We intend to pursue Philippines-based
opportunities and cpercte our future Philippines businesses through MCE
Leisure Philippinas and MCR

The principal activities of our subsidianias are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements includad in this annual report.

Financial Results

The results of our Group for the year ended December 31, 2012 are s=t out
in the corsolidated statements of operations on pages 104 and 105 of this
anrual report.

Dividends

The Board doas not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
yaar endsd Decembear 31, 2012 (2011: NI, Our Company curently infends
to retain most, f not all of owr available funds and any future eamings to
finance the construction and development of our projacts, to sarvice debt
and to oparate and expand our business.

Properties and Development Projects

Details of cur properties and developmeant projects are set out in the
“Manogement Dbcussion ond Analysis — Properties and Development
Projects” section ond notes 4. 8 and 22 to the comnsclidated financial
stefernants included in this annual repeort.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the share copital of our Company during the year
ara sat out in the consolidated statements of shareholdars’ equity on pages
107 and 108 of this annual report. Detaik of movements in share options of
our Company during the year are sat out in note 16 to the corsolidated
financial statemants includad in this annual report.

Summary Financial Infermation

A summary of the publshed results and assets, labllities and noncontreling
intarasts of our Group for the last five financial yeors, as axtracted from the
audited constlidated financial statements and raclassified as appropriate, is
sat out on page 201 of this annual repeort. This summary doas not form part of
tha audited consolidated financial statarmeants.

Reserves

Section 34(2) of the Companies Low (s amended) of the Cayman lskands
provides that, subject to the provieions of our amended and rastated
memarandum and Articles of Association, the share premium account of cur
Company may be oppled to pay distributions or dividends to Shareholders
provided that immediataly following the date the distibution or dividend
i proposed to be paid, our Company is able to pay our debts as they
fall dua in the ordinary course of business. The share pramium inclded in
the addifional paid-in copital of our Company as of December 31, 2012
amounted to approximately US$2.613.5 million (2011: US52.609.9 millien). Cur
Company recorded accumulated losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,

For the discussion on the abiity of cur subsidiaries to transfer funds to our
Company in the form of cash dividends, keans or advances and the impoct
of such rastrictions on our ability to meet our cash obligations, see note 18 to
the consolidated financial stataments includead in this annual report.
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Donations
Tha donation made by our Group during the year amounted to USS0.4 milion
(20112 USS1.7 million).

Indebtedness

Particulars of bank koans and other bomowings of our Group as af Decamber
31, 2012 are sat out in note 11 to the corsolidated financial stataments
included in this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Gaming promotars are msponsible for a substantial portion of our casing
revanues. For the yveor ended December 31, 20012, our top five customers
and the largest customer were gaming promoters and accounted for
approvimataly 21.4% and 4.1% of our casino revenues, raespactivaly. We
balieve that we have strong ralationships with some of the top gaming
promoters in Mocou and have a solid network of gaming promoters who
help us markst our properties and source and assist in managing reling
chip patrons at our properties. We fypically enter info gaming promoter
agraements for a one-year tarm that are automatically renewed for peariods
of up to omne year unless otherwise terminated. Our gaming promoters
are compensated through commission amongements which are either
calculated with refarence to revenus share or monthly rolling chip voldme.
We abko extend interestfrae cradit to o significant portion of our gaming
promotars which are subject to monthly review ond regular settlament

procedures.

During the year ended December 31. 2012 ouwr five largest supplisrs
accounted for less than 30% of our total products and semvices purchased.



Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report weara:

Co-Chairman, Chief Execulive Officer and Executive Director
Mr. Lawrence Yaou Lung He

Co-Chairman and Nen-executive Director
Mr. Jamas Douglas Packer

Non-executive Directors
Mr. John Peter Ban Wang

Mr. Clarence Yuk Man Chung
Mr. Wiliam Tedd Nisbet

Mr. Rowsan Bruca Cralgle

Independent Non-execulive Direcfors
Mr. Jamas Andrew Charles MacKenzis

Mr. Thomas Jaftarson W

M, Yiu Wa Alec Tsui

Mr. Robert Wason Mactier

Pursuant to Articlke 104 of our Company’s Amended and Restated Articlas
of Asseciation, any Director appointed during the year shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meating of our Company and shall
than be abgible for re-alection at that mesting. In addition, pursuant to
coda provision A 42 of the Comporate Govamance Coda and Comorate
Govemance Report as sst out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. all
diractors appointed to fill @ casual vacancy should be subject to elaction by
sharghaoldarn at the first ganaral mesting after their appointmant.

At each annual general meeting. one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that evary Cirector shall
be subject to refirement at least once every three years. Mr. John Peter Ban
Worng. Mr. Rowen Bruce Craigie, Me Yiu Wa Alec Tsui and Mr. Robert Wason
Mactier will retire and they are eligible to offer themselves for re-alection ot
the forthcoming annual genaral meating.

Owr Company has received annual confimation from each of the
independant non-exacutive Directors conceming ther independence to
ow Company and considers that each of the indapendant non-axecutive
Dirsctors & independant to our Comgany.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical detaik of Directors and senicr management are set ouf on

pages 51 1o 58 of this annual report,

Directors' Services Contracts

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into o
diractor samvice contract with our Company on Dacembear 18, 2006, except
for Mr. James Andrew Charles MacKenzle, whe has entered inte o director
sarvice contract with our Compary on Aprll 24, 2008, Thase director sarvice
contracts will continue from the date of the contracts until the date on which
tha relevant independent non-axecutive Director caoses to be a membar
of the Board for any reason. Under the director service contracts. aach
independant non-axscutive Director will receive a fived quartery income.
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Sove as dbclosed above. none of the Diectors hos entered into a 1. Direcfors’ long posifion In the Shares of cur Company
diractor sarvice confract with our Group (excluding contracts expiring (a) Directors’ long posifion in the Shares of our Company
or determinable by the employer within one year withowt poyment of

compensation other than statutory compeansation). Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung To Anpraaimets
Ho entared infe an employment confract with the Company for his role as nomberaf  pescentopa of
our Chisf Executive Officer. T shoeholdng os
of Dacemba:  af Dacambar
Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and  loeofbeco Name of corposfion _ Nahure of rteres a1 A,z
Debentures Lowsence YoulungHo®  Meico rfaest of conhilied 111,458,086 47458
As af Decamber 31, 2012 the interasts and short positions of each Director Meico Lokue® Coipmaion
and chisf executive of our Company in the Sharss, underlying Shares, - Petsanal inferest Ee PIEDk
debentures and convertible loan nofes of cur Company or any of fs JoTesbougafode®  Gon Wiagst of conholed LitaAsa 00 67 4588
asoclated corporations (within the meaning of Fart XV of The SFO) which GownErfeiorment  cofpraion
(o) ware required to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchangs _Glmm_ﬁ'j@l
pursuant 1o Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interasts and 4::::-.@-
short positions which the Diector is takan or deemed to have undear such JehFeter B iang B P——— @i a0
provisions of the SFOY or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the Clrenca fukMan Crung. = Peison e &1 Lo
SFD, to be enterad in the register maintainad by our Company rafammed to Viiliom Tocd Nebat® _ Feurvdar ol @ 500 D
therain: or ()} were recuired, pursuant o the Model Code to be nofified o decrationary fust
our Comgany and tha Stock Exchange wane as folows: Rowen Bruce Cioigle _ Paeanal infaredt 1580 s
Jomabnda Chales — Pavsondl inferast Lot ulac; 3
MacKanze
Thomas Jafiacsan Wu = Paisandl infanast Hiw [uluss; |
Vi Wa Alec Tod - Petsonal infirest BA% il )
Rebart Wasen Machie - Patzonal infersst Him [elus; S
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Az ab Decembet 31, 2012 M Lawrence You Lung Ho persondly held 13912612 thares of
Mo riprdseniing approudrnabidy 0915 of Mdco's shares. In oodition. 115509024 sheres of
Malco are hitd by Lasting Legend Lid, 280532606 shares of Mekon ane hitd by Better Joy
vt Lid, 18,587,447 sheves of Metoo e held by Mighty Diagon Déveloprents Limited
and 7, 294000 shores of Melco are held by The L3G Copdal Trust, représenting approsdmeately
THIR. 1BEZE 1.21% and Q48K of Melco's shares. ol of which COmpanies e owned by
P s cndlfor husts afficled with M, Lowienced You Lung Ho, Mr. Lanrincsd You Lung Ho
dse hos infesest in Greal Respect Umited. o company confrclled by a discrefionary fomily
fust, the beneficdaries of which include M Lawrence You Lung Ho ond his immediale
family members ond held 206 982,187 shares. representing opproadmately 19,500 of Melco's
shiores. Maloo Lerure is a wholly-cwned subsidiary of Malco and ococordnghe Mr Lowiencs
Wou lung Ho I deemed of foken 10 be inferesfed in 1. 14458085 Shares in which Mslco
Ledmure 5 Interasted o is deamad of foken o be intetested. Mr. Lawrencs You Lung Ho s olso
inteneahad in 9.51 6,368 Shared of which 4535685 Sharet afe subyect 10 the $hale OB0NE ond
regiTictad Shares granted oz af Decembed 31, 2012

Ml Léngard id & Cire ! whioly-Onbied subadiory of Meélod and & inleneited in of B Seemed
o bakish 10 B ilerested in 1,1 18458085 Shored.

Mr, James Dowglas Pockie and his contraled coponalions ane ntersted in S0.01% of the
ismsd shexd Copitd of Crown, which in un is tereshied in the enling B hone capitd of
Crown Enbestoinment Group Holdings and which in fum i inferested in the entire issued shaie
copitd of Crown Asio Invesiments. Accordingly, Mr. Jomes Douglas Pocker B deemed o
faken to be interesied in 1114, 458,084 Shares in which Crown Asa vesiments is interesied
of i deemed of tolen 1o be inferesiod

Cromn Enfertainment Group Holdings Is o wholy-cwned subsdiory of Crown and is desmed
of baken b0 b intaraated in 1.1 18458084 Shores.

Crown ASO Imissimsnts i1 o ditect wholly-owned subsdory of Ciown Enfertanment Group
HAldngs and it inhecatled in Of it Jeamed of 1aken 10 D inlenesbed i 1118458 D85 Shares.

Founded of O decrelonday ruil ond it deamed o 1aken 10 DS interastsd in 15000 ADSL
regresdniing 45000 Shares

Th pise ConaRes o calzulated on the Baosis of 1,658,059, 295 Shares in iSue ai ol Decembe
312012

(b) Direcfors’ long posifion In fthe underylng Shares of our
Company

Tatal number
of Shares
subject to e thare
cpfions granted Appeoximate
and rasfictad cacantage of
shares grantad tharehalding
as at Dacembar a5 ot Decambar
Narma of Diracbar Narra of colpanation 31, 20120 31, 128
Loweance You lung Ho  Company 6,535,486 0.30d4%
Jorin Patet Ban'Wang  Company 264,584 0014%
Clorancs Yuk Man Chung Company 305,646 0.018%
Tharnas Jaffarsen W Campany 324830 0020%
Yiu W Alac e Comparty 324831 0.020%
RobestWoson Moctier  Company 2483 0020%
Jomas Andiaw Charlas  Company 241,698 0016%
MockKenzie
Notes
) Those oo reshricted Shores and share options gronded under the 2004 Share ncentive Flon

and the 2011 Share Incenive Plan, Awoards granted bafoes the yecr of 2012 arer under the
2004 Shiare Meentive Pan and cwrnds Grantisd during o ofter the yecr of 2013 e ond wil
o wnder the 2011 Shore Incentive Plon

The percantoges are calculoled on fhe boss of 1668055295 Shares in e a5 af December
3.z
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2. Interests in other members of our Group A summary of the outstanding owards gronted under the 2006 Share
Incantive Plan and the 2011 Share Incentive Plan as af Decaember 31, 2012 is
Parsentags presented below:

Nurnioer of shores ofinferast
as of Decermbar asat Dacambar Bearciss pricel  Nurtbar of unvasted
Harma of subsdiary Noma of Sharshelder 31,1012 31,2012 gront data fiir share cptions/
Males Crown Macou Lemrance Yau Lung Ho 1,000,000 oem Share Oplions valus par ADE (USS) reshichad Shanay Masling period
2009 Concel ond Re-isue 428 51858 4 years
Feagiam
e 2009 Leng Term ncentve Pan 304-326 L1213 dysars
{13 The 1000000 choss A $vares comy 105 of the foial voiing rights in Meloo Cromn Mocou 2010 Leng Tarm incantive Man ATH-398 486,268 380 4 yaars
2011 Long Tarm Incentiva Pan TR 1009831 3 years
2006 Share Incentive Plan and 2011 Share Incentive  2012Lwng Term hoanfve Fon 1409 1,901, 1342 3 yaars
Plan L0531

Please rafer to Appendix | and note 146 to the consolidated financial
staternents included in this anrual repert for details of the 2006 Share  Reshicled Shares

Incentive Plan and tha 2011 Share Incentive Plan. 2007 Long Term Incarive Flon 526 S10.56 Gl
2010 Lang Term Incantive Plan s 233,142 S04 yaars
2011 Leng Term Incentive Plon 5 1635147 dyeors
1012 Leng Term ncantive Plan 1328 1,153.89008 3 years
LIRT76

MNotes:

(1 Awonds Qionied Defond the pedar of 2012 dre under he 2008 Share Incentve Pian and awands
granted Guting o afer e year of 2012 aré ond wil be unders e 2011 3here hoenive Pian

(& 11.889 share cpfions and 6931 reshicled Shares wére ganted o a hen newly joined
armnployes on Morch 29, 2012 purseand 16 the 2011 Shere Incdan fve Plon

(% 334338 shore oplions ond 14.722 resticled Shores gronted under the 2011 Share ncentive
Flon wese conceled in 2012 due o the reagnafion of corlan empioyoes
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Details of the movement in share options granted under the 2004 Share Incentive Plan and the 2011 Share Incentive Plan during the yeor ended December 31,
2012 are as follows:

Hurtber of sha Cpfion:
Eusecas
pric of Sharg price
e af diae of Quishanding Outsionding
oo gt of aof Giondad Recioasad Exmciad Concaled Lapesd gzl
Name or categuey of  Dooba of geonk of (pe Thare) sharm opfiors Jaway 1, duirg duing duingg fhe during duirg Dacambe 31,
parficiponts share opfiore™  Bvsrchabls peried® [ 1] 02 T yeor T et oo the year 1he year g ]
Duechrs:
lowrenzeoulungHo  Mach 102000 Maeh 17,2000 1% 1] Thes - - - - - 1]
March 16, 2019
Mo 172000 Mach 1.2 I 1% THES2 - - - - - it ]
March 16, 2019
March 172000 March 17201240 1] I} T2 - - - - - T2
Mach 16,2019
Moith 172000 March 17, 2013%0 1% I} T24 598 - - - - - T
Mareh 16, 2019
Nevarrioer 2,209 Moverber 25 0010 143 143 TBans - - - - - 188763
March 17,2018
Novarber 22,2009 Movamber 25 2011 fo 143 143 T8anad - - - - - 128763
March 17,2018
Noverrbs 22000 Movamber 25 D2t 143 183 TBansd - - - - - 13783
Mareh 17, 2018
Novarbs 2,209 Movember 28 Do 14 183 TBa7d% - - - - - 138789
Mareh 17, 2018
March 23 211 Nerch 23 201 210 1] i B3 - - - - - #1115
Moreh 22 2021
March 23201 Mach 3. 2013 e = 18 _ns - - - - - 2115
Mereh 22 20201
Mareh 23 201 March 23, 201810 7] 152 B - - - - - Fovk
Mareh 223001
Moch 22012 MachZR M3 am a8 - 1513 = - - - 14133
Mapch 28,3002
Moch 22012 Mach R Ml am a8 - 1313 = - - - RT3
March 2. 3002
Mach 220012 Mach R 0I5k i 8 - 150133 = = - - 158138
Maieh B, 2002
bttt 5100330 AT 5 - - = - FE I
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bt of $hare ephicns

Evarcing
prics of i pice
hate ot dote of Outrtending Quistonding
oplorg grond o osod Gronted Recinsibed Boancsed Congeled Liopred @ of
Mot cotegoryof Dt of grant of (psr Shaw) e oplions Jonuay 1, duing duing dungihe duing duing December 3.
parficipans sharaoplions™ Exescisable period 151 155 o feyen the year e 1he yer Sayear 2
Chranos ik Man Chung March 18, 2008 Wech 18 2009 0 40 40 kY = = = = - 14157
March 17, 2018
Mach 1B 308 Mach iR 2004 0l 40 A - - - - - 14157
March 17, 2008
MarchlB 2 MachiRXD 0l 40 g - - - - - 1415
March 17, 2018
March 18, 208 Meech 18 2012 40 il 4 LAY - - - - - 1415
Mearch 17, 2013
Morch T200F  Maech IT. 200 40 18 108 Ll - - - - - W
March 14, 2018
Mach T.200F  Mach 12011 o 1% 108 E - - - - - E
March 14, 2008
MachT.20%  Mach I 2024 1% 0 ni - - - - - Wim
March 14, 21%
March 17, 209 Wech I7, D3 f0 1% e Hiw = = = = - niw
Warch 14, 201%
Sublotat 194564 - - - - - 154,564
YiuWa W Taui Sephember 102007 Septerber 10,2008 to 08 (¥ ] - - - - - i
Sactember . 2007
Seterber 10 200 Sapterrier 10 200910 506 (¥ %8 - - - - - 1147
Sephermba 92017
Sapharmiber 10 207 Sagtemer 1020010 s 443 7 - - = = = 17§52
Saptenter 8 2017
Sephamber 10207 Saptember 10,2011 to 508 a4 B0 - - - - - B
Seherber 8 2017
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Nurtber of shae cpfor

Ensicies
prica of Shom price
e at date of Ouisharding Duigionding
oghions gront of wol Grnded Recigasied Exgcied Caneled Lopesd osof
Name or categoryof  Dote of gront of (pahas)  show opfions Jonigry |, duirg duing duing the duing durg Decambe 3,
parficiponts shara opfiong™ Erancisable penod® 155 151 mi: e yer feyea yor® ha yer theyea 2
o Adec B (onl)  Mawch 1808 Mach 13, X090 i A0l 1415 - - - = - 14181
Mach 17,2013
March 18008 Morch 132010 fe im h 14157 - - = - = 14187
Mach 17, 2013
Mach 18006 Mach B2 L 40l 1415 - - - - - 14187
March 17, 2018
March 18 208 Morch 18 2012t 4 40 1415 - - - - - W5
March 17, 2013
Mach 12200 Moch 1720101 I} 1% i - - - - - A
Mazch 16, 2019
Mok 1100 Mach 172011 [I:] 1% FlE) - - - - - T
March 16, 2019
Mach 12000 March 17,2012 fo [I] 1% R - - - - - u5
March 16, 2019
Mach 12000 March 17,2013 10 1% 1% EE) - - - - - iy
Manch 1, 2119
Subolat B48N - - - - - A48
JobnPetarBanWang  March 18 006 Narch 18 2009 to 4n 4 14157 - - - - &5 W5
Mapch 17,2013
March 18 208 Maxch 18 2010t ar am 14187 - - - - - Wt
Mareh 17, 2015
Mach 12308 Mach 2@t i 401 14157 - - - - - 14157
Moreh 17, 2118
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Mt of share eptions

Exancing
pice of Shire pics
hate atdote of Quirionding Quistonding
oplarg gantof o5 o Goorted Recinsibed Brsiceed Conceled Lopeed s of
Mo o cotegoryof Dt of gran of (per Shane) e opfions Januay 1. duing duing dungihe duing duing Dscambsr 31,
parficipans sharaoplions™ Exescisable period™ 155 155 o Teye the year e he yer T year 2
JotnPeterBeniWong  MachIB2008  Mach IR 00240 0l 400 1418 - - - - - 14157
(eon) March 17, 2018
March 17, 200 Meareh 17, 210 40 1 i M - - - - - wym
March 36, 2009
Morch TZ0F  Moch 17,2001 40 18 108 ] - - - - - KL
March 34, 20%
Mach 17,200 Mach 17, 20240 ® ;] ELL ] — - =~ = = FTE
March 14, 2008
March 17.20%  Maech 17, 20340 ] 108 i - - - - - ETL ]
March 14, 208
Subfotat 13456 - - - - - 154564
RebsrtWomn Moctir  Sephamber 10,2007 Sephember 10 208 1o i 441 59 - - - - - L5
Saptamt 8, 2017
Sephember 102007 Septerber 10,2009 to 11 442 198 - - - - - 11547
Septamb 8, 2017
Saphambe 10,2007 Saptamber 10,2010t 506 a8 mese - - - - - 1n552
Septembar 9 2017
Saptambe 102007 Saptember 10,2011 fo 506 a2 B - - =5 = = no
September® 2017
March 18, 2004 Weech 18 209 o a0 il wE - - = = = 14187
March 17, 2018
Mach B2 Mach 18 2040 a a0 1815 = = = = = 14157
March 17,2018
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Nurtber of shae cpfors

Eusecag
prics of Sham price
share ot dats of Quistonding Ouidording
options gant of aof Giontd Reckossfed Erencied Conceled Lopeed gs
Mame or coteguiyof  Diobe of goonk of (pa axe) $har opfions Jaary 1, duirg dung during the duing duirg Decambe 2,
porticiponts shirg opfiong® Ersncsabis penod® 1] B85 m: tha e theyer yaur® tha yaa ha yea A
Robert Woson Mocle  March 12008 Mach 12201 1o il 40l 14157 = - - - - 1415
fean') Masen 17,2014
Maren 18 208 March 13, 2012 o am 40 14157 - - - - - WS
March 17, 2018
March 17,2000 March 17, 201010 1% 1% iR - - - - - ELE
March 14, 2019
Mach 12000 March 17201110 1% 1% U = = = = = ug
March 16,2015
Maich 17,2000 March 17, 201240 1% 0% i - - - - - Wi
March 16,2017
Maich 17,000 Mach 17, 201340 1% [l i - - - - - WY
March 16,2017
Sibrhobat 2450 — — — — — Edhi
Thomos Jeflerson Wy Septermber WX Seplermiber M D08 %0 506 VA U] - - - - - HLH
Sepfemba 8. 017
Seghembar 1300 Seplemar 10 2008 o 1) a8 ey - - - - - ne
Sepderber . 17
Septambar 1 200 Seplemiar M1 000 H 48z g - - - - - 1792
Sepferberh, 17
Septamber 10 2007 Seplember 112011 Y0 506 aa neE - = - - - %
Septarbart, 217
March 182206 Mach 12200910 i a1 14157 - - = = = 141§
March 17, 2015
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Murrber of share otiors

Exircing
piceof Shira pics
sharg ot date of Qutrionding Quistanding
oplors gontof o5 o Goonted Recinsibed Brsiceed Conceled Lopeed s of
Mo o cotegoryof Dt of gran of (per Shan) e opfions January 1. dusing duing dungihe duing duing Decambar 3,
parficipans sharaoplions™ Exascisable period? 11 155 i Teyen the year Yo 1he yer Tayear 2
Thomas Jeesaiy  Mach 183008 Whaeh I8 20040 0l 400 1418 - - - - - 14157
(eon March 17, 2014
March 18, 208 Mearch 18, 2011 o a0 4 LAY - - - - - 14157
Merch 17, 2018
Morch TR200R  Mech 18 20240 0 40 1815 - - - - - 1415
Mereh 17, 2018
March 17, 20% Mach 17, 20040 1% i Kl - = = - - kT
March 14, 2008
March 17,208 Mach 17, 2001 40 ] 109 »iw - - - - = fTE]
March 14, 218
Merch 112008 Mach 1T, 20240 1% 108 £l - - - - = FTL ]
Warch 14, 218
Morch 12008 Maech 17, D340 1% 108 L - - - - - kL]
Wharch 18, 201%
Sub-loiat /450 - — - - - ||
Jomes Andsw Chodas  Sehamber 0 208 Aprd 34 XN o % 14 B3 - = = = = FELT]
R Septente 5 108
September X1 208 Api 2 D00 i 13 3% - = = = = 3%
Sepherrtes 23 108
September 10 108 Api 24 D11 o i 13 83% - - = = - Y
September 2% 215
Septemba X0 08 Apd 2 20 4 i) BI% - - _ _ _ 3%
Saghartwe 24 115
Morch 1208 Manch 17, 20040 1% 108 uaw - - - - = KT
Werch 14, 2018
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Murtbar of shae cpfors

Eusecag
prics of Sham price
sharg o date of Outrtonding Outttonding
opions gont of @l Giantd Recossfed Erencied Conceled Lapeed gsf
Moame or coteguiyof  Dobe of goonk of (st hare) $har opfions Jaay 1, duirg daing during the duing duirg Decambe 2,
parficipants shive opfiore™  Beercabie perod® 13 1] m: fha oo e year s the you the vea EH
Jorvet Anhew Chales March 17000 Maeh 17. 2011 o 1w [I1.] uim - - - - - E'
Nackerza (zon') Mach 16, 2019
Maren 17, 200 March 17, 2012 1o 1% 1% uEm - - - - - b
Mach 18, 2019
March 17,2000 March 17, 201340 1% 1% iR - - - - - ELE
Mazch 14, 2019
Subotat man - - — - - M.
Subhofal L4580 745 - = = = hEENE
Errployess® Septarrber 102007 Seplerribar 10 2008 %0 506 V7] na - - - - - .
Septembsr 2, 017
Errployead® Maich 18008 Mach 14 20910 il A0l FALH - - (17803 - - (LT
Maech 17, 2018
Ernployess® Nowerrier 2. 2008  Nowambee 28 Di01e 1 101 4TEIE - (0 760 (157377 - - 4M048
Newerriber 24 2013
Ernployeed™ ooy A9 Joneary 2 A0 100 101 TidTd - - - - - L
Jerwary 19 2019
Employess® Novambosr 25,2009 Nowembar 25 i te 14 18 Triney - (1) nozng - - it
Sepferba . 017
Employss™ Novemosr 25,2009 Nowsmbar 25 Do 143 183 &T4dme - (106,752 (FA504) - - £02
Mapch 17,2013
Errployasd™ Nowsrriose 25,2009 Nowsrrbar 25 D0 to 143 143 1040 - - - - - 140400
Fil 102018
Employesst May 2, 2010 Ny 2 2013 Ho 12 125 154504 - - - - - 154408
May 25 200
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Mutrbe of share ogions

Exprcing
peics of e pice
shag ot data of Outrtending Quistonding
opiong grant o osod Ganoree Rzl Boancned Conceled Liopead ol
Woma orcotegury ol Data of grant of (perShol) e opfions January 1. Curing duing dungihe duing deng  Decembrdl,
parficipans sharaoplions™ Exeszisable period® 155 155 iz Teyer the year e he yer Tayear 2
Ermgiyeas™ May 2, 200 Way 2, 20210 1.5 15 wx = = (0aE) 1458 - 21855
Moy 2 20
Emgitysar Jiy %, 0i0 Juy 8 N1 10 1.8 14 10300 - () - - - -
iy T, 300
Emgioyaas AguE 1600 Augut 16.2012%0 1.3 12 000 - - - - - mom
Auguet 15 200
Emeityses March 23,2011 Worch 23 D2 o 13 242 L = g a1 = = 1580
Warch 2, 201
Emgityees™ MachB.2002  Machd D0 L 44 - 1450 1750am (33.438) - - - 14875
March 28, X002
Subfotat 14450555 181175 (2077 433) (202 W - 1153432
Othirs™ Noverroer 25 008 Hoverber 35 2010% L 1 - - e (430 - Rl =
Wovembs 24 2018
(thens™™ Noverrtoer 25 000 Hovernbar 35 010% 1.8 14 - - Ti%EM o] (15000 = =
Septamb 8, 2017
Othees™ MNovermber 25 009 Hovembe 35 20105 1.8 14 - - 1062 (BT 181.068) - -
March 17, 2018
Othees™ iy B, D0 Juy B o 1.8 ] - - 10354 (384 648 (fe0.258) - -
Ay .00
Othees™ March B.2011 Warch 23 2012 o 1% 5 - - %3210 54187 [29.443) - -
March 22,2001
(thees™ MachB2N:  MachBH T i a4 - = Bw - e - -
Werch 28, 2022
Subotat - - 2M4% 531471 {1.15.28) 50 =
Tefal 09848 1534574 - {1,988,555) {1,144,281) (8510) 18,1335
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Holes

n

1]

@

Aworck gronied before e yeor of 2012 are undsr the 2006 Shore Incentive Plon ond owods
randed during o after he yaeor of 2012 ané, and will b, under the 2011 Share Incen fve Plan.

Thi wasfing paricd of the share options is from the dofe of gront until he commencerment of
sogdchobis period,

I respact of the shore oplions exercised during the year the weighied davenage closng price
of Me inares mmedataly bsfore ond af fhe dales on which T oplions wers exeiched wos
UsEL.41

Ameng the 77,211 suxe opbors 7,185 shag cplicns may be enercissd during B paciad
from Septernber 10, 2008 o Seplember . 2017, 16,861 share ophions may be sxercised during
me pedicd from Septemnber 100 2009 1o SaplemDed 9. 2017, 23340 thore OpEons may De
eeicisnd duiing the pericd from Septernber 10, 2010 1o Septembar 92017 and 31125 share
options may b2 exetcied duing fhe pered from September 1002011 fo Sepdember & 2017,

Among the 18457 svare ophons 4.652 share oplions moy be exetcissd during the petiod
from March 18 2009 1o Mareh 17, 2018, 45662 shore opfions moy be exemcsed during the
pariod from March 18, 2000 to March 17, 2008, 4662 share options may be exscisd during
e period from Maoech 18 2017 1o March 17, 2018 and 4471 share opbions may be exelcised
duing e paticd from Mach 18 2012 te Manch 17, 2018,

Among he 4700416 share oplicns. 1174858 share oplions may be exercised duiing the
pariod from Movembser 26 2010 fo November 24, 2008 and 25217588 shore opfions moy be
entEncisad during 1he pediod from Movembed 26 2011 1o Novembar 24, 2018,

Ameng the 782,474 shore oplions. 197,357 shere opSicns may be exsrcised duting the pedad
frorn Jonuary 20 2000 fo Jonuary 190 2019, 197,367 share opfions may be exsecised during the
pariod fom Jonuary 20, 2011 10 January 19 2019 197,367 shate ophons mdy e exeicisd
Aaing e paicd fom Sy 20, 2012 1o Januory 19, 2019 and 197,373 share cpliens ray
e exesched during fhe period flom Jonuary 20 2003 1o Jonuory 19, 2019,

Among fhe 550,641 shore options. 128,146 share opSions moy be exercied duding the petiod
fromn MNovemiber 25 2010 b0 Seplember @ 2017, 134.151 shore oplions moy be exercissd
Auing the period fom November 26 2011 1o September 9 2007, 129,162 share opfions may
b epdCited QUingG e Dadiod from MNovernbsr 25, 2012 10 September @ 2017 and 158182
shore opfions may be exercised during The pedod from Novermnber 25, 2013 fo Sephember 5.
207

Among e 85102 share oplons 130075 share opfions may be sxercsed duing the
petiod fromn Mowember 25 2010 o March 17, 2018 122349 share oplions moy De exercissd
ding the pediod from Novembar 26, 2001 to March 17, 2018, 114754 share oplions may be
exercized during the peviod from Movernber 26 2012 fo March 17, 2018 ond 135924 shore
cptions may be exercised duing fhe period from November 26, 2013 to March 17, 2013,

{10

{11

an

0%

a4

a8

(4

an
8

%)

Ammong the 140400 #hcre options, 35,100 $hare OpIon Mdy be sxeicissd duing Me peiod
feom Movemniber 25 2010 to Apdl 10 2018 35,100 shore oplons moy be exercied duting the
patiod from Movembed 25 2011 1o Apd 10 2018 35100 shoee Oplions mdy be exeicissd
aurng e pancd from November 25 2012 to Agedl 10, 2018 and 35100 share options moy be
e cized AUing e Dedicd fromn Movenber 25, 2013 10 Apil 102018,

The 154,424 shore options may be exercised during the pediod feom Moy 24 2013 to May 25
200,

Among the 21865 share optiona, 50,004 thate opfiont may be exscied durng e petiod
from May 26 2012 fo Moy 25 2020 ond 15%.442 share options may be sxercised during the
pariod from hay 24, 2013 fo Moy 26, 2020

Among e 300,000 share oplions, 150,000 share opfions may be exerched duling the peeicd
feom August 16 2012 to August 15, 2000 and 150000 share options may be swsiciiad duling
the pariod friom August 146 2014 to August 15, 2020,

Among the 2980202 shore cptions, F14757 svare 0plions may De execised during the
pariod from Mach 232012 fo Morch 222021, LOZ2.463 share oplions moy b2 exercized
churing the pedod from Manch 23, 2013 fo March 22, 2021 ond 1032957 share oplionsmay be
ecercized duing the pericd from March 24 2014 1o March 22 2021

Among the 14256737 shore cplions, 475488 swe oplions may boe execised duing the
pawiod fom Morch 20, 2013 to March 28 2022 475506 share opfions may be ewmsrcised
curng Fié pénod rom Morch 29, 2014 1o March 28, 2022 and 475,853 shore opions may be
awarcized duling the peticd from March 29 2018 1o March 28, 2022

Rovarsal of canceled share opbons n 2001 due 1t withchawal of reEgnation of our
amployes.

Tha categery "Others” reprasants the formar smployess of cur Gaoup,
Clesing peics of the Share immediately boefoes the dote of gront of svare opfon wos US54 45,

11,859 share oplicns wers granied 1o o then newly joined employes on March 29, 2012
pursuant b the 2011 Share heenive Plon.

33,438 shors oplions granted undes the 2011 Share Incentive Plan wene concalled during the
e due 15 IESgNation of CRIGn employess
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Details of the movement in restricted Shares granted under the 200& Share Incentfive Plan and the 2011 Share Incentive Plan during the year ended December
31, 20012 are as follows:

Numbar of resiriciad Shares
Shore price
ot date of

gonted  Ouislanding Oubianding
reafricted osof Grontad Reclassified Vested Concelled asof
Nema or category of Date of grant of Shores Jonuary 1, during during during duing  Decembar 31,
parficipants resicted Shaes" Veasfing dale 5% 2012 the year fhe year he yexr e yeor 22

Diraciors
Lowranes You Lung Ho March 18, 2008 March 18, 2012 4m L2 - - (62,252 - -
March 17, 2009 Manch 17,2013 1.08 241,564 - = = - 241,584
March 23, 2011 Manch 23, 2012 152 281,08 - - {241,066) - -
Mereh 23, 2011 Meanch 23, 2013 5 241,054 - - - - 241,054
March 23, 20011 Maznch 23, 2014 28 a7 - = = - 41,13
WMorch 25, 2012 Manch 29, 2013 443 - 13065 - - - TR.055
Mareh 26, 2012 March 29, 2014 443 - 065 = = - 75,055
Meren 29, 2012 Merch 25, 201§ 443 - 79,068 - - - T5.048
Sut-total: 1027 107 2371198 - {303,348) — 0957
Clarencs Yuk Man Chung Morch 18, 2008 Mearch 18, 2012 am A - - 114 - -
Mareh 17, 2009 Manzh 17,2013 1.08 11,508 - = = - 11,505
March 23, 2011 Manch 23, 2012 252 15847 - - (15845 = o
Mareh 23, 2011 Manch 23, 2013 252 15849 - - - - 16849
Mareh 23, 2011 Mznch 23, 2014 252 15858 - = = - 15858
Morch 29, 2012 Mench 29, 2013 443 - it} - - - 22590
March 26, 2012 Manch 249, 2014 443 - 2,580 - - - 22590
Maorch 29, 2012 Merch 29, 2015 443 = pek = = = 2250
Sug-total: 2178 &1.770 - (15.963) — 110982
Yiu W Alec Tau Morch 16, 2008 March 18, 2012 4m A4 - - @14 - -
March 17, 2009 Manch 17, 2013 108 1.5 - - - - 11.508
Mearch 23, 2011 Mioreh 25, 2012 252 18849 - - (156,545 - -
March 23, 2011 Manch 23, 2013 252 15849 - - - - 18843
Werch 23, 2011 Miarch 23, 2014 pie] 15858 - - - = 18658
March 29,2012 Manch 29, 2013 443 - 2.088 - - - 2,03
M 29, 2012 Manch 29, 2014 443 - 2044 - - - 2,034
March 29, 2012 Mereh 29, 2018 443 - 2,084 - - - R.03
Su-tofal; 178 AL = (18.963) = L0
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Numioer of restictad Shares

Share prica
at dateof
grontol  Quistanding Cutstonding
rgsricted osof Granted Reciasfied Vosted Concelad e of
Namme af catagany of Diate of grant of Sharas Janwary 1, during during duing dung December 31,
paricipants restrictad Shores™ Viasting dote 55 nn ha yar tha yaar tha yaor the year mi
John Pafer BanWeng March 18, 2008 March 18, 2012 &7 3 - - [ = —
Manch 17, 2009 Mareh 17,2013 108 11,508 - - - - 11,508
Manch 23, 2011 Mareh 33, 2012 28 15,840 - - (15,849 - -
Manch 23 2011 Mareh 33, 2013 28 18,840 - - - - 15,449
March 23, 2011 Mareh 23, 2014 28 15,258 - - - - 15558
March 29, 2012 March 3, 2013 &43 - P03 - - - 9036
Manch 29, 2012 borch 2%, 2004 443 - plic - - - 7,036
Manch 29, 3012 March 25,2008 443 - 0024 - - - 2,036
Sub-oial: [k 2T 08 — 18763} - 0330
Robert Wason Moctie March 18, 2008 March 18,2002 4l iandg - - {114 - -
March 17, 2007 Wharch 17,2013 107 11,505 - = = = 11,505
Manch 23, 2011 March 23, 2002 28 15,249 - - (15,849 - -
March 23, 2011 Worch 23, 2012 152 15,847 - = = = 15,849
March 23, 2011 March 13, 2014 28 16,858 - = = = 15858
Manch 29, 2012 March 2, 2013 443 — 9034 - - — 9,035
Manch 29, 3012 March 2, 2014 443 - G034 - - - 9,036
Manch 29, 2012 March 24,2018 443 — 5034 — — — 9,035
Sub-okal: AL A - {18,763} - 050
Thomas Jaffason Wy March 18, 5008 Maich 18,2012 L] 3114 - - @3y - -
Manch 17, 2009 March 17,2013 L% 11,506 - - - - 11,508
Manch 23, 2011 barch 23, 2012 28 15,24¢ — — (15849 - —
Manch 23, 2011 March 23,2013 28 15,840 - - - - 15,849
March 23, 2011 March 33, 2014 282 15,858 - - - - 15,858
March 29, 2012 Maorch 2, 2013 ad3 - i - - - 2036
March 29, 2012 March 2, 2014 ad) - B - - - 2036
March 29, 2012 March 26, 2015 443 - o0 - - - 2036
Sub-ofal: BT FIAL] — (18,%63) = T.330
Jomaes Andrew Chorles Mockenzie  Sepfember 30,2008 Apel 24 2012 1.8 1,838 - - {1.835) - -
March 17, 2003 March 17,2013 107 11,505 - = = = 11,505
March 23, 2011 March 33, 2012 282 15,849 - - (15845 - -
March 23, 2011 March 23, 2013 28 15,849 - - - - 15,849
March 23, 2011 Mareh 23, 2014 25 15,858 - - - - 15,858
March 29, 4012 Mareh 2, 2013 443 - Q034 - - - 9.036
Manch 29, 2012 Mareh 2, 2014 443 - L0348 - - - 9.036
March 29,2012 Watch 3, 2018 4y = A0 - = = S
Sub-obal: ik FIALL = TTTAEE = T30
Sub-okal: 135,878 &40 508 - [T — 1423535

Annucl Repord 2012 Malco Cronn Entertcinment Lmided 75



Mumiber of rastriciad Shares

Tare price
ot date of

ganted  Culitanding Outetanding

resfiched osof Gmonted Reclosified Vestad Concelled asef

Norne of cotegony of Derte of grant of Sharas Jenary 1, during dung diuring cuing  December 31,
parkiciponts restrictad Sharagh Vasfing dote U5 012 the yaar the year 1ha yer ha yaar 2012
Empioyeas Torch 16, 2008 Mereh 18, 2012 401 58519 - - (56.91%) - -
Empioyees Apel 17, 2008 Apdl 11,3012 432 11,5683 - = (11,583) = =
Empioyees Apeil 1, 2010 Al 1, 2012 1.55 64410 - - (64,410 - -
Employees Whay 26, 2010 My 26, 2013 125 78315 — = = = 78,315
Employees Wy 26, 1010 My 26, 2012 1.25 74059 - - (79.808) 37440 —
Emipioyess Wy 26, 2010 My 26, 2003 1.25 74083 - - - 744m 19507
Empioyees July 38, 2010 ddy 28,2013 1.28 172323 - (172,523 = = =
Enployees July 28, 2010 July 28, 2013 1.28 172326 - (172.326) - - -
Enpicyees Augest 16, 2010 Avgust 16,2012 1.25 7500 = = (75.000) = =
Eriployess August 14 2010 August 16, 2014 1.28 75000 - - - - 75,00
Employees Merch 23, 2011 Mianch 23, 2012 15 5119 - BT (573.072) - -
Employees Meren 23, 2011 Meareh 23, 2013 18 5BL0% - (15414 - (55118 511,248
Employeet Mereh 23, 2011 March 23, 2014 182 522,000 - (13,04) - (57.852) 511,443
Employees Werch 29, 2012 Manch 29, 2013 443 - B43, 2080 (2,647 - (2.504y" wnr
Emiployees Mcreh 29, 2012 Mereh 25, 2014 443 - 23,5659 (2,640 - {2904y 81
Ernpicyaet Merch 26,2012 Wch 192018 dey = maae e - RWTE L1ETS
Sut-total: 2,603,625 730,104 (389,721} {8EC.747) (113,568 |, 545,23
Otrvars® July 28, 2010 Juiy 28,2012 1.28 - - 172323 - (17T.323) -
Otrars™ July 28 2010 July 28,2012 1.28 - - 172326 - {7328 -
Ofvarg® Merch 23, 2011 Manch 23, 2012 82 - - a7 — (8.727) -
Ofrvarg™ Werch 23, 2011 Merch 23, 2013 2482 - - 15414 - (15.41) -
Ofharg® Mexch 23, 2011 Manch 23 2014 18 - - 13014 = (13.018) —
Ofrvarg® Werch 29, 2012 Merch 29, 2013 443 - - 280 - {2.aanm =
Ofhaeg® March 29, 2012 Maich 29, 2014 443 C = 2640 = (2640 =
Ofharg® March 29, 2012 Manch 29, 2018 443 - - 280 - eIl -
Suz-fotal; - — FEERAl - (3E%TET) -
Tolal 4,002,503 1,170,612 - (1,276,434)  (503,708) 3,392,175
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[} Atz Qronted before M yedr of 2012 ofe undsd e 2006 Share Incenlive PN ond Owiosdt

granted during o cffer Thie ydor of 2012 and, and will Be, undier 1he 2011 Fhare Incen five Flan
@ The calegoiy “Oheds” tdpresnts B IOmner omployees of Ul Soug

& Reversal of cancelled reshicted Shares in 2011 due to witwdowal of resignation of ow
L=

@ A% reshicied Shares were granted fo o then newwly joined employes on March 24, 2012
pursuant to the 2011 Shore Incentive Fion.

@ 1ATE resticted Shoves gronted under the 2011 Share hicantve Flan wete conceled duning
e yeor dus 1o relgnation of cartain employees

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at Dacember 31, 2012, none of the Diractors or thair raspactive associates
had any competing interests in any business, which competes or may
compate, either directly or indirectly with the businesses of our Company
pursuant to the Lsting Rulas,

Substantial
Company
Az ot Decamber 31, 2012 the following persons/comporations had intarasts
in five per cent or more of the issued share capital of our Company as
ecorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
Details of the interests in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company o
notified to our Company are set out balow:

Interests in the Share Capital of our

Appeaximate
Nurnbar of pacanioge of
Sharetat ot thorshelding os of
Copociyl Dacamber 31, Decambar 31,
Nama nature af intarast 2012 2012
Lewrance You Llung Ho™  Bansdcial cwnar, infanact of 1.127.974,458 48.03%
contolied corporation
and ceamead infanast
Sharan Sou Yan Le® Inferest of spouse 1,027,574 454 £8.09%
Malco Lekure™ Beneficiol owner, inferest of 1,115,458,084 £7.45%
contelisd conponation
and ceamed infanast
Malco Intarest of contrellad 1,115,458,084 &7.45%
comemtion
Jomes Douglos Pocker®  Interest of confrolled 1,115,458,085 £7.84%
compemtion and
desmad inftarast
Erica Lousa Packer™® ntarest of spoise 1.118,458,084 67.454%
Crown Asia Invastmenty™  Banaficial ownat, ntansst of 1.118,458,084 §7.4%
contilied companation
and deamad intanest
Crown Entartanmant Infarest of conirolled 1.118,458,086 47.45%
Group Holdingy™ comsation
Cromn™ tgrast of controlled 1,115,458,085 &1.84%
comesation
Copital Rasagreh Invastmant Manoger 07,069, 51 &45%
and Managamant
le‘rﬁ"'
The Copital Group Intarest of controlled 107,049, 541 S.45%
Companiag, inc. 00 compomtion
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A3 ol December 31, 2002, ML Lawrencs You Lung Ho periondly held 13912412 shares of
M, roprosinting cppradmatsly 0.F1% of Melea's shares. I addtion, 115,509,024 shares
o Wiies ore hebd by Losting Legend Lid, 28532606 shares of Moo are held by Befter
Jory Chwiisietss Ui, 1B.56T,447 sheres of Msled wins held by Mighty Dragon Developaments
Limited and T.74.000 shares of Melco are held by The L3G Copital Trust, representing
appeesimately 7,556 18.82%. 1.21% ond 0.48% of Melco's shares, dl of which compmies ane
owvibd by eoesons andioe frusts afflialed with Mr. Lawadnce Yau Lung Ho. e Lawrancs You
Lung Ho aiso hos interest in Sreal Respect Umited o company confroled by o dscretionary
family nust, the benedciaries of which include M Lawrencs Yau Lung Ho and his immediate
fomily memixess ond held 298 %82 187 shares, representing oppecsimatedy 19505 of Melco'’s
shales. Meloo Ledsure is O wholy-cwned subadary of Meloo ond ococoldngly. M Lowience
You lung Ho i deemed o faken to be ntenssted in 1118454086 Shores in which Melco
Letsurs s inferasted of i deemed of Faken to De inferasted, M Lowrencs You Lung Ho is asa
intereited in 95146358 Snaret of which 4535685 Shared Of e SUbjec! 10 the share ophions and
rasticled Shares gronted of of Decembad 31. 2012

Ktz Sharen Sou Yon Lo i 1he spouss of Mr. Lawrencs You Lung He and is desmed o takin
I ke interedted in M Shaned thiough he nlenss! of her ouse. Mi. Laowrenss Yo Lung Ho,
undan the SFO

Modeo Levsund is the Beneficial cwner of 559,229,043 Shares ond is deemed o taken 10 be
interegled in SER.220.043 Shares owned by Crown Asia Iveestments pursuont o rights of
first refusal over such Shares gronted by Crown Asia Investments in fover of Melco Leisure
under the new shareholders” deed which become efective in December 2007 (“New
Shorehoiders’ Deed”™L entored info betwesen Melco ond Cromn

Melco Lotnse b5 o drect wholy-owned subediary of Malco and Melco B deemed or foken
T b interestad in 1,116 458,085 Snares i which Meloo Lemsute i3 intereshed o8 referresd foin
note (3) obove.

k. James Douglos Posied and hit contiglled Sopoialions ofe inbedbstaed in S0.01% of 1he
istied shane Sapital of Cicwr, which in Tuif [ infedssad i the anine Bued dhars capiial of
Croawm Ented hainmant Goup Holdngs and which in 1uin it infetedtad in 1he anling msued thole
apital of Crown Ada nvestments, Accordingly Mr Jomes Dougos Packer is dirmid o
lakin 10 b intdrestied i 1, 118,458,085 Shares in which Crown ASa Fvesimients is inlensshed
of i Svarmed OF 10k 10 De inlerested,
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M Eiod Loumse POcksd it e soouse of M Jomes Douglas Pocker and is deemed of 1aken
1o b inleéstand in thee Shanes thiouGh M inbed sl Of hed oo, M Jomes Doughts Pocked
whdes the SFO.

Croany A0 Invesiments is 1he benedcial Swined of 559220043 Shores ond is dedmed o
haken b bé inbededded in 559 229, 043 Shaiis Owhed Dy Méloo Leiurs pursuant 10 tights of fis!
refusal over such Shares granted by Melco Leisure in favor of Crown Asa rwestments undes
the Mawr Shareholdens’ Doed

Cron Asio vesiments i o drect wholly-cened subsdary of Crown Enferloinment Group
Hoidings cnd Crown Entertanment Group Holdings is deemed o foken 1o be interested in
1118458084 Shares in which Crown Asig investments is interested o3 refered io in nole (7)
amove.

Croen Entatainment Group Holdings B8 0 wihoily-cwned subsidiany of Ceown and Crown s
deered o Takan 10 bé inteeastad in 1.118.458 085 Shohed in which Crown Asd mvesiments s
interedted o refered 10 in note (7) obove

Copildl Ressarch ond Management Compeny is 0 LS. based investinent adviser That
FENOgEs B Arnelioon Funds a iarly Of rruludl funds.

Copitdd Resedrch and Management Company is @ diec! wholy-cuned subsdiary of The
Copitd Group Companid, Ind. and The Capild Group Companies he, is deemed o
taken to be interested in 107,069,541 Shares in which Copilal Bessarch and Manogement
Company isinterested as refemed to in nofe (10) above.

The percentoges are colculabed on thie boss of 1458056 265 Shares in issue o8 of December
.z

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
included in this annual report, of no fime during the year was our Company,
af any of its holding companies, subsidianies o fallow subsidiares, a party
to any arongements fo encble the Directors to ocquire bensfits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debantures of, our Company or any other
body comporata.



Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Save o disclosed below and in note 20 fo the consolidated financial
statemants included in this anmual repert. no contract of significance in
ralation to our Group's business to which our Company, or ary of its holding
companies. subsidiarias, or fellow subsidiarias. was o party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whather directly or indirectly, subsisted ot the
end of the year or at any time during tha year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year our Group had the following confinuing connacted
transactions which are required 1o be disclesed in the anmual report of our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Lsting Rules:

(a) Ferry Ticket Sales Agreement

Our Company antated inte an agrasment for sale of ferry tickats (“Farmry
Ticket Sales Agreement™) in Aprl 2007 with Shun Tok-Ching Trawel Ship
Management Umited ("STCTS™), a subsidiary of Shun Tak Heldings Limited
{"Shun Tak™), which Is a connacted pason as defined under the Listing Rules,
by virtue of being a company in which the asociates of our executive
Director are able to exercise or control the exercise of more than S0% of the
voting power at general meetings or control of its board of directors, and
its subsidiaries. Pursuant fo the Ferry Ticket Sales Agreament, our Compary
purchased round-trip ferry tickets to/from Macau ("Ferry Ticket Transactions™)
for cur customners. As a bulk purchasar of farry tickets, our Company was
granted a 5% discount ("Discount™) on the net saling price of each femry
tickat wa purchasad The Dicount was determined on an ams’ kangth

negotiation and by reference to prevailing market price and was given in
accordance with market practice of granting discounts on bulk purchases
of ferry tickets to promote STCTS s fery services. The above tronsoctions are
antared inte and the Discount is given within the ordinary and usual course
of our business and are on nomal commercial terms. Cur Company entered
into a Femy Tickat Sales Agreement with STCTS on Movember 24 2011 in
relation to the Ferry Ticket Transactions for on initiol term commencing from
December 7, 2011 to Decembear 31, 2013, Unless early ferminated by each
of the parties by giving 30 days pricr written notice, the Ferry Ticket Sales
Agresment arterad into in 2011 is renewable for periods of thrae yaars

subject to annual price review.

The aggregate value of Fery Ticket Transaction which took ploce during the
yaar endad Decembear 31, 2012 is within the annual cap for 2012 (which was
disclosed in the listing document of our Company dated November 30, 20110,
details of which ara shown balow:

Appmdmata Annual cap Annuol cop

apgregats velua far tha for the

far the year andad financial financio

Dacambar 31, yaar endad et andad

202 Deocembar 31,2012 Decembar 31, 2013

Cotagory o Uss ]

Famy Ticket Scios 2,576,000 3845000 4,652,000

Agraament
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(b) Annual Review of the Continuing Connecied Transactions
Pursuant to RBule 144 38 of the Listing Rules, our Company has angagead the
auditer of our Company. Messrs, Deloitte Touche Tohmotsu, to conduct o
raview of the above continuing connected fransactions for the yvear ended
Decamber 31, 2012 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference o Practice MNote 740
“Auditar's Letter on Continuing Connectad Transactions undsr the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter to the Board in raspeact of the
Farry Ticket Transactions and confirmed that for the year ended December
31,200

(0 nothing has come to their attention that causes them 1o belisve that
the continuing connacted transactions have not been approved by the
Board:

(i} nothing has coma to their atention that couses them to balieve that
the tronsactions were not entered into, in all material respects. in
accordance with the relevant agraements govermning such transactions
and

(i with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions set out in this report, nothing has come to thair attention
that couses them to believe that the continuing connected transacticns
have axceadad the maximum aggregate annual value disciosad in the
2011 annual report made by our Company In respect of each of the
cantinuing connected transactions.

g0 Wstoo Cromn Entertainment Umited  Annuol Report 2012

The independent non-executive Directors have
confinuing connacted transactions for the year endad December 31, 2012
and the lefter ssued by the ouditor ond confirmed that the continuing
connectad transactions have bean enterad into:

raviewad the above

{13 inthe ordinary and usual course of businass of our Group;

(2) either on normal commercial terms of on tarms no lass favorabla to our
Group than terms avallable to or from independent third parties; and

(3 inoccordances with the relevant agreements governing the transactions
on terms that are fair aond recsonable and in the intarssts of the
Shareholders as a whaole.

Connected Transaction

Curing the year, our Group had the following connected fransaction which is
required to be disclosed in the anmual report of cur Company under Chaptar
144 of the Listing Rulas:



Amendment to the Shareholders’ Agreemeni and New Colal
Equity Opfion

On September 25 2012 our Company antered into an aomendment to the
shareholdars’ agreement withh MCE Cotal New Cotal, LLC and SCI. The
purpose of the amendment was to faciitote the continusd development,
construction and funding of the Studic City project. The amendment
included, ameong others, MCE Cotai’s agreement to purchase additional
sharas in 3C1, up to a maximum aggregate amount of US5350 million, and
New Ceotai, LLC's equity option (which may only be exercised once) to
acquire up to 40% of such additional ghares in 5C1 acquired by MCE Cotai,
The Mew Cotai equity option was granted so that MCE Cotal and Mew
Cotai, LLT may praserve their existing interasts in 5CL In the avent that New
Cotai, LT does not exercise the option, and MCE Cotal purchases all of the
additional shares in 3C1 as provided under the amendment, New Cotai, LLC s
interast in 5C1 and the Stedic City project will be dited and MCE Cotal's
intarest will ba increased af mast to approxirmately 47%, assuming that naither
party defoults on any capital call undsr the criginally agreed USSE00 million
invastmant commitment.

New Cotal, WLC s a substantial shamrsholder of 5C1 which s a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of our Company. therefore it i a connected person of our
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Hence, each of the lsue
of tha New Cotal aquity option and the entering info of the amendment
constifutes a connacted transaction for the Company.

The abowe corfinuing connected fronsactions constifute related party
transactions which ara set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements included in ths annual report, Cur Company has complisd with
the disclosure requiremants in accordance with Chapter 144 of the Listing
Rules.

Management Contracts

Mo contracts conceming the management and administration of the whale
or any substantial port of the business of our Company ware entered into or
aexistad for the year ended Decambear 31, 2012,

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant reloted party transactions underfaken in the usual
coursa of business are sat out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statemeants included in this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of our Company’'s
Listed Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2012, neither our Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemead any of o Company’'s listed
sacurities.

Public Float

Bagad on the information that is publicly available to our Company and
within the knowledge of ifs Directors, as at the dala of this reporf, ow
Company has maintained the prascribed public float undsr the Listing Rules.
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Legal and Administrative Proceedings

We are a party to certain other legal and administrative procesdings which
ralate to matters arising out of the ordinary course of our business. Bosed
on the currart status of such procesdings and the information cumenily
available, we do not belisve that such procesdings would, individually or
In the aggregate, have o material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or results of oparations.

Crown Melboume Limited, the owner of a rumber of "Crown” trodemarks
lkcansed to us s from time to time invobed in legal proceedings regarding
“Crown” trademarks used in Macau, We undearstand that Crown Malboums
Limnited will continue to take vigorous measures to protect its trodemarks. We
believe we have a valid night under our trademark license agreement with
Crown Malbourne Umited to use the Crown trademarks In Macau in our hotel
casing business,

In January 2013, the Taiwanese authorities commenced investigating certain
alleged vickations of Talwaon banking lows by certain employeas of our
subsidiary’s branch office in Taiwan, which may pose reputational and othear
risks fo s, In an attempt to prevent the disipation of any potential personal
gains made by these employees from such alleged viclations, the Taiwanese
authorities have frozen one of our deposit acceunts in Talwan, which had
a balance of approximately TWD2.98 billion (equivalent to approdmately
US3102 milion) ot the time the account was frozen. We are taking actions to
recuest the Talwanese outheorities to unfreeze the account.
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Corporate Governance

Cur Company Is committed to maintaining a high coporate govemance
standard so as to ensure better trarsparency and protection of Sharaholders’
intarasts. Our Company has complied with the code proviions of the
Comaorate Governance Code and the former Code on Comporate
Govemance Practicas as set ocut in Appendix 14 to the Usting Rulas for the
petiod from the listing date to December 31, 2012 except for the code
provisions A.2.1 in respect of the separdlion of the oles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and A.4.1 in respect of the appointment of non-
axacutive Directors for spacific temns,

Further information on our Company’s comporate govemance practices i set
out in the coporate governance report on poges 84 fo 98 of this annual report.

Emolument Policy

The employees of our Group are selected, remunercted and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emolments of
thie Directors are daecided by our Company's compeansation commities,
having regard to our Company's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market standards. Ouwr Company has adopted the 2006
Share Incentive Plan and 2011 Share Incentive Plon. as an incentive to
Directors and employeses, detalls of the plans are sat out in note 16 to the
consdlidated financial stateaments and Appendix | of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights

Thara am no plovisions for pre-amptive ights under the laws of tha Cayman
lshancts or under the Amended and Restated Aricles of Association that
recuire our Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to our existing
Shareholkders.



Audit Committee

Our Company hos estabkhed on oudit committea for the purmpose of
assisting the Board in oversasing and monitaring, among others, the intagrity
of the finoncial statements of cur Company. the perdormance of our
indepandant auditors, and the integrity of our systems of intemal accounting
and fingncial confrels. Our Company’s oudit committes consists of three
mambers, Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu Me Yiu Wa Alec Taa and Mr James
Andrew Chares MacKenzie. Mr. James Andrew Charles MacKerzie k the
chairman of our audit committes.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of our Company for the yeor ended
December 31, 2012 have been oudited by Messts, Deloite Touchs Tohmatsw,
wheo will retiea and, baing eligible, offar thamseles for re-appointment ot the
forthcoming annual genaral mesating.

On behalf of the Board
Lawrence Yau Lung Ho

Co-Chairman and Chisf Execulive Officer

Mocou, March 27, 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended December 31, 2012,

Corporate Governance Practices

Cur Company is committed to conduct our businass consistant with the
highest standards of corporate govemance practices and procadwes
and has adopted its own corporate govemance principles and guidalines
(the “Company’s Coda™) to deliver thase commitments. Tha Company's
Code was amanded to fully address the principles and code provisions as
sat out in the Comporate Governance Code as stated in Appendix 14 fo
thae Lsting Rules. The guldelines contained In the Company's Coda weare
ako developad by the Board taking inte consideration of the applicable
colporate govaernance standards of MASDAQ. In addition, our Company
has abo adopted a number of other policiss and guidalines, developed

Intarnally, to anhance our corporate governance practices and proceduras.

Cur Company has complied with all code provisions in the Comporate
Govemance Code and the former Code on Corporate Governance
Practicas as stated in Appendix 14 fo the Lsting Rules for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2012 except for the following devictions:

Pursuant te the code provision A2.1 of the Comporate Governance Code,
tha rolas of chalmman and chisf executive officer of a lsted company should
be separate and should not be perdormed by the same individual, However,
In view of the present composition of the Board, the in depth knowladga of
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Mr. Lawrence You Lung Ho of the operations of our Sroup and of the gaming
and entertainment sector in Macau in genaral his extensive business network
and connections in that sector and the scope of operations of cur Group,
tha Board balieves it & in the best interasts of our Company for M. Lawrance
Yau Lung Ho to assume the roles of Co-Chairman and Chiaf Exacutive Officar
at this time and that such arangament ba subject to review by the Board
from time to fime.

Pursuant to the code provision A4l of the Comporate Governance Coda,
norn-exacutive Directors should be appointed for o specific term, subject to
re-alaction. Our Company has deviated from this provision in that all non-
axecutive Diractors are not appointed for a gpecific tarm. They are, howaver,
subject to retirement and re-alection avery three years. The eason for the
deviation & that our Company does not belisve that arbitrary term limits
on Diractors’ sarvices are appropricte given that Directors cught to be
committed to representing the long term intarests of our Shareholders and
the retirement and re-election requirements of non-executive Directors
have given the Shareholders the nght to approve the confinuation of non-
axecutive Diractors’ offices.

strategic Plan

Melco Crown Entertainment is focused on developing and operating world-
class gaming and entatainment rasorts, with a paticular focus on major
gaming jursdictions throughout Asia.



The Company cumently operates in Mocou, the world's largest casino
gaming market, and aims te madmize profitability on its curent diversifiad
porfolio of assets by keveraging its various gaming and nen-goming products
and amenities. mairtaining a strang focus on sarvice quality and developing
and leveraging its customer boase and loyalty programs.

The Company also aime to prooctively identify future appropriate growth
apportunities in both current and new jurisdictions, delivaring a more
divarsified eamings stream and incremental coshflow drivers.

The Company's core operational strategy includss delivering a differsntiated
and unique entertainmeant axpariencea for its predominantly Asion customaers.
whether through excellence In service its world-class entertainment
attractions or through its high quality hotel, retail food & beverags and
gaming product offerings. This strategy b expected fo build an internationally
recognizable suite of quality brands which catar to a wide spectrum of
customers seaking o diverse lebure and entarfainment exparience.

The Company alse airms to maintain a strong balonce shest and flexible
capital  structure, enabling the Company to pusue future  growth
opportunities which maximize refurn on investrment and dive long term
sharsholdar valus.

The Board of Directors — Function and Composition
Role of the Board

The Cirectors” main duty & to exercise their business judgment to act in what
they recsonably balisve to be in the best interests of our Company and

ow Shareholders. The Board advises and counsel our Company’s senior
managameant and monitors the performance of such managemsant and the
offairs of our Company.

In odditicn fo fts general ovarsight of management and the affairs of owr
Company, the Board ako pedorms a number of speacific functions, aither
diractly or through its committeas, including:

{a) selacting,
Evacutive Officer and oversasing Chiel Executive Officer succession

planning:

evaluating and compensating our Comparny’'s Chief

&) providing counsel and owveright on the selection. evaluation,

davalopment and compensation of senior managemant;
and

{c) reviewing, approving and menitoring  fundamental  financial

business strategies and major coporate actions:

() assessing major risks facing owr Company and reviewing options for their
mitigation; and

(&) ensuring processes are in place for maintaining the integrity of our
Company: the integrity of the finonciaol statements. the integrity of
complionce with low and ethics, the integrity of relationships with
custornars and suppliers, and the integrity of relaticnships with other
stakeholdars.
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Board Composifion

Tha Board compdisas ten Directorns, of whom one is an axacutive Director, five
are non-executive Directors and the remaining four are independent non-
executive Directors. Three of our Directors were nominated by Malco and
three were nominated by Crown, The following table provides informaticn
about cur Directors,

Mame Positicn
Lowrance Yau Lung Ho Co-Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
axacutive Directer

Jarmas Douglas Packer

John Peter Ban Wang

Clarence Yuk Man Chung

William Todd Misbet

Rowen Bruce Craigie

Jamas Andrew Charles
MacKenzie

Thomeas Jaffarson Wu

¥iu Wa Alec Tsui

Rebeart Weson Mactiar

Co-Chairman and non-executive Director
MNon-executive Director

Mon-executive Director

Non-executive Diector

MNon-executive Director

Independent non-axecutive Director

Independant non-axecutive Director
Independant non-axecutive Director
Indapandent non-axecutive Director

Mone of the Board membars are related to one ancther
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The non-execulive Director and the independent non-executive Directors,
all of wham are indapendant of tha managemeant of our Group's businasses,
are highly experenced professionals with substantial experience in areas
such as legal accounting and financial managament. Their mix of skils and
business experience i @ majer confribution to the future develepment of
our Company. Thay provide a strong independant elemeant on the Board,
axercise independant judgment and ensure that matters are fully debated
and that no individual or group of individuals dominctes the Board's decision
making processes. In addition, they focilitate the Boord to maintain a high
standard of financial and other mandatory repering and provids adaquate
chacks and balances to sofeguard the interssts of Sharsholders and our
Company as a whobks.

Director Independence

All independent non-executive Directors have met all of the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 313 of the Lsting Rules, Cur
Company has received from each of them an annual written confirmation
an his indepandence and considars each of them to be indapendant.



Changes In Information of Directors
Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rulas, the changeas in infarmation of
our Directors are set out below:

Nama Changes in information
Lowrenca You Lung Ho In February 2013, Mr. Ho was oppointed as
a Mambar of the Naticnal Committes of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Confarence.
Clargnce Yuk Man Chung In 2002, Mr. Chung was appointed as dirsctor
of our subsidiaries as follows:
+  MCE (Philippines) Investments Limitad
+  MCE (Philippinas) Investments
Mo.2 Corporation
* MCE Holdings (Philippines) Comporation
+  MCE Holdings No.2 (Philppines) Comparation
« MCE Leisura (Philippines) Corporation
+ MCP
+  Sfudio City Holdings Four Limited
+ Shudio City Heldings Three Limited
»  Zewus Powar Vantures Limited
Mr. Chung was appointed as director of
Studic City Retall Sarvices Umitad in
January 2013,

Name

Changes in informaticn

Jarnas Douglas Packar

Willicm Todd Misbet

Jamas Andrenw Charlas
MacKenzie

M. Packer resigned as director of
Consolidated Madia Heldings Limited in 2012,
In 201 2. Mr. Misbet was appeointed as director
of our subsidianas as follows:
+ MCE (Philippines) Investments

Ne.2 Cerporation
+ MCE Holdings (Philppines) Comporation
+  MCE Holdings Me.2 (Phiippines) Conporation
+  MCE Laisure (Philpppines) Comporation
« MCP
Mr. MackKenzie was appeinted as
independant director of MCP in 2012,
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Mame

Changes in infermation

¥iu W Alec Tsui

John Pater Ban Wang

Thomas Jaffarson Wu

Rowen Bruce Craigie

Mr Tsui wee appointed o independant
director of MCP in 2012,

Mr. Wang waos appointed as a non-executive
director of Anxin-China Holdings Limited in
Septembar 2012,

Mr. Warg resignad as non-executive Director
of China Preciows Metal Resources Holdings
Cao., Lid, with affact from December 2012,

Mr. Wu has become a mamber of the Hong
Kong Government's Standing Committes on
Disciplinad Sarvices Salarias and Conditions
of Service with effect from January 2013,

Mr. W has become a meamber of the Council
of the Hong Kong Baptist University with
affact from January 2013,

In 2012 Mr. Craigie was appeinted as directer
of our subsidiaries as follows:

= MCE {Philippires) Investmants Limited

+  Zews Power Yertures Limited
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Development and Training

Diractors’ training & an on-going process. Throughout the year ended
December 31, 2012 our Diectors received regular updaotes ond
presentations on changes and developmeants to our Group’s businass and
to the legisiative and reguiatory requirements in which our Group oparates.
A fraining sassion was organized for Directors in August 2012 fo update
the Directors on the Hong Kong and U.S. listing complionce requirements.
Moraover, all Ditectars have attendead offer relevant training courses and
seffstudy in relation to their confinuows professional development, The
Diractors have alse provided the Company with information regarding the
trainings received and studies completed for record,

Board Meetings and Directors Attendance Records

The Board meets regulary over our Company's affairs and operations. The
Boord held a fotal of nine meatings during the year ended December 31,
2012 The chisf firancial officer the chisd legal officer and the compary
secretary attended all Board mestings to advise on statutory compliance,
legal accounting and financial matters. All businesses transacted at the

maetings wem documentad and the records are maintained.



Set out below is the altendance record of each member of the Board of the  odoption of the financial statements and the directors’ and ouditors’
Board mestings during the year endad Dacamber 31, 2012 which illustratas  reports for the year endad December 31, 2011 (i)} the r-appointment of

the attention given by the Board in overseeing our Company’s affairs: the independent auditor (i) the granting of the general mandate and
rapurchase mandata: (iv) the re-election of Directors: (V) the adoption of
Mo, of the Company's Chinese comparny nama; and (i} the amendment of the
meatings than Amendad and Restated Memorandurm of Association and Artickes of
attendad/ Aftendance Association. Set out below is the aftendance record of sach member of the
held in 2012 rate Board at the general meeting during the year ended December 31, 2012
Executive Director
Lawrence Yau Lung Ho (Co-Chairman) 89 83.9% Mo, of
mastings
Non-sxecutive Directors attended/ Attendance
Jomas Dougles Packar (Co-Chairman) 8% 88.9% hald in 2012 rata
John Patar Ban Wang > 100% Execufive Director
Clarence Yuk Man Chung e 100% | qwrence You Lung Ho (Co-Chalman) " 100%
Wilkamn Todd Niskat U 100%
Rewen Bruce Craigie e 100% Nen-executive Direcfors
James Douglas Packer (Co-Chairman) m 100%
Independent non-executive Direclors John Peter Ban Wang 11 100%
James Andraw Charles Mackenzie 8% BBF%  Clarence Yuk Man Chung 171 100%
Thomas Jefferson Wu 8/% 889%  \iliom Todd Nisbat 11 100%
¥iu Wa Alec Tsui U9 100%  powan Bruce Craigie 171 100%
Robart Wason Mactier e 100%

Independent non-execulive Directors

Jamas Andrew Charles MackKerzie 1 100%
General Meeling and Directors Atlendance Records: Thomas Jefferson Wu n 100%
Our Company hald one ganaral maeting durng the yaar anded Dacambear Yiu Wa Adae Tsui "M 100%
3, 2012, which was the annual general meating held on May 23, 2012 Rober Weason Mactiar i 100%

at which resclutions wers duly passed in respect of among othars () the
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Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant Employees

The Directons and ralevant employees ae subject to the rulas st forth in our
Company’s Policy for the Pravention of Insider Trading. the tarms thersin are
no less evacting than those contained in the Modal Code. The Listing Rules
require an exprass Modsl Code compliance coenfirmation from the dirsctors
and that the confirmation be ghven following a specific endguinye All Directors
have ceonfimed that they have complied with the required standard of
daalings and code of conduct ragarding securities dealings by directors as
set out in the Mode| Code for the year ended December 31, 20012,

Delegation by the Board

The Board rasanvas for its decision all major matters concarning our Comparny.
The day-to-day management, administration and eperation of cur Company
is delegated to the Chisf Executive Officer and senior managament of our
Company. The Boord has formalzed the functions reserved to the Board
and those delegated to managemeant. The functions and responsibilities
delegated are subject to pericdic review.

The Company has established the follwing Board committaes fo support the
Comgany in maintaining a high comporate govemancs standard:

= oudit committas:

. compansation committes; and

. nomirating and corporata governancs committas.
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The Board has delegated certain functions to these three Boord committees.
namaly the audit committes, the compensation committes and the
nomindating and coporate govermnance committes. Each committes has its
defined scope of duties and terms of rafarance within its own chartar which
empowers the committee members to make declions on certain matters.
Each Board committes, upon remonable request s able to seek
independent professional advice in oppropriate circumstances, at our
Company’s expensa,

Audit Commitiee

The Board has established an audit committes in 2008, with its primary duty
to assist the Board In overseeing and menitoring, among others, the integrity
of the financial statements of our Company, including any relevant legal
and regulatory issues, the perfermance of the independent ouditors, and
the integrity of our systams of infernal accounting and financial controls, cur
Company's risk management procass, the effectiveness of cur Company's
intarmal audit function and any ralated party and/or connacted transactions.

In line with Rula 3.21 of the Listing Rules, our Company’s audit committes
comprises independent non-executive Directors, namely  Mr Thomas
Jefterson Wu, Mr. Yiu Wa Alec Tsui and Mr. James Andrew Charlas MocKanzie.
Mr James Andrew Charles MacKergie is the chairman of the oudit
committas,



Set out below is the aottendance record of each member of the audit
committes meetings during the year ended December 31, 2012

Mo. of

meatings
attended/ Aftendance
Fald in 2012 rote
James Andrew Charles MacKenzie 1Nz 9.7%

(Chairrran}

Thomas Jefferson Wu 1Nz MNT%
Yiu Wa Alec Tsui 1212 100%

In discharging its duties. the principal work performed by the oudit
committes during the year and up to date of this report included the
following:

In reiation to financial information:

(e

()

mavisw of the anrual financial statements of owr Group for the
years endsd Decembar 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 with
recommendation to the Board for the inclusion within our Company’s

annual reports:

eview of the quartedy unoudited financial statements and key
peformance indicators of our Group for the quarters ended Decamber
31, 2011, March 31, 20012, June 30, 2012, September 30, 2012 and
Dacambear 31, 2012 and provide recommendations to our disclosura
committee for inclusion within our Compony's quarerly eamings
announcameant.

in refafion to relationship with independent ouditor:

{@) review and opprove of the engogement letters of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for oudit ond non-oudit services, the nolure and
scope these services, their reporting obligations, work plan and
independence;

&) review of the ouditer's peformance and recommendation to the Board
for re-appointmeant of the auditor;

in relafion to fnancial reporting system and infemal confral:

{a) raview of the affactivanass of tha intemal contiols and sk management
systams of our Group, after discussion with managemeant, infemal audit
dapartment and indapendent auditors and raview of the repors
associkted with our program for compliance with section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oubey Act of 2002 ("5CX 404 Compliance Program”™) and
internal cudit plan

L) review of Internal oudit reports, including the majer findings and
recommandations frem internal cudit,

{c} raview and approval of intarnal audit work plan for the year 20013

{d) review and approval of certgin melated parly transoctions and
connected transactions camied gut during the year and conducted the
annual review of the continuing connected transoctions. together with
the independent non-executive Director who B not @ member of the
audit committes, as included within this annual report; and
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(8) review of the stoffing and rescurces of our Group's infernal audit and
finance departments.

Other detaik of the authority dutias and responsibilties of the audit
committee are avallable in the oudit committee charter which can be
found on our Company’s wabsite and tha Stack Exchange’s wabsita.

Compensation Commitiee

Cur Company has establihed o compensation committes in 2006, with
its primary duty to discharge the responsibilties of the Board relating to
compensation of our executives, including by designing (in consultation with
management and our Board) and evaludating the executive and Director
compensation plans, policies and programs of our Comparny, recommending
to our Board for approval,

The compansation committee comprses independent non-executive
Directors, namaly Mr Thomas Jafferson W, Mr Yiu Wa Alec Tsul and Mr Rebert
Wason Mactiar. Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu is the chairman of the compensation
committes,
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Set ocut below i the altendance record of soch member of the
compensation committes meetings during the year endad Dacembear 31,
2

M. of

miaatings
attandady Aftendance
hald in 2012 rate
Thomas Jaeftersan W (Chairman) 414 100%
Yiu Wa Alec Tsui 354 5%
Robart Wason Mactiar 4/4 100%

In diecharging itz dutles, prncipal work peformed by the compansation
committes includes:

() recommendatiors to the Board for approval in relation to the grant of
share options to participants under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan:

(b} recommendations fo the Board for approval of the compensation of the
Diractors, and approval of the compensation of senior managemeant;

(c} determination. with delegated regponsibility, of the remunendtion
packages of individual executive Directors and senlor managemeant;

and

(d)y assessment of performance of the executive Director,



Other detaik of the authority. duties and responsibilities of the compensation
committes are available in the compensation commiftes charter which can
b found on our Company’s wabsite and the Stock Exchange's website,

Neminating and Corporate Governance Commiittee

Qur Company has established a nominating and corporate govemance
committea in 2006, with its primary duties to assist our Board in discharging
its resporgibilities regarding (D the identification of qualified candidates
to become members and chairs of the Board committess and to fill any
such wacancies, (i) oversight of cur compliance with legal and regulatory
requiremneants, in particular the legal and regulatory recuirements of Macau
{including the relevant laws related to the gaming industry), Hong Kong,
the Cayman Blands, the SEC and NASDAS: (i) the development and
reacommandation to our Board of a sat of coporate governance principlas
applicable to our Company; and (v) the disclosura, in accordance with
ouf relevant policies, of any matanal information (othar than that reganding
the quality or integrity of our financial statements), which is brought to its
attention by the disclosure committes,

The rmominating and corporate  governonce committes  comprisas
indepandant nonexecutive Directors, namely Mr Thomas Jefferson W, Mr
Yia Wa Alec Tsui and M Robert Wason Mactier Mr Yiu Wa Alec Tsul b the
chairman of the nominating and corperate governance committas,

Set cut below is the aftendance record of each member of the nominating
and comporcte govermnance committee meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2012:

MNo. of

meatings
attanded! Attendance
hald in 2012 rate
i W Adas Tsui (Chairman) 2/2 100%
Thamas Jaffarson Wu 242 100%
Robert Wason Mactier 2/2 100%

In discharging its duties, the principal work performed by the neminating and
capote governance committea during the year included the following:
(a) considersad and opproved amendment of exiting comporate
govaernance policias to incorporate relevant Listing Rules requiramants:

) considersd and racommended for the Board's approval the proposed
changas to Board committeas’ charters:

{c) reviewad the structure, sze and compeasition of the Beard and the
Board committeas:

{d) cssassed the
Diractors: and

independanca of the independent non-execufive

(@) nominated candidates to the Board for i to recommend them to stand
for elaction by shareholdars ot the annual general masting.
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Other details of the authority, dufies and responsibilities of the nominating
and corporate governance committes are available in the nominating
and comporate govemnance committee charter, which con be found on our
Company’s wabsite and the Stock Exchange’s websita.

Directars' and Auditors' Responsibilities for Accounis

The Disctor’ responsibilties for preparing the financial statements are set
out on page 24 of this annual report and the reporting rasponsibilities of the
extarmnal cuditors are set out on poges 99 to 101 of this annual report.

Financial Reporting

The Board & accountable to the Sharsholders and B committed to
prasenting comprehensive and fimely informaticon to the Shareholders on
assassment of our Company's perarmancs, financial pasition and prospects.

Cur Company voluntarily publishes quartarly unaudited financial results for
tha threa months ended March 31 and September 30 and key performance
indicatads of our Group for each fiscal quarter generally within 45 days after
the end of the relevant quarter to enable its Shareholders, investors and
tha public to bettar appraise the position and businass pafcrmance of our
Group. Such financial information & prepared in accordance with LS. GAAP
using the accounting policies applied to ow Company’s interim and annual

financial staterneants and thare is no reconciliction of such information to IFRS.

Directors’ Responsibilities on the Financial Statements

The Directors ackriowledge thair responsibility for the presantation of financial
statemants which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of our
Company and our Group and the results and cash flow for aach financial
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petiod. In preparing the financial statements. the Directors have to ensure
that appropricte accounting policles are adopted. The financial statemants
are prepared on q going concern basis,

The Board's responsibility to present a balanced. clear and understandable
assasmeant axtends to annual and interim reports, other irside information)
price-sensitive information anncuncements and other financial disclosures
requirad under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to
information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 and as the date of this annual report
thare wera no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on our Company’s ability to continue as a going
concanm.

Internal Control

Tha Board has the ovarall responsibility for ensuring our Company maintaing
sound and effactive intarnal controls to safeguard the Sharaholders’
investrment and cur Company's assets at all times. To fulfill this responsibility,
the Directors hove conducted o review of the effectivenass of the system
of internal contrel of our Company and our subsidianas for the year andad
Dacamber 31, 2012 which coverad tha matarial controls, including financial
aperctional and complionce controls and risk managemeant functions and
the adequacy of rescurces, qualifications and axperience of stalf of our
Company’'s accounting and financial reporting function, and their fraining
programs and budget. This review was conducted by considaring the reports
and recommendation received from the oudit committes, given its role in
providing oversight of the internal control and risk managamant systerm.



The audit committee delivered those reports and final recommendation
basad an discussions held with management, the infemal audit department
and independent ouditors and the review of work pedormed and reports
issuad by those parties in relation to the SOX 404 Compliance Program and
our Group's infernal audit plan. Refer to oudit commities section within this
raport for more information on the work perfarmed by the audit committes
and the US Comporate Governance Practices section for futher detail on the
30K 404 Compliance Program.

Coempany Secrefary

Our company secretary. Ms, Stephanie Cheung. is a full time employes of
the Comparny and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs, The
Company Secretary i responsible for advising the Board on govemance
matters. For the yaar ended Decambar 31, 2012, the Company Secratary has
attended relevant professional frainings to update her skills and knowledge.
She will confinue to comply with the relevant listing rules riequirements to take
no kass than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings in each financial year.

Auditor's Remuneration

For tha year ended Decembear 31, 20012 cur Company paid approximataly
HE311.4 million for servicas provided to us by our cuditor, Messrs, Daloifte
Touche Tohmatey, comprising, HK$7.7 million for audit ssrvices and HKS3.7
rrillion for non-oudit services, Non-oudit services included an interim review of
our Group's consolidated financial statements, review of cartain documents
amssociated with consent solicitation for amendmant to the debentura
govarmning fhe 2010 Senior Notas, the ssuance of the Studio City Motas, an
assurance engagement of our continuing connected transactions, agreed-
upan procadures related to our preliminary annual resulls announcament

and cerfain tax sarvices.

Change In Articles of Associafion

The Companys Amended and Restated Aricles of Association were
odopted on May 23, 2012 and are available for viewing on the websites of
tha Company and the Stock Exchange. The following ehanges have been
made fo the Amended and Restated Articles of Association during the year,

(@) The adoption of the Company’s Chinese name "HERTBMARL™

@) Adicle 86 has been replaced by the following wordings “At any genaral
meeting a resclation put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided
by pol. except whare the chaiman of the meeting. in good faith,
dacides to allow a rasolution which relates purely to a procedural o
administrative matter to be voted on by o show of hands.”; and

(c)  Adicle 1170100 "any proposal contract or arangement concaming
any otker comgany in which the Diractor or his associate(s) is/are
interasted only, whether directly or indirectly os an officer or executive
or a sharehclder or in which the Director and any of his associate(s)
are not in aggregate bemeficially interasted in 5 per cent or more of
the issuad shares or of the voting rights of any clas of shares of such
company (or of any third company through which his interest or that of
any of his associate & darved)” has baen rapealad.

Annual Repar 2012
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of extracrdinary general meeting by Sharehoilders
Pursuant to Arficle 71 of the Amended and Restated Arficles of Association,
the Board may, whenaver thay think fit. convans an extraordinary general
meating. and extraordinary general meetings shall oo be convensd on
the written requisition of any ona or mare Sharsholders, pravidad that such
reguisitionists held as of the daote of deposit of the requisition not less than
10% of the paid up capital of our Company which carries the right of voting
at genaral meetings of our Company Such member shall deposit at the
principal office of our Company in Hong Kong, or in the event our Company
ceases to have such a principal office. the head office or the regitered
office of our Company spacifying the abjects of the meeting and signad by
the requisitionists,

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the daote of deposit of the
racaisition precead duly te convans the meeting to ba hakd within a furthar
21 days, the requiitionists themsebres or any of them represanting more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may corvens the
genaral meeting in the same manner as nearly as pessible. as that in which
rmeatings may be convensd by the Diractors provided that any mesting so
convened shall net be held affer the expiration of three months from the
date of depaosit of the requisiion, and all expenses reasonably incurred by
tha requisitionists as a rasulf of the fallure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
tham by our Company.
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Proposing o person for election as o Director of the Company

Subject to opplicabde lagilation and regulation and pursuant to the
Amended and Restated Aricles of Association if o Sharsholder of the
Company wishes to propose a panson othar than himseli/harself or a retiring
director for election as a Director at a general meeting of the Compary,
the Shareholder should deposit a signed wiitten nomination togethar with
a nefice signed by the persen to be nominated of his/her wilingness to be
alectad which shall be given to the Company at the Compary's registarad
office or head office (34th Floor The Centrium, 40 Wyndham Straet, Central
Hong Kong) within the 7-day perod commencing the day after the dispateh
of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such meating.

Putting forword proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shargholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating te the aperations,
stratagy  andfor management of the Company to be discuwssed ot
sharsholders” mesting, Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal
should convana an axtracrdinary genaral maating by the proceduras sat out
in the above "Convening of extraordinary general meeting by Shareholders”,

Us Corporate Governance Practices

Az a NASDAS-stad company, we ane also subject to other ongolng reporing
abligations and requirements imposed by the SEC and MNASDAG, such as
complianca with the Sarbanas-Oxlay Act of 2002 ("SOX Act™). Under saction
404 of the 50X Act, we are required to include o management report on the
affectivanass of our imtemal control over financial reporing in our US. annual
reports on Form 20-F



Management’s Annual Report on Infernal Control Ower Financial
Reporting

Our Compony’s management i responsible for establishing ond maintaining
adacuate intemal contral over financial reporting. as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Sacuritiss Exchange Act of 1934,

Our Comparny's infemnal control over financial reporting kb designed to
provide reasonable assurance ragarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the prepargtion of financial statements for external pumposes in
accordance with genarally accepted accounting principles. Cur Company ‘s
internal  control over financial repoting includes those policies and
proceduras that:

{1} perain to the mantenance of mecords that, in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactiors and dispositions of our
Campany's assats:

that  fransactions are  recorded
as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in

(&) provide reasonable asurance

accordance with generaly accepted accounting principles and that
our Company’s receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordancea with authorizations of its management and directors; and

{3 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorzed acquisition, use or disposition of our Compary's assals
that could have o material effact on the finoncial statements,

Becouse of its inharent limitations, intermnal control over financial reporting
may not pravant of datect misstatemants. Ako, projections of any avaleation
of sffectivenass to future pericds are subject to the risk that control may
becoms inadeguate becouse of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of complionce with the policles or proceduras may detarorate.

Cur Company’s management o d the effect
internal contral aver financial reporting as of Dacamber 31, 2012, In making

of our Company’s

this assessment. cur Company’s manogement used the framework set forih
by the Committes of Sponsoring Organzations of the Treadway Commission
in “Intemal Control — Integrated Framework”,

Based on this assassment, management concluded that, as of Decembear
31, 2012, owr Company's internal control aver financial reporting is effactive
based on this fromework,

The affactiveness of our Company’s interral contrel ovar financial reporting
e of December 31, 2012, has been cudited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tehmatsu, an independent registered pubdic accounting firm, s stated in
thair report which appeaars harein.
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Investor Relations

Communication with Shareholders

Cur Company has established a sharsholdars’ communication policy
with an aim to ensure Shareholders are provided with readily, equal and
timaly occess to information about our Company. Information will be
communicated fo Shareholders mainly through our Company’s financial
reports (quartery, intarim and annudal reports), annual genendal mestings and
other general meetings that may be corvened. Our Company will put an
effort to make available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange
and its corporate commanications and other comorate publications on the
Company’s wabsita, A dadicatad “Investor Ralations™ saction is availabla on
our Company’'s website. Information on our website b updated on a regular
brosis,

Qur Company regards the annual general meetings an important avent and
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in annual general meetings or
to appeint proxies te attend and vote ot mestings for and on their behalf
if they are unable to affend the meetings. Shareholdars may direct their
questions about their sharehaldings to (1) the Company’s Hong Kong registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Sarvices Limited, if Shares are regitered
at the Company's Hong Kong registrar, or (i the Company's Cayman
lslands ragistrarn Intartnust Comporate Services (Cayman) Limited, if Shares are
regiterad at the Company’'s Cayman Islands registrar,
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Shareholders’ Enquiries and Proposals
Enguiries from Shareholdars for the Board or our Company, of proposals from
Sharaholders for sharaholdars’ mestings may be dirscted to us.

By post: 36th Floor the Centrium, 60 Wyndham Street, Central Hong Kong
By fox: +852 2537 34618
By emaik info@melca-crown.cem

For and on behalf of the Board

Lawrence Yau Lung He
Co-Chairman and Chisf Executive Cfficer

Macou March 27, 2013



Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte.
ot )]

Ter the Shareholdars and the Board of Diractors of Malco Crown Entartainment
Lirmnitesd;

We have audited the occompanying consolidoted balance sheels of
Malco Crown Enterfainment Limited and subsidiarias {the "Compoany™) as of
Dacamber 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related corsolidated statermeants of
oparations. comprehansive income, shargholders’ equity, and cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Our oudits also included
the financial statement schadule included in Schadule 1. Thase consolidated
financial statemants and financial statemant schadule are the rasponsibility
of the Company’s management, Cur responsibility & to exprass an opinion on
these consolidated financial stotermants and financial statement schedules
based on our audits,

Wa conducted cur audits in accordance with the standards of tha Public
Company Accounting Owersight Board (United States). Those stondards
raquire that we plon and perform the audit o cbitain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An oudit includes examining, on a test bosis evidence
spporfing the amounts and diclosures in the financial statements. An
audit alse includes assassing the accounting principles wed and significant
astimates made by managament. as wall as evaluating the ovarall financial
statement prassntation. We balisve that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion,

In cur opinicn, such consclidated financial statemants pressnt fairly. in all
matarial respects. the consclidated financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consclidated results of their operations
and thair cash flows for tha years endad December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
in conformity with accounting principles genanally accepted in the United
States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schaduls,
whan considered in relation fo the basic consclidated financial statamants
taksn as a whols, prasants faitly in all materal respects, the information set
forth thermsin,

We have also oudited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Owarsight Board (United States), the Company’s
intarnal contral ovar financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, bassd on
the criteria establshed in infernal Confrol — integrated Framewaork Bsued by
the Committes of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report datad March 27, 20013 expressed an ungualiied opinion on the
Company’s intamal control ever financial reporting.

Is/Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Cerified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 27, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte.
=2

To the Sharsholders and the Board of Directors of Melco Crown Entartainmeant
Limited:

We hove oudited the infemal confrol over finoncial reporting of Melko
Crown Entertainment Lmited ond subsidiaries (the “Company™ as of
Dacember 31, 2012, based on the critaria astablished in intemal Contral —
Infegrated Fromework issuad by the Commiftes of Sponsoring Crganizations
of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management & responsible
far maintaining effactive intemal confrol over financial reporting and for its
assassment of the affectivanass of intarmal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Intermndal
Control ovar Financing Reporting. Our responsibility ks to express on opinion on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on cur audit.

Wea conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accountfing Owersight Board (United States). These standards
reguire that we plan and perorm the oudit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective intarnal control over financial reporting  was
maintained in all material respects, Cur oudit included obtaining an
understanding of infernal control over financial reporting. assessing the
risk that a material weakness austs, tasting and evaludating the design and
operating affactivanass of intemal contral based on the assassaed risk and
padorming such other procedures as we considerad necassary in the
circumstances, We belisve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

100 Mslco Crown Entertainment Limited
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting & a process designed by
or under the supervision of. the company’s principal executive and principal
financial officers. or persons pedorming similar functions, and effected by the
company’s board of directors. management, and other parsonnal to provide
recsonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporing and the
preparation of consclidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
intermal contrel over financial reporting  includes these policies and
procedurss that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasenable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fronsactions and dispositions of the
assats of the company: (2) provide reasonable asurance that trarsactions
ara racorded as necassary fo permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with genanally acceptad accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are baing mada only
in accordance with outhorzations of manogement and directors of the
company. and (3) provide reasonable assuance regarding  prevention
or timaly datection of unauthomzed acquiition. use, of disposition of the
company’s assets that could have o matenal effect on the consclidated
finrancial statemants.

Bacause of tha inharant imitations of intemal control avar financial rmporting,
including the possibility of collusion o improper managemeant ovaride of
controls, material misstatements due to emer or fraud may not be prevented
or daetected on a timely basis. Ako, projections of any evaluation of the
affectiveness of the infermal control over financial reporting to fulure pariods
are subject to the risk that the controk may become inodequats becouse of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
proceduras may datariornate.



In our opinion. the Company maintained, in ol material respects, sffective
internal control over financial reporting as of Dacamber 31, 2012, based on
the criteria established in Infernal Conirel — integrated Framework ssued by
the Committes of Sponsorng Organtations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also oudited. in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Owersight Boord (United States) the corsclidated
financial stataments and financial statemant schedule as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012 of the Company and our repert dated March
27, 2013 expressed on unqualfied opinion on those consclidated financial
statements and financial statement schadula.

Is/Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certifiad Public Accountants
Haeng Keng

March 27, 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(I thousands of LS. dollas, except shae and per shars data)

Dacamber 31,
2012 2011

ASSETS
CURREMT ASSETS
Cash and cash aquivalents $1.709.209 51.158.024
Raestricted cash (Nota 11) &672.981 -
Accounts raceivabla, nat (Note 33 320,929 306,500
Armounts dua from affilicted companias {Note 200a)) 1.322 1845
Amount due from a shareholder (Note 20d)) — &
Income tax recebable 255 -
Invantorias 16,5756 15,258
Prapaikd expanses and ofher curant assets 27,743 23,882
Total cument assets 2749026  1.505.518
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Note 4) 2684094 2455429
GAMING SUBCOMCESSION, MET (Note ) 542,268 559,505
INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS, MET (Note &) 4220 4,220
GOODWILL (Note &) 81.915 81.915
LONG-TERM PREPAYMEMTS, DEPOSITS AND

CTHER ASSETS (Mote 73 58,241 72,858
RESTRICTED: CASH (Mote 11} 741,683 364,807
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Note 15) 105 24
DEFERRED FINAMCING COSTS 65,930 42,738
LAND USE RIGHTS, NET (Mote 8) FE0.984 942,568
TOTAL ASSETS 57,947 466 5 6,269,580
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Dacambar 31,
20012 201
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LAEBILITIES
Accounts payable (Note &) § 13745 & 12023
Accrued expeanses and other curent liakilitiss
(Mote 10) 850,841 588719
Income tax payabls 1.191 1.240
Current porficn of long-term debt (Note 11) 854,940 -
Amounts due to offlicted companies (Note 20(b)) o049 1,137
Total currant liabilities 1,721,666 603,119
LONG-TERM DEBT (MNota 11) 2,339,924 2325980
OTHER LONG-TERM LLABILITIES (Mote 12y 7.412 27.900
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Note 15) 66,350 70,028
LAND USE RIGHTS PAYABLE (Mote 19(c)) 71,358 55,301

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 19)




Dacambar 31,
20

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Ordinary shares at USS0L01 par value per share
(Authorized — 7,300,000.000 shares a8 of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and
Bsued — 1,658,059.295 and 1.653,101,002 shares
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively (Note 14))

Traasury shares, at UsS0.01 par value per share
(11,257,038 and 10,552, 328 sharas as of
Dacambear 31, 2012 and 2011, respactivaly
(Note 143

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated cther comprehensive losses

Retained eamings (occumulated losses)

Total Malce Crown Entartainment Limited
shareholdars’ aquity

Nonconirling in i

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MNET CURREMT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

The cccompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidated financial
statemeants.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

{Iri thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per shis data)

Yaar Endac Dacambar 31, Year Ended Dacarnbar 31,

2002 211 010 2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES NON-CPERATING EXPENSES
Casing § 34759423 § 2560542 Interestincome § 413 5§ a0d
Rooms 103,003 BITIE  Infarast expansas, nat of coptalizad intarast (1138068 (93.367)
Faed and bevercge 61,840 £6,67%  Reclassfication of accumulated losses of
Entartainenans, ratal and cfhar BE 147 kA ntarast nate swop agreemants friom
GIoss tavanas 3930439 2723618 accumulctad other comprahansive lossas
Lase: peamotional clowencas (93,58 (1,642 (Note 10} (4310 -
hat ravaniuas 3830847 24821976  Change infair volue of intersst mte swop
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES ogreamants 5547 -
Casing (2698,981) (194024  Amortzation of dafarad financing coute {14208 (14,302
Rogms (18,247) (18132  Lean commitment fess (1.417) 3811
Food and bevarcge (34,158 (32898) Fomign exchongs gain (o) net (.7 3563
Entarbainmant, ratal and othars (58,404) (19.776)  Other income, net 3884 1,074
Ganaral and adminsative (220,224) (199.830)  Lifing sxpanses (BF50) -
Pra-cpening costs {2.450) (1a.6d8)  Loss om exfingushment of debt (Note 11) (25183 -
Dewvalopmant costs .nm —  Cosziz assoclaied with dabt modifization
Amortization of gaming subconcassion (7.23M Eraam  _Mete IT) = 33ig
Amertizoticn of land use rights (34,401} (19525  Total non-oparating expenses (157,508 (162117
Dapraciotion and amorfization (258.228) (23.306)  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 287.208 (7.608)
Proparty chargas ond athers .025) B} INCOME TAX CREDT (EXFENSE) (Note 15) 1,636 92
Totol opeeating cout and axpenses (3,385,73M) (2569,86)  NET INOOME (LOSS) 285 B4 (10,525}
OPERATING INCOME 5 485010 § Y2512 NETLOSS ATIRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING

INTERESTS 5812 -

NET INCOME (LOS5) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MELCO CROWN ENTERTAINMENT UMITED

§ 294686 S (10528)
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Yaar Endad Dacember 31,
a2 2011 2010

INET INCOME (LOS5) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MELCO CROWMN ENTERTAINMENT LMITED
PER SHARE:

Baic
Diluted

WEIGHTED AVERASE SHARES USED IN
NET INCOME (LOS8) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MELCO CROWM ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
PER SHARE CALCULATION:

Bagic
Diluted

§ 0184 § 0.007)
i 0182 § {2.007)

1.604.213.324  1.596.852.002
) 1616854682 1595852022

The cccompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income

{ini thousands of U5 dollas, except share and per shme data)

Yaar Ended Decamber 31,
2012 201 2010
Mat income (loss) § BE72 § 2BBA4d 5 (10.525)
Other comprehensive (oss) income:
Foralgn curency transkation
adjustmant 16 49 32
Changa in fair value of interast rate
swap agreaments — 6111 17,657
Changa in fair value of forward
axchange rote contracts o » -_
Reclassification to eamings upon
discontineance of hedge
accounting (Note 10} — 4,310 —_
Reclassification to aamings upon
sattlemart of forward axchangs
rate contracts (138) — —
Other comprahansive (loss) income (23) 10,311 17,689
Total comprehensive income 398,649 299,155 71464
Ceomprehansive boss atfributable
to nancantioling inferests 18,540 5.812 -
Comprehansive income affributables to
Melco Crown Entertainment Limited § 417,188 5§ 304,567 § 7144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial
statemants.

104

Cron Entertanment Umnited  Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders’ Equity

{in thousands of LS, dollars, except share and per share data)

Malzo Ceown Enterfainment Umited Shansholdees’ Equity
Acoumudated  (Acoumuiated

Addtiona Qiher Logses)
Qrclinory e Triczury Shares Fagn  Comprehansig Retained  Monoortioling
Shores Ameunt Shoras Ameunt Capifal Losses Earnings Intaeasts Tertd Ecuity
(Note)

EMLANCE AT JANUARY 1,200 15056175850 & 1595 GIESEE @ § apaaie § 03 & (eAMD) 8 - & LN
Mgt o8t for the yaar - - - - - - (10.525) - (10525
Foraign cumency franssion adjusmant - - - - - k7] - - ]
Chonge in far vawe of inferest rote swop ogreamants - - - - - 17457 - - 17,467
Share-bosed compansation Note 1) - - - - 5045 - = = 445
Shares Issued upan restricied shores vested (Nofe 14) 1,258920 12 - - (] - = — -
Shares issued for future vesing of resiricied shores

ond emeezise of shore cofions Noie 14 8,785,841 & (B785.641) (B8) - - = 5 =
Issuance of shares for resirctad shores verted

(Nete 14} = - ke 1 m - - - =
Exercisa of shore optics (Nofe 14) - - H4RE ] 30 - - - 3
BALANCE AT DECEMEER 31, 2010 1,605,655 111 14,056 (8,409, 188) (84 A0RETN (17,385) (577,168 - L5219
Nt incoma for fhe year - - - - - - il (5812 28554
Forsign cumancy fronsiofion odjustment - - - - - (&%) = = (14%
Change in o volus of inferest rote fwap ogreamants - - - - - &1 - - &1
Chonge in fair voiue of forword exchange rte

coniracts - = = = - 0 - - »
Reciassfoation 1o edmings upon choonfinuancs

of hedgh cocounfing (Nota 10 - - o = = 4310 - - 4310
Aonuistion of assets ond fabilfies (Nota 2300 - - - = - = - 20508 WA
Sham-basad compansation (Note 16) - - = = 82 _ _ _ P
Sharres issued upon resricted shonas vatted (Nofe 14) 31051 k] - - 6] - - - =
Sharess ispued for Rture vosing of restricted

sharas end s of hare cotions (Nate 14) 492035 & (4.520,388) wn = = - - -
lesuoncs of thares for rattrictad chanes vestad Dots 14) - - BLE4E ] 0] - - - -
Exercise of share optiors (Note 14) - - JREIN ] M - - - 3950
Issuonica of shores for comvarsion of sharsholdars

e (Note 14) 40211950 a8 - - 115020 - - - nias
BALANCE AT DECEMEER 31, 2011 1,684,101,002 18531 (10,552,308 (104) kel (1034 (282510 B8 3,187,662
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Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders’ Equity

{Iri thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per shans data)

Metzo Crown Entericinment limited Sharstvaldens’ Ecuity

Quclinary Shmas Traasury Shores Poidin  Comprahengve Retangd  Noncontraling

et moome b the yeor

Copita confribufions from nonconfroling shorehaider

Fonsign cumancy tnansation adusiment

Change in far vaue of forward axchange rche:
confracts

Reclosiicofion fo eamings upen sefflamant of
ferwand exchonge rofe corntrocis

Acqusiion of casels and licbiifies (Nche 230

Shore-bosed compansation (Note 14)

Shares itswad for future vesting of restiched shares
ond enarcisa of thar options (Neta 14)

Issucnee of shores for restricted shores verted
(Mot 14)

Concallation of veried resincied shores

Exarcite of thate options (Note 14

BALANCE AT DECEMEER 31, 112

Mot The fredsiny Shfes repressnt new shores massd by he Company and held by the deposiony bank 1o fadilitale the adminiraticn mnd opedalions of the Company s shate incentive plans. Thess
shares i 1o B dolivaned 1o S Direchons, sligible omployees and consultants on thie vesting of ratricted shards ond upon the eeencise of share cpticns,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the corsolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{in thousands of LS, dellars)

Yaar Endad Dacember 31, Year Encad Dacembar 31,
202 21 210 Rl il 210
Change in foir valua of interest rote swop

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Natincome (loss) 2 4 28GR % (10528 agmemants A04n 5 -
Adustriants 1o reconcile nat income (loss) fo Changas in oparating agsats and iobiities:
nat cosh peovided by cperating octities: Accounts raceivabla (68,7413 [45.795)
Depreciation and amortzation 360,842 33068 Amounts due fom offilated companies @8 (.52
Amortization of defamed financing costs 14303 14302 Ameunt dua from g sharehalder - -
Amorteation of defemed inferest axpense 1142 - Income fox receivable .o -
Amortization of decount on senior notes Invantores (268 (5.545)
payobils T3 417 Prapaid exparsaes and offar curant cuals 3359 1.914
Excest payrmant on acouisition of oiat and Lang-tarm prapaymants, dapasits and
liokiitias - - gthar osefs a7 180
Loss on disposol of property and eguipment 42 178 Defared fax ossefs 1 25
Allowanca for douktful debls end direct Actounts payable EALS 4
write off 37,803 33182 Accnued sxpansas ond oiher curent kokilifies 04182 24,150
Loss on exfingushmant of dabt w19 - Income fox payable 2% (34
Written cff defared financing costs an Amaunts dus o offliated companies 412 (B89
madiication of debt - 1302 Amounts dus to tharahalden (26T "
Share-batad compansation BA2 6,043 Othat leng-term liabiities m 526
Reclosificofion of occumuioted losses of Dafemad fax liabiities {2.P6T) 253
intarast rote swop ogreaments from Nt cash providad by operatng octivitie 744,560 401,988
cocumisated other comprenansive losses 4310 = CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTNG ACTIVITES
Raclssification of accumulated income of Changes in resficiad cash (185.9%2) 62,137
torward exchangs rata contracts Acquition of proparty and squipmant (50,268 (197.345)
from ascumulotad ofher comprahansive Paymeant for kand wsa rights (18.271) (22.802
lagses - —  Deposits for ooguisition of property and
sgupmant 3942 hzzg)
Net poyment for ccquistion of ossefs ond
Totilities (260,088) -
Paymant for antartginmant production coste [} e AL}
Procasds from sals of property ond scuipment | k] L]
Nef cash wsad in iwesting octiities (565,588 § (%0310
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{Iri thousands of LS. dollas)

Yaar Ended Dacambar 31,

Yaar Ended Decarnbar 31,

2012 2011 2010 2 001 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES F SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS
Poyment of deferred financing costs 0 (303 5 (258  Coshpoid for inferest (net of copiolized inferest) & § (11656 5 (85189)
Datarrad poymant for cogusition of asets and Cath paid for bax (et of rafunds) & § @2 $ )
ligbilifias - —  NOM-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Prapayment of dafared financing costs - —  Constuction costs and proparty gnd squipment
Principel payments on long-term cabt {117,078) {551,402 funded threugh occrued expanses ond ofhar
Proceeds from long-ferm daif 706,554 552,026 current lictilites and ofer long-term labiifies & § 14630 14,855
Capital contibution from nonconticling Land usa right cost funded Mrough cconsed
Infarasts - - anpansas ond ofrar cumant liabilites and
Procaads from axarcke of share optians 4,555 - lond Lsa rights poyobla § -4 &
Net cosh provided by financing activities £57.910 17,680 Costs of proparty ond squipment fundad
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ON CASH AND threugh ameunts dus to cffiiated compenies § 52§ -
CASH EQUNALENTS : 1,081y —  Defarmad finoncing costs funded fhiough
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ERIUNMALENTS 716,101 289,32 cceruad axpanses and afhar curant labiifies | § § 78§ 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BESINNING Entertainmant peoduction costs funded threugh
OFYEAR 3 441,923 212558 accruad axpaniat and afhar curan® labiifies & 5 - 5 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR § 1ISE4 §  4dipzs  Acqusiion of assets and lisbiifies fundad
threugh acerusd axgansas and othar surant
fabilties ond ofher long-term liotilies § 45473 8 -
Saftiernent of sharshaiders’ loons frough
fssuance of shames § 115442 § =
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements.



Notes fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

iin thousands of LS, dallars, except share snd per share dita)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Malco Crown Entartainment Uimited (the “Company ) was incomonatad
in the Cayman lslands on December 17, 2004 and completed an initial
public offering of its ordinary shares in the United States of America in
Dacaember 2006, The Company’'s American depository sharas ("ADS"™)
ara traded on the NASDAS Global Salect Market under the symbol
"MPEL. On December 7, 2001, the Company completed o dual primary
Esting in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Reglon of the Peopla’s
Rapublic of China ("Hong Kong®) and isted its ordinary sharas on the
Main Board of Tha Stock Exchangs of Hong Kong Limited ("HKSE™) by
wiery of introduction, undear the stock code of "68837, The addrasses of the
registered office and principal ploce of business of the Company are
discksed in the corporate information section to the annual repart.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (collectivaly refermed to as
the “Group”) & a developer owner and, through its indirect subsidiary.
Melce Crown (Maocad) Umited (formerdy known as Melco Crown
Gaming (Macau) Umited) {"Melco Crown Macau™), an cperator of
casing goming ond entertainment resort fociities focused on the
Macou Spacial Administrative Region of the Pecple’s Republic of Ching
CMacau™) market, The Group curently owns and operates City of
Draams — an infegrated casing resort located at Cotal Macau, Altisa
Macau — a casing hotel kcated ot Taipa, Macau, Taipa Square Casing
— acwsine lecated at Taipa Macaw Macha Clubs — non-casine-based
operations of electronic gaming machines in Macau, and has a 50%
intarest in Studio City — an integrated resort comprising entertainment,
retail and gaming focilities being daveloped in Cotai Macau,

On July 5 20012 the Company through its indirect subsidiary, MPEL
Projacts Umited, entarad inte a memorandum of agreameant (the "MOA™)
with 5M Investments Comporation, SM Lond, Inc., 3M Hotels Comporation,
SM Commercial Proparties, Inc. and SM Development Corporation
{collectivaly. the "SM Group™), Balle Corporation and Premiumleisune
and Amusement, Inc. ("PLAI") (collectively. the “Philippine Porfies™)
for the develcpment of an integroted rescrt project located within
Entertainment City Marnika comprising a casine, hotel retall and
antartainment complex (the "Philppinas Projact™). Further to tha MOA,
on Qctober 25 20012 MCE Lebure (Philippines) Comporation (CMCE Lelsure
Philippines”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company entered info a
clesing arangement agresment, o cooparation ogresmant. a lease
agreameant and other related arangamants with the Philippine Parties
in connaction with the Philippines Project, Further information on closure
of the agreements i included in Note 28(). On December 19, 2012, the
Company, through its indirect subsidianes, MCE (Phllippines) Investmants
Limited (“MCE Phiippines Irvestments?) and MCE  (Philppines)
Investments Me.2 Comporation ("MCE Investments Ne.2™) acguired a
majority interest in the ssued share copital of Melco Crown (Philppines)
Rezoms Corporafion  (formearly  mown a5 Manchester  International
Heldings UnBmited Comporation) ("MCP), a company whose shares are
listad on the Philippines Stock Exchange (the “PSE™). It i the Company’s
intention to pursue Philippines bosed opportunities and operate its future
Philippines businesses through MCE Letswe Philppines and MCP

As of Dacember 31, 2012 and 2011, the major sharsholders of the
Company are Melco International Development Limited {"Melco ™).
a company lsted in Hong Kong, and Crown Umited "Crown™), an
Australicn-listed compornation.

Annual Repar 2012

Meizo Crowm Entertcinment Lmided 111



Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements

(i thousands of LS. dollas, except shae and per shars data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

112

(a) Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

k)

The consolidoted finoncial stotements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles genarally accepted in the
United States of Amearica ("US. GAAP™) and includes applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Govemning the Listing of Securities
on HKSE (the “Listing Rules™) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and
trarcactions have been aliminated on consolidation,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in confermity
with U35 SAAP requires management fo moke estimaotes and
assumptions that affect cerain reported amounts of assets and
ligbilities, revenuss ond expenses and related diclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates and judgements
are bosed on historical information. information that is cumantly
available to the Group and on various other assumptions that
the Group belisves to be recsonabla under the circumstances,
Accardingly, actual results could differ from those estimates,

Wstoo Cromn Entertainment Umited  Annual Report 2012

[

(@

(e)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value i defined s the price that would be received to sell the
assat or paid to transtar a labiity (Le. the "axit prica”) in an ordarly
fransaction between market participants at the measurament
date, The Group sstimated the fair vales using appropriate
valuation methodologies and markst information available as of
the balance sheet date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
deposits and highly liquid investrments which are unrestricted as to
withdrawal and use, and which have maturities of thiea months or
lass whean purchasad.

Coash and cosh equivalents are ploced with financial Instifutions
with high-credit ratings and quality.

Resfricted Cash

The restricted cosh comprises of proceeds on the Renminki ("RMBE™)
2.300,000,000 3.75% bonds, due 2013 (the "RMB Bonds™) deposited
into a bank account for securing a lang-tern Hong Kong dollar
daposit-linked loan facility (the "“Deposit-Linked Loan™) as dischosed
in Mote 11 and proceeds from the offering of the Group's $825.000
2.50% sonlor notas, dua 2020 (the “Stedio City Notas™) and othar
bBank accounts that ara rastricted for withdrawal and payment of
Studio City project costs in accomdance with the terms of Studio
City Notes and other associated agreement as disclosed in Note
.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Accounts Receivable and Credil Risk

Financial instruments that are peotentially subject thwe Group
te concentrations of credit risk consist principally of casing
eceivables. The Group Bsues credit in the form of markers
fo approved casing customers following  Investigations  of
cradibworthinass including its gaming promoters in Macau which
racaivabla can be offset against commissiors payable and any
otter value items held by the Group to the respective custormer
and for which the Group irtends to set-off when required. As of
Dacamnbear 31, 2012 and 2011, a substartial portion of the Goup's
markars wara due from customers rasiding in fomign countrias.
Business or economic conditicns, the legal enforceability of gaming
debis, or ofher significant events in foreign countries could aoffect
the collectabilty of receivables from custormers and gaming
promoters residing in these countries.

Accounts receivable, inchuding casing, hotel, and other receivables,
are typically non-interest bearing and are intially recorded ot cost,
Accounts are written off whan management deams it & probable
the raceivable i uncollectibla. Recoverias of accourts previously
written off are recorded when received. An estimated allowance
for doubtful debts & maintained to reduce the Group’s receivablas
te thel carying amounts which approxmeatas fair vakie. The
dlowance is estimated based on specific review of customer
accounts a3 well 93 manogement's experiance with collection
frends in the casing industry and cument economic and business
conditions. Monogement believes that as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, no significant conceantrations of cradit risk existed for
which an allowance hod not alieody been recorded

{g) Invenfories

Inventories consist of retaill merchandise, food and beverage items
and certain operating supplies. which are stoted ot the lower
of cost or market value, Cost is caleulated using the first-in, first-
out, average and specific identification methods, Write dowrs of
potentially obsolete or slow-maoving inventory are recorded based
on management’s specific analysis of inventory

(h) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated ot cost less occumulated
depreciation, Impalment losses and gaing or losses on dispositions
of property and aquipment ara included in operdting income.
Major additions, renewals and bettarments are capitalzad, while
maintenance and repairns o expensed as incurred.

During the construction and development stoge of the Group's
casing gaming and antertainment resort focilities. direct and
incremantal costs related to the design and  construction,
including costs under the construction confracts, duties and
tariffs, equipment installation, shipping costs, payrell and payrel-
banafit ralated costs, depreciation of plant and equipment used,
applicable porions of interast ond amertization of defersd
financing costs. are capitalzed in property and eguipment. The
capltaleation of such costs baging when the corstruction and
devalopmeant of a projact starts and cadses once the construction
& substantially complated or devalopment activity i suspanded for
more than a brief pencd,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements

(I thousands of LS. dollas, except shae and per shars data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Capitalization of inferest and Amortization of Deferred
Financing Costs
Intarast and amortization of defered financing costs Incurred

(h) Property and Equipment (continued) an furds used to construct the Group's casing goming and

Dapreciation and amortization expense relafed to capitalzed
construction casts and other preperty and equipmeant is recognized
from the time eoch aset b ploced in service. This may ocowr at
diffarent stages as casing gaming and enterfainmeant resor facilities
are completed and opanad.

Property and equipment and othar long-lived assets with a finite
usaful life are depreciated aond amortized on a straight-line basis
over the asset's estimated useful Ife. Estimated useful Bees are as
fellowws:

Classification Estimctad Usaful Lifa
Buildings 7 to 25 years of over the tarm

of the land use right
agreement, whichever
i shortar
Adrcraft 10 yaars
Lamehold improverments 10 years or over the lease term,
whichaver Is shortar
Furpiture, fitures and equipment 2 o 10 years
Maotor vehicles 5 years
Plont and goming rmachinerny 3 to 5 years

Mstoo Crown Entertainment Umnited  Annual Repar 2012

entertainment resort facilties during the octive constuction
period are capitalized, Interest subjact to capitalization primarily
inchides interest paid or poyable on loans from shargholkders,
the Group's senlor secured credit foclity s enterad into on
Saptambear 5 2007 (the “City of Dreams Project Facility™), interast
rate swop agreements, $600.000 10.25% senior notes, due 2018
(the “2010 Senior Motes™), the RMB Bonds the Deposit-Linked
Loan, the City of Dreams Project Facility amended on Juna 30,
2011 {the "2011 Cradit Facilitias™), the Studio City Notes and the
land premium payable for the kand use right where Studic City &
lecated. The copitalzation of interest and amortization of defermad
financing costs ceases once a project & substantially complete or
daveloprnant activity is suspendad for mera than a brief pericd. The
amaount to ba capitalzed is determined by applying the weighted-
average interest rate of the Group's outstanding bomowings fo
the average amount of occcumulated caopital expendifures for
assats under constrection during the year and is added to the
cost of the underlying assets and amortized over their respective
useful lives. Total interest expenses incured amounted to $120,021,
$116,943 and $105,180, of which §10,410, $3.157 and §11,823 were
capitalized for the yaars andad Decembear 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
raspactively. Mo amortzation of defered financing costs were
capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2012 2011 and
2010,



2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)]

k)

Gaming Subconcession, Net

The goming subconceassion is capitalzed besed on the fair value of
the gaming subconcession agreement as of the date of acquisition
of Melco Crown Macou in 2006, and amortized wsing the straight-
line mathod over the tarm of agreement which is due fo expire in
Jure 2022,

Goodwill and Intangible Asseis, Net

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair
value of tangible cond identificble intongible net msets of any
business acquired. Goodwill & not amortized. bt s tasted for
impairment at the repoting unit level on an annual boss, and
between annual tests when circumstances indicate that the
camying value of goodwill may not be recoverable. An impairment
lass is recognized in an amount equal o the excess of the carrying
amount gver the implied fair value,

Intangible assets other than goodwill are amortzed over their
usaful lvas unbess their lves are determined fo be indefinite in
which case they are not amorized. Intangible assets are carried
at cost, less occumulated amortization. The Group’s finte-lived
intangible asset consits of the goming smubconcession. Fintte-livad
intangible assats are amaortized over the shorter of thair contractual
terms or estimated wseful lives. The Group’s intangible assets with
indafintte lives represent Mocha Clubs trodemarks, which are
tested for impairment on an annual basis or when clrcumstanceas
indicate that the canmying value of the intangible assets may not be
racoverable.

(O

impairment of Long-Lived Assels (Other Than Goodwill)
The Group evauates the recovembiity of long-fved ossets with
finita livas whanever evants or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverabls.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used i measured by o
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the
assat, f the camying amount of an assat exceads its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge & recognized in the
ameunt by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair
valkse,

({m) Deferred Financing Cosis

m

(@)

Direct and incremental costs incured in cbtaining loons or in
connaction with the bsuance of long-term debt are copitalzed
and amortzed over the terms of the related debt ogreemenis
wing the affective intarest method, Appredmertaly $13,272, $14203
and $14,302 wara amortized during the years ended Dacamber 31,
20012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Land Use Rights, Net

Land wse rights are recorded ot cost ks cccumulated
amortzation. Amortization s provided over the estimoted lease
tarm of tha knd on a stralght-line basts.

Revenue Recognifion and Promotional Allowances

The Group recognizes revenue at the time persuasive evidence
of an amongement exists. the service is provided or the refail
goods are sold, prices are fixed or defterminable and collection is
reasonably assurad,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

&

(CONTINUED)

(o) Revenue Recognition and Promotional Allowances

(continued)

Casino revenuss ara measurad by the aggregate net diferance
between gaming wins and losses less ocomals for the onticipoted
payouts of progressive slot jockpots, with liabkilities recognized for
funds deposited by customers befars gaming play occurs and for
chips in the customear s’ possassion.

The Group follows the accounting standards for reporting revenus
gross as a principal verss net as an agent, when accounting
for openations of Taipa Square Casing and Grand Hyatt Macou
hatel For the operations of Taipa Square Casing, given the Group
cperates the casinge under a right to use agreement with the
ownear of the cosino premises and has full responsibility for the
casing operations in coccordance with its gaming subconcassion,
it is the principal and cosing revenue i therefore recognized on
a gross basis. For the operations of Grand Hyatt Macau hotel the
Group is the owner of the hotel property. and the hotel manager
oparatas the hotel undar a management agreement providing
managamant sarvices to the Group, and the Group recaivas
all rewardds and takes substantial risks associated with the hotel
businass, it s the principal and the transactions of the hotal are
tharalors recognized on a gros basis.

Rooms, food ond beveroge. entertainment, retal and other
ravenuas ame recognized whan sarvices are pamormed. Advance
deposits on rooms ond odvance ticket sales are recorded o3

Msloo Crown Entertainment Urnited  Annual Repar 2012

customer deposits until services are provided fo the customer
Minimum operafing and right to use fee, adusted for contractual
bose fee ond operating fee escolgtions. are included in
antartainmant, ratall and other revenues and aml recognized on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the related agraement.

Reveruas are recognized net of certain sales incentives which are
raquired fo be recordad as a reduction of revenus; consaguantly,
the Group's casine revenues are reduced by discounts
commissions and peints eamed in customer loyally programs, such
as tha playar's club loyalty program.

The ratail vales of rooms, food and beverage, anterfainmeant, retail
and other sarvices furnished to gussts without charge & included in
gross revanuas and then deducted as promotional allowances. The
astimcted cost of providing such promotional allowances for the
years ended Decembear 31, 2012 2011 and 2010 i reckassifiad from
rooms costs, food and beverage costs, entedainment, retail and
other sarvices costs and b included in casino expenses as follows:

Year Ended Decambear 31,
Mz 2011 200

Rooms 5 16817 5 1269 § 10395
Food and beverage 39014 28,6563 27.870
Entartainmeant, ratail

and othars 7,238 4,510 5,545

5 63071 5 47.85¢ 5 43E10




2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

@

Peint-loyalty Pragrams

The Group operates different loyalty programs in cerain of its
propariss to ancourage repeat business from keyal slot machine
customens and table gomes patrons, Members som points based
on gaming acfivity and such points con be redasmed for free play
and othar free goods and sarvices. The Group accruas for loyalty
program points expacted to ba redeamead for cash and free play
s a reduction to gaming revenus and accrues for loyalty program
points expected to be redesmed for free goods and services
ot casing expenss. The occcmeals are bosed on managemeant’s
astimates and assumptions regarding the redemption value, age
and history with expiration of unused points resulting in a reduction
of the accruals.

Gaming Tax

The Group B subject fo taxes based on gross gaming revenue in
Macou. These gaming taxes are determined from an assessment
of the Group’s gaming revenue and are recorded as an expense
within the “Casing” line item in the consclidoted statements
of operations. These taxes totaled 52024457, 51948452 and
51.3562.007 for the years ended December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010,
raspactivaly.

n

=)

)

Pre-opening Costs

Pre-opening costs, consist primarily of marketing expenses and
othar axpenses related fo new or star-up operations and are
axpensad as incurad The Group incurmed pre-opening costs in
connection with Studio City since its acquisition by the Group in July
2011 o disclosed in Mote 22(b), and continuas to incur such costs
related to Studic City and other ocne-off activities related to the
marketing of new fociltes and opearations.

Development Cosfs
Development costs include costs associated with the Group's
evaluation and pursat of new businass opportunities, which are
aexpensad as incumred,

Advertising Expenses

The Group expenses all advertising cosfs as incured. Advertising
costs incured during development pericds are includad in pre-
spening costs. Once a project B completed, advertising costs
are mainly included in general and odministrative expenses. Total
advartising costs wera 337,094, 531,556 and $45.267 for the years
andad Dacambar 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(u) Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

All fransactions In currencles ofher than functional curencies of the
Company during the yaar are remecsurad at the axchange rates
pravailng on the respective transaction dates Monetary assats
and liabkilities existing ot the balance sheet date denominated in
currencies other than functional cumencies are remeasured at the
axchange rates existing on that date. Exchange differences are
racordad in the consolidatad statemants of oparatians.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

a

(u)

)

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
(continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and ifts major subsidiarias
are the United States dollar (757 or "USS™), the Hong Kong dollar
("HK3"). the Macou Pataca ("MCP?) or the Philippine Pasc
{PHP"), respectively All assets and liabilities are transiated at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheat date and all
incoma and axpensa itams arg transiated ot the avarage rates of
exchange over the year All exchange diferances arking from the
trarclation of subsidiaries” financial statemants are ecorded as o
componant of comprahansive incoms (joss).

Share-based Compensation Expenses

The Sroup Bsued restricted shares and share options under its share
incentive plans during the years ended Decembar 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010

The Group meoswres the cost of employee services received
in axchange for an award of aquity instruments based on the
grant-date fair value of the award and recognizes that cost aver
the service period, Compensation is altributed to the pericds of
assoclated service and such expense is being recognized on a
straighit-line basis over the vasting pericd of the awards. Forfaitures
are estimated at the time of grant, with such estimate updated
pericdically and with actual forfeituras recognized currently to the
axtant thay differ from the estirmdate.

Further information on the Group's share-based compansation
arangaments is included in Note 18,
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(w) Income Tax

The Group i subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Maocau, the
United States of Amaerica, the Philippines and other jurisdictions
where it cparates,

Defarred income taxes are recognized for all significant temporary
differences between the tox basis of assets and liobilties and
thelr reported amounts In the consolidated financial statermnants.
Defarad tax assets are raduced by a valuation allwance when,
in the opinicn of management, it & more likely than not that some
portion of all of the deferred tax asets will not be realzed The
componants of the defered tax assets and liabllitias are individually
chassified o cunent and non-curant based on the characteristics
of the underlying assets ond labilties, Curent income taxes ore
provided for in occordance with the laws of the relevant taxing
authoritias.

The Group’s income tax retumns are subject fo examination by
tax outhorities in the jursdictions where it operates. The Group
assasses potentially unfovorable outcomas of such examinations
basad on accounting standards for uncertain incoms taxes. Thase
accounting standards utilize a two-step approach to recognizing
and memuning uncertain tax positions, The first step b to evaluate
the tax position for recognition by determining i the weight of
cvailable evidence indicatas it & more likely than not that the
postion will be sustained on audit, inchuding resoiution of rakated
appeals or ltigation processes, if any. The second step is fo measure
the tox benefit as the largest amount which & more than 50%
likely. based solely on the technical merits, of being sustained on
axarminations,



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The weighted-average number of ordinary and ordinary squivalent
shares used in the calculafion of basic and diuted nat income
{loss) attributoble to the Comparny per share consisted of the
(x) Netinceme (loss) altributable to the Company per share following:

Basic net income (loss) atiributable to the Compary par share is
cakeulated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to the
Company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diuted nat incoma (loss) attributable to the Company per share
is calkeulated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to the
Company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year adusted to include the potentially
dilutive effact of cutstanding share-basad awards.

Yaar Endad Dacambar 31,
M2 20 2000

Weighted-ovarogs number of
ordinany shares outstanding
usad in the calculotion of baskc
net income (oss) offributable
to tha Company par share

Incrarmantal waighted-avemage
nurntar of argingry shangs fram
aurnad wasting of rasticted
shares and exancise of shore
gations wing the freosury
stock mathod

1404213324 1,595,552022

12,641,358 -

Weighted-avarogs number of
adinary shares outstanding
usad in the calculotion of
diuted nat ncoms (loss)
atfibutatis to the

Carmpany pat sharg 1.416,654,682 1,595,562002
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

120

(CONTINUED)

(x) Net income (loss) attributable to the Company per share

(continued)

During the yaars ended Decembear 31, 2012 and 2011, 1,901,134
and 5,547 034 outstanding share options as ot December 31, 2012
and 2011 were axcluded from the computation of diuted nat
incoma aftributabls to the Company per share as their effect
would have besn anti-dilutive, During the year ended Decambar
31, 2010, the Company had sacuritias which would potantially dilute
basic net loss attributable to the Company per shars in the future,
but which weare excluded from the computation of diluted net
lass atfributable to the Company per share as thair effect would
have been anti-diutive. Such outstanding securities consist of
restricted shares and share opfions which result in an incremental
welghted-avercge number of 9.377.50% ordinary shares from the
assumead vesting of thase restricted sharas and axarcise of thase
share options using the treasury stock method for the year ended
Dacamber 31, 2010,
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(y) Accounting for Derivative Insfruments and Hedging

Activities

The Group uses derivative financial irstruments such o floating-
forfixad interast rate swap ogreements and forsard exchange
rate contracts to manage its risks associated with interest rate
fluctuations in occordance with lenders’ requirements under the
City of Dreams Project Focilty and exchange rate fluctuations for
the interast payrments of the RME Bonds. The Group accounts for
darivative financial instruments in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. All derivative instruments are recognized
in the consclidoted financial statements ot far volue ot the
balance sheat date. Any changes in falr value am recorded in
the corsolidated statements of operations or accumulated othar
comprehansive incomse, depending on whether the dervative is
dasignated and qualifies for hedge accounting, the type of hedge
transaction and the effectiveness of the hedge. The estimated fair
valuas of interast rate swop agreements and forward exchange
rate contracts are basad on a standard valudtion modsl that
projects future cash flows and discounts those future cosh flows
to a present valuee wsing market-based observabla inputs such as
interast rate yialds and market forward exchange rates.

All outstanding  interast rote swop ogreements and forward
axchange rate contracts axplred during the year endad Decambear
31, 2012, Further information on the Group's outstanding financial
instruments arrangarments on intarast rate swap agreements and
forward exchange rate contracts s of December 31, 2011 are
inchuded in Mote 10 and Note 11, respectively.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z) Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income (loss). foreign
currency translation adpstments, change in the falr value of
interast rate swap agresments, change in fair value of forward
axchange rate confracts and reclassification to samings upon
sattlement of forward exchange rate contracts and & reported in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income. Cn June
30, 2011, the Group amendad the City of Dreams Project Facliity
and the accumulated losses of interest rate swap agreemeants
ware reclassified to eamings as the interast rate swop agreemeants
no longer qualfied for hedge occounting Immedictely after
the amendment of the City of Dreams Project Facility Further
information on the amendment of the City of Dreams Project
Focility is included in Note 11.

The consolidated financial statements have been adjusted for the
retrospective application of the authoritative guidance regarding
prasantation of comprahansive incomea, which was adopted by the
Group on January 1, 2012,

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group's accumulated other
comprabensive kosses conskted of the following:

Decambar 31,
2012 201
Foreign curency tramslation adistment [§ (LOST) § (1073
Changa in the fair valus of the forward
exchange rafe contracts - 9
§ (08 5 (.03

(aa) Recent Changes in Accounting Standards

Newily adopted aocounting pronouncement:

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASE™)
Bsued an accounting standard update to align the principles for
fair value measurements and the ralatad disclosure requirements
under LS. GAAP and Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS"). The FASE update clarified exbting falr value mecsurament
and  disclosure  requirements, and  expanded  disclosure
regquirements for fair value measurements, The adoption of this
amended standard was effective for the Group as of January
1. 2012 ard did pot have a materdal impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial results or disclosuras.

In Jurme 2011, thwe FASE ksued an eccounting standard update
to revise the manner in which entfifies present comprehensive
income in their imancial statements, mest significantly by requiring
that compraharsive incoms be prasentad with net income in a
continuous statement, or in @ separate but consecutive statement
and not within a statemant of changes in equity and amending
other prasentation and  disclosure  reguiremants  conceming
comprehensive income. In December 2011, the FASE issued an
accounting stondard update to defer the requisement fo present
reclssfications betwaen other comprahensive incomea of kss and
nat income or loss. The Group adopted thase pronouncaments on
January 1, 2012, The presentation of comprehansive income was
retrcepectivaly applied for all the periods presented, The adoption
of these pronocuncements did not have a significant effect on
the Sroup’s consolidated financial results or disclkosures. Refer to
consolidatad statameants of comprahansive income for the raquired
presentation,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa) Recent Changes in Accounting Standards (continued)

Newly adopted accounting pronocuncement: {continued)

In September 2011, the FASE Bsusd amended accounting
guidance milated fo goodwil impairment testing. The amended
guidance parmits an antity to first asess qualtative factors before
calculating the fair valus of a reporting unit in the annual two-
stap quantitative goodwill impaiment fest required under curment
accounting stondards, if it & determined that # is “mora-ikely-than-
not” that the fair value of a reporting unit i not less than its carrying
vakse, further testing i5 not neaded. The amended guidance was
effective for the Group as of January 1, 2012 and did not have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial results or
disclosuras.

Recent accounting pronouncemeant not yet adopted:

In July 2012, the FASB Bsued amended accounting guidance to
simplify testing indafinite-lved infangible assets, other than geodwill
for impairment. The amended guidance allows companias to
perform a qualitative assessment fo determing whether furthar
irpairment testing of indsfinitedived intangible assets & necessary,
An enfity b not required to calculate the fair value of an indefinita-
Ived intangible aset and perorm the gquantitative impairment
test unless the entity determines that it & “more-ikely-than-not”
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that the mset & impaired. The amanded guidance & effective for
interim and annual impairment tests pedormed for fiscal years
beginning ofter Septamber 15, 2012, with early adoption pemitted.
Tha adoption of this ameanded guldance Is not axpectad to have
a material impact on the Group’s constlidated financial rasults or
dischasuras.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Companants of accounts receivable, net are as follows:

Decembar 31,

20012 2001
Casing § 426,796 5 385898
Hatal 2,390 3491
Other 5,007 3686
Sub-total § 434,193 5 393275
Lass: allowance for doubtful dabts (113,264) {86,775)

§ 520,920 3§ 306500

Buring the yeaors ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ond 2010, the Group
has provided allowonce for doubthd debts of $25586, 536871 and
$32,241 and has directly wiittan off accounts recaivalzla of §1,850, 5932
and $941, respectively.



3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET (CONTINUED)

Mevameant of allowancs for doubtiul debts are as follows:

Year Ended Decamber 31,

2012 2001 2010

At baginning of yaar § B&IIS 3 41490 5 24277

Additional allowance 26,566 36,87 32241
Reclassified (to) from

lang-term receivables. net @7 8414 {14.978)

At end of year § 113264 § 846775 § 414590

Tha Group grants unsecured credit lines to gaming promoters bosed on
pra-approved cradit limits. The Group typically issuas markers to gaming
promoters with a credit peried of 30 days. Thers are soma gaming
promoters for whom credit is gronted on a revolving basls based on the
Group's manthly cradit sk assassment of such gaming promotars. Cradit
ines granted to dall gaming promoters ara subject to monthly review
and setflement procedures, For other approved cosino customers, the
Group typically allows a credit period of 14 days fo 28 days on issuance
of markers fellowing investigotions of creditweorhiness. An extended
rapayment ferm of typleally %0 days may be offered fo casine customers
with large goming losses and established credit history. The following is an
analysis of accounts receivable by age presented based on payment
dua date, nat of allowance:

Dacamber 31,

2012 2011
Current § 227534 5 20,141
1-30 days 51,207 41,571
31-60 days 9,842 3.344
61-90 days 1Lan 2573
Ower 90 days 30,405 38,871

5 32052¢ 5 304500

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Dacamber 31,
2012 201
Cost
Buildings $2439.083 $2.429.117

Furnitura, fixtures and equipmant 430,541 A03,577

Lemehold improvemeants 232526 179,089
Plant and gaming machineary 153,660 147.084
Ajrcraft 54,632 -_—
Motor vahicles 7,629 4,273
Sub-total $3,318.471 $3.173.140
Less: occumulated depraciation (973,18%) (730.313)
Sub-total $2345282 52442827
Construction in progress 338.812 212,602

Preperty and equipment, net $2.684004 $2.4655.429

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, construction in progress in rekation
te City of Dreams included interest pald or poyoble on loans from
sharsholders, the City of Dreams Project Facility and interast rate swap
agreaments, amortization of defered financing costs and other direct
incidental costs copitalzed (representing insurance. salories and wages
and cerain other professional charges incured) which amounted to
57,551 in aach of those yaars.

Annucl Reporlt 2012 Mekoo Crown Enfericinment Umided 123



Notes to Consolidated Financial Stfatements

{In thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per shans data)

4.

124

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (CONTINUED)

As of Dacambar 31, 2012 and 2011, corstruction in prograss in relation
to Studio City included interest paid or payable on the RME Bonds,
Studic City Notes and the lond premium payable for the land use right
whara Studio City & located and other direct incidental costs copitalized
{reprasenting  insurance, salaries and woges and  cartain other
professional charges incurred) which amounted to $37,.273 and $15,628,
raspactivaly.

During the years ended December 31, 20012 2011 and 2010, addifions to
proparty and equipment amountad to 283,998, §236,555 and $119.660,
respactively and disposok of property and equipment at carrying
amount wara 51,310, 5655 and $207, respectivaly.

GAMING SUBCONCESSION, NET

December 31,

2012 2011
Deemed cost $ 900,000 5 900,000
Less: occumulated amartizotion 87732y (300.495)

Gaming subconcassion, net § 542268 5 599.505

The deamed cost was determinad based on the estimated fair value
of the gaming subconcession contributed by a sharsholder of the
Compony in 2006, The goming subconcession i amortized on a straight-
line basie over the term of the gaming subconcession agresment which
axpiras in June 2022, The Group expects that amartization of the gaming
subconcassion will be cppradmataly 557,237 each year from 2013
through 2021, and approximataly $27,135 in 2022,
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6.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Goodwill relating to Macha Clubs and other intangible assats with
indefinite useful lives, representing trademarks of Mocha Clubs, are not
amortzed. Goodwill and infangible assets arcse from the acquisition of
Mocha Slot Group Limited and its subsidiaries by the Group in 2005

To asess potential impairment of goodwill the Group performs an
assassment of the camrying value of the reporfing units of least on an
annual basis of whan evants coour o circumstancas changs that woulkd
mora likely than not reduce the estimated fair value of those reporting
units below their camying value. If the carrying value of a reporting unit
sxceeds s fair value, the Group would perform the second step in its
assasment process and record an impairment loss to eamings to the
axtant tha carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill excasads its
implied fair value. The Group estimates the fair value of those reporting
units through infernal analysis ond external valuations, which utilize
income and market valuation opproaches through the application of
capitdlized eamings. discounted cash flow and market comparable
methods. These valuation techniques are based on a number of
astimates and assumptions, including the projected future operating
results of the reporting unit, discount rates. long-term growth rates and
market comparabla.



6.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Tradamarks of Mocha Clubs are tested for impairment at least annually
or when events occur or circumstonces change that would more
ely than not reduce the estimated fair value of trademarks balow its
camying value wing the relisf-from-rayalty mathod. Undar this method,
the Group estimates the fair volue of the todemarks through internal
and extarmnal valuations, mainly based on the incremental after-tax cash
flow reprasanting the royalties that the Group is relieved from paying
ghean it s the owner of the trademarks. These valuation fechniquas
are based on a number of estimates and assumptions, including the
projected future revenues of the trademarks colkulated using an
approprate oyalty rate, discount rate and long-term growth rates.

The Group has performed annual tests for impairment of goodwill and
trademarks in cccordance with the occcounting standards regarding
goodwill and other infangible assets. No impairment koss has beean
recognized during the years ended Decembar 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

7.

LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
ASSETS
Long-term prepayments, deposits and ofher assets consisted of the
following:

Decamber 31,

2012 2011
Entertoinment production costs $§ 70356 5 48553
Lass: accunmulated amortization {146, 603) (141}
Entertainment production costs, net § B3JE3 § o412
Depaosits and other 32105 11,143
Long-tarm racahabiles, nat 2,383 2,303
Long-term prapayments. deposits

and other assets $ 8824) 5 72858

Entertainment production costs reprasent amounts  incurmed  and
capitalzed for entertainmant shows in City of Dreams. The Goup
amortzed the entertainment production costs ower 10 years or the
raspeciive useid life of the entertainment show, whichever is shorfar.

Long-term receivables, net, represent cosine eceivables from casinge
customers where settlement 5 not expected within the next year
Aging of such balancas are all over 90 days and include allowance
for doubtiul debts of 56641 and $6.564 as of December 31, 2012 and
2017, respactively. During the year ended December 31, 2012 long-term
racalvables of $3.854 and allbwance for doubtful dabis of $3,854 ware
reclassified to cument: ond current accounts receivable of 53,453 and
allowance for doubtful debts of $3.931 were reclasified to non-currant.
Reclassifications to current accounts receivable, net. are made when
conditions support that it s probable for setflement of such balances to
oecur within one year
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LAND USE RIGHTS, NET
Dacember 31,
2012 201
Altira Macau
— Madium-term laase (" Taipa Land”) § 143985 5§ 141.543
City of Dreams
— Madium-term lsase (" Cotai Lond™) s 12 376,122
Shuclic City
— Madium-term lsase {"Studic City Land™) 453,564 549,078
$ 1173671 51.066,744
Less: cccurmulated amaortization (183.687) (123778

Land we rights, net § G80.984 5 942508

Land use rights are recorded at cest less accumulated amortization.
Amortzation is provided over the estimated lease term of the land on
a straight-line basis. The expiry dates of the leasas of the land use rights
of Altira Macaw City of Dreams and Studio City are March 2031, August
2033 and Cctober 2024, respectively

The Stedic City Lond was acquired upon acquisition of ossets and
llbiities as disclosed in Mote 22(B). The cost of Studio City Land weas
recognized in accordance with propesad amendment terms of the land
concassion contract issued by the Macou Government and accepted
by Studic City Developments Limited (" Studic City Dewelopments™), an
indirect subsidiary of the Comparny in Movember 2008, In June 2012,
the Group recognized an additional kand pramium ugon Studio City
Developments’ acceptance of the final amendment proposal issued
by the Macou Governmeant which was publshed in the Macau cofficial
gezette on July 25 2012, Further information on the final amendment
proposal of Studio City Land i included in Mote 19(c).
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9.

10

-

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
The following is an aged analyss of accounts payable prasantad basad
on payment dus date:

Decembear 31,
_ 202 201
Within 30 deays 10786 § 2.581
31-40 days 1.157 755
61-90 days 1,289 1,194
Over0days 53 521
§ 13745 3 12023
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Dacambar 31,
2mz2 201
Construction costs payable § 61,350 5 13318
Customer daposits and ticket salas 72,141 42832
Saming tax accruals 197,577 169.576
Interast expanses payable 20,254 12180
Interast rate swap liabilities — 3463
Land use rights payable 53,000 15,980
Operating expense and other accnaals 119.584 1001561
Other gaming related accruals 24,524 19.643
Outstanding gaming chips and tokens 278,147 187.978
Payablas for acquistion of assets and
liglilities (Note 22(0)) 24,244 26,710
§ 850841 5 58871¢




10. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT

LIABILITIES {CONTINUED)

In connection with the signing of the City of Dreams Project Facility in
September 2007, Melco Crown Mocou entered into floating-forfived
intarast rate swap ogreemeants to limit #s exposure to infarest rate risk.
Under the interast rate swap agreements, Makco Crown Macau paid
a fized interast rate ranging from 1.96% to 4.74% per annum of the
notional amount, and received variable interast which was based on the
applicabls Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") for each of the
payment date. As of December 31, 2011, the notional amounts of tha
cutstanding inferast rate swap agreements amounted to $127.892. All
interest rate swop agreements expired as of December 31, 2012,

Bafora the ameandment of the City of Dreams Projact Facilty on Juns 30,
2011 as disclosed in Note 11, these interest rate swap agreements ware
axpaectad to remain highly effective in fixing the interest rate ond qualify
for cash flow hadge accounting. Therafore, thare was no impact on the
consalidated stataments of oparations from changes in the fair valus of
the hadging instruments. Instead the fair value of the instruments were
racorded as assets or liabilitias on the consdlidated balance sheets, with
an offsetting cdistment to the accumulated other comprehensive loss
unfil the hedged inferest axppanses ware recognized in the consolidatad
statarments of operations,

11

Immediately after the amendment of the City of Dreams Project
Facilty on June 30, 2011, the intersst rate swop agresments no konger
gudlified for hedge occcounting. Accordingly, the Group reclossified
tha accumulated lossas of $4.310 recognized in cccumulated other
comprahansive lossss prior to the discontinuance of hedge accounting
to the corsolidated statements of operations, The subseguent chongas
in fair valse of the interast rate swap ogreemants were recognized in
tha consolidated statamants of oparations. As of Dacambaear 31, 2011, the
interast rate swap labilities of §363 represented the fair values of infarast
rate swop agreements.

LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of tha following:

Dacamber 31,

012 2011

2011 Cradit Facilties $1.014729 51014729
Studio City Moteas 825,000 —
2010 Sanior Motes™ 593,967 593,166
RMB Bonds 367,845 364,807
Deposit-Linked Loan 353278 353,278
Adrcraft Termn Loan 40,245 —
53194864 §2.325980

Currant portion of keng-term debt (854,940) -

§$2330.924 §2.325.980
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

City of Dreams Project Facllity

On September 5, 2007, Melco Crown Mocou (the “Bomower?) entered
into tha City of Dreams Project Focility which waos subsequantly
amended from time to time with certain lendars in an aggregate
amount of $1.750000 to fund the City of Dreams project. The City of
Drearns Project Facility conskted of a $1,500.000 term loan fociity
{tha "Term Loan Focility™) and a $250,000 revalving credit facility (tha
“Revobing Cradit Facility™). Tha Tarm Loan Facllity would have matunsd
on Saptamber 5 2014 and was subjact to quarterdy amortization
payments (the “Scheduled Amortization Payments™) commencing on
Dacambar 5 2010, The Revolving Credit Focikty would have motured
on Saptambar 5, 2012 or, if aarkar, the date of repayment, prapaymeant
or canceliation in full of the Term Loon Facility, and had no interim
amortization payments. In addition to the Scheduled Amorization
Payments, the Bomower woe alo subject to quarterdy mandatory
prepayments (the “Mandatory Prepayments™) in respect of various
amounts within certain subsidiaries of the Bomower (togather with the
Bomower Collectively referred 1o as the "Bomowing Group™) under the
terms of the City of Dreams Project Facility,

Drowdowrs on tha Term Loan Focility ware subject to satistaction of
conditions precedent specified in the City of Dreams Project Facility
agreamant and the Ravelving Credit Facility was fo be made available
on o fully reveling basks from the date upon which the Term Loan
Facility had been fully drawn, to the date that was ona month prior to
the Revolving Credit Facilty's final maturity date.
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The indebtedness under the City of Dreams Project Focility was
guarantsed by the Borowing Group and security for the indebtedness
included a fist-pricrity mortgoge, security and charges over certain
assafs and tems of the Bormowing Group as weall as other custornary
security in accordance with the terms of the City of Dreams Project
Facility. The City of Dreams Project Facilty also contained certain
affirmotiee ond negative covenants customary for such financings
and requirad the Bomowing Group to comply with carain firancial
covenants. In addition, there weare provisions that limited or prohibited
payments of certain dividends and other distributiors by the Bomowing
Group to the Compony.

Borowings under the City of Dreams Project Facility bore intersst at
the London Interbank Cffered Rate (TLIBOR™) or HIBOR plus a margin
of 2.75% per annum until substantiol complation of the City of Dreams
project, af which fime the intarest rote was reduced to LBOR or HIBOR
plus a mangin of 250% par annum. The City of Dreams Projact Facility
also provided for further reductions in the margin if the Borowing Group
satisfied cerfain prescribed leverage ratio tests upon complation of tha
City of Draams project.

The Bomrowsr wos obligated to pay o commitmeant fes quartarly in
amrears on the undrawn amount of the City of Dreams Project Focility
throughout the ovoilobility perod. The Bomowear recognized loan
commitmant faas on the City of Dream Project Facllity of 5481 during the
vear anded December 31, 2011, and a credit amount of 53,811 during
the year ended December 31, 2010, which included a commitment fae
of 5814 and a ravarsal of accmual not required of $4,625.



11. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

City of Dreams Project Facillity (continued)

In May 2010, the Bomower entered into on amendment ogreement
to tha City of Dreams Project Faciity, which, among other things. (D
amended the date of the first covenant tast date to December 31, 2010;
(i) provided additional flexibilty to the financial covenants; (i) removed
tha obligation but retained the right to enter info any new interast rate
of fareign currancy swaps of ofher hedging armangements and (i)
rastiictad the use of the nat proceads raceived fiom the isuance of
2010 Senior Notas of approximatealy $577.066 to repayment of cartain
amounts outstanding under the City of Dreams Project Focility, including
prapayrment of the Termn Loan Foclity and Revelving Cradit Facilty of
$203.714 and 5150352, respactively, and fha remaining net procesds of
$133,000 daposited in a bank account that was restricted for use to pay
Scheduled Amorization Payments commeancing December 2010 as well
<t providing for a permaneant reduction of the Revolving Credit Facility of
$100,000. The Group recognized an expense of $3.310 as a result of the
atoremantionad debt modification.

In addition to the prepayment of the City of Dreams Project Focility
in May 2010, during the years ended Decaember 31, 2011 and 2010,
the Bormowear further repaid 589,158 and $35.693 and prepaid $20.896
and 571,643 of the Term Loon Focility according to the Scheduled
Amortization Payments and the Mandatory Prepayments, respectively
and the Borrcwer also made voluntary repaymeants of 57,022 bafore the
amendmeant to the City of Dream Project Facility on June 30, 2011 as
dascribed below.

2011 Credit Facilities

On June 30 2011, the City of Dreams Project Focility was further
amanded pusuont to an amendment agreement enterad info by
among ofthers, the Bomower and certain lendars under tha City of
Dreams Project Focilty on June 22, 2011, The 2011 Credit Facilitiss,
among other things: () reduce the Term Loan Facility to HK$6,241,440,000
{eguivalant to $802.241) (the "2011 Term Loan Faciliy™) and increase the
Ravoling Cradit Foclity to HKS3.120.720000 (equivalent to 5401.121)
(the "2011 Revolving Cradit Facility™). of which both are denominated
in Heng Kong Dollars: (i) introduce new lenders and remove certain
lenders onginally under the City of Dreams Project Facility: (i) extend the
rapayrment maturity date; (W) reduce and memove cartain rastrictions
imposed by the covenants in the City of Dreams Froject Facilty; and (v)
remave MPEL (Delaware) LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Borower
which was subsequently dissolved on May 31, 20012, from the Borowing
Group (the " 2011 Borowing Group ™).
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2011 Credit Facllitles (continued)

The final maturity date of the 2011 Credit Focilities i June 30, 2016, The
2011 Tarm Loan Facility will ba repaid in guarterly instalments according
te an amotization schedule commencing on Saptembsar 30, 2013, Each
lean made undsr the 2017 Revolving Credit Facilty will be repaid in
full on the kst day of on agreed upon interest period in respect of the
laan, ganerally ranging from one toe siv months, ar rling over subject
to compliance with certain covenants and satisfaction of conditions
pracadent. The Bomower may make voluntary prepayments in respect
of the 2011 Credit Focilities in @ minimum amount of HK$150,000.000
(equivalent to $20,5648), plus the ameount of any cpplicable break costs,
The Borrower & abo subject to mandatory prepaymeant requiremsnts in
respact of varous amounts within the 2011 Boerowing Group. including
bt not limited to: () the net proceeds received by any member of the
2011 Borrowing Group In respect of the compulsory transfer sekure or
acquisition by any governmantal autharity of the assets of any member
of the 2011 Bormowing Group (subject to cartain excepticns) (D) the net
proceads of any asset sale, subject to reinvestment rights and certain
axceptions, which are in excess of 515.000; (i) net termination, claim or
satflement procaad: pald under tha Borowar's subconcassion orf the
2011 Borrowing Group's land concassions, subjact to certain excaptions:
{iv) insurance procesds net of expenses te oblain such proceeds under
the propery insurances relating fo the total less of all or substantially all
of the Alfira Macou gaming business; and () other insurnce proceads
nat of axpanseas to obtain such procesds undar any proparty insurancss,
subject to reirvestment rights and cerain exceptions. which are in
axcass of 515,000
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The indebltedness under the 2011 Cradit Focilities i guarantesed by the
2011 Borowing Group, Security for the 2011 Credit Facilties remains
substantially the some os under the City of Dreoms Project Focility
(although tha tarms of the associated security documants have bean
amended for consstency andior conformity with the 2011 Cradit
Facilities) sxcept for securities related to MPEL (Delowars) LLC, which
have bean released.

The 20011 Credit Facilities abko contain offiimative and negative
covenants customary for financings of this hype with an additional
covenant that the 2011 Borowing Grous must not enter into any
contracts for the corstruction or financing of an additional hotal towear
in connaction with the development of City of Dreams except in
accordance with plans approved by the lenders in accordance with
the terms of the 2011 Credit Facilities. The 2011 Credit Facilifies remaove
the financial covenants under the City of Dreams Project Facllity, and
raplacs them with, without limitation:

+ alaverage rafio, which cannot excesd 3.00 to 1.00 for the reporting
parods ending Septamber 30, 2011, Decembear 31, 2011, March 31,
2012 June 30, 2012 September 30, 2012 December 31, 2012, March
31, 2013 and Jurs 30, 2013 and cannot excaed 2.50 to 1.00 for the
reporting pericds ending September 30, 2013 onwards;

*  fotal leverage ratio, which cannot exceed 450 to 1.00 for the
raporting periods ending September 30, 2011, Decamber 31, 2011,
March 31, 20012, June 30, 2012, September 30, 2012 December 31,
2012 March 31, 2013 and Juna 30, 2013 and cannot excead 4.00 fo
1.00 for the reporting pericds ending Septembbear 30, 20013 omwarnds;
and
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2011 Credit Facllities (continued)
+  interest cover ratic, which must be grecter than or equal to 4.00 to
1.00 for tha reparting periods ending Saptember 30, 2011 onwards.

Managament believes that the 2011 Bomowing Group was in
compliance with all covenants of the 2011 Credit Fociities s of
Dacembar 31, 2012,

There are provisions that Brmit or prohibit certain payments of dividends
and other distributions by the 2011 Borrowing Group to the Comgany or
parzons who are not members of the 2011 Borowing Group (describad
in further datail balow undar “Distribution of Profits”). As of Decembear
31, 20012 and 2011, the net assets of the 2011 Bomowing Group of
approximately $2.382.000 and 51.894.000, respectively were restrictad
from belng distributad under the tarms of the 2011 Cradit Facilities.

Bomowings under the 2011 Credit Focilities bear interest ot HIBOR
plus a mangin ranging from 1.75% to 2.75% per annum o adjusted in
accordance with the leverage ratic in respect of the 2011 Borowing
Group. The Bomowar may salect an intersst parod for borowings undar
tha 2011 Cradit Facilities of one, two, thiee or sit months of any other
agreed pericd The Bomower & obligated to pay a commitment fee
quartarly in amears from June 30, 2011 on the undriaown amount of the
2011 Revoling Cradit Facility throughout the availlability peried. Loan
commitmant fees on the 2011 Credit Facilties amounting fo 51,324 and
$950 were recognized during the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, raspactivaly.

Tha Group accounted for the amendment of the City of Dreams
Project Faciity os on extinguishment of debt becouws the difference
between the applicable future cash flows under the 2011 Credit
Facilities compared with the applicabls future cash flows under tha
City of Dreams Project Facility as of the amendment dete, June 30,
2001 was in excess of 10% of such applicable future cash fiows. The
Group wicte off the unamortzed defered finoncing costs of $25.193
upon the extinguishment of the City of Dreams Project Facilty oz loss on
extinguishment of debt in the consclidated statements of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2011 and the 2011 Credit Focilities was
racognized ot fair value upon the extinguishmeant. In addition, the Sroup
capitalzed the third party fee and related suance costs in relation to
tha 2011 Cradit Facilities of 529,328 as defarrad financing costs.

As of December 31, 2012 the 2011 Term Loon Facilty has been fully
drcrwn down and HKS1,653,154,570 (equivalent to $212.488) undear the
2011 Rewolving Credit Facilty has alko been drawn down, resulting in
total outstanding bomowings relating to the 2011 Credit Focilities of
HE$7.894,594.570 (equivalent fo $1.014729) while HKS1.4467 565.430
{equivalant to 51884633) of the 20011 Revolving Credit Facility remains
available far future draw down,
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2010 Senior Notes

On May 17, 2010, MCE Finance Limited ("MCE Finance”™, a whaolly-
owrad subsidiary of the Comparny) ssusd and listed the 2010 Sanior
Motes on the Official Lst of Singgpora Exchange Securities Trading
Uimited ("SEX-5T7), The puechose price paid by the initial purchasers
wors 95.671% of the principal amount, The 2010 Sandor Notes are general
obligations of MCE Financa, sacurad by a first-pricrity pladge of tha
intarcompany note (the “Intercomparny Mote™) represanting the on-
lending of the gross proceads from the issuance of the 2010 Seniar Notes
by MCE Finance to an indirect subsidiary of MCE Finance to reduce
the indebledness under the City of Dreams Project Facllity, rank agually
in right of payment to all existing and futwe senior indabtedness of
MCE Finance and rank senior in right of payment to any axsting and
future subordinated indebtedness of MCE Finance. The 2010 Senicr
MNotes are affectivaly subordinated to all of MCE Finance’s exsting and
future sscured indebladness to the exdent of the valua of the assels
securing such debt. The Company and MPEL Intemdational Limited
{together the "Senior Guarantors™), fully and unconditionally and jointhy
and severally guaranteed the 2010 Senior Notes on o senior secured
besis, Cartaln ofhar indisect subsidians: of MCE Finance (tha “Subsidiary
Group Guarantors™), including Malco Crown Mocau (togsther with
the Senior Guarantors, the “2010 Senior Motes Guarantors™), fully
and unconditionally and jointly and severally guorantesd the 2010
Sankor Motes on 4 sanior subordinated secured basis, The guarantess
pravided by the Senior Guarartors are general obligations of the Senior
Guarantors, rank equally in right of poyment with all existing and future
sanior indebtadnass of the Senior Guarantors and rank sanlor in right
of payment to any exiting and future subordinated indebtedness
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of the Senior Guarantors, The guarantees provided by the Subsidiary
Group Guarantors are general obligations of the Subsidiary Group
Guaranters, rank subordinated in ight of poyment fo indebtedness of
such Subsidiary Group Guarantors’ obligations undar the dasignated
senior indabtedness described in tha related effering memorandum and
rank senior in right of payment to any axisting and future subordinated
inclebtedness of such Subsidiony Group Guarantors. Upon entering of
tha 2011 Credit Facilities, the guarantess provided undar the 2010 Sanior
Motes were amended with the principal effect being that claims of
noteholders under the 2010 Senior Notes against subsidiaries of MCE
Financa that are obligors undar tha 2011 Cradit Faciities will rank edqually
in right of payment with claims of lenders under the 2011 Credit Facilities.
The 2010 Sanior Notes mature on May 15 2018, Interast on the 2010
Sanior Notes b accrued of o rate of 10.25% per annum and is payable
sami-annually in arrears on May 15 and November 15 of each year
commeancing on Novermb.er 15, 2010,

The net proceads from the offering ofter deducting the original ksue
discount of approximately 57.974 and undarwriting commissions and
other axpersas of approdmataly $14,960 was approximataly $577.056.
The Group wed the net proceads from the offaring to reduce the
incdabtadness under the City of Dreams Project Facility by approximately
$4dd 066 and deposited the remaining $133.000 in g bank occount
that was restricted for wse to pay fulure City of Dreams Project Facility's
Scheduled Amortization Payments commencing December 2010, The
restriction was released upon the amendment of the City of Dreams
Project Facility on June 20, 2011 as described above. The 2010 Senior
MNotas wara raflected nat of discount undar longdarm dabi in tha
consclidated bakance shasts. The Group capitalzed the undanwriting
fea and related izuance costs in relation to the 20010 Ssnior Motes of
414,585 s defermed financing costs.
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2010 Senlor Notes (continued)

At any time after May 15, 2014, 20015 and 2016 and thereafter MCE
Finance may redesm soma or all of the 20010 Sanior Motas at tha
rademption pricas of 105.125%, 102.563% and 100.000%, raspectively,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, additional amounts and Bquidated
cdarnages, if any, to the redemption date,

Prior to May 15, 2014, MCE Finance may redeam all or part of the 2010
Sanior Motes ot the redemplion price set forth in the related offering
memorandum phls the opplicable “make-whobe”™ premium described
in the related offering memorandum plus accrued and unpaid interest,
additional amounts and liquidated damages, if any to the rmdemption
date,

Prior to May 15 2013, MCE Finance may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amourt of the 2010 Senior Notes with the ret cash proceeds
from one or more certain equity offerings ot the redemption price of
110.25% of the principal amount of the 2010 Senior Motes, plus accuad
and unpaid interest, odditional ameounts and liquidated domages, if
any, to the redemption date. In addition, subjact to certain axcaptions
and as maore fully describad in the related offering mamorandum, MCE
Finance may redeem the 2010 Senior Notes in whole, but not in part,
at a price egual to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued intaerast
and unpaid interast, addifional ameounts and quidated domageas, i
any, to the date fixed by MCE Finance for redamption, if MCE Finance or
any ong of the 2010 Senicr Notes Guarantors would become obligated
to pay cerain edditional amounts o5 a result of certain changas In
withholding tax laws or certain other circumstances. MCE Finance

e e e

may also redesem the 2010 Senior Motes if the gaming authority of
any jrisdiction in which the Company. MCE Finance or any of their
respective subsidiories conducts or proposes to conduct goaming
raquiras holdars or banaficial ownars of the 2010 Sanicr Notes to ba
licensad, qualified or found suitable under applicable gaming laws and
such holder or bensficial owner. as the case may be, fails to apply or
becomes licansed or qualified within the required time period or & found
unsuitabibs,

The indenture goveming the 2010 Senicr Motes contains ceriain
covanants that, subject to certain exceptions and conditions, limit the
ability of MCE Finonce and its resticted subsiciarias” abillity to, among
athar things: ()} incur or guarantes odditional indeabtednass; (i) make
goecified rastricted payments: (i) issue or sell capital stock (W) sell
assets; (v) create Bens; (vi) enter into ogreements that restrict the
rastricted subsidiaries” ability to pay dividends, fronsfer assets or make
infercompany loans; (vi) enter into transactions with sharsholders or
offiiates: and {vii) effect o consolidation or merger. As of December 31,
2012, managemant believes that MCE Finance was in complionce with
adach of the financial restrictions and requiremeants.

In relation to oforssaid parographs, there are provisions undar the
indenture of the 2010 Senior Notes that imit or prohibit cerdain payments
of dividends and other distributions by MCE Finonce and its respective
rastricted subsidiarias to the Company or persans who are not MCE
Finance or members of MCE Finance respactive restricted subsidiaries,
subject to certain exceptions ond conditions. As of December 31, 2012
and 2011, the net assels of MCE Finance and s respactiva mastricted
subsicdianas of approximataly $2.500,000 and $2.018,000, respactivaly
ware rastricted from baing distributed under the terms of the 2010 Sanior
MNotes.
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2010 Senlor Notes (conlinued)

MCE Finonce has entered into o registration rights agreement whereby
MCE Finance has registarad the notes to be Bssed in an exchangs
offar for the 2010 Sanior Notas with the LS, Sscurities and Exchange
Commission in August 2010 ond with further omendments filed in
Octobar and November 2010 in connection with the exchange offar
which registration statement was affactive on November 12, 2010,

On October 30, 2012 MCE Finance received unrevoked consents
from the holders (the "Holders™) of the requisite aggregate principal
amount of the 2010 Senior MNotes necessary to opprove cerfain
proposed amendmants to, among other things, allow MCE Financa
to (i) make an additional $400,000 of rastrictad payments to fund the
Studic City project and (i) have the flexibility to fronsoct with, and use
any revanuas of other payments generated o derved from, certain
projects and to provide for certain other technical ameandmants (the
“Proposed Amendments) to the indenture governing the 2010 Sanior
Notes and executed a supplemental indenture to give effect to the
Proposed Amendments. The Group copitalzed the poyments to the
agent and Holder: who had valldly deliverad a consent to the Proposed
Ameandmeants totaling 514,795 as defemrad financing costs and expensed
the third pory fee of $3.277 as a result of the oforementioned debt
mcdification.
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On January 28, 2012 MCE Finrance made a tender offer to purchase the
2010 Senior Motes, subject to certain conditions. On February 26, 2013,
£599,135 aggregate principal amouwnt of the 2010 Senior Notes were
tendarad and on Febnueary 27, 2013, MCE Financea alectad to redeam tha
remaining sutstanding aggregate principal amaunt of the 2010 Sanior
Motes of $8585 on March 28, 2013, Further details of the tender offer and
earty redemption of the 2010 Senior Notes s includead in Note 28(d).

RMB Bonds

On May @ 2011, the Compony issued aond listed the RMB Bonds of
RMB2.300.000.000 (squivalent to $353.278 based on sxchange rate
on transaction date) on 5GX-ST The RMEB Bonds were priced ot par
Thies RMB Bonds are dirsct, genaral unconditional unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Company, which will ot all times mank
equally without any preference or pricrty among themsebres and
at least aqually with all of the Company’s other present and future
unsecuraed ond unsubordinated obligations, save for such abligations
Qs may be preferred by provisions of low that are both mandatory and
of genseral opplication. The RMB Bonds mature on May 9. 2013 and tha
intarast on the RMB Bonds B accruad ot a rate of 3.75% pear annum and
is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 9 and November 9 of aach
year, commencing on November & 2011,



11. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

RMB Bonds (continued)

At amy fime after Moy 9. 2012, the Cempany may redeem in whole,
but not in par, the RME Bonds at the principal amount, together with
accrued interest. The Company may cbo redeem the RMB Bonds in
whole, but not in part, at the principal amount together with accnued
intarast in the avent that: ) a5 a result of any change in the lows of the
Cayman Islands or any political subdivision or any authority thareof or
tharain having powser to tax, or any change in the application of official
intarpratation of such law or regulation after My ¢, 2011, the Company
satisfies the trustes that the Company has or will be required to pay
acditional amcunts in respect of the RMB Bonds and such obligation
cannot ba avoided by taking reasonabla macsures available to the
Compary: i} f ot any time the gaming authority of any jurisdiction
in which the Compaony ond its subsidiones conducts or proposes fo
conduct gaming requires that a person who B a holder or banaficial
ownar of the RMB Bonds be licensed, qualified or found suitable under
applicable gaming kws and such helder or beneficial owner o the
case may be, fails to apply or becomes licensed or qualified within the
required peried or B found ursuitable; or i) f immediately before giving
such notice, ot least 90% In principal amournt of the RMB Bonds arginally
Bsued, including any furthar bonds issusd prior to the time of tha notica,
has alrecdy been praviously redeamed, or purchased and cancelled.

Tha indenture governing the RMEB Bonds confains certain negative
pledge and finaoncial covenants, providing that the Company shall
not create or permit to subsist any security interest upon the whole
or any part of the Company’s prasant or future undaraking, ossats or
ravenues to secure any relavant indsblednass or guarantes of relevant
indebtedness without: ()} ot the same time or pricr thereto sscuring
the RMB Bonds equally and ratecbly themewith to the sotisfaction of
the tnstes under the RMEB Bonds or (if) providing such ofhwer sscurty
for the RMB Bonds s the trustes may in its absolute discretion consider
te be not materially less beneficial to the interests of the holders of
the RME Bonds or as may be approved by an extracrdingry resclution
of bondholders. In addition, the Company i also required te comply
with cartain financial covenants, including maintaining a specified
consolidated tangible net worth not to be less than $1.000.000 and a
maimurm keverage ratio not to exceed 2.50:1.00.

Tha Company capitalized the underwriting fee and related Bsuance
costs in ralation to the RMB Bonds of %6619 os defamed financing
costs. Manogement beliaves the Company was in compliance with all
covanants of the RMB Boncs as of Dacamber 31, 20012,

On March 11, 2013, the Company has complated the early redemption
of the RMB Bonds in full in aggregate principal amount together with
accruad interast. Furthaer information on the redemption is included in
MNate 28(h).
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Deposit-Linked Loan

On May 20, 2011, the Company entered into the Deposit-Linked Loan
with a lander in an amount of HKS2 748,500,000 {equivalant to $353.278
based on exchange rate on transaction date), which was secured by
a deposit in an amount of RMB2 300,000,000 (equivalert to 5353.278
bosed on exchange rate on transaction date) from the proceeds of
the RMEB Bonds as described above. The Deposit-linked Loan matures
on May 20, 2013 o, if earer, ot any time with 30 days’ prior notice
givan to the lendar the Company may prepay the whole or any part
of not less than HKSS00.000,000 (equivalent to $64.267) of the Deposit-
Linked Loon cutstonding. The Deposit-Unked Loon beors intarast ot o
rate of 288% par annum and iz payable sami-annueally in arrears on
Moy 8 and Movember 8 of each yadr commencing on Movember 8,
2011, On the some date, the Company enterad inte two RME forward
axchange rate contracts in an aggregate amount of RMBS2,325,000
(approvimataly $8,000) for settlemant of the RME Bonds interast payable
on November 9, 2011 at a rate of RMB1:HKS1.2096 and May 9. 2012 at o
rate of RMB1:HKS1.2187. During the year ended Decamber 31, 2011, ona
of the RME forward contracts was settlied on November 9, 2011 and o
of Dacambar 31, 2011, tha fair value of the remaining forward exchangea
rate contract of $7 was recorded os forward axchange rate contract
recaivable and includad in prepaid expenses and other current assets,

Maloo Crown Entertanment Umited  Annual Report 2012

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company entered
into another RME forward exchange rate contract of RMBR25,845.867
{approximately 54,000) for settlermment of the RMB Bonds interest payable
on Novembar § 2012 at a rate of RMB1:HKS.2201. During the year
endad Dacember 31, 2012 the Company saftled the outstanding
forward exchaonge rate contracts and the gain on the forward
exchange rate contracts of §138 was reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive losses to interast axpensas.

The Company copitalzed the undarwriting fee and related Bsuonce
costs in relation to the Deposit-Linked Loan of $800 as defared financing
costs, As of December 31, 2012, the RME Bonds proceeds held oy a
sacurity depaosit of RMB2.300,000,000 (aquivalent to $347, 645}, requirad
to be set aside for the durdtion of this debt was recorded as cument
portion of restricted cash in the comsolidoted bolonce sheets. As of
Dacarmber 31, 2011, the securty deposit of RMB2.300,000,000 (equiyalent
to $364,807) was racorded as non-current portion of rastricted cash in
the consolidated bolance sheets.

On March 4, 2003, the Company has prepald the Deposit-Linked Loan
in full in aggregate principal amount fogether with accued intersst
and the sscurity deaposit has been rslaased. Further infarmation on the
prepayment & included in Note 28(g).
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Alrcraft Term Loan

On June 25 2012 MCE Trargportation Limited MCE Transportation”,
formerly known as MCE Designs and Brands Limited), an indirect whaolly-
ownad subsidiary of the Company. entared into a 542000 term lkoan
focility agresmant to parly firance the acquesition of an aircraft (the
“Alrcraft Term Lean™. Principal and interest repayments are payable
quartarly in amears commeancing September 27, 20012 until mahuity on
June 27, 20019, interest B calculated based on LIBOR plus a mangin of
2.80% per annum and the lban may ba prepald in whole of In part of
not lass than $1.000 and 10 days’” prior nofice given. The Alrcnaft Term
Loan is guarantesd by the Company and security includas a frst-pricrity
mortgage on the aircraft itsell, pladgse over the MCE Transportation
bank accounts; assignment of insurances (othar than third party liability
insurance); and an asignment of aiframe and engine waranfies. The
Aircraft Term Loan must be pregaid in full if any of the following events
cccurs: () a change of control; (i) the sale of all or substantially all of
tha componants of the aircroft; (i) the loss, domoage or dastruction of
tha entire or substantially the antire aircratt, Othar covenants include
lander's approval for amy capital expenditure not incured n the
crdinary course of business or any subsequent indebtednass excesding
$1,000 by MCE Transportation, As of December 31, 2012, the Alcraft Term
Loan kas been fully drawn down and utilzed with other funds of the
Group, to fund the purchase of the aircraft.

Studio City Nofes

On November 28, 20012 Studie City Finonce Umited (“Studic City
Finonce™, an indirect subsidiory of the Company which holds 50%
intarast) issued and listed the Studio City Notes of $825,000 on the SGX-
&1 The Studic City Notes were priced ot par. The Studie City Notes are
general obligations of Studic City Finance, secured by a first-pricrity

sacurity inferest in certain specific bank accounts incidental to the
Studic City Motas and a pledge of any intercompany keans from Studio
City Finance to or on bahalf of Studic City Investrnents Limited {"Studio
City Investments”, a wholy-owned direct subsidiary of Studic City
Finance and the immediate halding company of Studic City Company
Limited {"Studio City Company” or the “Studio City Borrower”, a whoalby-
owned indirect subsidiary of Studio City Finance)) or its subsidiaries
artared into subsaquent to the Bue date of the Studic City Notas, rank
aqually in fight of paymeant to all existing and futuse sanior indabtedness
of Studie City Finance and rank senicr in right of payment to any existing
and future subordinated indsbtedness of Studio City Finance, The Studio
City Notes are effectively subordinatad to all of Studic City Finance's
axisting and fulure secuwred Indebtadness to the extent of the value of
the property and assets securing such indebtadnass. All of the axisting
diract and indiract subsidiarias of Studic City Finance and any ofher
future restricted subsidiaries that provide guarantess of cerfain specified
indebtedness (nchluding the Studic City Project Facility os described
balow) (the “Studio City Notes Guarantors™) jointly severally and
unconditionally guarantes the Studic City Notes on a sendor bass (the
"Guarantees”). The Guarantees are general obligations of the Studic
City Notes Guarantors, rank equally in night of payment with all axisting
and future senior indebfedness of the Studic City Notes Guarantors and
rank sanicr in right of poyment to any existing and future subordinated
indebtadnass of the Studic City MNotes Guarantors. The Guananteas
are effectively subordinated to the Studic City Notes Guarantors’
obligatiors under the Studic City Project Facility and any future secured
indebtedness that s secured by property and assets of the Studic City
Motes Guarantors to the extant of the value of such propearty and assats,
Tha Studio City Notes mature on Decamber 1, 2020 and the infarast on
the Studic City Motes & accreed at o rate of 8.50% per annum and i
payable semi-annually in amears on June 1 and December 1 of each
yaar commencing on June 1, 2013,
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Studio City Notes (continued)

The net proceeds from the offering. after deducting the undenwriting
commisions and other expenses of approximately $13.200, wos
approdmately 5811.800. Studic City Finance will use the net proceeds
from the offering to fund the Studio City project and the related fess
and expenses. The net proceads from the offering have bean deposited
ina bank account of Studio City Finance (the "Escrow Account™), which
is restricted for use and will be released upon signing of the Studio
City Project Facility. Upon release from the Esciow Account, all tha nat
procesd: wil be deposited in o bank account of Studio City Finance
(the "Note Proceeds Account™) and will be available for payment of
construction and develspmeant costs and ofhar project costs of the
Studio City project with conditions and sequence for disbursamants in
accordance with an agreement (the "Mote Disbursement and Account
Agraameant”) as describad balow, except for a portion of nat proceads
amounting to $239.504 which reprasents the sum of interest expeacted
to accrue on the Studio City Notes through fo the 41-month anniversary
of thair issue date, which will be deposited in a bank account of Studio
Cliy Finance (tha “MNota Interast Resarve Account™), which ks restrictad for
use to pay future inferest paymeants until the opening date (s defined
in the Studio City Projact Facility, the " Cpening Date™) of the Studic City
projact. Concurent with tha submission of the fist utiization request
under the Studio City Project Facility, an omount equal to the sie-month
sum of interest due on the Studic City Motes of $35.063 will be released
from the Note Interast Reserve Account and be deposited in a bank
account (the “Note Dabt Service Reserve Account™) of Studio City
Company, the borcwer undsr the Studio City Projact Facility. and the
ramaining amount in the Note Interest Ressrve Account (ass an amount
aqual to the pro-roted porion of interast due on the next interast
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payment date) will be relecsed and be deposited in o bank account
of Studio City Company (the "Reveanus Account™). The security agent
of the Studic City Projact Facllity will have security over the Nota Dabt
Sarvice Reserve Account and the Revenue Account, As of December
31, 2012 all of the net preceeads of Studio City Notes were placed in tha
Escrow Account. The Group clkassified 12-month sum of interest due on
the Studio City Notes of 570,125 in the Escrow Account as cument portion
of restricted cash, while the remaining amount in the Escrow Account of
5741683 was clossified as non-cumrant portion of rastricted cash on tha
conselidated balance sheets. The Group coapitalzed the underwriting
fea and related Bsuance costs in relation to the Studic City Notes of
421,669 a5 defamad financing costs.

On November 26, 2012, Studic City Finance and Studio City Company
enterad inte a Mote Disbursament and Account Agreemeant with certain
banks and other parties to, among other things, establish the conditions
and sequence of funding of the Studio City project costs. The Studic City
projact costs will be financed in the following order:

+ the funding from the Company and the ulfimate noncontroling
shareholdar of Studic City Finance in an aggregate amount of
$825,000 will be used until it has been exhausted;

L] tharaaftar the proceads in tha Note Procsads Account will be used
until they hava baan axdhouwsted and

. thereafter the proceeds of the Studic City Project Facility, including
ary procaeds in any construction disbursamant accounts or other
accounts astablshad undar the Studio City Project Facllity, to tha
axtent established for such purpase under the Studic City Project
Facility, will be used until thay have baen axhaustad.



11. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studlo City Notes (continued)

The Studio City Notes will be subject to a special mandatary redermption
at a redemption price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amaunt
of the Studio City Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interast from the issue
date through the dote of redemption in the evant the Studio City Project
Facllty are not executed on or before March 31, 2003, The Studic City
Project Facility was axecuted on January 28, 2013,

The Studio City Notes will also be subject fo a special mandatory
redemption at o redemption price equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Studio City MNotes, plus acerued and unpaid
intarast from the last interest payment date through the date of
reciemption in the event that the funds are not released from the Mote
Proceeds Account prior to the date that & one year from the dote of
tha axecution of the Studio City Project Facllity due to the failure of the
conditions pracedeant (subject to certain exceptions) to first utilzation of
thea Studic City Project Facility to be satisfied or waived by such date.

At any time prior to December 1, 20015 Studic City Finance may redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Studie City Nobas,
with the net cash procesds of certain aquity offerings at a redemstion
price of 108.800% of the principal amount, ples accrued and unpaid
intarast and additional amounts, if any, fo the redemption date.

At any time prior to December 1, 2015, Studio City Finance may abko
redeem ol or part of the Studic City Notes at a redemption price equal
to 100% of tha prncipal amount plus the applicabla premium dascribad
in the related offering memorandurn plus accrued and unpald interast
and additisnal amaunts, if ary 1o the redamption date.

At any fime on or after December 1. 2015 2014 2017 and 2018 and
theraafter, Studic City Finance may redesem all or part of the Shudic City
Notes at the redemption prices of 106.375%, 104.250%. 102.125% and
100.000%, respactively, plus acerued and unpald intarast and additional
amounts, if any, to the redemption date.

In addition, subject to cerfain exceptions and as more fully described
in the related offering memorandum, Studic City Financa may redeam
the Studio City Motes in whale, but not in part, at o price equal to 100%
of the principal amount plus accrued interest and unpaid interast and
additional amounts, f any, to the date fixed by Studio City Finance for
rademption if Studic City Finance or any one of the Studic City Notes
Guarantors would bacome obligated to pay cartain additional amounts
o a result of certain changes in specified tax laws or cartain other
circumstances, Studic City Finonce moy abo redeem the Studic City
MNotes if the gaming authority of any jursdiction in which Studio City
Finance or any of its affiiates (including Melco Crown Macau) conducts
or proposes to conduct gaming requires holders or benaficial owners of
the Studic City Notes to be licensed, gualified or found suitable under
applicable gaming laws and such holdars or banaficial owners, as the
case may be, falls to apply o becoma licensed or qualified within the
tacuired time pariod or is found unsuitatyle.
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Studio City Notes (continued)

The indenfture governing the Studic City Motes containg cerfain
covanants that, subject to caertain axcaptions and condifions, limit tha
ability of Studic City Finance and its restrictad subsidiaries’ ability to,
among ofher things: () incur or guarantes additiconal indebtedness: (i)
make specified restricted payments: (i) ksue or sell capital stock: (iv)
sall assats, (V) craate lisns (vi) enter into agreaments that restrict tha
resticted subsidianas’ abllity to pay dividends, trarsfer assats or maka
intercompany loans: (vi) enter inte transactions with shiaraholkders o
affiictes: and (vii) effect a consolidation or marger. As of December 31,
2012, managemant balieves that Studio City Firance was In compliance
with aach of tha financial rastrictions and raquiremants.

In relation to doforesaid parographs. there are provisions under the
Iindanture of the Studio City Motes that limit or prohibit certain payments
of dividends and othar distributions by Studio City Finance and its
respactive restricted subsidiaries to the Comparny or persons who are
not Studic City Finance or members of Studio City Finance respective
restricted subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions and conditions.,
As of Decambar 31, 2012, the net asmsets of Studio City Finance and
its respactive restricted subsidiaries of opproximately §252.000 wers
restricted from being distributed under the terms of the Studic City Notes,
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Studie City Project Facilify

On October 19, 2012, the Company, Mew Cotai Investments, LLC ("Mew
Cotal Investments®, the indirect holding company of New Cotal, LLE,
tha noncontioling shareholder who owns a 40% interast in Studio City
International Holdings Limited ("Studic City Intemational”, an indirgct
subsidiany of the Company which holds 40% interast)) and the Studio City
Borower enterad infe o commitment letter (the “Commitment Letter™)
with certain lenders (the "Studio City Landers™) for senicr securaed credit
facilities (the “Studio City Project Facility™) in an aggregate amount of
51,400,000 aquivalant to fund the Studio City project. The Commitment
Latter sets out the terms and conditions on which the Studio City Lenders
ara wiling to arangs, manage the syndication of and undarwiite tha
Studic City Project Facility to be provided to the Studic City Bomower.
Thiesa tarms and conditions inchude the principal terms of the Studie City
Project Focility and conditions precedant to entering intoe the definitive
agreameant of the Studic City Project Focility.



11. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studlo City Project Facility (continued)

On Jonuary 28, 2013, the definitive agreement of the Studic City
Projact Fociity was executad with minor changes to tha tarms and
conditions sat out in the Commitmant Letter The Studio City Project
Focility was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars with an oggregate
amount of HKS10,855,880,000 (equivalent to $1,395,357) and consistad
of a HK$10,080,450,000 {equivalant to 51.295489) term loan facility
(thve “Shaecio City Termn Loan Facllity™) and a HKS775,420,000 (equivalant
to $99.668) revelving credit faciity (the “Studic City Revolving Credit
Focilty ™), The Studic City Term Loan Facility matures on the date which
B five yeors after the signing date of the definitive agreemeant of the
Studio City Project Facility (the “Signing Date ™) and is subjact to quarterly
amortization payments commencing on the earler of () the fist fiscal
quarter end dote faling not less than 45 months after the Signing Date
and () the end of the second full fiscal quarter after the Cpening
Date of the Studie City project. Amounts under the Studio City Term
Loan Focilty may be bomowsed from and offer the date that certain
conditions precedent are satisfiad until the date faling 18 months after
the Signing Daote. The Studic City Revolving Credit Facility matures on
thva date which B five yaars after the Signing Date and has ne intetim
amorization. The Studio City Revoling Credit Facility may be utiized
prior to the Cpening Date for project costs by way of issue of lettars of
cradit o a maximum of HKS387.710.000 (equivalent fo $49.83d) and
mery be bormowed in full on a revolving basis ofter the Opening Date.
Bonowings under the Studic City Project Facility bear intarsst ot HIBOR
plus a margin of 4.50% per annum until the last doy of the sscond full
fiscal quarter aftar the Opaning Datae, at which fima the intarast ate
shall bear interest at HIBOR plus a margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.50%

per annum o determined in accordance with the total leverage ratio
in respect of Studic City Investments, Studio City Company and ifs
subsidiaries (fogether the “Studic City Borrowing Group™),

The indabtedness under the Studio City Project Facility i guaranteed
by Studio City Investments and is subsidiaries (other than the Studio
City Bormowaer). Sacurity for the Studio City Projact Facllity includes o first
priority morgage over the land whare the Studic City is located, such
mortgage will also cover all prasent and any fubure buildings on, and
fixtures fo, the relevant lond: an assignment of any land use rights under
land concession agreameants, bases or equivalent; as waell o other
customary sacurty, The Studic City Project Focllity containg offirrmative,
nagativa and financial covenants customary to such financings.

Tha Shedic City Borrower & required to hedge not bess than 50% of the
outstanding Indebtadness under the Studio City Termn Loan Faclity by
wary of interest rate swap agreements, caps, collars or other agraements
reqsonably satisfactory to the Studio City Lenders to limit the impact of
increcsas in inferest ratas on ifs floating rate debt, for a period of not less
than three yaars.

Tha Studic City Borrower is obligated to pay a commitmeant fee quarterty
in amears on the undrawn amourt of the Studic City Project Facility
throughout the availability period, which starts from the Signing Date of
the dafinitive agreameant of the Studio City Project Facility.
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11. LONG-TERM DEET (CONTINUED)
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Studio City Project Facllity (continued)

In connection with the Studic City Project Focility Studic City
Interreationsal procured a completion guarantea, confingant aguity
undartaking or similar (with a liability cap of §225,000) granted in favor
of the security agert for the Shudio City Project Facility to. amongst
othar things, pay agreed project costs () asseciated with construction
of Studio City (i)} for which the agent has determined thera i no ofhar
avallabla funding. In support of such contingent equity commitrmant,
Studic City International has agreed to aither maintain lafters of cradit
(with a liakilty cap of $225.000) in faver of the security agent for the
Studic City Project Facllity of cash collataral of $225,000. Thase lethars
of credit or cash collataral are required to be maintained until the
construction completion date of the Studio City has ocoumed, certain
debt service reserve and accrual occounts have been funded to the
raquired balance and the financial covenants horve been complied
with.

Wsloo Crown Enbersainment Uimited
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Total interest on long-term debt consisted of the following:

Year Endad Decamber 31,

2002 2011 x010
Interast for City of Draams
Project Facility® 5 — § 1328% § 30587
Intarast for 2011 Cradit Facilities® 21,849 13,731 —
Intarest for 2010 Senicr Motes** 41,500 41,500 38,438
Amartization of discount in
connection with issuance of
2010 Senior Motes** 801 723 417
Interast for RMB Bonds® 136656 & 447 -_
Interast for Deposit-Linked Loan® 10,064 &,300 -
Intarast for Studio City Notas™ 5,844 - -
Intarast for Aircraft Tarm Loon® 705 — —
5 114429 5 1041070 §  7R012
Interast capitalzed (7.900) (3.157) {11,823)
5 106529 5 100,013 § 66189

Long-teirn debl repayable within fve years

Long i debl repayabbe Oftar fvd yoors

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Goup’s
average borowing rates were approximately 506%, 5.50% and 4.71% per
annum, respactivaly.



11. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled maturities of the long-term debt as of December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

Year ending December 31,
2013

2014

20015

2016

207

COwar 20179

The kong-tenm dabt are repayable as folows:

Within one yaar or on demand

More than one year, but not excesding
Tl years

More than two years, but not excesding
five years

More than five yaars™

§ 2,325,980

Lass: Amcunts due within one year
classified as curant liabilitias

5 2325980

Hotes

{1 Met of unamorfized issue discount for the 2010 Sensor Mobes of approsmately $6.033
ond $6.834 o1 of Decembee 31, 2012 ond 2001, respectivehy

(@ Meb of unamorized ke discount 1o the 2010 Seniol Moles of appicsdmataty $6.033 o8
ol Decamber 31, 2012

12. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Defemed rent Bakilifies

Retenticn payalles

Other depasits recelved

Payatdas for acquistion of asets and
liabilities (Mote 22003
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13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

144

Authoritative litarature provides a fair vales hisrarchy, which pricritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair valus into
three broad levek. The level in the hisrarchy within which the fair value
mammumsmant in iz antiraty falls is based upon tha lowast leval of input
thet is significant to the fair value measurement as follows:

«  Lewal 1 = inputs are bosed upon unadjusted quoted prices for
idantical instruments fraded in active markets

e Leval 2 — inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar
irctruments in active marksts, quoted prices for identical or similar
irstrumiants in markets that are not active and medal-bosed
valuation techniquas for which all significant assumptions are
gbsernvable in the market or con be comoborated by obsenable
market data for substantially the full termn of the assets or liakilities.

s Leval 3 — inputs are generally uncbservable and typically reflect
managament’s estimates of assumptions that markst porticipants
would use in pricing the asset or kabiity. The fair valses are
therefore determined using modelbosed techniques that include
option pricing modak, discourted cash flow models and similar
tachniques,
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The camying values of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
approximated fair valug and represented a level 1 measwrement
The camying values of long-term depesits and long-term receivables
approvimated fair wvale and reprasanted a leval 2 measurement. Tha
astimated fair valug of long-tarm dabt & of Decamber 31, 2012 and
2011, which included the 2010 Senior Notes, the RMB Bonds, the Studic
City Motes, the 2011 Credt Faciities, the Deposit-Linked Loan and
tha Aicraft Term Loan was approdmataly 53330599 and $2.371.718
respectively. Fair value was estimated using quoted market pricas and
represented a level 1 measurement for the 2010 Senior Motes, the RMB
Bonds and the Studio City Notes. Fair value for the 2011 Credit Facilities,
the Daposit-Linked Loan and the Alrcraft Term Loan approxdmeted the
canmying valuas s the instruments carred aither vanabls intarast rates or
the fixed interast rate approximated the market rate and represented a
leveal 2 mecsurement. Additionally. the camying values of kand use rights
poyable and payables for acquisition of assets and lablithes as disclosed
in Motes 10 and 12 approximated fair value as the instruments camiad
the fired interast rate approximated the market rate and represented a
level 2 mecsuremant,

As of Dacember 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any Ron-
financial assets or liabilitias that are recognized or disclosad at fair value
in the consolidated financial statements,

The Group's financial assets and liabilities recordad at far value have
been catagorized based upon the foir value in accordance with the
accounting standands.



13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following fair wvalse hierarchy table presents information about
tha Group's financial assets and liobiftiss measuwred ot fair value on a
recuEring basis as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Bucted
Prices In
Acfive  Signifcant
Marist fios Ottt Signdleant
Kenfical  QObsarvable  Unobsanvable
Astary inputy Inputs Teted Fair
(Laval 1) flaval 2 (Lewval 3 Walue
Fonward exchangs rafe
confract receivable
Dacembar 31, 2012 i — 3 = & - § -
Dacambar 31, 2011 § -3 i - § 7
infarast rote swop Sobdfies
Decambar 31, 2012 & — & - § - § =
Dacambar 31, 2011 § = & 33 5 =5 363

The fair vale of these interest rate swop ogreements and forword
axchange rate controct opproximated the amounts the Group would
pary if these contracts wera saftled ot the respective valuation dates. Fair
value & estimated based on a standard valation modal that projects
future cash flows and discounts those future cash flows o o present
value using market-based cbsarvable inputs such as interast rate yialds
and markat forward exchange ratas. Sinca significant obsenvable inputs
are wead in the valuation modal the interast rate swap arangemeants
and the forward exchange rate arangsmant represented a level 2
mecsurement in the foir value hierarchy.

14. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Pursuant to the Company's extracrdinary genaral meeting helkd on
Cctober & 2011, an increase in the outhorzed share copital from
2.500,000,000 ordinary sharas of o nominal or por value of USS0.01 each
te 7.300,000000 ordinary sharas of a nominal or par vales of US$0.01
sach was approved.

On Movernber 29, 2011, the Company bsued o total of 40.211.930
ardinary sharas to Melco and Crawn for sharaholders’ loan conversion as
disclosad in Mote 20(c).

In connaction with the Company’s restricted shares granted s disclosed
in Mote 14, nl. 310,575 and 1,254,920 ordinary shares ware vested and
iued during the years ended Decamber 31, 2012 2011 and 2010,
raspactivaly

Tha Comgany issued 4,958 293, 6920386 and 8,785,641 ordinary sharas
to itz depository bank for Bsuance to employeas and Directors upon
their future vesting of restricted shores and exercise of share options
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 respectivaly.
1,276,634, 941,648 and 43,737 of these ordinary shares have been ksued
te employvess and Directors upon vesting of rastricted shares and
2,966,955, 3835596 and 804,285 of these ordinary sharss hove bean
isued to employees and Directors upon exaercike of share opfions during
the years ended Decembar 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respactively. The
balance of 11,267,038, 10,552 328 and 8,409,184 ordinary shares confinue
to bae held by the Company for future issuance as of Decamber 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively:
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14.

15.

185

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

As of Decamber 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, the Company had
1,646,792, 257, 1,642.548, 674 and 1,597.248,925 ordinary sharas issued and
outstanding, respectively.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

The Company and cerain subsidiaries are exempt from tax in
the Cayman Blonds or Brifish Virgin klands ("BVI7), where they are
incorporated, however, the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
on profits from its activitias conductad in Hong Kong. Cartaln subsidiaries
incorparated or conducting businesses in Hong Kong, Macau, the United
States of America, the Philippines and other jurisdictions are subject to
Hong Kong Profifs Tax Macou Complamentarny Tax, income fax in the
Unitad States of Amarica, in the Philippinas and in other jurisdictions,
respactivaly, during the years endad December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010.

Pursuant to the approval notices Bued by Macou Govemmeant dated
Jure 7, 2007, Malee Crown Macau has been axempled from Macau
Complementary Tax on income genemated from gaming operations for
five years commaencing from 2007 to 2011 and will continue to benefit
fram this exemption for another five years from 2012 to 2016 pursuant to
the approval notices Bsuad by Macau Governmmant in Apl 2011,
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The Macau Govemment has granted fo Altina Hotel Limited (Altina
Hotal™) and Mekco Crown (COD) Hotels Limited ("Melce Crown (COD)
Hotek™) the decloration of utility purpose benefit in 2007 and 2011,
raspactivaly, pursuant fo which they are aentfitted fo a propery fax
haliday, for a period of 12 yaars, on any immovable proparty that they
own of have been granted for Altira Mocou, Hard Rock Hotel and Crown
Towers Hotel, Under such tax holiday, theay will also be allvwed o double
tha maximum rates applicable regarding depraciation and reintegration
for puposes of asesment of Macau Complementary Tax. The Group
has appled for the declargtion of ulility purpose benefit in respect
of Grand Hyatt Macau. The Mocau Govemment has also granted to
Altira Hotal a declaration of utility pumposaes benefit on specific vehiclas
purchesad, puisuant to which it 5 entitled to a vehicle tax holiday,
provided there is no change in we or disposal of those vehiclas within &
years from the date of purchase. The Macou Govemnment B considering
the grant of the same benafit on specific vehiclas purchasad to Crown
Towers Hotel Hard Rock Hotel and Grand Hyatt Macaw The grant of the
wahicles tax holiday is subject to the satisfaction by the Group of certain
critaria determinad by tha Macou Government.



15. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The provision for incame tax corsisted of;

Year Ended December 31,

202 201 2010

Income tax provision for

current year:

Macau Complementary Tax 23 % 145

Hong Keng Profits Tax 822 473

Profits tax in other urisdictions 181 &5
Sub-total 5 1,206 3 703
(Cwvan) under provision of income i

tax in prior years:

Maocou Complementarny Tax 3 3 {18)

Hong Keng Profits Tax 142 m

Profits tax in othar jursdictions (20 8
Sub-total 124 % an
Daterrad tax (credit) charge:

Macau Complementary Tax 277 5 166

Hong Kong Profits Tax (185 58

Profits tax in other jurisdictions [#4] 4

Sub-total (2.966) 3 228

Total income tax (cradit) expanse

A reconciiction of the income fax (credit) expensa to income (loss)
before income tax per the consclidated statements of operations is as
follows:

Yaar Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
§ 287208 § (R.005)

12% 12%

Incorme (loss) before income fax

Macau Complarmeantary Tax rate

Income tax expansa (cradit)
at Macau Complameantary
Tax rate

Etfect of different tax rates of
subsiciaries operating in other
Jurisdlictions

{Owver) under pravision
in prior years

Effect of income for which no
income tax axpense & payable

Effect of experse for
which no income tax bensefit
is racehable

Effact of tax holiday granted by
Macou Govemment

Change in valudtion dllswance

34,465 (1.153)

242 169

124 an

1213 7.868

(69.677)  (28,06%)
21.594 22374
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15. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
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Mocau Complementany Tax ond Hong Kong Profits Tax hove been
provided at 12% and 146.5% on the astimated taxable income aamed in
or derived from Macau and Hong Kong, respectively, during the years
ended December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, if applicable. Profits tax in
other jurisdictions for the years ended December 21, 20012, 2011 and
2010 weara provided mainly for the profits of the reprasantative offices
and branches set up by a subsidiary in the region wheare they operate.
No provision for income tax in the United States of America and in the
Philipgines for the years ended December 31, 2012 20171 and 2010 were
provided o the subsidiaries incurred tax losses.

Medco Crown Macau was granted a tax holiday from Macau
Complamantary Tax for 5 years on casing gaming profits by the Macau
Govarmmeant in 2007, In Apdl 2011, this tax holiday for Melco Crown
Mocau was extendad for an odditional 5 years through 2014, During
the yaars ended December 31. 2012, 2011 and 2010, Meko Crown
Mocau reported net income and had the Group bean required fo pay
such foxes, the Group's consolidoted net income attributable to the
Company for the yaars endad December 31, 2012 and 2011 would have
baan decraasad by $88491 and 349477, and basic and diuted net
income attributable to the Company per share would have reported
recuced income of $0.054 and $0.053 per share for the year ended
Dacambar 31, 2012 and $0.043 and $0.043 par shara for the yaar ended
Dacambar 31, 2011, raspeciivaly, and the Group’s consolidatad nat
loss attributable to the Comparny for the year endsd Decamber 31,
2010 would have bean increased by 528,069, and basic and diluted
net loss athibutable to the Compony per share would have reported
additional loss of 50.018 per share, Melco Crown Macau’s non-gaming
profits remain subject to the Macau Complemantary Tax and its casing
revanues remain subject to the Macou special gaming tax and ofher
levies in accordance with its gaming subconcession agraement,
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The effective tax ratas for the yaars ended Decembear 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 wewe negative rabes of 0.7% 0.6% and 9.6%, respectively. Such rates
ditfer from the statutory Macau Complementary Tax rate of 12% primarily
dus to the affect of changs in valuation allowanca tar tha years anded
Dacamber 31, 2012 2011 and 2010 and the affect of tax holiday granted
by the Macouw Govemnment o described in the preceding paragraphs
during the yaars ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The defared tax assets and Babilities as of December 31. 2012 and 2011
consisted of the following:

December 31,
2012 20N
Daferrad tax asets
Met operating loss camied forwards & 63022 5 60782
Depreciation and amaortzation 105 24
Defarmed deductible expanses 3,080 —
Sub-total § 66216 5 60806
Valuation allowance
Current $0(21.088) 5 (17.818)
Long-term (45.057) (42,9685)
Sub-tetal § (66111) § (80.782)
Total net defarred tox assets § 105 5 24
Defarad tax liabilities
Land usa rights § (64.497) 5 (58.552)
Intangible assets (5085) (508)
_Unrecized copital allowance | (1.3d8)  (<71)

Total net defered tax iabilifies 5 (66350) 5 (70.028)




15. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, valuation allowance of $86111
and $60.782 ware provided, respectively, as maonogement doss not
balieve that it b more likely thon not that these deferred tax assets will
ba realzed. As of Decambar 31, 2012, adusted operating fax loss carry
forwards, amounting to 5175451, §159.304 and $183.885 will expire in
2013 2014 and 2015, respectively. Adjusted operating tax loss camied
forwards of $142,678 has expired during the year ended Dacembear 31,
20012

Defenad tax, wheare applicable, is providad under tha liability method ot
the snacted statutory income tax rate of the respective tax jurkdictions,
applicabls to the respactive financial years, on the diferance batween
tha consolidated financial statamants carrying amounts and incomes fax
base of assets and liabilitiss.

Aggregate undistributed eamings of the Company’s foreign subsidianas
are available for distribution te the Company of cpprodmately
£1.150,000 of December 31, 2012 are corsidered to be indefinitaly
rairwasted. Accordingly, no provision has been mads for the dividend
withholding taxes that would be payable upon the distibution of those
amourts to the Compary. If those aarnings were fo be distributed or
they were determinad to be no longer permanantly rainvested, the
Company would have to record a deferred income tax lability in
regpect of those undistributed eamings of approximataly $138,000.

An evaluation of the tax positions for recognition was conductad by
the Group by determining if the waight of available evidence indicates
it B more likely than not that the positions will be sustained on oudit,
including resolution of rakated appeals or litigation processas, if any.
Uncertain tax benefits associated with the tax positions were madsured
based solely on the technical merits of being sustained on examinations,
The Group concluded that there wos no significont uncertain tax
position requiring recognition in the consolidated finrancial staternents
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and there is no
matarial unsecognized tax benefit which weould fovourably aoffect the
affactive income tax rate in future perods. As of Decembear 31, 2012
and 2011, there ware no interast and penalties rekoted to uncertain tox
positions recognized in the consolidated financial stcterments. The Group
doas not anticipate any significant increases or decreases to its liability
for unrecognized tax benefit within the next twebre months.

Tha income fax returns of the Company and its subsidiaries ramain opan
and subject to axamingtion by the tax authorities of Hong Kong, Mocow
the United States of Amarica, the Philippines and ofher jurisdictions until
the statute of limitations axpire in each comesponding jursdiction. The
statuta of limitations in Hong Kong, Macaw, the United Statas of America
and the Philippings are & years, 5 years, 3 yaars and 3 years, raspactively.
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16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

150

2006 Share Incenfive Plan

The Group adopted o share incentive plan in 2006 ("2006 Share
Incantiva Plan™) to attract and ratain the bast avaidable pamsonnel for
positions of substantial responsibility, te provide additional incentives
to employess, Directors and consuttants and to promote the success
of its business. Undler the 2006 Share Incentive Plon the Group may
grant either cptions to purchase the Company's ordinary sharas or
restricted shares (Mota: The restricted shares, as named in respective
grant decuments, are accounted for as noanvested sharas). The plan
adminitrator would determine the exercise price of an option and set
forth the price in tha award agreement, The exercke price may be a
fixed or variabls price related to tha fair market valus of the Company's
ardinary shares. If the Group grants an incentive share option to an
amployes who, at the time of that grant, owns shares representing more
than 10% of the voting power of all ckeses of the Company’s share
capital the axerciss price cannot be less than 110% of the fair market
vae of the Compary’s ordinary shares on the date of that grant,
The term of an award shall not exceead 10 years from the date of the
grant. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
pursuarnt to all awards undar the 2006 Share Incentive Plan (Including
shares issuable upon exercies of options) is 100,000,000 over 10 years,
The new share incentive plan (2011 Share Incentive Flan™) as dascribed
balow waos affective immediately affer the listing of the Company's
ardinary sharas on the Main Board of HKSE on December 7, 2011 and ne
further cwards may be grarted under the 2004 Share Incentive Plan on
or after such date as all subsequent awards will be ksued under the 2011
Shara Incerntive Plan. Accordingly. no share option and rasirictad shara
was granted under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the year ended
Dacarmbar 31,2012,
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Share Opfions

The Group granted erdinary share options to certain personnal under
the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the yvears ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 with the exercise price determined at the closing price of
tha date of grant. These ordinary share options bacama exercisable ovear
different vesting periods ranging from immediately vested on date of
grant to four years with differant westing scale. The ordinary share options
granted exzire 10 years after the date of grant, except for options
granted in the exchange program as dascribad below which have
exercise pariod ranging from 7.7 to 8.3 years,

During the year endad Decamber 31, 2009, the Board of Directors
of the Company approved a proposal to alow for a one-time share
option axchange program, dasigned to provide aeligible employess an
opportunity to exchange certain cutstanding undenwater share options
for a lesser amount of new share opflions fo be gronted with lower
axarcize prices. Share options eligible for exchange weare those that wearne
granted on or prior te April 11, 2008 under the 2006 Share Incantive Plan.
A total of approvimately 5.4 million eligible share options were tenderad
by employees. representing 4% of the fotal share optiors aligible for
axchange. The Group granted an aggregate of approximataly 3.4
million new share cptiors in exchange for the sligible share options
sumendarad, The exarcise price of the new share optiors was $1.43,
which was the clesing price of the Compaoany’'s ordinary share on the
grant date. No incremental shara eption expense was recognized for tha
axchange bacause tha fair value of the rew options, using Black-Scholas
valuation modal, was approximately aqual to the fair value of the
sumendered options they replaced, The significant assumptions wed fo
datarming the fair value of the new options includes expacted dividand
of nil expectad stock price volatilty of 87 20%, rik-free interast rate of
2.11% and expected average life of 5.6 years.



16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED) A summary of share cptions activity under the 2006 Share Incentive
Flan as of December 31, 2012, and changas during the yeors ended

2006 Share Incentive Plan (continued) December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010 are presented below:
Share Options (continued) Weighted-  Waighted-
The Group wes the Black-Scholes valuation modal to determing the Avercge Avarogs
astimated fair value for each option grant issusd, with highly subjective Mumibosr Bxgrcise  Ramoining  Aggragote
assumptions, changes In which could materially offect the estimated ofshore Pricaper  Confrachual Intrinsic
falr value. Expected volatiity is based on the historical volatlity of a : Dpficns snare Term Vg
paar group of publicly fraded companias. Expacted tam is based upon mmm'rf arl .
the vesting term of the historical of expacted tarm of publicly traded ﬁm Ll zig:iﬁi : Iﬁ
companies. The risk-free interest rate used for each period presented is Evarcisad (B14285) § 7
based on the United States of Amarica Trecsury yield curve ot the time Forfattad G128 § a7
of grant for the pariod equal to the axpactad term. Bxpiad {181,578) § 448
Quistanding af

The fair value per option under the 20046 Share Incentive Plan was Decamba: 31, 2010 M455.493 % 122
astimerted at the date of grant wing the following weighted-cverage Gronfed 5150048 & 282
assumptions: Exancesd (3859 § 108

Forfaitad (T83429) 5 182

Expirad (68.950) § 440

CQutstanding at

Expactad dividand yiald Dacembar 31, 2011 0.96.882 5 156
Expactad stock price volatility !

Risk-fres intarest rate
Expected average life of options (years)
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16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

152

2006 Share Incenfive Plan (confinued)

Shoare Options (continued)
A sumimary of shara options vested and expected to vast undar the 2008
Share Incentive Plan ot Decembear 31, 2012 are presented below:

Wasted
Weighted-  Waighted-
Avanags Avengs
Murmbar Beercke  Remaining  Aggregate
of Share Price par  Confrochual Infringic:
Optiens Shana Tarm Vala
Rangs of anarcka pricas
gt share (31.01 —
55.08) (Nate) 1L.007.577 & 1.4d 815 § &5 827
Male: 3673501 shail options visted ond 6,510 shons RNons expered duding 1he yedar énced
Dacember 31, 2012
Expacted to West
Waightad-  Waigntad-
hvarage Averaga
Numbsar Twancisa Remaning  Agoregate
of Shara Pricepar  Contrachug Intrirgic
Qpticns Shom Tarm Value
Rangs of anarcia
pricas par share
(51,01 — §2562) S124177 % 1.98 13 5 18615
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The weighted-average fair value of share options granted under the
2006 Share Incentive Plan during the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 were 51.47 and 50.84, respectively. Share options of 2,964,955,
3,835,506 and 804285 wera exarcised and procesds amounted fo
53,632 53950 and 5938 ware recognized during the yoars ended
Dacember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The total intrinsic valuss
of shore options exercked for tha yvears ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 20010 were §13,022, 558 348 and 57467, respactively. As of Dacember
31, 2012, there was 33,927 unrecognized compensation costs related
to unvested share options under the 2006 3hare Incentive Plan and the
costs wate expected fo be recognized over a welghted-average pearod
of 1.14 yaars,

Restricted Shares

The Group has alse granted rastricted shares to certain parsonnel under
the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the years endad December 31,
2011 and 2010, Thesa restrictad shares have a vesting pericd ranging
from immediately vested on dote of grant to four years. The gront date
fair valua is detarmined with referance to the markat closing price of the
Caompary's ordinary share at the date of grant.



16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION {(CONTINUED)

2006 share Incentive Plan (confinued)

Restricted Shares (confinued)

A summary of the status of the 2006 Share Incantive Plan’s restricted
shares as of December 31, 2012, and changss during the years endad
Dacamber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are presanted Delow:

Walghtad-

Mumbear of Avarage
Rastricted  Grant Date
Shares  Fair Value
3246031 § 1.41

Univasted ot January 1, 2010

Sranted 1.463.151 1.38
Vested (1.298.657) 1.67
Forfeited (761.486) 1.27
Univested at December 31, 2010 and
Jaruary 1, 2001 2649069 & 1.3
Granted 2,508,383 2.52
Vested (1.252.223) 1.07
Forfaitad (302.716) 1.97
Unvasted ot December 31, 2011 and
January 1, 2012 4002503 § 2.22
Vastad (1,276,634) 2.49
Forfaitad (484,984) 1.6

Unvested ot December 31, 2012 2238885 § 2.19

The total fair values at date of grant of the rastricted shares undsr the

2006 share Incentiva Plan vestad during the years ended Decamber 31,
2012, 2011 ond 2010 were $3,181, $1.339 and $2.164, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012 there was 52,741 of unrecognized coempensation
costs related to rastricted shares under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan
and the casts are expectad to be recognized over a weighted-average
pericd of 1.21 years.

2011 Share Incentive Plan

The Group adopted the 2011 Share Incentive Plon to promote the
succass and enhance the value of the Company by linking personal
interests of the members of the Board smployess and consulttants
te those of the shamholders and by providing such individuals with
incantive for outstanding perormance to genarate suparior returrs to
the shareholdars which became effective on December 7, 2011, Under
the 2011 Share Incentive Plan, the Group may gront varicus share bosed
awands, including but not limited o, options to purchase the Company’s
ardinary shares, share appreciation rights, restrictad sharas, ate. The term
of such awards shall not exceed 10 yaars from the date of the grant, The
micximum aggregate numbar of shares which may be lssued pursuant
te all awards undar the 2011 Share Incentive Plan & 100,000,000 ever 10
yaars, which coukd be rased up to 10% of the Bsusd shars capital upon
sharaholdars” approval. There was no shara option or restricted share
granted duwring the year ended December 31, 2011. As of Decamber 31,
2002 and 2011, 96,854,814 and 100,000,000 shares remain cvailable for
the grant of varous share basad awards undar the 2011 Shame Incentive
Flan, respactivaly.
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16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED) A summary of share opfions octivity under the 2011 Share Incentive

2011 Share Incentive Plan (confinued)

Shore Options

The Group granted shara options to cartain parsonngl under the 2011
Share Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31, 2012 with
the exercise price detarmined at the closing price on the date of grant,
These share options became exercisable over a vasting pericd of thres
yaars. The share options granted axpire 10 years after the date of grant.

The roup uses the Block-Scholes valuation modsl to determine the
astimated fair vales for sach option grant Bsued, with highly subjective
assumptions, changas in which could matarially offect the astimated
fair walse, Expected volatiity is based on the historical voldtility of the
Company’s ADS trading on the NASDAR Global Select Market, Expected
term & based upon the vesting term or the historcal of expected term
of publicly fraded companias. The risk-free infarast rate used for sach
pared presented is bosed on the United States of Amenca Treasury vield
curve at the tima of grant for the period equal to the expected term.

The fair value per option under the 2011 Share Incantive Plan weas
astimated at the date of grant using the following weighted-avarags
assumptions for options gronted during the year ended December 31,
2012

Expacted dividend yiald -
Expacted stock price volkatiity 47.82%
Risk-free intarast rate 1.01%
Expected average life of optiors (years) 5.1
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Plon a5 of December 31, 2012, and changss during the year ended
Dacember 21, 2012 are presented below:

Waighted-  Waightec
Barags Avarage
Numbar Exarcis Ramainng  Aggragate
of Foe Priceper  Centrachal niringic
Cetions Thare Tarm Violue
Qubstending of
Jenuan 1, 2012 = % -
Branted 1934574 470
Foraited (33.438) 470
Quistending ot
Decambar 31, 2012 1501136 $ 470 9% § 1,743

As of Decamber 31, 2012 no share optiorns granted undar 2011 Share
Incentive Plan were vested and exercisable.

A summary of share options expected to vest under the 2011 Share
Incentive Plan at December 31, 2012 are presentad below:

Expactad o Vast

Waighitad- Walghtes

Bvaage Avaroge

Mumbes Exarciea Ramaining

of Shoea Pricepar  Contrachaal

Ctions Fharg Tarm

Ewnsicisa price par thors
(54.70) 1,901,136 $ 470 92 & 1743




16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION {CONTINUED)

2011 Share Incentive Plan (confinued)

Share Options (continued)

Tha waighted-average fair value of share optiors granted under tha
2011 Share Incantive Plan during the year endad December 31, 2012
was §2.44. As of December 31, 2012 there was $3.466 unrecognized
compensation costs reloted to urwasted share options under the 2011
Share Incentive Plan and the costs were expected to be recognized
oval a walghted-cvaraga parlod of 2.24 yaars.

Restricted Shares

The Group has alse granted restrictad shares to certain personnel under
tha 2011 Share Incentive Plan during the year ended Decembear 31, 2012,
Thesa rastricted sharas have a vasting period of three years. The grant
date fair valua is determinad with refaranca to the market clasing price
of the Company's ordinary share at the date of grant,

A summary of the status of the 2011 Share Incentive Plan’s restricted
shares as of Decambar 31, 2012, and changes during the year endad
Decembear 31, 2012 ars prassnted balow:

Waighted-

MNumber of Avarage
Restricted Grant Date
Sharas  Fair'Value

$

Urivested at January 1, 2012
Granted

Forfaitad

Unvested at December 31. 2012

1.170.612 443
(16,722) 4.43
1153890 § 443

No rastricted shares under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan were vested
during the year ended December 31, 2012, As of December 31, 2012,
there was 53811 of unrecognized compensation costs relafed fo
rastrictad sharas undar the 2011 Share Incentive Plan and the costs weare
expacted 1o be recognized over a weighted-average pericd of 2.24
YEars,

Tha impact of share options and restricted shares for the years ended

December 31, 20012 2011 and 2010 recognized in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

Yaar Ended December 31,

2012 201 2010
2006 share Incentive Plan
Share options § 4033 § 5570 § 4439
Restricted shares : 2,484 3054 1,606
Subtotal § 6457 §  Be2d 5 6045
2001 Share Incentive Plan
Share options 5 1,179 § — 5 -
Restricted shares 1,297 — -_—
Subtotal $ 2476 & - -
Total share-basad i
compansation expanses §  BO73 & A& 5 H045
Less: share-basad compensation
expansas capitalized in
construction in progress — — &
Share-basad compensation
recognized in ganeral and
administrative expensas 5 B973 & 8624 % 6,043
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17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

155

The Group provides defined contribution plans for its emplovess in
Macau, Hong Kong and cerain other jurisdictions.

Macau

Employeas employed by the Group in Macau are members of
govarnmant-managed Social Sacurity Fund Scheme (the "S5F Scheme™)
operated by the Macou Government and the Group i reqguired to pay
a monthly fixed contribution to the 55F Scheme to fund the banefits, Tha
only obligation of the Group with respact to the 55F Scheme opearated
by the Macau Govarnment is to make the required contributions under
the schems,

Hong Kong

Employees employed by the Group in Hong Kong are members of
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme™) operated
by the Group. With effect from June 1, 20012 the maximum monthly
contribution by both employes and employer i incraased from HKS1,000
to HES1,250. With this increase. for these employees, with excepfion of
axacutive officars, the Sroup’s and the employess’ confributions to the
MPF Scheme are ecach set ot 5% of the employess’ mlevant income
up to a maximurm of HK$1,250 per employes par month, For exscutive
officars, the employeas’ contributions to the MPF Schams ara sst at 5%
of the employees’ sakries up to o maximum of HKS1,.280 per employes
par menth. The Group’s contribution fo the MPF Scheme ks set of 10%
of the employeas’ base salanes. The axcess of contributions ovar the
Group’s mandatory portion, which i 5% of the employees’ salaries up
to a maedmunm of HKS1.280 per employes per month, are freated as the
Group's voluntary contribution and are vasted to axacutive officers at
10% per yaar with full vesting In 10 years. The Group’s contributions to
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18.

the MPF Scheme are fully and immedictely vested to the employaes
once they are paid. The MPF Scheme was established under trust with
the assets of the funds held separately from those of the Group by
independant trustaas.

Other Jurisdictions

The Group’s subsidicries in certain other jurisdiction operate a number of
dafined contribution schameas. Contributions to the defined contribution
schemes applicable to each year are mads ot a cartain percentage of
the employess’ payroll and met the minimum mandatony requirements.

Curing the years endad December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, the Group’s
cantributions into the defined contribution plans warne 55303, $5.414 and
55,070, raspectivaly,

DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS

Al subsidiaries incomporated in Macou are required to set aside a
minimum of 10% to 25% of the entity’s profit after tanation to the legal
rasarve unfil the balance of the legal reserve reaches a level eguivalent
to 25% to 50% of the entity’'s share capital in accordance with the
provisions of the Macau Commercial Coda. The legal resarve sats aside
an amount from the subsidiarias’ statemeants of oparations and i not
available for distibution to the shareholders of the subsidianes. The
appropration of legal reserve & recorded in the subsidiares” financial
statemants in the year in which it is approved by the board of directors
of the mlevant subsidiariss. As of Decembear 31, 2012 and 2011, the
balance of the reserve amounted to $31,201 and §3, respectiveby.



18. DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS (CONTINUED)

The City of Dreams Projact Facility contained restrictions on paymeant of
dividends by the Borowing Group which applied until the City of Dreams
Project Focility weas amended on June 30, 2011, There was a restriction on
paying dividends during the construction phase of the City of Dreams
project. Upon complation of the construction of the City of Craams, the
ralevant subsidiaries would then be able to pay dividends if they satisfiad
cartain financial tests and conditions.

The 2011 Credit Focilifies contain restrictions which apply on and from
June 30, 2011 on paying dividends to the Company of parsons who
ara not membears of the 2011 Bormowing Group. unlass cartain financial
tests and conditions are satisfied. Dividends may be paid from () excess
cash flow as defined in the 2011 Cradit Facllities generated by the 2011
Borowing Group subjact to complionce with the financial covanants
undlar the 20011 Cradit Facilities: or (i) cash held by the 2011 Bonowing
Group in an amount not excesding the aggregote cash and cash
equivalents Investrnents of the 2011 Borowing Group as ot June 30,
2011 subject to a certain amount of coash and cash aquivalents being
ratained for opearating pulposes and, in aither caze, there being no avent
of default continuing or likely 1o occur under the 2011 Credit Faciliies as
a result of making such payment,

Tha indenture governing the 2010 Saenicr Notas and the Studio City Notas
alse contain certain covenants that, subject to cerain excaptions and
conditions, restrict the payment of dividends for MCE Finance and Studic
City Finance, respectively and their respective restricted subsidiarias.

During the vears ended December 31, 20012 2011 and 2000, the
Cempany did not daclare or pay any cash dividends on tha ordinary
sharas. No dividends hove been proposad since the end of the reporting
peariad.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Capital Commiimenis
As of December 31, 20012, the Group had capital commitments
contracted for but not provided mainly for the construction and
acquisition of property and equipment for City of Dreams and
Studio City totaling $743, 243,

(b) Lease Commiftments and Other Arrangements

Opearating Leases — As a lessee

Tha Group lkases office space, Mocha Clubs sites and staff quartars
under nan-cancallable oparating leosse agreaments that axpire ot
warious dates through June 2022, Those lease agreaments provids
for petiodic rental increases based on both controctual agreed
incremental rates and on the general inflafion rate once agreed
by the Group and ity leesor and In some cases contingant rental
axpenses stated as a percantage of tumover During the years
anded December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, the Sroup incurred
rental expansss amounting to $18573 516944 anmd $15373,
respectivaly which corsisted of minimum rental axpenses of
$15,003, 516944 and $15.373 and contingent rental expeanses of
%3570, nil and nll, respactivaly.

Az of December 31, 2012, minimum lease payments under all non-
cancelable leases wera as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2013 § 9817
2014 5,031
2015 3,851
2016 2,686
2017 2,286
Over20V? 98

§ 33530
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19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

158

(b) Lease Commiimenis and Other Arrangemenis

(continued)

As grantor of operating and right to use arangemeant

The Group entered inte non-cancellable operating and right to
use agreements mainly for mall spaces in the City of Dreamns site
with variows retailers that expire at various dates through February
2022, Cartain of the opearating and right to we agreements nclude
minimurm base fee and operating fae with escalated contingant
fea clouses. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2000, the Group recebed contingent fees amounting to 5229068,
$18,053 and 512801, raspactivaly.

As of December 31, 2002 minimum future fees to be received undar
all non-cancellkable operating and right to use agreaments weare as

follows:

Year ending December 31,

2013 $ 12530
2014 11,816
2015 4,353
2016 1,551
2017 ~ 1S

$ 32413

The total minimwm future fees do not include the escalated
contingent fee clouseas.
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({c) Other Commitmenis

Goming subconcession

On Septembear 8 20046, the Macou Gowvemnment granted a
gaming subconcession to Meko Crown Macau to cperate the
gaming businass in Macou. Pursuant to the gaming subconcession
agreemant, Melco Crown Macaou has committed o the following:

B To pay the Macou Govammeant a fixed anmual premium of
53,744 (MOP30.000,000).

iy To pay the Macou Government a varable premium
depanding on the number and type of gaming tables and
gaming machines that the Group operates, The varable
pramiurm i coleulated as follows:

& $37 (MOP300.000) per year for each gaming table
(subject te a minimum of 100 tablas) reserved axclusively
for certain kind of games or to certain players:

. 19 (MOPI150.000Y per year for each gaming table
(subject to a minmum of 100 tables) not reserved
axchsively for certain kind of games or to certain ployers
and

. S001 (MOPLODDY per year for each elactical or
mechanical goming maching, inchuding the skot maching.



19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Other Commiiments (continued)

Gaming subconcession (continuec)

iy

vl

To pay the Macau Govarnmeant a sum of 1.6% of the grass
evanuas of the goming business operations on a meonthly
basis, that will be made avallable to a public foundation for
tha promaotion, development and study of social culiural,
aconomic, educational sclentific, ccademic and  charity
activities, to be determined by the Macau Govemment.

Te pay the Macou Government a sum of 2.4% of tha gross
revaruas of the gaming business operations on a monthly
basis, which will be used for urban development. tourist
promotion and the social security of Macau,

To pay special gaming tax to the Macou Sovernment of an
amount equal to 35% of the gross revenuss of the gaming
businass operations on a monthly basis,

Mako Crown Macou must malntain fwe bank guaranteas
ued by a specific bank with the Macou Govemment
o the beneficiory in o maximum amount of 5462395
{MOPS00.000,000) from 3eptembear B 2006 to September B
2011 and a maximum amount of $37.437 (MCPS00,000.000)
fram September 8 2011 until the 180th day after the
termination date of the goming subconcession,

As a rasult of the bonk guaranteeas given by the bank to the Macau
Fovarnment a3 disclosed in Mote 19(c)(vi above, a sum of 1.75%
of the guarartes amount will be payable by Melco Crown Mocau
quartarly to such bank.

Land concession confracts

The Company's subsidiories have entered info  concession
caontracts for the land on which our Altia Macou, City of Draams
and Studic City properties and development projects are located,
The fitle to the land lease right & obtained once the elated land
concesson contract ks publshed In the Macou official gazette.
The contracts have a term of 25 years, which & renawable for
further consacutive parods of 10 yaars, subject to paymeant of a
spacial contribution to be defined by the Mocou Govemment,
and imposa special developmeant condifions. The Company's land
helding subsidiaries are required to ) pay an upfront kand premiunm,
which is recognized as land use right in the consalidated balance
sheets and o nominal annual government land use fee, which
B recognized as general and administrative expense and may
be adpustad evary fiva years; and i) place a guarantes deposit
upon acceptance of the land lease tarms. which B subject to
adjustmants from tima to tima in line with the amounts poid as
annual kand wse fee, During the lond conceassion term, amandments
have been sought which haove or will result in revisions to the
devalopment conditions, land pramium and govemnment land use
feas.
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19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

160

({c) Other Commitments (confinued)

Land concession contracts (continued)

Altira Macau

In March 2004, the Macou Government gronted the Talpa Land
on which Altira Macou is locatad to Altira Developmeants Limited
(“Altira Developments™), on indirect subsidicry of the Company.
The land premium of approximataly §18.685 was fully paid in July
2006, a guarantes deposit of approximately $20 was paid upon
acceptance of the land lease tarms in 2006 and govermnmeant land
use feas of approximataly 5171 per annum ars payabls. As of
Decamber 31, 2012, the Group's total commitment for govemment
lond we fees for the Altiro Mocou site to be paid during the
rermcining temn of the land concession contract was $3.110.

In January 2013, Altirg Developments occepted on inifial terms for
the revision of the land kkase ogreament of the Taipa Land. further
detaik is disclosed In Mote 28(a).

City of Dreams

In August 2008, the Mocou Govemnment gronted the Cotai Land
on which City of Dreams i lecated to Melkce Crown (COD)
Devalopments Umited (Malco Crown (SO0) Developments™) and
Malco Crown Macauw The inftial land preamium & approximataly
$105.091. of which approximately $96.810 have been paid o of
Dacambar 31, 2012 and tha remaining amount of approximataly
48,281, accning with 5% interest per annum, is dus to be paid in
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February 201 3. A guarantee deposit of approximately 5424 was abo
paid upon acceptance of the lond lease ferms in February 2008,
Melco Crown (COD) Develepments applied for on amendment
to the land concaession contract in 2009 to increcss the fotal
davalopable gross floor area and the pumpose of such area. Tha
amendment required an additional land premium of approximataly
$32.118 which wos fully paid in March 2010, and revised
govamment kand use feas fo approximately $1,185 par annum. This
amendment process was completed on September 15 2010, As
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fotal outstanding balance of
the land premium was included in accrued axpenses and other
cumant liabiities in an amount of $8.281 and $15940, and in land
usa rights payabls in an amaount of nil and 58,281, respactively. As of
Decembar 31, 2012 the Group’s total commitment for govemment
land use fees for the City of Dreoms site to be poid during the
rarnaining term of the land concession controct was $24,384,

In February 2013, the Mocou Government issuad a lond grant
amendment proposal to Melce Crown (COD) Developmeants for the
Cotal Land in respect of its amendment request applied in 201108
March 2013, Melco Crown (COD) Developmeants and Melco Crown
Macau accapted the land grant amendment proposal, further
deatails of the omendment propeosal is included in Note 28(f).



19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Other Commiiments (continued)

Land conceassion contfracts (confinued)

Studio City

In Octobeer 2001, the Macau Government granted the Studico City
Land on which Studie City is located to Studic City Developrmeants.
In cccordance with the terms of the land concession contract,
a land premium of approximataly 52910 was paid in 2006,
a guarantes deposit of opprodimately 3105 wos mode and
govemment kand use feas of approximataly $105 per annurn e
payvable. Since 2005, tha land concassion contract has bean in the
process of being amendad.

In Nowernber 2006, the Macau Government bBsued o proposed
amandment which was accepted by Studio City Developmeants
that required on odditicnal lond premium of cpprodmately
570,581 and the government land use fees would be ravised
to approximotely 3326 per annum during the developrment
pariod of Studio City and approximately $527 per annurn after
the developmert pariod. An additional guarantes deposit of
approdmately $326 woas poid upon acceplance of the land
lease ferms and condifions proposed by the Maocau Government.
Approvimately $23.561 of the additional land pramium was paid in
2004 and the ramaining amount of approximately 547,020 would
be due in five biannual instalments, oconing with 5% interest per
anrum, with the first instalmant fo ba paid within six months from
the date the amended contract woulkd be published In e Mocou

official gette. The November 2006 proposed amendment was
not published and since that date other omendments have bean
reguested and are in progress with the Macou Sovernment,

On July 25, 2012, an amendment to the land conceassion contract
was publshed in the Mocou official gozette. This amendment
reflected an increcse in the gross floor area for construction and
tha extersion of the develspment parod to 72 months from the
date of publication of such amendment contract. The amendment
also revieed the lond premium to opproximately $17495d and
ravised the govemment lond we fees to approdmately $490
par annum during the development period of Studio City and
approximataly $1.131 par annum aftar the developmant paricd.
Studio City Developments caccepted the final amendment
proposal on June 13, 2002, poid an oddifional guorantes deposit
of approdmataly 5490 to the Macou Government on June 12, 2012
and an additional land pramium of approximately $35,314 on June
6, 2012, Aport from the lond premium of approximately $23,561
which was paid in 2004, the remaining amount of revised land
pramium of approdmataly $118,077 will be dus in five blannual
instalments, accruing with 5% interest per annum, with the first
instalment to be paid within six months from the above mentioned
date of publication of the amended contract in the Macou official
goratte.
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19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

162

(<)

(d)

Other Commitments (confinued)
Land concession contracts (confinued)

Studic City {continuad)

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group’s total outstanding
balance of tha land premium was included in accneed expansss
and other currant llabilties in an amount of $44.719 and nil
and in kand use right payable in an amourt of §71.358 and
547,020, respactively. As of December 31, 2012 the Group’s total
cormmitrant for government land use faes for the Studio City site to
be paid during the remaining tarm of tha land concassion contract
wiaes $12,033.

Guarantees

Except as disclossd in Mote 11 to the comsclidated financial
statements, the Group hos made the following  significont
guaranteas as of December 31, 2012

+  Maleo Crown Macau has Bued a promissory note (CLvianca ™)
of 568,635 (MOPSSD,000.000) to a bank in respact of bank
guarantees ssued to the Mocou Govemment as disclesed in
MNeote 19(c)(vi) o the consolidated fimancial statements.

* The Company has entered into two deeds of guarantes
with third paorties amounted to $35.000 to guarantes cerfain
payrmant obligations of the City of Dreams’ oparations.
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. Pursuant to the Commitment Letter for the Studio City Project
Facility entered infe on October 19, 2012 as disclosed in Note
11. the Comparny and the Studic City Borrower (on a joint and
saveral basis) and New Cotal Investments (on a several bass)
provided an indemnity on customary tarms to the Shedic City
Lendars and their affiliates, including in connection with any
breach of such Commitmant Letter and related documeants
{"Studio City Mandate Documents™), such as o breach of
waranty in respect of factual information and  financial
projections provided by or on behalf of the Company and
the Studio City Bonowar to the Studie City Lendars and their
affiiataz. Tha indemnity does not apply to the Company in
raspact of any breach by New Cotal Investmants of the Studic
City Mandate Documents (and vice versa). The Company's
obligations under the indemnity will cease to have effect upon
an amount of not less than $500.000 of aquity contributions
having been made and received by the Studic City Bomower
fram its shareholdars. On the same date, under the tarms of
an agreemant batween, among ofhers, the Company and
New Cotai Irvestrments to regulate how indemnity claims
under the Commitment Lettar are dealt with and funded. the
Company has agreed to indemnify Mew Cotai Investments
and the Studio City Bormower in respect of any act or omissicn
of the Company or its aoffiictes {(other than Studic City
Intarmational and its subsidiarias) rasulfing from such parson’s
grass nagligence, wilthul misconduct ar bad faith.

(e) Litigation

As of December 31, 2012 the Group s curently o party to certain
legal proceedings which relote to matters arsing out of the
aordinary coursa of its business. Management does not believe that
tha outcoma of such procesdings will ava a matarial effect on tha
Group's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.



20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the vears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Goup entared into the following significant related party transactions:

Year Ended December 31,
Related companies Mature of transactions 2012 2011 2010

Transactions with affiiated companiss that consfituted connected transactions under Chapter 144
of the Listing Rulss

Chin Son, Limited” Purchase of property and equipment - 1.756 5

Crown’s subsidiary Coreultancy fae expense
Management fee axpense
Office rental experse
Purchase of property and equipment
Service fee axpanse™
Software license fee axpeansa
Other sarvica faa incoma
Reoms and feod and baverage incomea

I
mzlglumg

Lsboa Holdings Limted™ Office rental exparse

3
g
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Yaar Ended Dacembar 31,
Ralatad companies Meture of transactions 2012 2011 2010

Transactions with afficted companies thot constifuted connected fransactions under Chapter 144
af the Listing Rules fcontinued)

Malco’'s subsidiaries and its associated companias Advertising and promotional expanses 5 5 5 9% —
Consultancy fae axpense 453 509 570
Managaemeant fas axpanss 14 14 14
Office rental expanss 586 533 533

Oparating and office supplies expensas 32 &8 160

Purchase of property and eguipment 1.47¢ 184 1.287
Repairs and maintenance expenses - = 234
Service fea expense™ 6dé 502 524
Other service fes income 345 307 254
Rooms and food and beverags incoms 161 221 13
Mealco Crown Entertainmeant Charity Association
{"MCE Charity Association™)™ Donation expense - 120 -
Shun Tak Heldings Limited and its subsidiaries
{refered to as"Shun Tak Group™y" Office rental expense 138 124 212
Operating and office supplies axpensas 20 20 18
Purchase of property and eguipment — L] —
Repairs and maintanance expenses 3 - -
Traveling expense™ ® 2976 2,704 2780
Rooms and food and bevercge income 77 445 &d
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {CONTINUED)

Year Ended Decamber 31,

Related companias Meature of trarsactions 20012 2011 2010
Transachions with affifated companies that constituted connected ransactions under Chapter 144
of the Listing Rulss {continued)
Sky Shuttle Helicopters Limited (" Sky Shuttls™) " Traveling expense 2008 % 1,433
Sociadads de Jogos de Macou 5.4 (CSIM™Y Offica rantal axpanse - 158
Travaling expanse copitalzed in construction
in progress™ 2 -
Travaling expanse recognized as expeansa™ 482 -
Sociedade de Tursmo e Diversdes de Macou, 5.A, and
its subsidliaries (the "STDM Sroup )™ Advertizing and promational expenses 1né 75
Ofice rantal axparss BO7 269
Sarvice fee axpanse 13 -
Travaling expanse copitalzed in construction
in progress™ — 3
Traveling expense recognized as expeanse™ ns 792
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Yaar Ended Decaembar 31,
Ralatad companies Meture of fransactions 2012 2011 2010

Transactions with afficted companies thot did not constitute conneched hansactions under Chapter 144
af the Listing Rules

MGM Grand Paradise Limited™ Operating and office supplies expenses ) — H — % 3
Transactions with shareholders that constifuted connected fransactions under Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules

Crown Consultancy fas capitalzad in
defared financing costs
Interast expense
Other service fes income
Rooms and food and bevercge income

1 B

Sl

Makco Devalopmeant costs 3,000 — -
Irterast axpeansa — 174 156
Other service feo income — = 23
Rooms and food and beverage income — 15 39
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {CONTINUED)

Mates

L]

@}

&

(4

]

&)

Companies in which o relalive/relatives of M, Lawrencs You Lung Ho, the Company’s
Chiat BExecutve Offcen hathavwe benefcia interests.

An meciobion of which certain sibsdicries of the Company ane direaion.

The negalive omount inchadng reversal of over-accrud of related expense during the
Yoo,

The amounts mainly represent the Company”™s iemburssment o Melco's subsciary for
sevice fees incumed on Hs Behaf for rentol. office odmirisiraion. kavel ond securty
coveenge for he opesation of fe offce of he Compony s Chief Execulive Cfficet

Ticmwdlitg xpanshs inchedng fory and hotel OCComMmodalion services Wwithin Hong
Hong and Maco.

The konsactlion comsfituled contiuing connected ronsaction which wos mbject
o pdrling, announcement and annudal rwiee. Bul exemp! Bom independent
Srarahokden’ Goproval ieauinktiinls undes Chapter 144 34 of the Lising Rulés.

(a) Amounis Due From Affillated Companies

The cufstanding balkances arising from operating income received
of prapayment of operating expensas as of Decamber 31, 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

December 31,
2002 am
Mealco's subsidiany and
its associated company ] 1.744
Shun Tok Group 2
5 1,845

The maximum amounts outstanding due from Melco's subsidiary
during the years ended Decembear 31, 2012 and 2011 were 31.740
and $1.841, respectively. The maxmem amounts  outstanding
due from Malco's associated company during the years ended
Dacamber 31, 2012 and 2011 were %4 in aach of those years.

The maximum amounts cutstanding due from Shun Tak Group
during the years ended Decamber 31, 2012 and 2011 were 5110
and $236. respectively.

The oulstanding balonces due from offiliofed companies as of

Dacamber 31, 2012 and 2011 as mentionad above are unsecurad,
nan-interast bearing and repayable on demand.
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

168

(b)

(<

Amounts Due To Affillated Companies
The outstanding bolonces arsing from operating expenses os of
Decambear 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Dacamber 31,

2012 2011
Crown's subsidiany % e 5 18
Malco's subsiciarnias and

its associated company 369 179

MCE Charity Association g 120
Shun Tak Group 283 304
M bl 13
Sky Shuttle 159 anz
STOM Group £5 a1

s 549 5 1.137

The outstanding balances dus to afflicted companiss as of
Dacamber 31, 2012 and 2011 s menticned above are unsecured,
non-interest bearing ond repoyable on demand.

Loans From Shareholders

Melco and Crown provided leans fo the Company mainly for
working capital purposes, for the acquisition of the Altira Macau
and the City of Dreams sites and for construction of Altina Macau
and City of Dreams. The maximum amourt of cutstanding loan
balances dus to Melco and Crown during the year ended
Decamber 31, 2011 was HK$578,577.752 (equivalent to §74.367) and
HE$501,157.031 (equivalant to $6d4.4148), respectivaly
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The loan provided by Melco was ursecured, intarest bearing ot
F-maenth HIBOR per annum, except for the pariod from May 14, 2008
te May 15 2009 which was interest bearing at 3-month HIBOR plus
1.5% pear annum, and would hove bean mepayable in May 2012:
and the loan provided by Crown was ursecurad, interast baaring ot
J-manth HIBOR per annum and would have bean repayabls in May
202

On November 18, 2011, Meleo and Crown agreed to convert their
raspective shareholder loans infe equity, They enferaed into a series
of agreameants, pursuant to which, on Movember 29, 2011:

. Malco transferrad by novation HKS180,000,000 {(squivalant
to §23134) of the outstanding lean balonces owed to
Mealco by the Company to Crown. On completion of the
novation, the Company was indebted to Melco in the sum of
HES$398.577,752 (equivalant to §51,.231) and Crown in the sum
of HE$501,157,031 (equivalent to 564,414),

«  FEach of Melco and Crown agreed te comvert outstanding
loan bakances owead by the Company to them into shares.
The Company issusd a total of 40,211,930 ordinary shares in
connaction with the sharehelder lean conversion, based on o
conversion price of $2.87 per share.

Subsequent to the shareholder loans corwersion inte equity as
manticned above, there were no loans from Melce ond Crown as
of Decambar 31, 2012 and 2011.



20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {CONTINUED)

(d) Amount Due From A Shareholder
The amount of 56 due from Melco as of December 31, 2011, arising
from operating income recaived was unsacured, non-nfenast
badring and repayable on damand.

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Tre Group i principally engaged in the gaming and hospitality
businass. The chiaf aparating decklon makar monitors its opearations and
evaluates aamings by reviewing the assets and operations of Mocha
Clubs, Alfira Macou, City of Dreams and Studio City, which was acguired
by the Group in July 2011, Taipa Square Coazing, the Philippines Projact
which is currantly in an aarly phase of davelopment and MCP which had
ne revanue and incurmed insignificant expensas during the year ended
Decamber 31, 2012, were included within Corporate and Othars, During
tha yaars ended Decerber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, all revenues wane
ganerated in Macaw,

Total Assefs
Dacember 31,
2012 201 2010
Macha Clubs 5§ 176830 % 174404 § 145173
Altira Macau 617,847 577,145 571.504

City of Dreams 3147322 3103458 3202492

Studio City 1,844.706 713.637 —
Comporate and Others 2160761 1,701,338 265,071
Total consolidated assets $7.947. 466 546,249,980 5 4,884,440
Capital Expenditures

Yaar Ended Decambear 31,

2012 201 2000
Mocha Clubs 5 5951 5 23888 5 13140
Altira Macau 7105 6,662 7.784
City of Dreams 90,416 39774 94,279
Studio City 115,385 713.253 —_
Corporate and Othars 56,141 2.387 4,457

Total capital expendituras 5 283998 5 785634 § 119.660

For the years ended Decamber 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, there was no
single customar that contributed maora than 10% of the total revenues.
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21. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) Yaar Ended December 31,
01z 5011 2010
The Group's segment information on its results of cperations for the MCN-OPERATING EXPEMSES
following years ks as follows: Inkarest income § 10958 3 4131 § 404
Irntarast axpansas, mat of
Yoar Endad Decsmbar 31, capitalized interest (09611) (115808 (93.367)
2007 201 2010 Reclassification of accumulated
NET REVENLES losses of interast rate swap
Mocha Clbs $ 43260 § 131934 § 111984 ”ﬁqmm“;?ﬂwrmm“ 50,
Altira Macau O67I0 1173930 850,758 C:ammmua gt = @ -
;:ir-,r of greans 293:!.:;3 2401383 163851 ol 3o Gim M %3 047 —
udic Cily — — o -
Amcrlization of defered
Corporate and Cthers 46,911 33,600 31,8% honcing cosh B o9  cu
Total nat tevaruiss S A078013 § 3830847 § 2641978 Lo commilmient fees {,324) (LATT) 1811
() & .
Aﬂﬂfﬁﬁm EBITDA™ W oos s o Foreign exchangs gain (loss), net 4,685 Q.77 3,563
: : Other incoma, net 115 3,884 1,074
Alfira Macau 1BAHT 246300 1334679 Lishing experses o @960 v
City of Draams 5719 54440 326,338 I — -
Snacko Clty ) (300 = Costs associated with
Total adjusted property EBMDA 95811 880915 469,848 S, Cor B e
OPEPTI?AING_ COGTS:ND EXPENSES - " Total non-oparating expenseas (111,365 (157,902} (102117
Djm?;z;h (#,og Ef'ﬁg; (184 INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX | 395,729 287,208 ©.605)
iy : INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) 2943 1,636 (920}
. T :} &O:&némm - W8AT2 208844 (10,525
sl s e S el Gl aaon (1952 HONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 18,531 5812 -
Depraciation and amortization (261449 (250224 (236.304) NET INCOME (LOSS)
Share-based compsnsation m (B.624) {6,043y ATTRELTABLE TO MELED
Property changes and others (1.025) el
 Comorate and Ol expensss B v CROWMENTERTAINMENT LIMIED 8 417208 5 204486 § (10525
Tohal operating costs ond expenses [BBT1S)  (4%E05)  (397.33
OPERATING INCOME § E7092 5 A5110 5 92812
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21. SEGMENT INFORMATION {CONTINUED)

Mabe

o}

“Aciprsted proped by ERITDAT is &ainings Deloie inlerest 10t Seps ecialion, amdilibation,
presCERning oot development cost shareboméd compensation, peoparty changes
ond othees, Coporate and Oihiers sepenses. and other non-opeeating income and
sxponms. The chiel cpenaling decion makes uses Adusied popstly EBITDA o
meowre the openating perdormance of Mocha Clubs. Alfra Mocou, City of Dieams
and $hedio City and to compare the cpeating pefaemance of s ropertios with those
of ity compatitons

22, ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

Acquisition of MCP

Cn December 7, 2012 the Company through s indirect
subsidiarias, MCE Philippines Investrmants and MCE  Invastments
Me.2 (collectively refered to as the "Buyers”), entered inte an
acquisition agresment (the “Acquisition Agreement™) with two
Independant third parties, Interpharma Holdings & Management
Comporation and Phama Industries Holdings Umited (collectively
mfarred to as the “Seling Shameholderns®™) subjact to certain
condifions pracedant, to acquire from the Selling Sharsholders
an aggregate of 93.06% of the sued share capital of MCP (the
“Proposed Acquistion™). Prior to completion of the Proposed
Acauisition on Decamber 19, 20012, MCP sold its two operating
subsidiaries, Intarphil Loboratories, Inc. and Loncashire Realty
Holding Comporation, to the Seling Shareholdars {or their affiliates)
under the deeds of assignment dated Dacember 7, 2012 batweaan
the Seling Sharehaolders (or their affiliates) and MCP (the “Subsidiary
Sale Agreements™), in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition
Agreemeant. The fotal consideration under the Acquisition
Agraement was PHP1,259,000,000 (equivalent fo $30,482) which

included () PHP200,000,000 (squivalent to $4574) to the Selling
Shareholders. and i} PHP1,059.000,000 {equivalent to $25808) on
direction of the Seling Shareholders. to MCP in setflermert of the
labilitias of tha Saling 3hareholdars {or their offiliates) undar the
Subsicliary Sale Agreements. On December 19, 2012, MCP retained
PHP1,059,000.000 (squivalent fo $25.808) which repressnted
the subsidiares’ sale omount upon completion of the Proposed
Acquisition

On December 19, 2012, the Group completed the acquisition
of 93.06% of the bsued share capital of MCP MCP did not have
any operation and revenue immediately before the acouisition
by the Group and the axcess paymeant of 55747 for acquisition
of assets and liabilties of MCP dees not have any measureable
future economic bensfits to the Group to qualify the recognition
requirernants of an asset ond wos  therefore expensed in
tha consclidated statements of operations and included in
development costs,
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22. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

172

The net assats acquirad in the transaction are as foliows:

Armaount
recognized
at the
date of
acquisition
MNet assets acquired:
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 27876
Prapaid expanses and other currant cssets 13
Accrued expansas and other current liabilities (1.094)
Moncontrolling interests (1.84600
MNat assats 5 24935
Excass paymeant on acqguisition of assats and liabilities
{including direct cost incurred) charged o
consolidated statements of operations ond included
in development costs 5747
§ 30,682
Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash paid 5 30482

(b) Acquisition of Studio City Group

On June 14, 2011, the Company antared inte a share purchass
agreement and through its indirect subsidiory MCE Cotai
Invastmeants Limited ("MCE Cotal”), fo occquire from an offiliate
of adun Holdings Limited (" aSun Holdings™), an independant third
party, o S0% acuity inferast in Studic City Intemational fogethar
with its direct and indirect subsidiaries, the “Studio City Group™),
which s the developer of Shedic City. The total consideration
undear the share purchase oagreement and rekited transaction
documeants & $360,000 which include ) a payment to an offiiate
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of e3un Holdings for its entire &0% intarest in, and a shareholder's
loan extendsd to, the Studic City Group at $200,000 and $40.000,
respactively; where $65000 and $155,000 were paid by the Group
in Juns 2011 and July 2011, raspectively, and i) a payment of
100,000 in cash in thrae instalments of $50,000, $25,000 and $25,000
over two years commencing upon the closing of the transaction
onJuby 27, 2011 to Mew Cotal Holdings, LLC (the direct sharsholder
of Mew Cotai, LLC), for transfering to the Studio City Group the
shares of other entities that own rights to develop the gaming
areas of Studic City The fist and second instalments of 550,000
and $25.000 wera sattled by the Group In August 2011 and July
2012, respactively; and the remaining instalment of $25,000 will be
payable in July 2013

On July 27, 2011, the Group completed the acguisition of 0%
aquity intarest In the Studic City Group. The Studic City Group
did not have any cperation and revenus immediataly before
the acquisition. The Group prncipally acquired a parcel of land
and reloted construction in progress through the acquisition of
the Studio City Group and this transaction was accounted for as
acquisition of assets and iabilities.



22. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. OPERATING INCOME

Operating incoma is amved at after charging:
(b) Acquisition of Studlo City Group (continued)
The net assets acquired in the tronsaction are as follows: Yaar Ended Decembar 31,

12 2011 2010

Amourit Auditer's remuneration % 06
recogned Loss on disposal of propearty and
at the agquipment A28 § 176
date of
acguisifion
Mat assats acquired.
Cath and cash equivalents 5 35818
Prapaid expenses and other current assets 72
Deposits 432
Land use right, mat 545,079
Construction in prograss 139201
Accrusd axpansas and othar current liabilities {10939
Land use right payable (47.020)
Deferred tax liabiltias (54,985)
Moncentoling interests (237,309
Net assets § 374349
Tetal consideration satsfied by
Cash paid $ 310,000
Payvablas for acguibsition of assets and liabilitias 45964
355964
Direct costs incured for acquisition of
assats and llkabilities 18,385
§ 374349
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24. DIRECTORS® EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid of payable to the Directons during the yaars ended Decembar 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Refirermnant
Bensfit
Directors’  Salaries and  Pedormance Scheme  Shars-based
Confribations ;

Co-chairman, sxecutive Director
Lawrence Yau Lung Ho™
Co-chairman, non-axecutive Director
Jarmes Douglas Packer
Mon-gxecutive Directors
John Peter Ben Wang
Clarence Yuk Man Chung
Wiliom Todd Misbet
Rowen Bruce Craigie
Independent non-executive Directors
Jarnes Andrew Charles Mackenzia
Thomas Jeffarson Wu
¥iu Wa Alec Tsui
Robert Wason Mactier
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24. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Refirernent
Banefit
Directors”  Solariesand  Performancs Scheme  Share-based
Fess  Other Banefits Boruses™  Confributions Compensation 2001 Total
Co-charman, executive Director
Lowrence Yau Lung Ho™ 5 - § 1.050 % 1.575 § 25 z02 % 4729
Co-charman, non-executive Director
James Douglas Packer - - - -_ - -
Non-executive Directors
John Pater Ban Wang - - - - a9 o)
Clarence Yuk Man Chung - - - - g .o
Williarn Todd Miskst - - — —_ — —_
Rewan Bruce Craigie - — - - - —
Independant non-execufive Directors
James Andrew Charles MacKenzie 115 - - —_ &5 180
Thomas Jefferson Wu 102 - - - 105 207
Yiu Wa Alec Tsu 1o - - - 105 218
Robert Wason Mactier BS — - — 105 191
3 413 § 1,050 % 1,675 % 2§ 2660 % 5,700
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24. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Refiramant
Benefit
Dirgctors’ Salaries and  Pedormance Scheme  Share-based
Feas  Other Bansfits Bonusas™™  Confributions  Compensation 2010 Total
Co-chairman, executive Director
Laowrence Yau Lung Ho™ 5 - % 1,050 % 2074 & K- 1004 35 4,130
Co-chairman, non-axecutive Director
James Douglas Packer - - - - - -_
MNon-axecutive Directons
John Pater Ban Wang - - - - 58 58
Clarenca Yuk Man Chung - - - - 58 58
Williarn Todd Misbwet — —_ — — — —
Rewven Bruce Craigie — — — — — —
Independent non-executive Directors
Jarnes Andrew Charles Mackenze B4 - - - 40 134
Thonnas Jeffarson Wu @5 - - - 81 176
Yiu Wa Alec Tsui 95 - - - a1 176
Robert Wason Mactier 74 — - — 81 155
§ 358 § 1,050 % 2074 § 23 1,403 § 4,847
Males
(U] Porlormancs bonuses are delermined with reference 16 the indviduals’ pedormencs, end crganizafiond and financkd pedamanss of the Company.

L] R, Lpwrencse You lung Ho i oo the Chief Execufive of the Company and his emcluments disclosed obove incuds thoss for services rendened by him o the Chisd Brecutive
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24. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 25. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

During the years endad December 31. 2012, 2011 and 2010. no {a) Emeoluments of five highest paid individuals
emcluments have been poid to the Directors as an inducement o For each of the three years ended December 31, 20012 2011 and
join or upon joining the Company, or as compensation for loss of 20010, the five highast paid individuals included ona Diractor of
office. Exceapt for Mt Rowen Bruce Craigie who waived emoluments the Company The emoluments of the remaining four highest paid
of $200 related to services provided in 2008 and 2009 during the year incdividuals, including a formar senicor executive in 2012, for the years
ended December 31, 2010, and Mr. Wiliam Todd Mebet who waived ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ara as follows:
amolurmeants of $120 related to sarvices provided in 2010 during the year
anded Decembar 31, 2011, no Director walved any amoluments during Yaar Ended Decambar 31,
the years endad Dacamber 31, 2012 2011 and 2010 2012 2001 20010
Basic salaries, housing
alicwonces, other
allowances and banefits |
in kind ] 2418 3 2369 5 292
Peformance bonusas (Mota) | 1.597 1.909 1.908
Refirernent benefit schame : '
contributions 164 149 4
Termination Benafit 1,573 - -
Share-based compensation 731 | 1.968 1,828

§ 7483 5 4385 §  &T42

Plides: Perfotmionos bonuses e delermingd with refeence o e incividuak’
pefornancs, and aiganizational and noncial pedarrmance of the Company.

During the yeors ended December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010, no
amclumants have bean paid to tha five highest paid individuals
as an inducemeant to join of upon joining the Company, of s
compensation for loss of office, except a termination benefit to
a former senier executive in 2012, Mo five highest paid individuals
waived any emoluments during the years ended December 31,
20012 2011 and 2010,
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25. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS {CONTINUED)

178

(a) Emolumenis of five highest paid individuals (continued)
Their emolurments weare within the following bards:

Numibar of Empicyess

HKS9,000,001 (approsimately $1,157) ta
HK§%,500,000 (copmimataly 51,221)
HK$9,500,001 (apprximately $1,221) ta
HK$10,000,000 (apeacximataly $1,285)
HKS 10,000,001 {aporxirmately §1,285) to
Hi$ 10,500,000 (oppacximately $1,350)
HKS10,5000001 (apomxdmataly $1,380) to
HKS1 1,000,000 (apoesimately §1,414)
HK$11,000,001 {oporawimataly §1,414) fo
HK§11,800,000 (apoaxdmataly $1,478)
HK513,0000001 {operadmataly $1,671) to
HK§13,500,000 (apoacaimately 51,735)
HKS 14,000,001 {apercomataly 31,799 to
Hi$ 14,500,000 {oppecsimataly §1,864)
HES14.500,001 {oporonimately 31,864) fo
HK§15,000,000 (opoaximataly §1,528)
HK$19.500,001 {aperoimately 52,504) fo
HIS 20,000,000 {oppaximataly $2.571)
HK521,0000001 {operdmataly $2,609) to
HRS21.500.000 {opomrimataly $2.768)

Yeor Ended Decembar 31,
2012 2011 2010
= 1 =
] 1 —
| o =
| = =
= 2 =
| = =
4 4 ]
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(b) Emolumenis of senior management
Other than the emcluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed in Note 24 and 25(a), the emolurmnents of the
sanior managemeant fell within tha following bands:

Mumbar of Employess

Yaar Encad Dacambar 31,
012 pll) 2010
HEE1, 500,001 (opproimataly $193) fo
HiC52,000,000 {oppaaimataly $257) = = 1
HK$2.500,001 (apenxmataly $321) to
HiC53,000,000 {oppeaimataly $354) 1 = -
HK§3,500,001 (aporoximately $450) to
Hi(54,000,000 {appaimataly $514) = = 1
HRE4, 000,001 {oproximataly $514) to
Hi§4,500,000 {appeaimately $578) - - 1
HKE4,500,001 (apoocwimataly $678) to
HiCS5,000, 000 {appeaxdimataly $643) - - 1
HK$5,000,001 (aperoximately $543) to
F$5,500,000 {appeuimately $T07) ] [ 2
HK55,500,001 {aporodimataly $707) to
Hi54,000,000 {appeimataly 57713 - - 1
HK37.000,001 (apeorairmataly $500) to
HICST 500,000 {appaxdimataly $564) - i -
F$8,500,001 (apercaimataly §1,093) to
HiC$9,000,000 {appenimataly §1,157) - [ -
HK5%,000,001 {approdmately 51,157) fo
H59.500,000 (appemately §1,221) 1 [ -
HK$9,500,001 (opproximately §1,221) to
HiC3 10,000,000 (opproximatedy §1,255) 1 - -
4 4 7




26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS
The cormsclidated financial statemeants are prepared in accordance
with U5 GAAR which differ in certain respects from IFRS. The significant
differences. that hove o moterial impoct on the Compony's
shareholdars” aquity and nat incoma (loss) aftributabla to the Company.
ralate principally to the accounting for the following:

(a)

(B)

Capitalization of amortization of land use rights as
property and equipment

Undar U5 GAAR the amartization of land use rights s recognized In
the consolidated statemeants of opearations aver the astimatad lease
term of the lkand on a straight-ine basis and & not copitalzed to the
construction in prograss during the property construction period,

Under IFRS, the oamortizzation of land we rights & generally
recognized in the consolidated stotements of operatiors owver
the astimated kease tarm of the kind on a straight-lree bosis, If the
amorization of land use rights & sxpenditure directly attributable
to bringing a property to working condition for its intended use. the
ralated amortzation & capitalzed 1o construction in progreass, until
such time as the construction works are completed,

Borrowing costs

Under U5 GAAR the amount of interest cost to be capitalzed is
datarmined by applying the copitaleation rate to the averoge
amcunt of accumulated expenditures for the assat during the
construction pericd. If the averoge occumukated expenditures
exceed the total amount of that bormowing, the capitalzation rate
fo ba applied to such axcass shall ba a weighted avaroge of tha
rates applicable to other borowings of the entity. Income eamed

on temporary investment of actual bomowings is not genarally
deducted from the amount of bomowing cests to be capitalized.

Undar IFRS, to the aextant that funds ae borowad specifically for the
pumpoese of obtaining a qualfying asset, tha antity shall detarming
the ameount of bomowing costs eligible for copitaleation o5 the
actual borrowing costs incurmed on thot bomowing during the
paricd less any invastment income on the temporary irvestment
of those borowings. If an entity borows funds genenally and uses
tham for the purzose of obtaining o qualifying asset, the entity shall
datermine the amount of borrowing costs aligible for captalzation
by applying o copialization rate to the axpenditures on theat
assat. The capitalzation rate shall ba the weighted averaga of the
bomowing costs applicable to tha bomowings of the antity that
are outstanding during the perod, other thon borowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

({c) Deferred income taxes

Under U5 GAAP deferred income fax k& mecognized for the
tampaorary diferances arging from an asset purchase that & not o
business combination. The tax effect of asset purchoses that are
not businass combinations in which the amount paid ditfers from
the tax basis of the asset shall not result in immediate statements
of opearations recognition. The diferences are considerad to be o
tamparary diferance and o deferred tax assat or liabllity should ba
recognized. The simultanaous-equations method shall be used to
calculate the asigned value of the asset and the related deferred
tax assals or dafared tax liobilities.
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26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

180

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred income taxes (confinued)

Under IFRS, deferred income tax i not recognized for temporary
diffarences resulting from the inftial recognition of an assat or
liability in a transaction that & not a businass combination and
do not affect accounting or taxable profit o of the transaction
date. Tharefore, the carrying value of the asset and lability s not
adjusted.

The value of lond we rights ccguired for Altira Mocouw, City of
Dreams and Shedio Clty are different under LS GAAP and IFRS
Accardingly, the amount of amortization of land use rights over the
astimated watul lves and the dafarmed income taxes are differant.

(d) Share-based compensalion

Undar US GAAP for awards that have gradad vasting faatures and
sarvice condition only, an antity has to choosa as an accounting
pelicy either to (1) recognize a charge on an accelarated basis to
raflact the vesting as it occurs (which is similar to the method under
IFRS) of {2y amortize the antire grant on a stralght=line basis over the
longest vesting pariod,

IFRS states that share-based compensation expeanse is recognized
on an accelerated method where an entfity recognizes
compansction cost over the raquisite service perod for each
saparately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-
substance, multiple awards, Each poddion b treated a5 0 separate
grant, as ecch porion has a different vasting parod.
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(@)

The Eroup has adopted the straight-line method in the preparation
of its consolidated financial statements, Compensation expense
recognized will be different under U5 GAAP and IFRS.

Deferred financing costs

Under LS GAAR feas poid to lenders and other third-party costs
incurmed in relation to o debt refinancing are distingushed and
accounted for differently depending on the classiication of such
dabt as modified or exdinguished in accordance with LS. GAAR
If the debt b extinguished. fees poid to lenders are included in
@ain or loss on exdinguishment of debt and other thisd-party costs
are copitalzed as defarmed financing costs and amortized a8 an
adjustrnant of interast axpense ovar tha tarm of the amended dabt
instrumeant.

Under IFRS, f an exchange of debt instuments or modification
of tarms B accounted for as an extinguishment, all fees and
costs incumed are recognized as part of the gain or loss on the
axtinguishmant, thare is no differanca in the freatment for feas paid
e lendars and other third-party costs.

In acddition, dafered financing costs are pressnted in the
consolidated balance sheets as either assets or a reduction of the
dabt bolonce undar LS. GAAP whilst they can only be presantad
in tha consolidated balance sheets as a reduction of dabt bakince
undear IFRS.



26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

(CONTINUED)
There are other differences between U5 GAAP and IFRS relevant to
the accounting policies of the Group. Such diferences do not have a
material impoact on the Company’s shareholders” equity as at December
31, 2012 and 2011 and net income (loss) attributable to the Company
during the years ended December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010 but may
affect future periods and the relevant details are set out below:

Impairment of assets

Under LS. GAAP enfifies are required to use a two-step approach to
mecsure impaiment. In step 1. entities parfform a recoverability test by
comparing the expected undiscounted future cash fliows to be darived
from the asset with its carrying amount. If the asset fails the recovarability
tast, stop 2 b5 required,. and the aentity must record an impairment loss
calculated as the axcess of the amset’'s canying amount ovar its fair
value, Fair volue should be colkculated oz “the price that would be
recalved to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a llabilty in an ordarly
transaction betwasn markst participants at the measuremeant date”.

Undear IFR3, tha impaiment loss is cakulated as the excess of the asset’s
camying amaount aver its recoverable amount. The recovarable amount
is the higher of an assat's (1) fair value less costs fo sell and (2) value in
use, “Fair value less costs to sell” is defined as “the amourt obtainable
from the sale of an asset or cash-generating unit in an am’s length
transaction bebween knowledgeable, wiling parties, less the costs
of dignesal”. When enfities calzulate value in use, they dizcount the
supacted future cash flows to be genarcted by the asset to their nat
prasent value.

Under U5, GAAR if the recoverability tast in step 1 is passed. impairment
iz not recorded even if the fair value of the asset is less than its camying
amount, Accordingly, an impairment loss may be recorded under IFRS
but may not be recordad undar LS. GAAP under the sams sat of
circumstances. Whan an impairmant oss 5 recorded undar both US
EAAP and IFRS, the amount of the impairment kess may not be the same
under U.S. GAAP and IFRS becouse the fair value (under U.5 GAAP) and
racovarable amount {under IFRS) may ditfer.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the
management of the Group considered that there B no materal
diffarence betwean the amourt of impairment loss recorded under U.S,
GAAP and IFRS.

There are alse differences bebtwesn US GAAP and IFRS in the
prasantation and classification of tems in the consolidated staternents
of operations, balance shaets and statements of cash flows. In addition,
there are diferances on financial statement disclosure raquired betwean
Us. GAAP and IFRS. Such differences do not hove impact on the
Company’'s shareholdars’ aquity as of Decambrar 31, 2012 and 2011 or
nat income (kss) attributabls to the Company during the years andsed
Decambear 31, 2012 2011 and 2010.
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26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

182

(CONTINUED)
The rmatarial adjustrrants necassary 1o rastate net income  (loss)
attributable to the Company and the Company's shareholdars’ equity in
accordance with IFRS are summarized as follows:

‘aar Emded Decambar 31,
2002 an 010
Netincome (igss) atiibutable 1o the
Compaony os reporied undsr U5, GRAP 5 A28 s Fii N5 (10,825
RS adusiments
Copifaization of amartization of land usa
fighis a3 peoperty and aquiomeni 3650 13,384 kl-7)
Additional capitaiization of bomowing costs
o5 property and eguipmant 2384 a7 L1z
Rewersal of defiermad fax in relation fo
land use fghts (4,055 (2.642) (S
Dacreass n emartization of land wie rights
&b 0 reult O Changs in
csggned valus of land we righte 4455 2505 241
Additional dapeaciation of proparty
and equipment in relafion fo dffarance
in copifclzaion of omeriization of
ard g rights and bomowing costs (2029 1029 {1.847)
Addfional shore-bosed
compensalion recognized (468) (L83 rili]
Reduction in amor fzation of
cefarred fnanzing cosh 1158 338 -
Financing costs recognized o part of
loss on exfinguishmant of dabt - (2a38 -
Reuction in net loss offibubobie o
noneonioling infarask™ (15,148) (5.220) -
Watincome (ioss) atibutobia 10 e
Company as reporied under IFRS 5 445218 ¢ N385 § {11,070
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Vear Ended Dacember 31,

2012 el 2010

Nat income Joss) offibusstle to tha

Company per share under IFRS;

Bosic 5 LA § 0170 § (0007}

Dirbed H L § 0169 § (0.007)
Weightad avarage shares wadin

natincome (ass) attibulabia 1o the

Campany par share caeuaton unde IS

Bosic I SAS386908 | 1404273328 1,596,558 007

Diuted 165643550 1 &180027  1,595.882.002




26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

(CONTINUED)

Decamber 31.
2012 2011

The Company’s sharholdarns’ equity
s raported under LS. GAAP
IFRS adjustments:
Capitalzation of amartization of
land use rights as property and equipment
Additional copitalzation of bomowing costs
as property and equipment
Reduction in amortization of
defarad financing costs
Reversal of deferred tax in relation to
land wse rights
Decrease in amorteation of land use rights
as a result of change in assigned value of
lara use rights
Addifional depreciation of property
and equipment in relation to diferance
in capitalzation of amortization of
land use rights and borowing costs
Finoncing costs recognized as part of
loss on axdinguishment of dabt
Reduction in net loss attrbutable to
nancontisling intanasts
T Compary's shamholdan’ ecquity
a5 raported under IFRS

§2.956.155

61,143
1.706
3.388

{11,158

7.347

(5.557)

(29,328)
(5.220)

§2.978.437

A reconciliation of the significant consolidated balance sheeats accounts
from amounts as reported under US, GAAP to amounts s reported
under IFRS s as follows:

December 31,
201 __ 2011

Property and ecuipment, net:
As raported
IFRS adjustrmants:
Capitalization of amortization of land wss
righits cis property and equipment
Additional capitalization of bomowing
costs as property and equipment
Additional depreciation of property and
acuiprmant in ralation to diferance
in capitalzation of amortization of
land use rights and borowing costs
Caopitalzation of start-up costs as
property and equipment
Uncier IFRS

Defered financing costs:
As raported
IFRS adjustmants®:
Reduction in amertization of defared
financing costs
Firancing costs racognized as part of
logs on axdinguishment of debt

Undar IFRS

Annucl Report 2012 Mekco Crown Endertcinment Umided 183



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fin thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per share data)

26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS
(CONTINUED)

Dacember 31,
2012 2011

Land use rights, net:
As reported
IFRS adjustrments:

Decreass in amortzation of land uss
rights as a result of change in assigned
value of kand wse ights 12.042 7.347

Revarsal of deferrad tax labilities
recognized upon acquisition of land
use fights (79.707) (79707

Raduction in land use rights recognized
upan acquistion of assets and liobilities
as a rasult of capitalization of
amortization of kand we dghts and
start-up costs as property and

§ 989.984 5§ 942968

equipment {1.948) (1.948)
Undar IFRS 5 920,371 35 855680
Dafered tax liabiktias:
As raportad 5 66,350 5 70028
IFRS adjustmeants:
Reversal of defermad tax in relation to
landd use rights 15,210 11,1556

Revarsal of deferad tax labilities
recognized upon acquisition of kand
use rights (79.707)  (79.707)

Dacamber 31,
2012 2011

Additional paid-in copital;

As reported 53235835 $3223274

IFRS adjustment:
Additional share-based
compensation recognized 6,493 6,025
Under IFRS 53242328 $3229.299
Mancontralling interasts:

As reported & 354817 & 231497

IFRS adjustments:

MNaoncontroling intarasts’ share

on capitalzation of amortization of

land use rights as property and

equipment 19,940 5338
Moncontroling intarasts’ shara on

dacraase in amorization of land use

rights as a rasult of change in assigned

value of land usa rights 2,123 56268
Mencontroling interasts’ share on

additional capitalzation of bomowing

caosts as property and aquipment 354 -
Moncontraling interasts’ share on

revarsal of defered tox in relation to

land use rights (2.054) 744y

Undar IFRS § 375185 § 236717

Under IFRS § 1.853 % 1.476
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26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

(CONTINUED)

Dacamber 31,
2012 2011

Retained aamings (accumukated lossas):
As reported
IFRS adjustments:

Capitalization of omortzation of land use
rightts as property and squipment

Addifional copitalization of bomowing
costs as property and equipment

Revarsal of defemed tax in relation to
land usa rights

Decrease in amortization of land use
rights 93 @ result of change in assigned
value of land use rights

Additional depreciation of property and
aquipmant In relation to difference
in capitalzation of amontization of
land usa rights and bormowing costs

Additional share-based
compensation recognized

Reduction in amortization of
datfared financing costs

Eimaincing costs recognized o part of
loss on exdinguishment of dabt

Reduction in nat loss attributabla to
nancantroling interests

Unider IFRS

§ (282510)

61,143
1,706

(11,155)

7347

A reconciliation of the significant consolidated statements of operations
acceunts from amounts as reported under LS, GAAP to amounts o
reported under IFRS & as follows:

Yaar Ended Decembser 31,
2012 20m 2010

Ganeral and adminstrative expenses:
As raported
FRS adjustment:
Addifional shara-based
compansation recogrized
Undear FRS

$ X024 5 1998

1,639 210
221,863 § 200040

Amartization of land use rights:
As reported
FRS odjustments:

Capitdizafion of amaortizafion
of lard wse rights as proparty
and aquipment

Decreass in aomortization of
land use rights a5 0 result of
change in assigned value of
land use rights

Undar FRS

401§ 1922

13,348) (382

(2.505) (241
18550 §  181%%

Dapraciafion and amaorfization:
As reported
FRS adjustment:

Additional dapraciation of
proparty and squipment
in relation to diference
in copitalization of
amclization of land use
rightts and bomoaing costs

Under FRS

25922 5 236306

2025 1.847
261,250 § 238,153
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26. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS ‘Yaar Endad Dacamber 31,
(CONTINUED) w2 2011 2010
Yeor Ended Decembsr 31, Income fox crac (axpensa)
2012 2011 2010 *‘I;;‘f“;;dﬂmm 16% 3§ (520
nierest sxpenees, net.of Reversal of defaned fax
capitalized intarsst: in relaticn fo lond s rights 2882) (52n)
As raported 13806 § 93367 Under IFRS (1,008 § (.80
FRS adpsiment: et los ofoutan o
Addifional copitalzation of nonconaling infarasts:
Eotrowing costs as proparty s raportad 5812 5 _
and equipment (217 (1.12%) IFRS odjusimants:
Undar FRS 113580 § G228 Noncontroling infarests’ share
Amorhzation of defered on copitaidation of amonzation
chm D’hlﬂmﬁrmﬂimwﬂrﬂ
As taported 14203 § 1432 squpment BA%) -
FRS acjustment: Nancontroling inferasts’ share
R ion in amorization of on decreate n amontzation
of land ugs rights o o result of
defered financing cosis {3 385) — i assi value of
Undsr FRS 10817 § 14302 b,ﬂmi wi 528 _
Logs on axtinguishmant of detst: Nangantroling interests” share on
As reported 25193 § - oddifional copiolzation of
FRS adjustrent: bomowing costs o5
Financing costs recogrized property ond equipmant = -
as part of loss on Nancontrsling infarahs’ sham an
axfinguishment of debt %328 — mwgmm m »
Under FRS 54521 § Lile] == =
= Unclr IFRS 592 8 —
Mates

{1y The omount repiesans the eMect Gilibulabie B0 NonconBCling ntenssls af O redull of
fhe differences between LS. GAAP and IFS.

{2 The IFRS odusiment doos not include the reclomification of e defenad fnoncing

conts o1 @ reduclion of Be debl boloncs o Mis hos no effect on the Compary’s
naiehokders” Bouily of Nel Roome (o) At abie 10 he Compony
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Particulars of subsidianies are as follows:

Attributable Proportion
Place of of Nominal Valus of
Incomporation/ Nominal Vale of ksued ksued Share Capital/
Establishmeant/ arnd Fully Paid Share auota Capital
MName of Subsidiary Oparation Capitalf@ucta Capital Hald by the Group Principal Activitias
2012 2001
Altira Developments Macau Ordinary shares — 00% 100%"  Cosine and hotal development
MCP2, 000,000
Altira Hotel Macau chuota capital — 100%=* 100%  Hotel ralated businasses
MOP25,000
COD Theatre Limited Macau Guota capital — 100%"" 100%""  Performance theatre show
MCP25,000 operations
Golden Future (Monogement Macau Shucta capital — 100 100%"  Manogement services provider
Services) Limited MOP25,000
MCE Cotal Ceayran lslancs  Ordinarny share — 1005 100%*  Irvastrnent holding
Us$0.01
MCE Transportation BVl Orclinany share — 100" 100%"  Alrcraft owning and leasing
Uss1
MCE Finance Cayrman lslands  Ordinary shares — 100%* 100%"  Financing
Ussiz.02
MCE Holdings Limited Cayrman lslands  Ordinary share — 100%* 100%" Invaestrent holding
Us%0.01
MCE Holdings Thiae Limited Ceyrman lslancs  Ordlinary sharas — 100%* 100%  Investmeant holding
Class A shares: US50.4
Class B shares: USS1.4
MCE Holdings Two Limited BVI Ordinary share — USS1 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
MCE Holdings (Philippines) Comporation The Philippines Ordinary shares — 100%* MNfA Irvastrent holding
PHP#,310,000

Annucl Report 2012 Melco Crown Enterfainment Umifed 187



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fin thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per share datay

27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Aftributable Proportion

Placa of of Naminal Value of
Incomporation/ MNominal Walse of lssued Issued Share Capitalf
Establshrment/ and Fully Poid Share Guota Copital
MNarme of Subsidicny Cpenation Capital/@uota Capital Hald by the Group Frincipal Activities
2012 2011
MCE Holdings Mo, 2 The Philippines  OQrdinary sharas — 100%™ MNiA - Investment holding
(Philippines) PHP&, 310,000
MCE Irtemational Umited Hong Kong Ordinary shiare — 100%" 100%°  Markating sarvices
HES providar
MCE Maragemeant Limited Hang Kong Ordinary share — 100%* 100%" Incctive
HES1
MCP The Philippines Ordinary sharas™ — 88.14%" NIA Investment holding
Class A shares:
PHP255,272.456
Chass B sharnas:
PHP108,020.104
MCE Philippines Imvastments BVl Qrdinary share — 100%** N/A Investmeant holding
ussi
MCE Irnvestments No.2 The Philippines Ordinary shares — 100%™ NIA Investment holding
PHP25.000
MCE Leisura Philippires The Philippines Ordinary sharas — 100%** MN/A Integrated tourism resort
PHP8,310.000 devalopmeant
Malco Crown (Cafe) Limited Macau Qucta capital — 100%* 100%™ Catering oparations and
MOP25.000 management sarnvices
provider
Mebco Crown COD (CT) Hotel Limited Macou ot copital — 100%* 100%**  Inactive
MOP25, 000
Malco Crown (COD) Developments Macau Gucta capital — 100%* 100%**  Integrated entertcinment
MOP1,000,000 rasort development
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Attributable Proportion
Place of af Nominal Value of
Incorporation/ Neminal Value of lsued Issuad Share Capital/
Establishme it/ and Fully Paid Share @uota Capital
Name of Subsidiary Cpearation Capitalfeucta Copital Held by the Group Principal Activities
2012 2011
Melco Crown COD (GH) Hotel Limited  Macau Quota capital — 100%"" 100%"  Hotel related businasses
MOP25,000
Melco Crown (COD) Hotals Macou Sucta capital — 100%:" 100%""  Hotel related businesses
MOP25,000
Maleo Crown COD (HR)Y Hotal Limited Maeou Cluota capital — 1005 100%*  Inactive
MCP25,000
Malce Crown {COD) Retail Macou Suota capital — 100% 100% Retall and shops operations
Services Limited MOP25,000
Melco Crown (COD) Ventures Limited Macaou Gucta capital — 100" 100%°  Inactive
MOP25,000
Mealeo Crown Macou Macou Orclinary shares — 100%: 100%** @ Ceogine operations and
Class A sharag' imvastrment haolding
MOP280,000,000
Class B sharas™:
MOPT 20,000,000
Melco Crown Hospitality Macou Sucta capital — 100%* 100%*  Managemant services provider
and Services Limited MOP25,000
Meleo Crown (Macou Paninsule) Maecau Cluota capital — 1005 100%*  Managemant sarvices provider
Developrants Umited MOF25,000
Mealce Crown {Macau Paninsula) Macau Suota capital — 100%" 100%  Inactive
Hotel Limited MOP25,000
Melco Crown Security Services Limited  Macau Quota capital — 100%"" 100%™ Management services
MOP1. 000,000 providar
Mocha Cale Limitad Macau Sucta capital — 100%* 100%  Inactive
MOP25,000
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

190

Aftributabls Proportion

Place of of Naminal Value of
Incomparation/ Nominal Value of lssued Issued Share Capitalf
Establishment/ and Fully Paid Share Guota Copital
MNarme of Subsidicny Opearation Capital/@uota Capital Hald by the Group Frincipal Activities
2012 2011
Maocha Slot Group Limited BVI/Macau Ordinary shares — 100%™ 100%™ Investment holding
Uss100
Mocha Siot Managemeant Limited Macau eucta copital — 100%* 100%*  Inoctive
MOPZE, 000
MPEL Cotal Developrmarts Limited Macau Quota copltal — 100%* 100%"  Incctive
MOP25,000
MPEL {Delenwara) LLC United States Capital contribution — M/A 100%*  Inactive and dissoliad
of America Us5100 on May 31,2012
MPEL Internaticnal Limited Cayman lskands Crdinary shares — 100%* 100%™ Investment holding
uss4
MPEL Invastrments Limited Cayman Iskands Ordinary sharas — 100%* 100%*  Irvestment holding
Uss2.oz2
MPEL Momiree One Limited Cayman lsknds Ordinary share — 100%™ 100%™ Irvestrnent holding
US50.01
MPEL Mominess Thres Limited Cayman lslands Ordinary shiare — 100% 100%™ Investment holding
550,01
MPEL Nominea Two Limited Cayman lsands Ordinary shara — 100%* 100%*  Investment halding
Us50.01
MPEL Projacts Limited BYI Ordinary share — 100%™ 100%™ Irvestrnent holding
ussi
MPEL Propertias (Macou) Limited Macau Sucta copital — 100% 100%™ Properly holding
MOPZE, 000
MPEL Services Limited Heng Kong Ordinary share — 100%" 100%" Managemeant services
HES1 provider
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Attributable Proportion
Place of aof Nominal Value of
Incorponation/ Neminal Value of lsued Issued Share Capital/
Establishment/ and Fully Paid Share Quota Capital
Name of Subsidicry Cpearation Capitalfeucta Copital Held by the Group Principal Activities
2012 2011
MPEL Sarvices (US) Lid. United States Commaon stock — 1009 100%**  Inactive
of America LS5100,000
MPEL Venturas Limited BYI Ordinary share — 100%"° 100%°  Investment holding
uss1
Studio City Devaloprmeants Maeou Cuota capital — S0 0%t Integrated entartalnmeart
MCPS, 000,000 ragort davelopment
Shudio City Hospitality and Sarvicas Macou Suota capital — SO A% Managemant servicas
Limited MOP25,000 provider
Studio City Hotels Limited Macou Gucta capital — S0 &0%*"  Hotel relcted businesses
MOF25,000
Studio City Sarvices Limited Macau Cucta capital — S0 &0%*  Investrnant holding
MCP25,000
MSCT Limnitad® Macau Quota capital — MiA A5%  Inactive and dissolvad
MOP30,000 on Dacember 14, 2011
Mew Cotai Entertainment, LLC United States Capital contribution — MIA 0% Dissolvad
of America US$100 on August 27, 2012
SCP Heldings Limited BWI Ohrdinary shara — [ A YA Irvastrmant holding
Uss1
SCP Ona Limited EVI Ordlinary share — S0 MfA Irvestrent holding
uss1
SCP Two Limited BV Ordinary share — 0% MNfA - Irvestrment holding
uss1
Studio City Enferainment Limitad Macou Sucta capital — H0%"" 0% Manogement services
PSP 00,000 providar
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Aftributable Proportion

Place of of Narminal Value of
Incorparation/ Nominal Valse of lssued Issued Share Capitalf
Establishment/ and Fully Paid Share Guota Copital
MNarme of Subsidicny Operation Capital/@uota Capital Hald by the Group Frincipal Activities
2012 2011
Studio City Company BvI Ordinary shara — 60%™ &% Financing
U551
Studio City Finance BvI Ordinary share — a0%™ &0%"  Financing
uss1
Studic City (HE) Limited Heng Kong Ordinairy ghare — HO%* 0% Monagemant services
HES1 provider
Studie: City Holdings Umited BvI Ordinary share — H0%™ S0 Invastment halding
U551
Studic City Holdings Two Limfted Bl Crdinary share — HO% 0% Investment holding
uss1
Studic City Holdings Three Limited BV Ordinary share — &0%* MIA Irvastment haolding
Us31
Studic: City Holdings Four Limited By Ordinary share — H0% MiA Irvestrent halding
uss1
Studio City International Byl Ordinary shiaras — H0%™ s0%"™  Investment holding
US510.000
Studio City Invastmants BWI Ordinary shara — H60%" &% Investment halding
Uss1
Zaus Power Venturas Limited BYI Ordinary share — 100%™ MIA Irnvastmeant holding
ussi

Diractly cwnad by e Company

Indinaciy owned by the Compony
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27. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
Mabes

[

&

Thie holdies of the clam A shares of M@loo Crown Macow, a3 & group, ang enlified
to on onnual dvldend i an amount in the apgregate of up o MOR| (he "Clas A
Diwidand ™) ond 0 preferentiol distribufion in e event of houicdation of Meloo Crown
Mocou of retum of copital 1o e cdoss A shores in an amount in e oggregofe of up
fo WOP! (fve "Class A Capital Cistibufion”L and sholl be entiled fo no ofher duidends
akiributions, retum of copitol, bouidation peoceads retum of por walue, of oihes sum of
arty type from Mekco Crown Moo,

The clors B sheres of Meloo Crown Mocou in he aggregate represent the entive rights
B receive dividench and offer disibutions from, and capifal of, Msco Crown Mooouw
after panrinant of the Clcrs A Divickend cnd e Clcrs A Copitol Distribution in respact of
s A shones. e holdeds of M CIas B shangd, in pEopartion 10 Neil Swinedship thedeol
sl be enflled to ressive any dvidends disibulions, copifal leuidalion procesds
por value. o ofhie emciuments fat may af any fme be paid fo or received by the
hcickors of e clons A shores, sucept the Clas A Dividend and the Cless A Copital
Distribuficn.

The clam A shores and clom B shores of MCP howe equal voling and dividend rights
The clom A shames of MCP can only B9 held by isued, komsfered and conveyed io
Philppine cifizens o corporoions af leost 8% of Me folol oulslonding stock of which
i owned by Philppine citizens. whereds sublect fo he provise below the clam B shares
of MCP can be held by, imued fronsfered ond conveyed to Forsign or Phiippine
GIRZENE Of Corporaions prowided that the 1otal number of class B shores which shall
of any Nime be sibssibed, ssued of cullanang sholl i RO COSe Scasd Tou-smh of
the number of clows A shores then subscribed, mued ond culsionding, o 405 of the
agregate numbe of fares hen cutstandng.

On Febreary 19, 2014 the slockholders of MCP approved the declomificotion of the
exdsling 900 milion oufhonized copilal stock of Monchesier contsing of 60% Clos A
shores ond 40% Class B shares o o sngle clos of common stock ond denlal of pre-
empive rights. The declamificalion of edsSng copiicl slock wos opproved by fhe
Prilipping Secuiiies ond Exchange Commisson on Mach 5, 2013,

Caelain Mocou lows requite companies Fmiled by et Bocledods andnima)
incorporoted in Mocou 1o hawe o minimum of fhees shoreholdens and al garming
concemiondings ard aubooncemonanes 1o be managsd by o Motou pernanent
resdent. e Monogng diectot who mus! hold of keadt 10 of the share copita
of he concemionaie o miboonceronaie. I occordoncs with such Mocouw lows,
approdmately 905 of fe share copital of Meleo Crown Maocau isindrectly owned by
ihe Company. While the Group complioes with he Macau lows. Meloo Crown Macou is
consdaed on indiectly 100% owned subsdary of the Company for puposes of the
consclidaled finoncial siotements of e Company becawe the economic interest of
the 105 holding of the managng drector izlimited to, in aggregate with other clom A
shorenciders, MOPT on e windng up of kqusdason of Melco Crown Mocou ond 1o
receie on oggrepate annual diidend of MOPT.

This company was a 75% non-whelly cwned subsidiany of Sludic City Inteenational ond
it wis chisolved on December 14, 2011,

Nane of the subsidiares had any debt securities outstanding ot the end
of the year or at any time during the year except for the 2010 Sanior
Notes ssued by MCE Finance and Studio City Notas ssuad by Studio City
Finarce as disclesed in Mot 11, which the Group had ne infersst,

Anmucl Report 2012 Metco Crown Enfertainment Urited 193



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fin thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per share data)

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

194

)

=)

During the year ended December 31, 2012 Altira Developments
applied for an omendment to the kond concassion contract,
including the increcse of the total gross fioor area, to reflect the
construction plars approved by the Mocou Govemmant and to
anable final ragistration of the Taipa Land. In January 2013, Altira
Developments cccepted the initial terms for the revision of the
lond lecze agreement which require an additional lond premium
of approximately $2449 payable to the Mocau Govemment
upon complation of the amendment, and evisa the govemmant
land we fees to cpproximately $186 par annum. Following the
publcation in the Macou official gozette of such revision, the land
grant amendment process will be completa,

In January 2013 the Tawonese outhorities commenced
investigating certain alleged viclations of Tolwan banking kows by
cartain employess of the Talwan branch office of the Company's
subsicliary. In an attempt to pravent the dissipation of any potential
personal goins made by these employees from such alleged
viglations, the Taiwanase authorities have frozen one of the Taiwan
bronch office’s deposit accounts in Talwan, which had a balonce
of approximately Mew Talwan dolar 298 billon (equivalent to
5102227 ot the time the account was frozan, No funds have
been confiscated from the occount. The Group is taking oction
to meguest the Tolwanese cuthorties fo unfreeze the occount
As of Dacambear 31, 2012, thera was no matanal impact to the
financial position and results of operation of the Group. Based on
the progress of investigation fo date which i in preliminary stage.
managamant & cumently unable to dateamine the probability of
the outcome of this matter, the extent of materiality, or the range
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of recsonably possible loss, if any. As ot the date of this report, the
deposit account b presented as restricted cash,

On January 28, 2013, the definitive agreamant of the Studic City
Project Facility was executed with minor changes to the terms and
conditions set out in the Commitment Lefter further details of the
Studio City Project Facility was disclosed in Note 11,

On January 28, 2013, MCE Finonce made o cash tender offer
to purchase the 2010 Senior Motes of o cash consideration plus
accrued interast and abo solicited consants to amend the terms of
tha 2010 Senlor Notes to substantially remove the debt incurrence,
rastricted paymeant and other rmestrictive covenants (the “Tender
Offer”). Closing of the Tender Offer and consent solicitation were
conditioned upon MCE Finonce receiving net proceeds from
offaring of the 2013 Senior Notes (a8 described below) In an
amaunt sufficient to purchase the tendered 2010 Senicr Motes
and related fees and expenses and other general conditions. The
Tendar Offar axpired on February 28, 2013 and 5599.135 aggregate
principal amount of the 2010 Senior Motes wera tendsrad. On
February 27, 2013, MCE Finance electad to redsem the ramaining
outstanding 2010 Sanior Notes in oggregate principal amount of
5866 on March 28, 2013, ot a price egual to 100% of the principal
amaunt outstanding plus applicable premium as of. and accued
and unpaid interast to March 28, 2013,



five-star hotel areas in replacement of the fourstar apadment hotal
areas curently contemplated in such land grant and to exbend

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
(@) On February 7, 2013, MCE Finance isued and listed the 5% sanior

notes due 2021 of 51,000.000 (e "2013 Senior Notes™) on the 5EX-
ST The 2013 Senior Notes are general obligations of MCE Finance,
rank aqually in right of paymeant to all existing and futura senicr
indabtadness of MCE Finance and rank senior in right of payment
te any existing ond future subordinaoted indsbtedness of MCE
Finance and effectively subordincted to all of MCE Finonce's
axsting and future secured indebtedness to the extert of the
value of the assets sacuring such dabt. Certain subsidiaries of MCE
Finance (the “2013 Senior Notas Guarantors™) jointhy, severaly and
unconditionally guarantes the 2013 Senior Notes on o senior basis.

the development pariod of the City of Dreams lond grant wniil
tha date falling 4 years after publication of the amendment in the
Macau official gazetta, which require an additional land premiurm
of approximately 523,344 and ravise the govermment land we feas
to approximately $1,235 per annum, In March 2013, Melco Crown
{COD) Developmants and Melco Crown Macou accapted the
amendments o5 5ot forth in the aforesoid land gront amendment
proposal. Following the publication in the Mocou official gazette of
such revision, the land grant amendment process will be complata.

The 2013 Sandor Motas were kssued ot par and mature on February (@) On March 4, 2013, the Comparny prepaid in full the Deposit-

15, 2021, Intarast on the 2013 Senior Notes is accnued ot a rate of 5% Linked Loan in aggregate principal amount of HKS$2.748,500,000

per annum and is payable semi-annually in anrears on February 15 {equivalent to $353.278) with aoccmed interest ond o deposit in

and August 15 of each year, commencing on August 15, 2013, an amount of RME2, 300,000,000 (equivalent to $358,177) from the
proceads of the RMBE Bons, for security of the Depasit-Linked Lean,

The net procesads from the offering of the 2013 Senior Nofes, after wals relensed on the same date.

deducting the underwriting commissions and other expenses of

approdmataly $14.500, was cpprodmately  $985,.500. The Group ) On March 11, 2013, tha Comparny aarly redeamead the RME Bonds

used the net proceeds from the offering () to repurchase in full the
2010 Senior Motas and fund the related costs as described above,
and (i) the ertire remainder of the net proceads thareatter for the
parfial repayment of the RMBE Bonds as described below.

Further to an amendment request applied in 2011 by Melco
Crown (COD) Develepments Umited ("Melco Crown (COD)
Developments™). on February 25 2013, the Mocou Govemnment
ssued a land grant amendment propasal fo Maleo Crown (CODY
Daveloprents, which contemplates the development of additional

in aggregate principal amount of RMB2, 300,000,000 (squivalent to
$348.177) togathar with accruad intarast.
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28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
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0

On March 13, 2013, MCE Holdings (Philippines) Corporation ("MCE
Heldings Philippings”, an indirect subsidiary of the Company), MCE
Heldings No.2 (Philppines) Comporation ("MCE Holdings Ne.2”, a
wholly-cwnad subsidiary of MCE Holdings Philippinas) and MCE
Lebure Philippings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCE Holdings
No.2 (collectively. the "MCE Holdings Group™) and the Philippine
Parties together became co-icenseas (the “Licensees™) under
tha provisional Boanse (the “Proviional Licensa™) granted by the
Philppine Amusament and Gaming Comoration {"PAGCOR™) for
the astablishmeant and operation of the Philippings Project, The
Provisional License, as well a3 any reguiar licenss to be bsued to
replace it upon satefaction of certain conditions, will expire on July
11, 2033. Undear tha Provisional Licenss, MCE Laisura Philippines will
cpanate the casing business of the Philippines Project,

On March 13 2013, the cooperation agreement and the lecse
agreement as mertioned in Mote 1 became effective, with minor
changes on the original terms, In addition, MCE Leisure Philippines
and the Phiippine Paries enterad into an operating agreemeant
on March 13, 2013, pursuant to which MCE Leisure Philippines has
baan granted the axclushve right to manage, eperate and control
tha Philippines Projact. Undar the operating agreemant, PLAI has
the right to receive monthly payments from MCE Leisure Philippines,
basad on the perdformance of gaming operations of the Philippines
Projact, and MCE Lebure Philppines haes the right to retain ol
revenueas from non-gaming oparations of the Philippines Project.
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The Provisional license specifies that the Licensees must invest
$1,000,000 in the Philppines Project, of which the MCE Hoklings
Group b responsible for contributing ot least $500.000 and the
Philippine Parties amre responsible for contributing at least 5500,000,
as set forth in the cooparation agreement which became
effective on March 13, 2013 o3 menticned obove PAGCOR has
requirec 55630,000. or 65.0% of the $1,000.000 recuired investment
commitmant, to be fully ulilzead and invested in the Philppines
Project by its opening. and the remaining 5350000 to be invested
within three years of the casing opening. subject to furiher
discussion with PAGCOR,

The Provisional License requires the Licarssas to pay fo PAGCOR
@ monthly license faes ranging from 15.0% to 25.0% of casing
ravenues, (i} cultural promotion fees of 2.0% of casine revenuss,
with certaln exchsions, and (i) an additional fee of 5.0% of non-
gaming revenues, excluding hotel operations. In addition, the
Provisional License sets forth certain terms relating to liquidity,
working capital and minimum local purchasing ond smployment
racuiramants.



Additional Information — Financial Statement Schedule 1

Financia

Information of Parent Company

{In thowsands of UL, ddiars, except share and per share data}

BALANCE SHEETS

Dacambar 31,

2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash agquivalants 5 2887 5 77805
Restricted cash 367,645 =
Amounts due from offiicted companies 1.113 1.551
Amcunts dua from subsidiarias 77.471 45,887
Income tax racavable 256 —
Prapaid expeanses and othar cunent cssats 2,448 59686
Total current cssets 451,830 135211
INWVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES™ 4123067 3415113
LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS — 135
RESTRICTED CASH - 264,807
DEFERRED FINANCING COST 1,427 5159
TOTAL ASSETS 54576324 53920425

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LABILITIES

Accruad expansas and other currant liabilities
Income tax payabls

Amounts due to offiliated companiss
Amounts dus 1o subsidiaries

Current portion of longtermdebt

Total currant liabilitias

5 6,455 5 8317

— &7
59 52
181,371 181,609
720923 -

15 908818 5 190,045

LOMNG-TERM DEET

ADVANCE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Ordinary shares at USS0.01 par value per share
(Authorzed — 7,300.000,000 shares as of
December 31. 2012 and 2011 and Bsued —
1.658,069.295 and 1,653,101,002 shares as of
Dacember 31. 2012 and 2011, respectivaly)

Traasury shares, of USS0.01 par value per share
(11,267,038 and 10,552,328 shares as of
December 31. 2012 and 2011, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive losses

Retained earmings (accumulated lossas)

Total shaaholdens’ agquity

Dacarmber 31,

2012 2011

5 — 5 718085
281,567 55,140
14,581 16,531
(113) (108)
3235835 3223274
(1.057) (1.034)
134693 (282510)
3385939 2955155

TOTAL UABILITIES AND EGUITY

S4576324 53920425

MET CURRENT LIABILITIES

§ (456,988) § (54834

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

53.667.506 53730380

b

(1) Amounts included invesiments in unisled subsdiarnies

a0

vestmant in o

CATARE1 (Z011; §1,408.053)

Anmual Repor 2012

{2011; niy

of $2425.4148 (2011 $2.007.040).

ond advances o subsdcries of
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STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ccumulated  (Accumuloted

AddEional Othar Logsas) Tatal
Cedinary Shares Treawry Snarss Poidin  Comprabansive Ratanad  Sharsholdars’
S Amount Shargd Amount Cogital Lossat Earnings Equity

BALAMCE AT JAMUARY 1, 2010 1.595,617.550 5 15,958 (471,557 § & 5 3088768 § (23,034 § (Sedbdly § 2,505,044
Mat ko for the year - - - - - - (10,525 (10.525)
Faraign cusrancy irarskation adjustmant - — - - - 2 - 2
Changs in for walus of infarast ate

SWap Ogeamants - - - - - 17,657 - 17,657
Shorabesed compansation - - - - 6,048 = = 8,045
Shoras Biuad upcn retrichad harss vastad 1,354,920 12 - — (5 - - —
Snonet ssuad for future vasting of msticted shares

and exercise of shore options B785.541 8 {B,785.641) (38 - - - -
lssuancs of sharss for rasticted shares vested - — 43737 I n - - -
Exarcise of share ophions - - 804,285 ] 230 - - 93
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 1,605,588,111 14,058 (E.40%,186) (ad) 3,095,730 (17.345) {ET7.158) 2503191
Nat incoma for B year - - — — = — 294,656 294,656
Faraign cumancy fransiation adistmant = = = = = (145 = (14%)
Chiangs in foir valus of infarast nate

WaD ograemants - - - - - 6111 - 6111
Change in foir volue of farwond

axchonga mte contach = - - - = ® - 3
Reclossfcation to eornings upen dicontinuonce

of hadge cooounting - - - - - 4310 - 4310
Shose-Dosed comparnsation - - - - 8624 - - 8424
Shates ssued upen restriched shares vasted 310,575 3 - - 3 - - -
Snotes sswed for future vesfing of rastricted shares

and axercke of shore options 6,520,385 & (6,920,388) (3] - - - -
lssuanea of shanes far rastrictad sharas vastad — - 341,643 l % — - —
Exataive of shar options - - 3835594 33 3912 - - 3950
lssuanca of shares for convassion of

shomhoidar' lbans 40,211,930 43 — — 115,020 — — 115,423
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 011 1.683,100,002 14,531 {I05E2.328) (108 3223274 (1.038 282510 2,954,185
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STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Additianal Otat Ledtas) Tedal
Qrdinary Shares Tracsury Shores Poidin  Compeahensive Retgined  Shomholden”
Shores

Ameunt Shosas Ameunt Capital Losses Ecemings
et income for the yeor 417.208
Fonsign cumancy ansation adustment
Chonga in fir vaiue of forwand
schangs rhe contracts
Raciauification fo samings upon seftisment of
farwaed exchangs rate conbacts
Share-bassd compansation
Sharas issued for future vasting of resticted
shares ond exancizs of thore options
sswance of shoms for restrictad shares vested
Concalotion of vested restricted shares
Exatciea of thars options
BALAMCE AT DECEMBER 11, 2012
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Additional Information — Financial Statement Schedule 1
Financial Information of Parent Company

fin thousands of LS. dollas, except share and per share datay

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 1

1. Basls Of Presentation
The condensed financial information has been prepared wing the same
accounting policias as sat out in the Company's consolidated financial
statements except that the parant company has used equity method to
account for its investrmants in subsidiarias,

2. Llong-term debt
The Comparny issuad tha RMB Bonds and obtained the Deposit-Linked
Lean during the year endad Decembar 31, 2011 as disclosed in Note
11 to the Group's consclidated finoncial statements. In March 2013,
the Company aarly redeamad the RMB Bonds and repaid the Deposit-
Linkad Loan, turthar details is included in Note 28{g) and (h).

Scheduled maturities of the long-terrn debt of the Company o of
Dacambar 31, 2012 anme as follows:

Waar ending Dacember 31, 2013 § 7092
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Financial Summary

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
{In thousands of USS, except share and
per share data and operafing data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Nat revanuas § 4078013 5 3830847 5 2,641,576 § 1.332.873 5 1,416,134
Total operating costs and expenses (3.570,921) (3,385,737 (2,549, 4564) (1,604, 9200 (1,414.960)
Operating incoma (loss) 5 507.092 § 445110 5 92512 § (272.047) 5 1.174
MNet income (loss) § 398672 288844 § (10.525) § (308.451) 5 (2.463)
MNat loss attributabls to noncontrolling interasts 18,531 5812 _ - —_
Net income (loss) attributable to Melco Crown Entertainment H d17.203 § 204,656 § (10.5258) § (308.451) 5 (2,463)
Het income (loss) attributable to Melco Grown Entertainment

per Share

— Basic § 0254 & 0.184 § (0.007) § 0.210) § (0.002)

— Dilted § 0.252 & 0s2 % (0.007) § L2100 § (0.002)
Het inceme (loss) attributable to Melee Crown Enterfainment

per ADS

— Basic § 0761 $ 0551 % (0.020) 5 (0.631) (0.006)

= Diltad k] 0.755 % 0.547 & .020 § (0.631) § (0.008)
Weighted average Shares used in ealeulating net ineeme (loss)

attributable to Melce Crown Entertainment per Share

— Basic 1,645,345,902 1.604,213.324 1.595,6562,022 1.465,974.09 1.320,946,942

— Dilted 1.658 262,996 1.416,854.682 1.595,552,022 1.465,974.M9 1,320,946, 942

Decembear 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
{in thousands of US5)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
Caosh and cash equivalents § L709.209 § 1158024 § 441,923 § 212598 § 815,144
Restricted cash 1,414 664 364,807 167,286 236119 &7.977
Total assats 7.947. 466 6,269,980 4,284,440 4,862,845 4,495,442
Tetal currant liabilitias 1.721,666 403,119 475,604 521,643 447,289
Total debts™ 3,194,864 2325980 1,839,931 1.798.879 1.529.195
Total iabiities 4,206,710 3082328 2,361,249 2,353,801 2,086,838
Noncontraling inferests 354,817 231,497 — — —
Total equity 3,740,756 3,187,652 2523191 2,509,044 2,408,604

Pty thigs Grdingry shimas

cunts cus b sharehaldsrs within one yedt 10ans from sharehaidsrs and cument and non-clment portion of kng-term debd

Annual Repor 2012
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Definitions and Glossary

DEFINITIONS

“2006 Share Incentive Plan” refars to a sham incantive plan as adopted
and ravised by the Board on Movember 28, 2006 and March 17, 2009
and as opproved by the Shareholdars on Decembear 1, 2004 and May 19,
2009, regpactivaly which aims to provide incentivas in tha form of awards
to consuttarts, employess and members of the Board with the view of
promoting further succass of cur Company:

"2010 Senior Motes” refars to the inftial notes (e, the USSS00 million
aggregate principal amount of 10.25% senior notes due 2018 isued by
MCE Finance on May 17, 20010 and fully redeemed on March 28, 20013)
and the exchange notes (e approximately 99.96% of the initial notes
which weara, on December 27, 2010, exchanged for 10.25% senlor notas
due 20018 regitersd under tha US. Securities Act of 1933), colectively
which were fully redesmed on March 28, 20013

“2011 Credit Facilities” refars to tha cradit facilities entarad into purssant
te an amendment agreement dated June 22, 2011 between, among
others, Melco Crown Maocow Deulsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch
cas agent and DB Trustess (Hong Keng) Umibed oz securlty agent,
comprising a term loan focllity and a revolving cradit facility, for a total
amount of HE$9.36 bilion (equivalant to approximataly USS1.2 bilion),
and which reduce and remove cartain rastrictions in the City of Dreams
Project Facility:

“2011 Shara Incentive Plan” refars to a share incantive plan as adoptad
by our Company pursuant fo a resclution passed by our Shareholder
at an extroordinary general meeting on October & 2011 and became
affective an the listing data, which aims fo provida incentivas in the form
of awards to consultants, employees and mambers of the Board, with the
vigw of pramasting further success of our Company;

“23 Senior Notes” refers to the US$1.0 bilion aggregote principal
amount of 2.00% senicr notes due 2021 ksued by MCE Finance on
Febracry 7, 2013

“Adjusted EBITDA” rafers to eamings bafors interast, taxes, depreciation,
amortization. pre-opening costs, development costs, property charges
and others, share-based compersation. and other non-operating
income and axpanses;

“Adusted property EBITDA" refers to eamings before interest, taxes,
depraciation, amortization, pre-opening costs, development costs,
proparty charge: and others, share-based compensation, corporate
and offer expensss and ofhar non-oparating income and axpeansas,

“ADSs" refars to owr Americon Depositary Shares each of which
rapresants thiee Sharas:

“Aircraft Term Loan” refers to the US543.0 millon term loan credit faciliby
antarad intoe by MCE Transportation in Jume 2012 for the pumpose of the
acauisiion of an aircraft;

“Altira Developments” rafers to our subsidiary Altira Developments
Limited, a Mocou company through which we hold the land and
building for Altira Macau;

“Altira Hotel™ refars to our subsiciary, Alting Hotel Limited, a Macau
company through which we cunently operate the hotel and other non-
garning businessas at Altira Macau:

“Altira Macow® refers to an integrated casino and hotel development
that catars to Aslan rolling chip customers, which openad in May 2007
and owned by Altira Developrents:
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Definitions and Glossary

“Amended and Restated Articles of Asseciation” refers to owr articles of
association condifionally adopted on May 23, 2012;

“Board” and "Board of Directors” refar to the board of Dirsctors of a duly
constituted committes theraof,

“Ching®, “rmainland China” and “PRC rafar to the Pecpla’s Republic of
Ching, exciuding Heng Kong, Macau and Taiwan from a geographical
point of view;

“City of Dreams” rafers to an integrated resort located an two adjocent
pleces of land in Cotal, Macau, which openad in June 2009, and
currently fedatures a casing areas and three xury hotal, including
a collection of retail brands, o wet stage perdermance theater and
othar enfertcinment wenues, and owmed by Malco Crown (COD)
Developments;

“City of Dreams Project Focility” refers to the project facility dated
Saptamiber 5 2007 entared into betwaan, amongst othars, Malco Crown
Macau as borrowsr and cartain othar subsidiaries as guarantors, for
a total sum of US$1.75 billion for the pumposes of financing, among
othar things, cantain projact cests of City of Dreams, as amended and
supplemented from time to time:

“Cotal” rafers to an area of raclaimead land located betwean the islands
of Taipo and Coleana in Macou;

“Crown” refars o Crown Limited, an Auwstralian-listed corporation. which
completad its acquisition of the gaming businesses and investments of
PBL now known as Comsolidated Media Holdings Limited, on December
12, 2007;

Maloo Crown Entertanment Umited  Annual Report 2012

"Crown Asia Investments” refers to Crown Asio Investments Py Lid.,
fermerly known as PBEL Asia Investments Limited, which is 100% indirectly
awned by Crown, and was incorporatad in the Cayman skands but s
rew @ registared Australian company:

“Crown Entertainment Group Heldings® refers to Crown Enfertainment
Group Holdings Phy Ltd., a company Iincoporated on Juna 19, 2007
undar the kiws of Australia and a subsidiany of Crowrn:

“Deposit-Lnked Loan” refers to o depasit linked facllity for HKS2.7 bilken
(squivalent fo approximately US35353.3 million based on axchangs rota
on transaction date) entarad into on May 20, 2011, which i securad by
a daposit of RMB2.3 billion (equivalent te approximataly USS353.3 milion
based on exchange rate on transaction date) from the procesds of the
RMEB Bonds and fully repaid in March 2013;

"RIC) rafers to the Direcgoo de Inspeceds @ Coordenagas de Jogos
{the Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureou), a departrment of the
Public Administration of Mocou:

“Directars” refers to the director(s) of eur Company:

“Exchange Act” refers fo the United States Securities Exchange Act of
1934;

“Eraatar Ching” refers to mainkand China. Hong Kong and Macaw
cobactively;

“Group” refars to our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of
the period before our Company became the holding company of such
subsidiaries, the antities which camied on the business of the prasent
Group at the relevant time:



"HKS" and "H.K. dollaes” refer to the legal currency of Hong Kong:

"Hong Kong” refars to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
e PRC:

“IFRS" refers fo Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards;

“Listing Rules” refers to the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securitias on the
Stock Exchaonge, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time;

"Macou” and "Macou SART rafar to the Macou Special Administrative
Region of the PRC:

"Macou Tower” rafers to the Mocou Towaer Convention & Enfertainment
Ceantra, owned by Sociadada da Tursmo & Divarsoas da Macauw, S A and
cperated by Shun Tak Holdings Limited;

"MCE Finonce” refars to our wholy-owned subsidian, MCE Finance
Limitad, a Cayman lskands axempted company with limited liability:

"MCE Holdings Philippines” refers to our indirect whally ewned subsidiary.
MCE Holdings (Philippines) Comorction, o corporation incomporated in
tha Philippinas:

"MCE Holdings Mo.2” refers to our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, MCE
Holdings Mo.2 (Philippines) Comporation, o corporation incomporated in

the Philopines:

“"MCE Leisure Philippines” refers to our indirect whelly owned subsidiary,
MCE Leisure (Philippines) Comporation, a corparation incomporated in the
Philippines:

“MCE Philippinas Investments” refer to our indirect subsidiary. MCE
{Philippines) Investments Limited, @ company incomporated undar the
lawis of the British Vingin Islands;

"MCE Irwvestments No.2” refers to MCE (Phiippines) Investments Mo.2
Corporation, @ comoration incorporated under the laws of the
Phillippirsas;

“MCE Transportation” rafars to our subsidiary, MCE Trarsportation Limited
(formerly known o MCE Desigrs and Bronds Limited), o company
incormporated undar the laws of the Brifish Virgin Iskands;

“MCP” rafars to Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Comporation (formerly
known as Mancheaster International Holdings Unlimited Compzoration), the
sharas of which are lsted on the Philppine Stock Exchange:

“Malco” refars to Melco Interndtional Developmeant Limited, @ Hong
Kong listed company:

“Malce Crown (COD) Developments” refars fo our subsidiary, Malco
Crown {COD) Davelopmeants Limited, a Macau company thiough which
we hold the land and builkdings for City of Dreams:

“Makee Crown Macau” refars to our subsidiany, Melee Crown (Macad)
Limited (formearly known as “Melco Crown Gaming (Macau) Limited” or
“Malce PEL Gaming (Macou) Limited”), o Mocou company and the
holder of our gaming subconcassion:
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Definitions and Glossary

“Mekeo Lebsure” refers to Melco Leisure and Entertainment Group Limited,
a company incoporated under the laws of the British Virgin Iskands and
a whely-owned subsidiary of Meloo;

“Mocha Clubs” collactively refers to clubs with gaming machings, the
first of which opened in September 2003, and are now the largest non-
coiing based oparations of electronle gaming machines in Macauw, and
oparatad by Melco Crown Macaou:

“Modal Code” refers to the Modal Code for Sacurities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuars as sat out in Appandix 10 to the Listing Rulas:

"NASDAR" rafers to the National Asscciation of Securties Dedlers
Automated Guotation System;

“Mew Cotai Holdings® refers to New Cotfai Holdings, LLC, a company
incomporated in Delawara, the United States on March 24, 2006 under the
lcws of Delaware, prirmarily owned by U.S investrment funds managed by
Siver Polnt Copital, LP ond Oakires Copital Managarant, LP:

“our Subconcession” and “owr goaming subconcession” refer to the
Mocau gaming subconcassion hald by Malkeo Crown Macou:

"PAGCOR” rafars to Philippines Amusemeant and Saming Comporaticn,
the Philippines ragukatory body with jurisdiction over all gaming activities
in the Philippines except for loftary, sweepstakes, cockfighting. horsa
recing and gaming inside the Coagayan Export Zone;

“Patacas” and "MOP” refer to the legal curency of Macou:
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"PBL" refers te Publshing and Broodooasting Limited, an Australion-listed
comporation that s now known as Corsolidated Medio Holdings Limited:

“Philippine Steck Exchanga” refers to The Philipging Stock Bxchangs, Ine.;

“Philippine Porlies™ refers fo SM  Investments Corporation, Belle
Comoration and Premiumlekure and Amusarnent, Inc.

"Philippine Paso” refers to the legal currency of the Philippines:

“Philppinas Projact” mfers to an integrated rasort located within
Entertainment City, Manila to be developed by MCE Labwure Philippinas
and the Philippine Partias which, when complated, is expacted 1o be
solsly operated aond managed by MCE Leiure Philippines:

“Renminbi® and "RME" rafar to the legal curmancy of China

"RME Bonds” refers to the RMB2.3 bilion (squivalent to opproximately
USS353.3 million based on exchange rate on transaction data)
aggragate principal amount of 3.75% bonds dus 2013 issusd by our
Company ¢n May 9, 2011 and fully redeemed on March 11, 2013;

"SCI7 refers to Studio City International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Cybaer Ona Agents Limifed), a company incomporated in the British
Virgin klands with limitad liability that is 80% cwned by ome of our
subsiciaries and 40% owned by Mew Cotai Holdings through its wholly
cwned subsidiary Mew Cotal, LLC:

“SEC” rafars to the ULS. Securities and Exchange Commission;



"SFO" refers to the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chopter £71 of the
Lows of Hong Kong). as amended. supplemented or othamwise modified
fromn time to time;

"SEX-ST" refers to Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited;
“Share(s)” iefar to our ordinary shareds), par valua of US30001 ecch;
“Shareholkder(s)” refars to holden(s) of our Share(s) from time to time;
“Stock Exchanga” refars to The Stock Exchangs of Hong Kong Limited;

“Studic City” refars to a cinematically-themad infegrated ertertainment,
retail and gaming resort in Cotai, Macouw

“Studic City Dewvelopments” refers to our subsidiary, Studio City
Developments Limited (formery known as MSC  Deserwolvimentos,
Limitada and East Asia Satelite Television Limited). @ Mocou company in
whilch wea own $0% of the aquity Interast:

“Sthudio City Finance” refers to Studio City Finance Limited, which is a
company incorporatad in the British Virgin lslands with limited lkabilty,
B oo a wholy-owned indirect subsidiary of 3C1 and the isuer of the
Studio City Notes;

“Shudic City Motes” refers to the USS825.0 milion aggregate principal
amount of 8.50% senior notes due 2020 ssued by Studic City Finance on
November 26, 2012

“Studio City Project Facility” refers to the senior secured project facility,
dated January 28, 2013, entered infe between. among others, Studio City
Company Limitad as bomowar and cartaln subsidiarias as guanantorns for
a total sum of HK$10,855, 880,000 and consisting of a delayed draw term
lean facility and a revebving credit focility,

“TWD" and "New Tahwan dollars” refer to the legal cumancy of Talwan:
“USE” and "US. dollars” refar to the legal curancy of the Unitad States:

"US" and “United States™ refer fo the United States of America s
tarritorias, its possassions and all areas subject to ifs jursdiction:

"S5 GAAPT refers to the accounting principles gensrally cccepted in
the United Stotes:

“we, TusT, Tour”, Tour Company”, “the Company”, "MCE" and "Malco
Crewn Entertainmeant” refar 1o Melco Crown Entertainment Limted and,
o the context requires, its predecessor entities ond s consolidoted
subsidiarias; and

“Wynn Macau® refars o Wynn Resorts (Macau) 5.A.
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Definitions and Glossary

GLOSSARY “diop box”
“evetage daily rate” of caleulated by dividing total oom revanues
“ADR" (lass service charges, f any) by total rooms
occupled, Le., overoge price of occupied
rooms par day “gaming machine handle
{volurne)”
“coga” a secura room within a casino with a facility

that allows patrons fo exchange cash for  @aming promoter” or
chips required to paricipate in gaming — Mnket representative”
activities, or te exchange chips for cash

“ehip® round token that B used on casine gaming
tablas in lisu of cash

“Eoncession” a geovemmant grant for the operation of
gameas of fortune and chance in casings in
Macou wunder an administrative  contract
pursuant to which @ concessionairs, or the integrated resort”
entity holding the concession, i outhorzed
to oparate gamas of forfune and chance in
casings in Macau

“deqler a casine employee who fakes and pays out
wagers of othenvise oversess a goming table  funket player

“drop” tha amount of cash fo purchase gaming
chips and promotional vouchers that ore ~Marker
depasited in a gaming table’s drop box plus
gaming chips purchased at the casine cage

M8 Masloo Cromn Entersainment Umited  Annvual Repard 2012

a box or containar that serves as a rapasitany
for cash, chips. chip purchase vouchers, cradit
markers and forms used to record movements
in the chip inventory on each table gome

the total omount wogered in  gaming
machines

an individual or comporate entity who, for
the pupose of promoting reling chip and
other goming oactivities. armanges customer
transportation and accommodation, provides
credit in s sole discretion  authorzed by
a goming operator and  amanges  food
and baverage services and entertainreant
in exchange for commissions or ofher
compensation from a gaming operator

a rasort which provides customers with a
combination  of hotel  accommadations,
casings of gaming areas, ratall and dining
focilities. MICE space, entertainmeant venuas
and spas

a playar sourced by goming promoters o
play In the VIP gaming rooms of arecs

avidence of indabtadness by a player to tha
casing or gaming opearatar



“mcss market patron”

“maxss market segment”

“mess market toble games
drop”

“micss market table gameas
hold parcantage”

“mass market toble games
segment”

“MICE”

“non-negoticble chip”

“non-rolling chip” of
“traditional cash chip”

a custemer who plays in the mass market
sagment

consists of both table gomes and skot
machines played on public mass gaming
floors by mass market potrons for cash stakes
that are typically lower than those in tha
rolling chip segment

the amount of toble games drop in the maoss
market table games segment

moss  market  table games win 9z a
parcentage of mas market table gomes
drop

the mass market segment consisting of mass
market potrons whe play table gomes

Meatings, Incenfives. Conventions and
Exhibitions, an acronym commonly used to
rafar to tourism invalving large groups brought
together for an event or specific purpose

promotional casine chip that b ot to ba
axchanged for cash

chip that can be axchanged for cash, usad
by mass markat patrons to make wagers

“pramium direct playear”

“progressive jockpot”

“ocoupancy rate”

“revenus per available room”

or "REVPAR”

“rolling chip”

“rolling chip patron™

a rolling chip player who is a direct customer
of the concessionaires or subconceassionaires
and & attracted to the casing through direct
marksting efforts and relationships with the
goming opeator

a jackpeot for a slot machine or table game
where the value of the jockpet increases as
wagers are made: multiple slot mochines
or table games may be linked together to
sstablish one progressive jockpot

the average percentage of avallable hotel
reoms occupled durng o perlod

calkcuiated by dividing total room revenuss
{lesz service charges § any) by fotal
coms  available, thereby mepresenting o
combination of hotel average daily room
rates and occupancy

non-nagotiable chip primarily usad by rolling
chip patrons te make wagars

a ployar who B prmarily a VIP player
and typlecally receives wvarous forms
of  complimantary  sarvices  from  the
gaming promotals of concassiondiras  of
subconcessionaires
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Definitions and Glossary

“rolling chip segrmant”

“rolling chip volsme ™

“rolling chip win rate”

“slot machine”

“subconcession”

“tabla gameas win®

"WIP gaming reom” or
“WIP gaming area”

consits of table games playad in privata VIP
gaming reoms of araas by rolling chip pations
who are eithar premium direct players or
Junket players

the amount of non-negotiable chips wagered
and lost by the rolling chip market segmeant

reling chip table gomes win (calculated
before discounts and commissions) @
percaentage of reling chip volume

traditional gaming machine operated by a
single ployer and electrondc  multiple-player
gaming machinas

an agreement for the operation of gomes
of fortune and chance in casinos between
the ertity holding the concession. or the
concessiondaine, a subconcessionaire and the
Macau government, pursuant to which the
subconcessicnaira i authorized to operate
games of fortune and chance in casinos in
Macau

the amount of wogers won net of woagers
kst on gaming tablkes that i retained and
recordad as coging revenLas

gaming reoms or areas that have restricted
access to roling chip patrons and typically
offar more personalized service than the
genaral mass market gaming areas
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“wat stage pedormance
theatar”

“win percantage-gaming
machines”

the approximately  2.000-seat  theater
spacificaly designad to stage “The Hows of
Dancing Water” show

goming maching win expressed a3 Q
percentage of gaming machine handle



Appendix | — 2006 Share Incentive Plan
and 2011 Share Incentive Plan

2006 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

Wa adopted the 2004 Share Incentive Plan to attract and retain the
best available perscnnel for positions of substanticl responsibility, provides
additional incentives to employess, directors and corsultants and to
promate the succass of our business, The 2005 Share Incentive Plan has baen
succeaded by our 2011 Share Incentive Plan. No further awards may be
granted under the 20046 Share Incentive Plan, All subsequent awards will be
sasad undar tha 2011 Share Incentive Plan Awards previously granted under
the 2006 Share Incentive Plan shall ramain subject to the terms and conditions
of the 2006 Share Incentive Plan,

The following parogrophs describe the principal terms incleded in the 2006
Shara Incanthve Plan.

Types of Awards. The awards permitted to be granted under our 2006 Shars
Incantive Plan included options to purchase our Shares and restricted Sharas.

Eligikility. We weare parmitted to grant awards to employees, directors and
consultants of our Company or any of our related entities. including Melzo,
Crown, other joint vanture entities of Maleo or Crown, our own subsidiarnas or
any anfities in which we hold a substantial ownership interast, Howaver, we
could grant options that are infendad to qualify as incantive share options
only o our employess.

Maximum Number of Shares. Undaer the 2006 Share Incentive Plan the
rmaximum aggregate number of Sharas which could be issuad pursuant to all
awands (including Shares issuable upon exsrcise of options) was 100,000,000
aver 10 years,

Plan Administrafien. Our compensation committee would adminkter the
20046 Share Incentive Plan and detemina the provisions and terms and
conditions of each award grant,

Award Agreement. Awards granted were to be evidenced by an award
agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each
ciwaird.

Exercise Price and Term of Awards. In general, the plan administrator would
determine the exercike price of an option and set forth the price in the award
agreamant. The axercise price could ba a fivsed or variable prica relatad to
the fair market value of cur Shares. f we granted an incantive share option to
an employee who, at the time of that grant, ewned Shares represanting more
than 10% of the voting power of all ckizsses of our share capital the axerciss
price could not be less than 110% of the foir markaet value of our Shares on
thea date of that grant. The tarm of each award would be stated in the award
agreamant, and would not axcead 10 years from the date of the grant.

Vesting Schedule. In geraral the plan administrator determined, or the
award agresment would specify. the vesting schadule.

As of December 31, 2012 the unvested share options gronted undar the 2006
Share Incantive Plan reprasented approximataly 0.309% of our sued share
capital, If all the unwested share options wera to be axerciied and vasted
during the year ended December 31, 2012 on an unaudited prodorma basis,
there would be a diuticn effect en the sharholdings of cur Sharsholkders of
approximately 0.308% and basic eamings per Share of USS0.0008.
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pendix | — 2006 Share Incentive Plan

and 2011 Share Incentive Plan

2011 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

We adopted the 2011 Share Incentive Plan to provide our emplovess,
directors and consultants with incentives to increase shareholder valus,
and to attract and retain the services of those upon whom we depend for
the succass of our businsss. The 2011 Share Incantive Plan was conditionally
approved by our Sharsholders at the extracrdinary general mesting held on
Cctober & 2011 and become effective upen commencement of dealings
In our Shares on the Stock Exchanga on December 7, 2011, Tha 2011 Share
Incantive Plan succeads the 2006 Share Incentiva Plan.

The following paragraphs summarize the principal terms of the 2011 Share
Incentive Plan.

Types of Awards. Tha awards that may be granted undar the plan ncluds
options, incentive share options, restricted Shares, share oppreciation rights.
dividend equiralants, share payments, defered shares and rastricted share
units.

Eligikility. We may grant awards fo employess, directors and consultants
of our Company, any parent or subsidiary of ow Company, or any of our
ralated antities that cur Board dasignates as a related entity for the purposss
of the 2011 Share Incentive Plan. Our compensation committes may from
time to fime select from among eligible individuals thase to whom awards
shall be grarted, However only employees of our Company or of a parent
or subsidiary of our Company are eligible fo recebhre incentive share option
awards.

Maximum Number of Shares. The maximum aggregote number of Shares
which may be isued pusuant to all awards undar the 2011 Share Incantive
Plan i 100,000,000 sharas, which reprasents 6.016% of the issued shara capital
of the Company as of this date. This limit may be increased from time to
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time, but by ne more than 10% of the Shares then in issue as af the date of
the Shareholders’ meeting to approve such increase. The Shares which may
be Bued upon exercise of all cutstanding awards granted and yet to be
axarcisad undar tha plan shall not excead 0% of the Shares in Bsus frarm firms
to time, as prascribad under relevant Listing Rules.

Maximum Entitlement of Option Helders. The maxdmum aggregate number
of Shares underlying an option grant shall not, in any 12-month pedod up
to the date of grant, exceed 1% of the rumber of Shares in ksue on the
date of grant unless Shareholders’ approval k oblained in cccordance
withy the Listing Rulas. The maximum aggregate number of Shares to ba
Bauad upon exarcize of options gronted to a substantial Shareholder or
an indepandent non-axecutive director of our Compary. of any of their
respective associates. shall not exceed 0.1% of the Shares in Bsue on the
offer date or hove an aggregate value, based on the official closing price
of tha Sharas a8 quoted by the Stock Exchange on the offar date, in excass
of HKSS milion unless Sharsholders’ approval & obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules. Such limits may be amended from time to time by the
Stock Exchange. Our compeansation committes may not grant options to a
diractor, chief axacutive or substantial Shareholdsr of our Company, or any of
their respective associates, without approval by independent nen-executive
Directors on the compensation committaa at tha time of such datermination.

Cption Periods and Payments. Our compansation commiftes may in its
discration detarmine, subjact to the plan expiration perod: the parod within
which Shares must be faken up under an option: the minimum period, f any.
for which an option must be held before it con be exercised: the amount, if
any. payable on application or accaptance of the option: and the perod
within which paymants or calls must or moay be mads or loans for such
purposes must be repaid,



Plan Administration. Our compensation committee will adminiter the 2011
Share Incentiva Plan and has the powar to, among ofther actions, designate
aligible participants, determine the number and types of awards 1o be
granted, and et the terms and conditions of each award grant.

Award Agreement. Awards gronfed will be evidenced by an award
agraamant that sets forth the terms condiions and limitations for each
awarnd.

Exercise Price. In general, the compensation committes may establish the
avarcisa price or purchasa price, if any, of any award. The exarcise price of
an option may be a fiked or varable price related to the fair market value of
our Sharas, but in any event shall not be lass than the highest of: the official
clodng price guoted on the Stock Exchange on the date such option s
offared in writing fo a participant, or the offer date; the average of the official
closing prices as quotad on the Stock Exchange for tha five business days
immediataly preceding the offer dater and the nominal value of a Share. If
we grant an incentive share option award to an employese who, ot the tims
of that grant, owns Shares reprasenting more than 10% of the voting power of
all clossas of our Shares, the axarcise price may not ba lass than 110% of the
fair morket value of our Sharas on the date of that grant,

Term of Awards. The term of each award shall be stated in the award
agreement, and may not excaed 10 yaars from the date of the grant. If
tha parficipant ceases to ba aligible for any recson, the validity of the
award shall depend on the terms and conditions of the award agraement.
For a paricipont granted an incenfive share option, upon three months
of tammination of amployment as an amployes, fhe right to everciss the
incentive share option shall ba revoked.

Transferability. Rights in awards are personal to porticipants and, except
s oiherwis provided by our compansation committes, no award shall ba
cissigned, transterrad, or othanvise disposed of by a participant other than by
will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Adjustments. In the event of aony share split, combination or exchange of
shares, spin-off, recapitalzation, reorganization, meargar, consolidation or any
other change affecting our share capital, our compensation committasa shall
make proportionate and equitable adiustments to reflect such change with
respact to: () the aggregate number and types of shares that may be issued
undar the plarg (i} tha terms and conditions of any cutstanding awards, and
(i)} the grant price or exarcise price per share for ary cutstanding awards.

Change in Control Transactions. In the aevent of a change In the control
of our Company, our compensation commiftee may in its scle discration
provide for termination. purchase o mealeation of awards, or replacemeant
of awards with other rights or propenty. Upon the consummation of a merger
or conselidation in which our Company & not the surviving entity. a sale of
substantially all of our assafs, the cormplate liquidation or dssolution of ow
Company or a reverss taksover, each award will terminate, unlass the award
s assumed by the successor antity. If the successor entity assumes the award
of reploces it with o comparable oward, or replaces the oward with a cash
incentive program and provides for subsaquent payout, the replacement
award or cash incentive program will autematically become fully vested,
axaicisable and payable, as applicable, upon termination of the participant’s
employment without cause within 12 months of such comonate transaction, If
the award B nelfther assumed nor replaced, it shall becoma fully vested and
exercizable and released from ary repurchase of forfaiture rights immedictaly
prior to the effective date of such corporate trarsaction, provided that
the padicipont remains eligible on the effective date of the comperate
transaction,
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Appendix | — 2006 Share Incentive Plan
and 2011 Share Incentive Plan

Amendment and Termination. Subject to opplicoble lows,  our
compansation committes may ferminate, amend of madify tha 2011 Share
Incantive Plan upon sbiaining the approval of our Board and the approval
of the Shareholders for the amended plan However no amandment
maodification or termination shall adversely affect in any matarial way any
award previcusly granted under 2011 Share Incentive Plan or any previows
plans. without the prior wiittan corsant of the participant.

Expiration, The 2011 Share Incentfive Plan will expirg 10 years ofter the date
it became effective. Mo awards may be granted pursuant fo the 2011 Share
Incantive Plan aftar that tims.

Vesting Schedule. In gensral the plon administrator determined, or the
award agreement would specify, the vesting schedula,

As of Dacamber 31, 2012 the unvested share options granted under the 2011
Share Incentive Plan represented approximataly 0.115% of our issuad shara
capital. ¥ all the unvested share options were to be exerciksd and vested
during the yaar andad Dacember 31, 2012 on an unoudited pro-fomma bests,
thare would ba a dilution effect on tha shareholdings of our Sharshalders of
approximately 0.115% and basic earmings per share of USS0.0003.
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